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_·Saint Meinrad' s .Abbey 
Principal _Aim:-
Solemnizatian of · Divine Service through Liturgy and Chant 

. -'Activities:--
., .Educating young men for the holy priesthood. Conducting R~treats for 

Laymen. Indian Mission Work among the Sioux and Chippewa.· 
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... ''That in all things God may be glorified1 11-Rule of St. Benedict. · 
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You need not deprive yourself of the fruits of your labors; rather you can 
. enjoy them . more safely through a . lifelong investment. 
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for an Annuity Plan Bo_oklet . 
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SAINT MARY-OF-THE-WOODS GOLLEGE 
Saint Mary-of-the-Woods, Indiana 

A standard colleg·e holding full membership in the North Central Association 
of Colleges, the Catholic Educational Association, the Association of American 
Colleges, and the American Association of University Women. 
Accredited with the Indiana State Board of Education, all State Universities, 

The Catholic University of America. 
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Courses leading to the A.B., and B.S. degrees. 
Indiana State Teachers' Certificates. 

In the Depar_tment of Music-
Teachers' and Artists' Certificate Courses. 
Degree B.S. i~ Music, B.S. in Music Education, and A.B. with major 

in music, conferred by the College of Arts and Sciences. 

Drawing, water color, oil, commercial art, fashion illustration, figure 
study. Degree course . 

In the Department of Speech and Dramatics-
Various elective courses. Degree cour:se. Indiana State Certificate. 

In the Department of Journalism-
Degree course. Various elective courses. Practical experience on 

publications. 

The ·First Ca:tholic institution in Indiana empowered to confer collegiate degrees to women. 
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UN.IVERSITY 

OF 

NOTRE 

DAME 

• College of Arts and Letters 
Modern Languages Classics 

• College of Science • College of Engineering : . 
Philosophy English 
Sociology Economics 
Religion Secondary Education 

Physical Education 
Journalism 
Speech 
Music 

Chemistry 
Biology 

' Physics 
Mathematics 
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Astronomy 
Pharmacy 

History Politics • Art 
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• College of Commerce 

Mechancil Engineering 
Electrical Engineering 
Mining Engineering 
Civil Engineering 

Aeronautical Engineering 
Chemical Engineering 
Mechanical Drawing 
Architecture 
Metallurgy 

• College-of Law Finance and Accounts 
Foreign Commerce 
Marketing and Business Administration • Summer Session 

Full information from the Registrar, Notre Dame, Ind. 
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EMPIRE 
Life and Accident Insurance Company 

-2/~ 

Empire Life Building, Indianapolis, Indiana 

ORDINARY. ANNUITIES . CO·MMERCIAL 
A complete line of Ordinary Life Insurance, Annui­
ties, and Commercial Contracts are a part of the 
Insurance Service offered by the Empire, a Com­
pany doing business since 1908. 

The Empire's financial integrity is unquestionable, 
with its ratio of assets to reserves greatly in excess 
of that required by law. 

The Company Also Writes Industrial Life and 
Industrial Health and Accident Insurance 

Over $6,000,000.00 in Benefits Paid to Policyholders 
and Their Beneficiaries 

C. S. DRAKE, President 

0 n e H u n d r e d Y e a r s A g o_ 
all the money in the world could not have 
bought even one telephone conversation. 
Now for a few cents a day you may have 
your own personal telephone. From it you 
may talk to your neighbor next door, to your . 
friend on the other side of the world, or even 
to a business associate on board ship in mid­
ocean. 

INDIANA BELL 
TELEPHONE COMPANY 
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Mount St.Francis Pro-Semi~ary 
near New Albany in Southern Indiana 

FLOYDS KNOBS, INDIANA 

The Franciscan Order of Friars Minor Conventual 
Province of Our Lady of Consolation 

invites correspondence and applications from serious- minded 
young men who seek to attain the dignity of the Holy 
Priesthood among the Sons of St.Francis of Assisi. 

Mt. St. Francis Seminary 
offers 4 years High School 
and 1 year College Training. 
Moral and Religious instruc­
tions go hand in hand with 
intellectual courses and 
systematic physical exercise. 

Mt. St. Francis Seminary 
is a first -class High School, 
commissioned by the State 
of Indiana, and the Fathers 
are teachers with University 
training, and licensed by the 
State Board of Education. 

For further information and booklet address 

Very Rev. Fr. Andrew, M.A., O.M.C., Rector 
ST.FRANCIS PRO-SEMINARY FLOYDS KNOBS, INDIANA 
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The primary purpose of this edition is to commemorate two 
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this edition has still another purpose, and that is to· tell some­
thing of the glories of the diocese and what constitutes these 
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should, in its own way, help to extend the knowledge of this 
rich historical background, it will have served a useful task. 
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THE COVER DESIGN. Tradition has it that the first church to he 
built west of the Allegheny mountains was erected at Vincennes in 1702. 
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And Achievement 
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The pledge to which it has strictly adhered through its thirty years is 
QUALITY, SERVICE and SAFETY FIRST. 

A REMARKABLE RECORD 
The Company assets and surplus increased every year and are now the 
LARGEST IN ITS HISTORY. 

DURING FIVE DEPRESSION YEARS 
ASSETS increased 54.2 % 
SURPLUS increased 84.1 % 

In addition, the Company paid $8,216,305.89 to Policyholders and benefici­
aries during these years. Since organization, the Company has paid to and 
invested for Policyholders $30,675,688.37. 

Insurance in Force totals over $95,500,000.00. 

A LEADER IN INDIANA 
The citizens of Indiana own over $41,000,000.00 of quality insurance in 
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The Story of a Diocese 

Foreword 

I F the echoes which awak­
ened the slumbering for­
ests three centuries ago in 
that spot of the New 

World now known as Indiana, 
could be reproduced, and if the 
shadowy forms of the early mis­
sionaries and of our forefathers 
in their everyday lives could 
move across a vast screen, what 
a story of courage would be told ! 
For courage in an heroic degree 
was demanded of both mission­
ary and layman who, through 
the stormy years of hardship, 
persecution, and bigotry, dared 
to hold high above all the torch 
of Catholicism which lights our 
path through the years of the 
twentieth century with an ever­
expanding circle of Sanctuary 
lamps whose glow falls like a 
halo around their deeds. 

Whether the planting of the 
Cross of Christ in Indiana dates 
as far back as 1632, when the 
Archbishop of Rouen, with the 
approbation of the Holy See, 
extended his jurisdiction over 
the entire country; or a few 
years later, 1659, when the new­
ly consecrated Francois Laval, 
Bishop of Petraea and Vicar 
Apostolic of New France arrived 
in Quebec ; or at the time the 
Bulls creating the See of Quebec 
were issued in 167 4, when Bish­
op Laval was appointed to the 
Bishopric, it matters little to the 
enthusiastic Hoosier who feels 
that the very hills and valleys of 
his native state knew Catholi­
cism since the moment of the 
New World's discovery in 1492. 

However, according to. his­
tory, the first white man's foot­
steps on Indiana soil were those 
of a French Jesuit missionary 
who came from the old French 
mission of St. Joseph, one of the 
oldest Jesuit missions in the 
Lake region, to labor among the 
Miamis during the latter part 
of the seventeenth century, 
probably in 1675. Mass was first 
said in Indiana by a Catholic 
priest in 1676 on the same spot 
where later a French stockade 
is generally supposed to have 

Erected in 1834, the Diocese of Vince nnes orig­

inally included not only the entire State of 

Indiana, but the eastern half of Illinois as well. 

Rich in historical interest, the record of its 

development and progress is an inspiration. 

been erected north of the pres­
ent Catholic hospital, between 
the canal and the St. Mary's 
river, near Fort Wayne. 

The first written notice of the 
old military post, Vincennes, is 
said to be found in a letter of the 
Rev. Gabriel Marest, a mission­
ary of the Society of Jesus, to a 
Father Germon, also a Jesuit, in 
which Father Marest is quoted 
as having written, "the French 
having lately established a fort 
on the river Wabash, demanded 
a missionary, and Father Mer­
met was sent to them." The let­
ter was dated at Kaskaskia, a 
village in Illinois, November 9, 
1712. 

Although historians differ as 
to the date of the establishment 
of the post, and even though the 
first recorded fact in the history 
of the Catholic Church at Post 
Vincennes was a marriage dated 
April 21, 17 49, at St. Francis 
Xavier church there, and which 
bore the signature of the Rev. 
Sebastian Meurin, S.J ., the actu­
al records of that church show 
that the parish dates back to the 
year 1702. These records, as 
furnished by the Rev. James 
Gregoire, the present pastor 
(1935), not only disclose this 
early date, but they also carry a 
list of names of the twenty-four 
priests who, in addition to the 
unknown Jesuit (1702 to 1707) 
and Father Gregoire, cared for 
the spiritual needs of the people 
during this period of two hun­
dred and thirty-three years. His­
tory relates that the first Mass 
at Vincennes was celebrated in 
1702 by a French Jesuit mis­
sionary from Canada, in the 
presence of astonished savages. 
Vincennes was served by priests, 
most likely missionaries, with­
out interruption according to 
records at St. Francis Xavier up 
to the year 1763. 

THE Catholic inhabitants about 
Vincennes found themselves 

in a pathetic plight when the 
r Rev. Julien Deveruai, S.J., who 

labored in their midst from the 
year 1756 to 1763, and who was 

the last m1ss10nary to reside 
there, was forced to leave the old 
post. Through the order of the 
Superior Council of New Or­
leans under which the Jesuits 
were banished from the mis­
sions of Michigan, Indiana, and 
Illinois, the pioneers were de­
prived of all religious. consola­
tion for a period of about seven 
years. Religious fer vor declined, 
and in their spiritual misery 
they besought their Bishop in 
Quebec for aid in 1767. Times 
were so troublesome that no re­
sponse was received. The Rev. 
Pierre Gibault, residing then at 
Kaskaskia, wrote to the Bishop 
on behalf of the people early in 
the year 1769; and another let­
ter was sent in April of the 
same year. 

Father Gibault was then . di­
rected to take char ge of Vin­
cennes. He came in 1770 and 
continued to serve until 1785. 
It is said that for a long period 
of time Father Gibault was the 
only priest laboring in Indiana 
and Illinois. 

History m o v e d r a p i d 1 y 
through the years from 1778 to 
1784. George Rogers Clark cap­
tured Kaskaskia in 1778, taking 
possession for the Common-:- _, 
wealth of Virginia, and told Fa­
ther Gibault of his p lans for In­
diana. The priest, who was in 
sympathy with the American 
cause, hastened to Vincennes 
where he lent his influence in 
winning over the people. After 
a short time the Brit ish Gover­
nor Hamilton came from Detroit 
and took the town in the name 
of the King of England ; · and in 
February, 1779, Colonel Clark 
retook the place from the Brit­
ish. From then until 1784 it 
was attached to Virginia. 

During these civil and polit­
ical changes, the Indiana terri­
tory still was a part of the Dio­
cese of Quebec; but on June 9, 
1 784, by a decree of the Sacred 
Congregation of Propaganda, 
the newly federated United 
States became a separate eccles­
iastical divisjon, with the Very 
Rev. John Carroll its Prefect 

Apostolic. Then the question 
arose as to the ecclesiastical j ur­
isdiction of Indiana, and it w:as 
settled when, by an Apostolic• 
Brief of November 5, 1789, ex_. 
actly forty-five years to the day 
previous to Bishop Brute's arriv- · 
al in Vincennes, the Indiana ter­
ritory was assigned to the Pre­
fect Apostolic of the United 
States. In the meantime, Bulls 
erecting the Diocese of Balti­
more, and appointing Father 
Carroll the first Bishop were is­
sued November 6, 1789. 

A HAPPY thought at a crucial · 
time seemed responsible 

for- the saving of many of the 
Catholic people, or at least for 
their return to duty after the' ... •. 
absence of a missionary for 
some time in the vicinity of Vin­
cennes. Records at the church 
show a lapse of time between the 
years 1 785 and the coming of 
the Rev. Benedict J. Flaget in 
1792. Historical records that 
have dealt with a period from 
1789 to 1792 state that the 
only opportunity offered-the peo-
ple of Vincennes to hear Mass - · 
and to receive the Sacraments : 
occurred when priests en route 
to some. other place happened to -­
stop at the old post. It must be 
remembered that missionary 
priests were not nearly numer-
ous enough to care for the scat­
tered missions. A layman, Pierre 
Mallet, was in charge of St. 
Francis Xavier church until the 
arrival of another priest. 

There was little wonder that 
when Father Flaget came on 
December 21, 1792, he found the 
picture anything but encourag­
ing. Both the spiritual condition · 
of the people and the actual 
structure of the little church 
were greatly in need of care. 
The zealous priest, however, · did · 
not become disheartened, but in­
stead he decided to reach the , 
hearts of the parents through 
their children. He opened a 
school and became its first teach­
er. The children were taught 
the ordinary subjects of their 
day, the principles of Chris~ian 

• I 
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Doctrine, and the prayers of the 
Church. A singing class was 
formed which absorbed so much 
of the children's interest that 
the beautiful hymns of the 
Church were sung by the youth­
ful choristers not only in church 
and school, but also while they 
were engaged in tasks of man­
ual labor. Boys were taught to 
serve at the Altar. The happy 
consequence of all this was that 
the children advanced in piety 
and devotion, and the hearts of 
the parents were deeply moved. 
Then it was that the good 
priest's dreams were realized­
the parents determined not to be 
outdone by their children, fre­
quented the Sacraments of Pen­
ance and Holy Eucharist. 

Father Flaget, who was a 
member of the Society of St. 
Sulpice at Paris, and who came 
to Baltimore in March, 1792, 
was recalled by his Superior in 
1795 to fill an office in St. Mary's 
Seminary, Baltimore. He was 
succeeded by the Rev. John 
Francis Rivet, who, through 
Bishop Carroll's efforts, was is­
sued a United States commission 
as "Missionary to the Indians" 
with a yearly allowance of about 
two hundred dollars. He ar­
rived at Vincennes June 12, 
1795, and is recorded as having 
·served until 1804, when, feeling 
that his earthly . labors were 
·nearly at an end he notified the 
nearest priest, the Rev. Dona­
tian Olivier, at Prairie du Roch­
er, but passed to his eternal re­
ward in February, 1804, before 
the arrival of Father Olivier. 

As time went on the popula­
tion in this part of the country 
increased, much because of the 
emigrants who were coming in 
and also because of the purchase 
of the Louisiana country. On 
April 8, 1808, four new Dioceses 
were created in the United 
States, those of Boston, New 
York, Philadelphia, and Bards­
town, of which Father Flaget 
became Bishop of the last. In­
diana, came under the j urisdic­
tion of Bardstown. When Fa­
ther Badin visited the post in the 
Spring of 1808, he already noted 
that a Bishop was needed for the 
Indiana territory. 

SEVERAL priests' names ap-
. pear upon the church records 

at St. Francis Xavier after the 
death of Father Rivet. Finally, 
on March 20, 1823, Bishop Fla­
get ordained the Rev. Leo Cham­
-pomier at the Bardstown Semi­
nary and on June 11 of the same 
year appointed him to Vin­
cennes. Four Sisters of Charity 
came from Nazareth, Kentucky, 
to care for the educational needs 
of the place. During this time 
of apparent better fortune at 
the old post, Father Champo­
mier lived in poverty. Not only 
did he clothe and feed himself, 
but he had traveling expenses as 
well to meet, these travels tak­
ing him on an average of three 
thousand miles a year. And yet, 
he received scarcely forty-five 
dollars annually. 

With the increase of popula­
tion in Indiana, Father Champo­
mier in 1825 courageously 
started the task of seeking 
funds to build a new church. 
His appeals to France, to the 
public at Vincennes, St. Louis, 
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and the neighboring places. in 
Missouri, Louisville, and Scott 
county in Kentucky, and through 
Father Badin to the Society for 
the Propagation of the Faith in 
France, met with a generous re­
sponse. The Western Sun, a 
newspaper in Vincennes, car­
ried in its issue of March 4, 
1826, an announcement that the 
cornerstone ceremonies would 
take place March 30, 1826; also, 
that the Diocese of Vincennes 
would soon be erected. 

The new church progressed 
rapidly, but on November 6 of 
the same year the cornerstone 
was laid, a hurricane blew down 
two sides of the building. These 
were rebuilt and the church was 
completed sufficiently to be used 
for services in the summer of 
1827. 

Among the memorable events 
recorded in 1830 were the com­
ing of Father Badin to labor 
with the Potawatomies in the 
northern part of the state at a 
place known as the St. Joseph's 
country, and the ordination at 
Bardstown of the Rev. Simon 
Lalumiere, the first native of 
Vincennes to receive Holy Or­
.ders. He was sent to Daviess 
county, Indiana, as a mission­
ary. 

Although the erection of a 
new Diocese in the Northwest 
Territory had been under con­
sideration for more than ten 
years, its establishment did not 
take place until 1834. The Rev. 
Simon Brute, having been 
named its first Bishop dedicated 
his new charge to heaven in the 
following words that appeared 
in his first pastoral letter dated 
at St. Louis, October 29, 1834, 

the day following his consecra­
tion: 

"We place our Cathedral un­
der the special protection of 
Saint Francis Xavier, the whole 
Diocese under that of the glori­
ous Mother of God, the Blessed 
Virgin Mary, towards whom it 
was in all ages the spirit of the 
Church that all Christians 
should entertain the most ten­
der devotion." 

LOOKING far out over the 18,-
4 79 square miles of Hoosier­

dom that lay within the present 
boundaries of the Diocese of In­
dianapolis, which was formerly 
a portion of the Diocese of Vin­
cennes, and counting the two 
hundred and twenty-six crosses 
that surmount so many church­
es, missions, and chapels whose 
134,000 Catholic souls are spir­
itually cared for by nearly four 
hundred priests and prelates, 
Diocesan and Religious, an his­
torical narrative savors of the 
miraculous as it recalls that 
when Simon William Gabriel 
Brute de Remur, first Bishop of 
Vincennes, arrived in that See 
city November 5, 1834, he found 
one priest, the Rev. S. Lalu­
miere. 

Father Lalumiere was the 
first priest ordained by the Rt. 
Rev. (as the title was used in 
those days) Benedict Joseph 
Flaget, Bishop of Bardstown, 
for Vincennes, and the only res­
ident priest in the State of Indi­
ana. 

This Diocese, which has just 
closed its first Centennial year, 
was established by a decree of 
Pope Gregory XVI, May 6, 1834. 

Besides Father Lalumiere, 

Father Pierre Gibault, pioneer priest, through 
whose efforts the inhabitants of Vincennes were 
won over to the cause of the American colonies. 

there were only two other 
priests in the entire Diocese at 
that time, one, Father Ferne­
ding, who labored among the 
German missions one hundred 
and fifty miles distant, and the 
other, Father St. Cyr, who was 
stationed at Chicago and whom 
the Rt. Rev. Joseph Rosati, Bish­
op of St. Louis, had permitted 
to assist Bishop Brute for a 
year. 

As he made his way over 
those old, rugged hillsides of 
our own southern Indiana a 
century ago, the first shepherd 
of Vincennes must have felt a 
kinship with the shepherds of 
Bethlehem when he beheld for 
the first time the humble abode 
of his Lord and Savior-the 
church of St. Francis Xavier, 
the first Cathedral. 

Bishop Brute was enthroned 
as the first Ordinary of the Dio­
cese of Vincennes on the eve­
ning of November 5, 1834, and 
what was perhaps the first re­
corded celebration in the Dio­
cese was the simple, joyful 
greeting attended him on · the 
day of his arrival at the See city 
when he was met some miles 
before reaching his destination 
by a number of citizens, both 
Catholic and Protestant, on 
horseback, who had accompa­
nied Father Lalumiere. A little 
later an Indian welcome awaited 
Bishop Brute when he visited 
.in the neighborhood of the Tip­
pecanoe river and the village of 
Chickakos. Their devotion was 
shown in the presentation of a 
half section, three hundred and 
twenty acres, of their land. 

IN a document written by Bish-
op Brute to the Leopoldine 

Association, the condition of the 
Diocese of Vincennes in its in­
fancy was clearly stated along 
with an account of the Bishop's 
first Episcopal visitation 
through Indiana, and a simply 
worded picture of the poor little 
Cathedral church in Vincennes. 
Although situated in the most 
populated section of the town, 
the church and rectory, poor as 
they were, were said to have 
been the only brick buildings 
there at the time. The church, 
he said, was a plain building, 
measuring one hundred and fif­
teen feet long, and sixty feet 
wide, with the four walls and 
the roof unplastered and un­
painted. There was no sanctu­
ary, nor place for preserving the 
vestments and sacred vessels. 
An altar made of wood with a 
gilded tabernacle, and a cross 
and six beautiful candlesticks, a 
gift from France, were much in 
contrast with their surround­
ings. 

The house, built for the mis­
sionary, · and which now was to 
be used as the Bishop's resi­
dence, consisted of a small, com­
fortable room and closet, twen­
ty-five feet in length by twelve 
feet in width. A servant occu­
pied an old wooden building 
close by, and near it stood a sta­
ble, ( quoting the Bishop's own 
words) "ready for the Bishop's 
horse when he is able to get 
one." 

The people mostly were poor, 
illiterate, and of French descent. 
While they had lost neither their 
faith nor their love for their 
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> 
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ARCHDIOCESE OF BOSTON 
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Archdiocese February · 12, 1875 

ARCHDIOCESE OF PHILADELPHIA 
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ARCHDIOCESE OF CINCINNATI 
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Archdiocese July 19, 1850 

I 
DIOCESE OF DETROIT 

Erected March 8, 1833 
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I 

J 
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Archdiocese September 10, 1880 
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DIOCESE OF PEORIA 
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DIOCESE OF INDI~NAPOLIS 
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May 6, 1834 
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priests, they had grown negli­
gent in their religious duties. 

At the time of its establish­
ment, the Diocese of Vincennes, 
the thirteenth to be erected in 
the United States, comprised the 
entire State of Indiana and the 
eastern part of Illinois, the lat­
ter being separated from the Di­
ocese of Vincennes by the erec­
tion of the Diocese, now the 
Archdiocese, of Chicago, No­
vember 28, 1843. 

The northern half of the State 
of Indiana was erected into the 
Diocese of Fort Wayne by a de­
cree of Pope Pius IX on Janu­
ary 8, 1857, the boundaries be­
ing that portion of the state 
north of the south lines of Foun­
tain, Montgomery, Boone, Ham­
ilton, Madison, Delaware, Ran­
dolph, and Warren counties. The 
southern half of the state, which 
remained the Diocese of Vin­
cennes, is composed of fifty 
counties in Indiana, with a pop­
ulation of 1,619,079 according to 
U. S. Census of 1930. 

Just a hundred years previ­
ous, in 1830, the population of 
the entire State of Indiana was 
343,031, having increased since 
1810 from the small figure of 
24,127 according to historical 
records. Several thousand Cath­
olics were at that time widely 
scattered throughout the state, 
and other than at Vincennes, 
were principally of German and 
Irish extraction. 

FROM the year 1830 to 1840 a 
period of rapid growth was 

experienced in Indiana. The 
population of Vincennes, which 
was almost entirely French, 
numbered. fifteen hundred souls. 

Vincennes boasts of a distinc­
tion that is unique, in that the 
place was known and recognized 
by name, according to one his­
torian's account, "long before 
she was legally born." It was 
said to have been mentioned fre­
quently as "Borrough of Vin­
cennes" in official documents be­
fore the first act of incorpora­
tion had been passed in 1807. 

Vincennes', and in fact Indi­
ana's first newspaper, was is­
sued on July 4, 1804, by Elihu 
Stout. It was published regu­
larly for nearly two years when 
a fire destroyed the office. On 
July 4, 1807, publication was re­
sumed until 1845 when the pa­
per was sold. After this time a 
succession of newspapers under 
various names started until final­
ly in 1856 the paper was re-is­
sued by George E. Greene under 
its old name, "Western Sun." As 
to the original name of the paper 
there is conflicting information 
-one history of Vincennes pub­
lished in 1858 says the paper 
was first called the "Indiana Ga­
zette" ; another book published 
in 1901 called it the "Western 
Sun." 

A school had existed in Vin­
cennes at least from time to 
time, probably since the founda­
tion of the settlement; records 
state that "Vincennes had a 
school in 1786, and probably for 
many years before." The Rev. 
Pierre Gibault and the Rev. Ben­
edict Flaget had taught the chil­
dren in the very early years. An 
attempt to found a college in 
Vincennes had been made about 
the year 1818, but proved unsuc-
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The Rt. Rev. Simon Gabriel Brute, first 
Bishop of Vincennes. 

cessful. This attempt was made 
by the Rev. F. J eanjean who, 
with the Rev. Anthony Blanc, 
later the Archbishop of New Or­
leans, had been appointed resi­
dent missionaries there. The 
Sisters of Charity came from 
Kentucky in 1824 and opened an 
academy and a school, but were 
recalled to the Mother House a 
short time before Bishop Brute 
arrived, because of the hard­
ships with which they had met 
in Vincennes. 

One of the Bishop's first cares 
after arrival was to provide for 
the Sisters' return. They did 
return to the Diocese, and be­
fore very long about fifty day 
pupils and four boarders were 
in attendance. 

Besides the Vincennes school 
only a few other schools existed 
at this time in the Diocese. It 
was said that schools were con­
tinued at St. Peter's, and St. 
Mary's churches in Daviess 
county under the direction of 
Father Lalumiere, at least from 
time to time even after the de­
parture of the Sisters. 

German Catholic settlements 
of some size existed farther to 
the south. These were attended 
by Father Ferneding at Dover 
( Cross Roads, McKenzie Settle-
ment) and New Alsace, in Dear­
born county. The same log 
buildings which served as 
churches on Sundays were prob­
ably used as schoolhouses dur­
ing the week, as this was the cus­
tom of the time in German set­
tlements. 

A frequent arrangement of 
school and church in pioneer 
parishes in Indiana was said to 
have been a log building of two 
stories, the upper part of which 

was used for Divine services. 
The lower floor was divided into 
two portions, one half used for 
a school, while the other half, 
which was subdivided into two 
small rooms, served as the pas­
toral residence. St. Joseph's 
church, Vanderburgh county, 
located nine miles northwest of 
Evansville and which was built 
in 1841, was said to have been 
typical of this arrangement. 

Records of the northern part 
of Indiana state that an Indian 
school was operated among the 
Potawatomies, at St. Joseph 
river, and one also among the 
Chickakos, on the Tippecanoe. 

The few foregoing para­
graphs furnish a meagre idea of 
educational conditions in the 
Diocese of Vincennes up to about 
July 16, 1835, when Bishop 
Brute left for France in search 
of aid. But before starting on 
this journey, the Bishop had 
much traveling to do about his 
own Diocese. 

IT was largely through his own 
writings concerning these 

early travels that the Catholic 
people in the Diocese of Indian­
apolis today, a hundred years 
later, are given some idea of the 
conditions as Bishop Brute 
found them. Very soon after 
his arrival in Vincennes he ac­
companied Father Lalumiere, or 
the Rev. Mr. Lalumiere as was 
the customary term in those 
early days, on a visit to his two 
missions, St. Peter's and St. 
Mary's, both of which were lo­
cated about twenty-five or thirty 
miles from Vincennes. The St. 
Mary's building was not quite 
completed, but Bishop Brute, 
who had been asked to name it, 

found much happiness in plac­
ing the first church which he 
had an opportunity to bless in 
his new Diocese under the pa­
tronage of the Blessed Virgin. 
He returned after about two 
weeks to bless it. 

The little chapel was built of 
logs as were nearly all the build­
ings in that community then, it 
being only fifteen or twenty 
years since these settlements 
were made. There were about a 
hundred and fifty Catholic fam­
ilies, most of them from Ken­
tucky, but some had come from 
Ireland. The same day on which 
Bishop Brute blessed the new 
mission church, St. Mary's, he 
also administered the Sacrament 
of Baptism a number of times 
and performed one marriage. 

Other places visited about the 
end of the year 1834, and which 
were located close to Vincennes, 
were Cat's River, thirteen miles 
from the town, where more than 
twenty-five or thirty families re­
sided ; and a congregation of 
fifty or sixty families in Edgar 
county, on the Illinois side of the 
Diocese and about seventy miles 
from Vincennes. 

Bishop Brute had prepared a 
class of about twenty young peo­
ple of Vincennes for their First 
Holy Communion at Christmas 
time, and sixty at Easter, many 
of whom were seventeen, eigh­
teen, and even twenty years old. 
The Sacrament of Confirmation 
was administered for the first 
time in the Cathedral of St. 
Francis Xavier by Bishop Brute 
on the following Sunday to a 
class of about ninety, mostly 
those who had just received 
their First Holy Communion. 

With a population of some­
thing near fifteen hundred souls 
under his immediate pastoral 
care, Bishop Brute gave two in­
structions every Sunday, one in 
French and the other in Eng­
lish, in addition to administer­
ing the Sacraments. 

The Bishop had sixty-five Bap­
tisms, ten marriages, twenty 
burials, and many sick calls in 
an eight-month period of his ad­
ministration. His sick calls 
were often six, seven, and ten 
miles from home. Four men 
were received in to the church, 
two of them upon their death 
bed. 

An insight into early finances 
in the Diocese is contained in a 
letter to Bishop Kenrick, De­
cember 18, 1834, about a month 
after Bishop Brute's arrival in 
Vincennes, in which he men­
tioned that the pew rent in his 
Cathedral amounted to a hun­
dred dollars, and · that the sub­
scription for his support was 
two hundred and forty dollars, 
but was not all paid. Another 
of Bishop Brute's writings 
states that a subscription which 
was intended to provide a yearly 
income for the Bishop's support 
did not reach two hundred dol­
lars and most of this was to be 
paid in grain if the people did 
not have the money. 

IT was not long before Bishop 
Brute was convinced that to 

obtain missionaries from other 
Dioceses to labor in his own vast 
Diocese, was an impossibility, 
so he decided to make an effort 
toward this end in Europe. Be-
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fore setting out for this purpose, 
however, he made a trip through 
the wilderness in the west and 
north sections of his territory, 
while Father Lalumiere visited 
the east and the south. 

After Easter in the year 1835 
the Bishop, in company with a 
man from Vincennes, traveled 
through Illinois, stopping in Ed­
gar county for the Paschal duty, 
then traveling north as far as 
Chicago on Lake Michigan 
where Father St. Cyr had ar­
rived from St. Louis in time for 
the Catholic people to receive 
their Easter Communion. Here 
Bishop Brute found a nice, 
though small church, and about 
four hundred souls of many na­
tionalities including French, Ca­
nadian, American, Irish and 
German. In a letter written by 
the Bishop at this time he men­
tioned that Chicago, which had 
grown to a place of promise in 
two or three years, had at 
first existed as a few scattered 
houses near the Fort. He said 
that the people there hoped to 
see their town grow into "the 
Cincinnati of the north." One 
historical sketch states that 
probably a school had been there 
from the time of Father St. 
Cyr' s coming near the close of 
the year 1834. 

The reason for a somewhat 
detailed account of Bishop 
Brute's activities, more than 
those of most of the o t h e r 
Bishops, is given so that by 
picturing the beginning of Cath­
olicity's story in the Diocese a 
hundred years ago, a better por­
trayal might be made as the 
years retrospectively unfold of 
the progress gained by the 
Church during her first ten dec­
ades in the Diocese of Indian­
apolis. 

A thing worthy of note is that 
Bishop Brute found the military 
friendly, as a rule, to the Catho­
lics and their services. 

Continuing his trip, the Bish­
op made his way around the lake 
to the St. Joseph river, and to a 
mission of Father De Seille, at 
Pokegan, an Indian village lo­
cated just outside the Diocese of 
Vincennes, in the Detroit Dio­
cese. Father De Seille, who had 
lived in this village for three or 
four years had about six hun­
dred and fifty Catholic Indians 
in the community. This mis­
sion had been established many 
years ago by Father Badin. 
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Leaving the Indian mission, 
Bishop Brute's trip took him on 
to South Bend, a place which he 
himself described as "a little 
town beautifully situated on the 
high banks of the St. Joseph 
River," and which was growing 
rapidly. The Bishop then crossed 
the river to St. Mary-of-the­
Lake, the mission house of Fa­
ther Badin who had lately re­
moved to Cincinnati. 

An account of the arrival and installation of Bishop Brute may be found on the 
above page from a century-old issue of the Vincennes Gazette. Some idea of 
the class of news and advertising of the year 1834 can also be obtained. 

QNE historical record tells of a 
Sisters' school having been 

established by Father Badin a 
few miles south of the old St. 
Joseph's mission, Michigan, but 
which continued for only a short 
time. He had opened a school 
for Indians at St. Joseph's (Ber­
trand) in 1830, and a little later 
another chapel for Indians who 
lived near St. Mary-of-the 
Lake, five miles south. 

Although not quite clearly re­
corded, there seems to have been 
three villages of the Potawato­
mie Indians between the cities 
of Niles and South Bend. There 
was a chapel about one-half mile 
south of Niles, built by Allouez; 
about three miles south of this 
and west of the St. Joseph river 
stood the principal Indian set­
tlement, Pokegan' s village ; and 

St. Mary-of-the-Lake,, another 
Indian settlement, was located 
about five miles still farther 
south. 

Father Badin bought from 
the government t he section of 
land on which the lake was lo­
cated, built a log chapel about 
twenty-four by forty feet, and 
a small frame two-story building 
to serve as a convent and a 

school, to which two Sisters 
came some time during the year 
1834. However, by the time 
Bishop Brute visited the locality 
in May, 1835, the Sisters had 
gone and the school was closed. 
There were only a few Catholic 
families near at the time of his 
visit. 

History says that Bishop 
Brute thought favorably of Fa-
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ther Badin's plans concerning 
the educational development at 
this point, accepted the deed for 
the property, and waited for an 
opportune time to carry out his 
ideas. 

Father Sorin arrived on the 
shores of the St. Joseph river 
with the Brothers of the Holy 
Cross, in 1842. The property 
here was offered them, and the 
Mother House of the Congrega­
tion of Holy Cross in the United 
States, as well as the University 
of Notre Dame were built, the 
university receiving its first stu­
dents in September, 1843. 

The Mother House of the Sis­
ters of the Holy Cross was at 
first located at Bertrand, near 
Pokegan's village. 

The morning after Bishop 
Brute's visit to South Bend he 
left for the Tippecanoe river and 
the village of Chickakos. There 
also was a chapel at this place 
which was very poor. After this 
stop the Bishop started for Lo­
gansport. 

A description of his travels 
mentions that during that six 
hundred mile journey Bishop 
Brute and his companion came 
upon only few regular taverns 
or inns, but that almost any fam­
ily would permit travelers to 
share meals and a place to sleep, 
for which services the Bishop 
paid them a small remuneration. 
In most cases they stopped at 
the homes of Protestants, and 
were treated kindly. On these 
occasions Bishop Brute grasped 
the opportunities afforded him 
to acquaint these people with 
the practices of the Faith, and to 
remove prejudices. 

At the time of the above visit 
of Bishop Brute's in Logansport, 
it was a rapidly improving town 
located on a canal then nearing 
completion, and which when put 
into use would unite the Wabash 
with the Maumee, at Fort 
Wayne; and Lake Erie with the 
Ohio and the Mississippi, 
through the States of Indiana 
and Illinois. A number of Cath­
olic people lived there, to whom 
Bishop Brute promised to send 
one of the first priests he should 
be able to obtain. 

AT last, his visits completed, 
Bishop Brute started for 

home. It must have been early 
in the summer of 1835. During 
this journey of several days he 
passed through Fayetteville, At­
tica, Covington, Terre Haute, 
and other places. There were 
few Catholics in these growing 
little towns, but the Bishop 
thought that their numbers 
would soon increase. He ex­
pressed the opinion that had he 
said Mass in Terre Haute there 
might have been as many as 
twenty Catholics and many 
Protestants present, a sufficient 
reason in this new country for 
the sending of a missionary. It 
was the Bishop's intention, 
through his visit abroad, to ob­
tain missionaries and to place 
Terre Haute and many other 
similar towns on a line of "mis­
sionary round." 

Father Lalumiere returned 
home soon after Bishop Brute, 
bringing a good report from the 
portions of the Diocese he vis­
ited. Father Lalumiere had 
found more Catholic people in 
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the east and the south sections 
than Bishop Brute had located 
in the west and north. In three 
places they had already begun 
to build churches. 

The one hundred and fifty 
Catholic families in Fort Wayne 
were completing a small church, 
to which Bishop Brute sent tne 
Rev. M. Ruff, from Metz, 
France, who had been recently 
ordained. Father Ruff spoke 
three languages, French, Eng­
lish, and German. He had been 
ordained to the Sub-Deaconship, 
and Deaconship by Bishop Brute 
before he started for his visit in 
Chicago, and was then sent to 
the Seminary of St. Louis, St. 
Mary-of-the-Barrens, to make 
his retreat. He was ordained to 
the holy priesthood there by 
Bishop Rosa ti. 

In a letter to a friend concern­
ing this journey through the 
Diocese, Bishop Brute men­
tioned having traveled five hun­
dred and fifty miles on horse­
back during the preceding six 
weeks. 

The zealous Bishop's deter­
mination to secure assistance in 
Europe at last materialized and 
on July 16, 1835, he started on 
his journey. While abroad, the 
Bishop met with a hearty wel­
come and material assistance 
wherever he sought it for his 
dearly loved Diocese. He was 
said to have been especially be­
friended by the Empress of Aus­
tria, and Prince Metternick. He 
also visited Rome while abroad, 
where he received the Holy Fa­
ther's benediction for himself 
and for his Diocese. 

When Bishop Brute arrived in 
New York a year later, July 20, 
1836, on his return home, he 
brought back with him nineteen 
priests and seminarians. The 
Rev. Celestine de la Hailandiere 
and the Rev. Maurice de St. Pa­
lais, who were in the group, be­
came in later years successors to 
Bishop Brute. 

The financial help received in 
Europe was used by the Bishop 
for the establishment of a Dio­
cesan seminary in Vincennes, 
St. Gabriel's college for secular 
students, an orphan's home, and 
a free school. The Cathedral of 
St. Francis Xavier was then fin­
ished, and help was also given 
several priests in the building of 
small churches. 

CONCERNING housing condi-
tions, it has been recorded 

that the same house was occu­
pied by the Bishop, priests, sem­
inarians, and ·college students, 
all of whom had their meals in 
the same refectory. The Bishop 
and his clergy composed the fac­
ulty. According to the Catholic 
Almanac of 1840 the average at­
tendance at the boys' free school 
was seventy-five and at the 
girls', fifty-five. 

In a comparatively short per­
iod of time an educational sys­
tem had been set up in Vin­
cennes which included complete 
elementary, secondary, and 
higher education for both sexes, 
and which was intended as a 
model for the entire Diocese. 

Bishop Brute had planned to 
have some Religious Order take 
charge of the college and to de­
velop it. So, three years later 
Father Hailandiere, Vicar Gen-

eral of the Diocese, secured sev­
eral members of the Eudist Con­
gregation in France, with 
Father Bellier as their Superior, 
to direct the college. However, 
the Eudists did not remain long. 

During the year 1837, Bishop 
Brute administered the Sacra­
ment of Holy Orders to seven 
young men, and in 1838 to one. 
Two of this number were or­
dained at Emmittsburg, and six 
at Vincennes. Evidently the 
task of organizing a new Dio­
cese and of keeping it going was 
by no means an easy one, as the 
Sisters of Charity of Nazareth 
were recalled a second time 
from the Vincennes Diocese in 
1838, but Sisters from the Em­
mittsburg Community came in 
the spring of the same year to 
replace them. In addition to that 
of being head of the Diocese, the 
first Bishop's duties embraced 
those of pastor of the congrega­
tion, seminary professor, and 
school teacher. 

The German Catholic fami­
lies who were settling in south­
ern Indiana at this time in 
large numbers often made their 
homes in groups which formed 
parishes. Historical sketches on 
the subject of education in the 
early days say that a school was 
probably started at Jasper, Du­
bois county, in 1838, when 
Father Joseph Kundek, an 
active missionary priest, was 
placed in charge. Father Kun­
dek, who was said to have been 
an extraordinary church builder, 
was thought to have organized 
German schools in many of his 
missions. 

A congregation of about two 
hundred and fifty German emi­
grant families was formed by 
Father Kundek in 1842, at a 
little town twelve miles south of 
Jasper, where a church was 
built and a school and academy 
started by the Sisters of Provi­
dence. 

Among others of the more im­
portant settlements which lo­
cated in the southern part of 
the state before 1840, where it 
is probable that schools were es­
tablished, were Bradford, Har­
rison county; St. Michael's, J ef­
ferson county; St. Peter's, 
Fra:r:iklin county; St. Nicholas, 

Ripley county; and Enochsburg, 
Franklin county. The Rev. An­
thony Deydier, Evansville's first 
pastor in 1837, is said to have 
opened a school two years after 
his arrival, this being done even 
before the church had been built. 
Michael Byrne came from the 
eastern part of the country to 
teach the school. He later be­
came a priest. The Sisters of 
Charity from Kentucky took 
charge of a school in New Al­
bany about the year 1838. 

WHEN Bishop Brute again 
visited Chicago in 1838 he 

found a town of seven or eight 
thousand people, with nearly a 
thousand Catholic souls among 
them. He became anxious to 
provide for educational oppor­
tunities here. There were also 
at this time several settlements 
of German Catholic people in 
eastern Illinois, and although it 
is not positive, the opinion was 
expressed that here, as in other 
such settlements where these 
people had a church and even 
only occasional services, there 
was a school, kept steadily. The 
best organized of these congre­
gations was in Jasper county. 

Although his health broke in 
the year 1837, Bishop Brute still 
managed to frequently visit 
every portion of his Diocese, and 
to keep up a regular correspond­
ence with his priests. It was 
said that when traveling for 
him was no longer possible, he 
wrote oftener to the priests, in 
this way encouraging them. It 
also was said of the Bishop that 
difficulties which would have dis­
heartened almost everyone else 
only served to increase his zeal 
and charity. He never consid­
ered rest for himself. At one 
time when in a serious state of 
health Bishop Brute was known 
to have attended three distant 
sick calls on the same day, ad­
ministering to those who ap­
peared to be no nearer death 
than was the good Bishop him­
self. 

He conducted a social service 
bureau which, while on quite a 
small scale, was on a very high 
plane. Perhaps the Bishop 
never thought of it as such, but 
nevertheless his clergy and laity 

A facsimile sketch made in 1836 by Bishop 
Brute, first Bishop of the Diocese, of the Old 
Cathedral of St. Francis Xavier at Vincennes. 
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with highest honors in Paris as 
a doctor of medicine, the later 
Bishop Brute entered the Semin­
ary of St. Sulpice and was or­
dained a priest in Rennes on 
June 10, 1808. He came to the 
United States in 1810, became a 
member of the faculty of Mt. 
St. Mary's College, Emmitts­
burg, served as president of St. 
Mary's College, Baltimore, from 
1815 to 1818, returned to Em­
mittsburg where he labored as 
a professor of theology and phil­
osophy until his appointment as 
the first Bishop of Vincennes. 
He was consecrated in the Ca­
thedral of St. Louis, Missouri, 
on October 28, 1834, by Bishop 
Flaget, assisted by Bishop , Ro­
sa ti, and the Rt. Rev. John Bap­
tist Purcell, Bishop of Cincin­
nati. 

Bishop Brute was known as 
one of the most learned and djs­
tinguished men as well as an out­
standing Catholic educator in the 
United States. As a professor 
he was known universally for 
his ability and scholarly tastes. 
Although a native of France, 
after becoming an American cit­
izen, Bishop Brute became noted 
for his patriotism toward his 
adopted country. 

The Rt. Rev. Celestine de la Hailan­
diere, second Bishop of the Diocese 
of Vincennes. Bishop de la Hailan­
diere served from 1839 until 184 7. 

The Rt. Rev. John Stephen Bazin, 
third Bishop of the Diocese of 
Vincennes. Consecrated in 1847, 
he died less than a yeair later. 

A brief description of the 
pioneer home of a century ago 
in some sections of Indiana was 
contained in a booklet published 
in August, 1934, at the time of 
the centennial celebration of St. 
Mary's church at Millhousen. 
A quotation from the booklet fol­
lows: 

benefited by his own · personal 
sacrifices. When priests visited 
his home they were permitted 
to take with them shoes, clothes, 
linen, in fact anything that they 
were able to find there that 
suited their needs. They were 
asked though to leave the ar­
ticles they were casting aside 
with the assurance that some­
one worse off than they them­
selves would find use for them. 
The Bishop used for his own 
needs what no one else took 
away. 

As to hardships endured by 
Bishop Brute and his priests in 
the early days of the Diocese, it 
has been said that: "great as 
the sufferings of the c 1 e r g y 
might be, they saw that the 
Bishop invariably provided that 
his own should be even greater." 
He and his priests often slept 
on the floor of the poor little 
rectory at times of the Bishop's 
visit; a meal would sometimes 
be served for the two, with one 
set of knives and forks, and if, 
as was sometimes the case, the 
priest's apartment was not sep­
arate from that part of the 
building which was used for the 
church, the Bishop would not 
sleep even on the floor, but 
would spend the entire night in 
prayer. 

HISTORICAL pages are filled 
with incidents in the life of 

Bishop Brute, but one short sen­
tence contained in a letter writ­
ten in 1838 to Father Shaw, in 
Madison, who was much loved 
by the Bishop, and who exper­
ienced many difficulties in build­
ing a church, displays a clear 
cut picture of the Brute idea of 
duty. The sentence follows: 
"Alas ! My dear friend, we are 

all obliged in this world to ful­
fill the duties of our charge with 
all care and affection for it, for 
God's sake, even in sight of 
others not so faithful as they 
ought to be." 

Bishop Brute died at Vin-

cenne·s early in t he morning of 
June 26, 1839, and his remains 
are interred in the Old Cathed­
ral there. 

He was born in Rennes, 
France, March ~W, 1779, and 
having been graduated in 1803 

"The pioneer homes were one­
room affairs. The bare ground 
served as the floor. A large 
fireplace with an opening of six 
by four feet gave warmth and 
cheer to the humble home and 
served also as the cooking , stove. 

The Rt. Rev. Maurice de St. Palais, 
fourth Bishop of the Diocese of Vin­
cennes. Consecrated in 1849, Bishop 
de St. Palais died in the year 1877. 

The Rt. Rev. Francis Silas Chatard, 
fifth Bishop of the Diocese of Vin­
cennes. Bishop Chatard was conse­
crated in 1878 and he died in 1918. 
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The swinging iron within the 
fireplace held a caldron which, 
in most families, constituted the 
only cooking utensil. The fam­
ily table was a large block of 
wood ; in some instances the 
stump of a tree served this pur­
pose. Chairs were few and beds 
were hard boards. Light at 
nightfall was furnished by the 
soft, glowing embers in the fire­
place or by a smoking tallow 
lamp. During the day high 
built windows admitted light and 
at night furnished protection 
against wolves. A crucifix, hung 
with the family rosary, was the 
only ornament of the home, but 
from its pulpit over the fire­
place bespoke the deep faith and 
piety of those who dwelt there." 

BISHOP BRUTE was succeed­
. ed by the Rt. Rev. Celestine 
Rene Lawrence Guynemur de La 
Hailandiere who, while serving 
as Vicar General since 1836, had 
accomplished much for the new 
Diocese in the assistance he ren­
dered to the venerable Bishop. 

As has been mentioned, Bish­
op Hailandiere was among the 
group of priests • who accom­
panied Bishop Brute to Vin­
cennes following the Bishop's 
visit to Europe for aid. Hav­
ing no knowledge of English, he 
confined his early spiritual la­
bors to the needs of the French 
people in Vincennes and to help­
ing Bishop Brute in the admin­
istration of Diocesan affairs. 
After two years, because of the 
necessity of providing priests to 
speak the language of the Ger­
man emigrants who were then 
coming to the Diocese, it was de­
cided that Father Hailandiere 
return to Europe in search of 
both priests and students. While 
busy at this duty abroad, he 
heard of the news of his own ap­
pointment as Bishop Coadjutor 
of Vincennes, with the right of 
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succession, and of Bishop 
Brute's death. 

Then the future Bishop found 
himself in a singular situation. 
By a Bull of Pope Gregory XVI, 
dated May 17, 1839, he had been 
preconized Bishop of Axiern. 
Bishop Brute's death on June 26, 
1839, only a few weeks after, 
caused the Coadjutor to become 
successor to the See of Vin­
cennes before he was consecrat­
ed Bishop. His consecration 
took place in Paris August 18, 
1839, by the Rt. Rev. Charles 
For bin - Jans on, Bishop of 
Nancy, who was assisted by the 
Rt. Rev. Louis Blanquart De 
Bailleuil, Bishop of Versailles, 
and the Rt. Rev. John Louis le 
Mercier, Bishop of Beauvais. 

Bishop Hailandiere was born 
in Combourg, in the Diocese of 
Rennes, May 3, 1798, and was 
ordained to the priesthood in 
Paris, May 28, 1825. At the 
time of Bishop Hailandiere' s 
consecration the Catholic popu­
lation in the Diocese of Vin­
cennes was upward of 25,000. 

During the time spent by 
Bishop Hailandiere in Europe, 
it has been recorded that not 
only were students · and priests 
0btained, but vestments, sacred 
vessels, books, etc., for his Dio­
cese, and much financial assist­
ance provided. It was through 
his efforts that the Eudists sent 
a body of priests to found the 
college in Vincennes at their ex­
pense; and the Congregation of 
the Holy Cross sent Brothers 
and a priest to blaze the way for 
the establishment of boys' 
schools. The Sisters of Provi­
dence sent six Sisters to found 
a House in this Diocese, and who 
in time would take charge of the 
education of girls, orphan asy­
lums, hospitals, etc. He also ob­
tained a group of skilled work­
men, and after a while the Ca­
thedral was completed with the 

steeple, and other necessary 
buildings were put up in Vin­
cennes, St. Mary-of-the-Woods, 
as well as in other places. 

Bishop Hailandiere, who was 
in accord with Bishop Brute's 
ideas of an educational system 
in the Diocese, continued to de­
velop the plans inaugurated by 
his predecessor. A building was 
erected for the purpose of pre­
serving the library of Bishop 
Brute and other valuable books. 
The Bishop was said to have 
taken great care in the preser­
vation of letters and records, but 
which, in the course of time 
were not preserved. 

Among his first labors of an 
intensely spiritual nature, Bish­
op Hailandiere sent Father de 
St. Palais to Chicago to combat 
a grievous schism which had al­
ready done much harm there. 
Another source of great worry 
to him was the false accusation 
of one of his priests laboring 
then in the town of Evansville, 
where a spirit of bigotry was 
working intensely. The priest, 
having started to serve an un­
just prison sentence was honor­
ably released after public senti­
ment and petitions of all kinds 
from non-Catholics as well as 
Catholics deluged the Governor 
of Indiana. 

THAT the spirit of bigotry had 
gained a stronghold in cer­

tain sections of the state as early 
as the year 1834 is evidenced in 
an editorial printed in The Ris­
ing Sun Times, at Rising Sun, 
Indiana, on December 6, of that 
year. The editorial very severe­
ly criticized the manner of cele­
bration which took place at the 
time of the dedication of the Ca­
thedral in St. Louis only a few 
days before Bishop Brute's con­
secration as Bishop of Vincennes 
took place there. 

What is thought to have been 

All that remains of the College of Vincennes 
which was founded by Bishop Brute in 1837. 

the first retreat held in com­
mon by the clergy of the Vin­
cennes Diocese was conducted 
by the Rev. J. Timon, and con­
tinued for one week, closing on 
May 5, 1844, in the Cathedral at 
Vincennes, just a decade after 
the erection of the Diocese. 
Twenty-five of the thirty-six 
priests attended the synod which 
was held at the close of the re­
treat, according to records. 

As an assurance against a 
completely depleted treasury 
when the European resources 
could no longer be depended up­
on, the Bishop bought more land 
in addition to the four hundred 
acres already belonging to the 
church, had it cleared and 
fenced, and houses built for 
farmers. He also bought prop­
erty in the town which it was 
the intention to use for rental 
purposes. But Vincennes would 
not grow. The immigrants 
seemed to pass on north and 
south of Indiana. 

After Chicago had been sep­
arated from the Diocese in 1843, 
Bishop Hailandiere thought of 
seeking permission from Rome 
to move his See to some other 
town of the Diocese that prom­
ised more rapid growth, so by 
Apostolic Brief he was permitted 
to establish his residence either 
at Vincennes, Madison, Lafay­
ette, or Indianapolis. The See 
city, however, was to remain at 
Vincennes. This permission was 
renewed to the fourth Bishop, 
excepting the town of Lafayette. 

Bishop Hailandiere arranged 
to secure property in Indianap­
olis, but waited to move his See 
there until the place began to 
grow, as Indianapolis then 
seemed very slow. It was hard­
ly as large as Vincennes with 
only about a half dozen Catholic 
families, mostly German, who 
were attended by a priest living 
in Shelby county. The priest 
visited here about once in three 
months to say Mass and to ad­
minster the Sacraments. The 
poor Catholic people are said to 
have met in a little frame build­
ing forty feet long by twenty 
feet wide. So the Bishop decided 
to remain in Vincennes. 

Lack of population made con­
versions in those days very few 
and difficult, especially by priests 
who, in general, spoke the lan­
guage of the country imperfect­
ly. 

Dissatisfaction began to grow 
on all sides of the Bishop, said 
to have been caused by his own 
active energy. He left for Rome 
in the fall of 1845, submitted 
his difficulties to Pope Gregory 
XVI, and offered his resignation. 
But the Holy Father encouraged 
him to continue on, and Bishop 
Hailandiere left Rome with a 
beautiful Chalice, a gift from 
the Holy Father; also some val­
uable gifts of books. He obtained 
through the Cardinal Secretary 
of the Propaganda, for the en­
richment of his Diocese, some­
thing said to have been a very 
rare favor-several entire bod­
ies of saints. Two of these, the 
body of St. Urban and that of 
St. Theodore, who was a mili­
tary officer and a martyr, in 
France, were presented by the 
Bishop to Mother Theodore, of 
St. ,Mary-of-the-Woods. The 
bodies which are incased in wax, 
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now rest beneath two altars in 
the conventual church at St. 
Mary-of-the-Woods. In the old 
Cathedral at Vincennes are the 
relics of two saints which the 
pastor there states were, accord­
ing to history, brought to the 
Diocese of Vincennes by Bishop 
Hailandiere. These relics are 
the bones of St. Aufidia and St. 
Terrence, early martyrs. 

The Bishop hastened to Vin­
cennes with more priests and 
s tudents, but discovered th a t 
during his absence the discon­
tent had grown greater. Fin­
ally, after hardly a year since 
his return from Rome, Bishop 
Hailandiere again asked to be 
relieved and Rome accepted his 
resignation. Records state that 
he "resigned on July 16, 1847, 
and returned to France." 

The Bishop issued a pastoral 
letter to his clergy and people, 
telling them the news, humbly 
blaming himself, and advising 
them to obey and reverence his 
successor. He remained until 
after the consecration of the Rt. 
Rev. John Stephen Bazin, third 
Bishop of Vincennes, which took _ 
place in the Cathedral at Vin­
cennes on October 24, 1847, by; 
the Rt. Rev. Michael Portier 
Bishop of Mobile, who was as~ 
s !sted by the Rt. Rev. John Bap­
tist Purcell, Bishop of Cincin­
nati, and Bishop Hailandiere. 

Bishop Hailandiere spent the 
winter in New Orleans. Then, 
on his way up the Ohio river he 
stopped in Louisville to ask the 
blessing of Bishop Flaget. 
Reaching Philadelphia in the 
spring of 1848, he had already 
heard of the death of Bishop 
Bazin. He went on to New York 
to make what he thought were 
final arrangements for the pub­
lication of the life of his prede­
cessor, Bishop Brute. After this 
he left for France, where he died 
many years later, May 1, 1882. 
On Wednesd~y, June 7, 1882, a 
solemn Reqmem Mass was cele­
brated for the repose of his soul 
in St. John's church, Indianap~ 
olis, by the Rev. August Bes­
sonies, in the absence of Bishop 
Chatard, who then headed the 
Diocese, and who was on a Con­
firmation tour at the time. 
Among the priests who attended 
were two or three who were or­
dained by Bishop Hailandiere. 

BISHOP BAZIN had scarcely 
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begun his Episcopal labors 
as third Bishop of the Diocese 
of Vincennes when an illness of 
only a few days terminated in 
his death. It has been written 
that great expectations were 
centered in his administration, 
and both the clergy and the laity 
were much attached to him. He 
issued only one pastoral letter. 
One of his first acts as a Bishop 
was to appoint the Rev. Maurice 
de St. Palais, who had been la­
boring in Madison, as his Vicar 
General and to serve as Superior 
of the Seminary. 

The Most Rev. Joseph Chartrand, sixth Bishop of the Diocese and second 
for Indianapolis. He was consecrated Bishop of F'lavias and Coadjutor 
to the Bishop of Indianapolis in 1910. Bishop Chartrand died in 1933. 

Born in Duerne, in the Dio­
cese of Lyons, France, on Octo­
ber 15, 1796, Bishop Bazin was 
ordained at Lyons July 22, 1822. 
He came to the United States in 
1830 and labored - for about 
seventeen years in the Diocese 
of Mobile. Prior to his coming 
to the Vincennes Diocese, he 
was interested in the religious 

instruction of youth in the Dio­
cese of Mobile, where he estab­
lished a Catholic Benevolent so­
ciety which grew into an orphan 
asylum society. Bishop Portier 
sent him to France in 1846 to 
arrange with the Superior of 
the Society of Jesus for a group 
of members of that Order to take 
charge of the college at Spring 
Hill, and to . secure Brothers of 
the Christian schools to direct 
the orphan asylum for boys. He 
had also filled the office of Vicar 
General of Mobile. 

Bishop Bazin had been nomi­
nated to head the Diocese . of 
Vincennes by the Sixth Provin­
cial Council of Baltimore, at the 
time of Bishop Hailandiere' s 

resignation. He was according­
ly appointed at Rome. He re­
ceived the Papal Bulls officially 
acquainting him of the appoint­
ment on September 8, 184 7. 

Historical information recalls 
that the weather on the day of 
-Bishop Bazin's consecration was 
unfavorable, a fact which, upon 
second-thought, must have meant 
much to the people of Indiana al­
most a century ago when travel­
ing any distance at all in order 
to attend an event, was so much 
of a problem. However, in spite 
of the weather on this occasion, 
the church was well filled, and 
the impressive ceremonies, as 
well as the music nmdered by 
the Assumption church choir of 

Evansville, under the direction 
of the Rev. Anthony Deydier, 
pastor of Assumption church, 
the only church in Evansville at 
that time, kept the large audi­
ence in respectful and profound 
attention. 

Bishop Bazin died at Vin­
cennes April 23, 1848, and his 
remains were interred in the 
Old Cathedral. Upon his death 
bed he appointed Father St. Pa­
lais as administrator during, the 
vacancy of the See and ad­
dressed him as his successor. 

A L T H O U G H only fourteen 
year old, the Diocese of Vin­

cennes was already awaiting the 
appointment of its fourth Bish-

13 
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op. Father St. Palais, who had 
been serving as administrator of 
the Diocese since the death of 
Bishop Bazin, was nominated 

· Bishop ·of Vincennes October 3, 
1848, and was consecrated Bish­
op of that Diocese on January 
14, 1849, in the Cathedral there 
by the Rt. Rev. Richard Pius 
Miles, Bishop of Nash ville, who 
was assisted by the Rt. Rev. 
Martin John Spalding, Co adj u­
tor Bishop of Louisville, and the 
Very Rev. Hippolytus Duponta­
vice, Vicar General. He was 
born at La Salvetat, France, No­
vember 15, 1811, and ordained 
in Paris, May 28, 1836. Having 
made the acquaintance of Bish­
op Brute, who was on his visit 
in Europe about the time of 
Bishop St. Palais' ordination, 
and whose fervor had won the 
heart of the young priest, the 
newly ordained, coming immedi­
ately to the United States, be­
came an apostle among the poor 
missions in what was then con­
sidered a wilderness in Indiana 
and Illinois. 

His first duty upon arrival in 
Vincennes was to a station 
thirty-five miles east of Vin­
cennes and six miles north of 
where Loogootee is now located. 
Here he organized a congrega­
tion and built St. Mary's church. 
His early labors here, which 
carry the reader back again to 
the beginning of the Diocese, 
also included visiting neighbor­
i n g Catholics and traveling 
through Dubois and Spencer 
counties. It has been said of the 
young priest that he frequently 
made use of a Lutheran as an 
interpreter in the translation of 
his French and English sermons 
into German, bec~use he himself 
did not understand the German 
language. 

Poverty ruled more generally 
in the Diocese of Vincennes than 
the zealous Father St. Palais had 
been accustomed to, reared as he 
had been among the noblemen in 
Paris. He exercised his ingenu­
ity, however, and with the help 
of Divine Providence managed 
to build churches. An incident 
illustrative of this fact is quoted 
from Bishop Alerding's writ­
ings: "At St. Mary's he request­
ed the women of the congrega­
tion each to select the best little 
pig in the herd, to feed it well, 
and, when grown, to sell them all 
in a lot to dealers. To the house­
keepers having the best and fat­
test hog he gave premi urns of 
rosaries, pictures, medals, etc. 
It is said that herd of hogs was 
the best ever sold in Daviess 
county. A handsome amount was 
realized and the church built. 

"In another mission, he suc­
ceeded equally well, securing a 
number of calves." 

FATHER St. Palais labored at 
this mission until 1839, when 

Bishop Hailandiere sent him to 
Chicago where he found much 
opposition and even persecution. 
He built St. Mary's with private 
means. The church shortly af­
terwards became the first Ca­
thedral of the Diocese of Chi­
cago. He also bought other 
ground for the church which 
later became very valuable prop­
erty. His early labors also in­
cluded much work with the In­
dians in northern Indiana. 
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Father St. Palais was removed 
to Logansport when Chicago be­
came an Episcopal See. His 
hardships were numerous. No 
roads of any kind existed and 
yet the poor missionary on 
horseback, carrying requisites 
for the holy functions and a 
small amount of provisions such 
as a little corn meal and salt in 
his saddle bags, rode through 
the wilderness sometimes for 
fifty or a hundred miles without 
meeting a human habitation. His 
points of travel took in Vin­
cennes, Chicago, Joliet, and Lo­
gansport. His adventures took 
him through an experience of 
losing his way in a heavy snow 
storm as well as an escape from 
robbers who were determined to 
take his life on one densely dark 
night. 

As has been mentioned, he 
spent a year at Madison before 
becoming Vicar General during 
Bishop Bazin's administration. 

His experiences as a mission­
ary priest in the Diocese of Vin­
cennes covered a period of thir­
teen 1years, his administration as 
Bishop twenty-eight years. His 
early pastoral letters gave evi;. 
dence of the work nearest his 
heart-the care ·of. the orphan 
children and the education of 
young men for the priesthood. 
The letter dated October 30, 
1849, refers to the orphans as 
"that dearest portion of our 
flock," and in a pastoral letter 
written March 7, 1850, Bishop 
St. Palais made an ardent plea 
for the Seminary. He acquaint­
ed his flock with the fact that 
for want of resources, already 
this year ( 1850) students had 
been sent to different parts of 
the Diocese to be taught by the 
priests who were also engaged 
in the duties of their missions. 
The letter also mentioned that 
only two calls were to be made 
yearly upon the generosity of 
the people of the Diocese, one at 
Christmas, the other at Easter. 

This has the appearance of 
being the beginning of the Dio­
cesan Orphans' and Seminary 
collections. 

A CHECK of the Diocese of 
Vincennes, according to one 

of its historical records pub­
lished in 1883, shows that in 
1849, while Bishop St. Palais' 
jurisdiction extended over all of 
Indiana, his flock consisted of 
about 30,000 souls, and thirty­
five priests to aid him in their 
spiritual care. It is worthy of 
interest to note who they were, 
their places of residence, and the 
scenes of their labors, as fol­
lows: 

The Rev. Ernest A udran and 
the Rev. John B. Chasse, at Vin­
cennes, Cathedral of St. Francis 
Xavier, St. Rose of Lima at 
Faux-Chenel, and St. Thomas in 
Queret's Prairie, both in Knox 
county, and Carlisle in Sullivan 
county, were attended from Vin­
cennes. The Rev. Conrad 
Schniederjans, at Vincennes, in 
charge of the German congrega­
tion. 

The Rev. John McDermott, at 
Washington, Daviess county, St. 
Simon's church. The Rev. Bar­
tholomew Piers, at St. Patrick's, 
Daviess county, attending also 
St. Peter's, same county. 

The Rev. Patrick Murphy, at 

St. Mary's, Daviess county, at­
tending also Mount Pleasant, in 
Martin county. The Rev. Joseph 
Kundek, at Jasper, Dubois 
county, in charge also of St. Ce­
lestine's, same county. 

The Rev. William Doyle, at 
Ferdinand, Dubois county, also 
attending Troy, in Perry county. 
The Rev. Augustine Bessonies, 
at Leopold, Perry county, also 
attended several stations in 
Spencer, Warwick, and Craw­
ford counties, in addition to 
Rome, Fredonia, Leavenworth 
and Rockport. 

The Rev. Anthony Deydier, at 
Evansville, Vanderburg county, 
the Rev. Roman W einzoepflen, 
at St. Joseph's, Vanderburg 
county, attended also St. Wen­
del, Posey county, and two other 
stations. According to the his­
torical check-up at hand, Ver­
non, in Posey county, was visit­
ed by the Rev. E. Durbin, from 
Kentucky. 

The Rev. Hippolytus Dupont­
avice, Madison, Jefferson coun­
ty, St. Michael's church~ The 
Rev. Daniel Maloney, Columbus, 
Bartholomew county. He also 
attended to Scipio and St . . Cath­
erine's, in Jennings county, and 
to Martinsville, Morgan county. 

The Rev. Adolph Munshino, 
St. Magdalen's, Ripley . county, 
attending Rockford and Vernon, 
same county; St. Ann's, Jen­
nings county, and to Muehlhau­
sen, Decatur county . . 

The Rev. Louis Neyron, New 
Albany, Floyd county, who at­
tended also the Knobs, Church 
of the Assumption, and to Jef­
fersonville and Charlestown. 

The Rev. John Dion, Lanes­
ville, Harrison county, also visit­
ed Miller's settlement in the 
same county, and two other sta­
tions. 

The Rev. Martin Stahl, New 
Alsace, Dearborn county, St. 
John's church. The Rev. An­
drew Benet, at St. Joseph's, 
Dearborn county, also attended 
St. Paul's, and Lawrenceburg, 
same county. 

The Rev. William Engelin, at 
Brookville, Franklin county, was 
also in charge of St. Peter's and 
St. Mary-of-the-Rocks, same 
county. 

The Rev. Joseph Rudolph, Old­
enburg, Franklin county, also 
took care of Enochsburg, same 
county, and to Pipe Creek, St. 
Nicholas church, in Ripley coun­
ty. 

The Rev. Anthony Carius, at 
Richmond, Wayne county, St. 
Andrew's church, visited also 
Cambridge, Hagerstown, and 
Abbington, same county, and 
Laurel, in Franklin county. 

The Rev. John Gueguen, at 
Indianapolis, also visited St. 
Vincent's, Shelby county; 
Strawtown, Hamilton county; 
Cumberland, Hancock county ; 
Pendleton, Madison county. 

The Rev. Michael Clarke, at 
Lafayette, Tippecanoe county, 
St. Mary's church; attended al­
so to Covington, Delphi, and 
other stations. 

The Rev. John Ryan, at La 
Gro, Wabash county, was also in 
charge of Huntington, Hunting-

-ton county. 
The Rev. Patrick McDermott, 

Logansport, Cass county, also 
attended Peru, in Miami county. 

The Rev. Julian Benoit, and 

the Rev. Edward Faller, at Fort 
Wayne. They also attended 
Hesse Cassel and St. Vincent's, 
same county; and to several sta­
tions in LaGrange, Steuben, 
Noble, Whitley, DeKalb and 
Wells counties. 

The Rev. Edward Sorin, the 
Rev. E. Delisle, the Rev. Fran­
cis Cointet, and the Rev. Fran­
cis Gouesse, South Bend, St. 
Joseph county. 

The Rev. Theophilus Mainault, 
South Bend, Our Lady of the 
Lake. These fathers also visited 
from their institution, Misha­
waka, St. Joseph county; Michi­
gan City, Laporte county; St. 
John's, Lake county; also Gosh­
en, Leesburg, Plymouth and 
other stations. 

The Rev. Simon P. Lalumiere, 
at Terre Haute, Vigo county, al­
so attending Montezuma, Clin­
ton and Merom. 

The Rev. John Corbe, St. 
Mary-of-the-Woods, near Terre 
Haute. 

The Rev. A. Granger, Indian­
apolis. 

AT this time, 1849, five priests 
resided at the University of 

Notre Dame. There were twen­
ty-six professed Sisters of Prov­
idence in the Community at St. 
Mary-of-the-Woods, together 
with ten Novices and ten Postu­
lants. They conducted the acad­
emy· and free school at St. Mary­
of-the-Woods, with Sister Theo­
dore as Superior; St. Mary's 
Academy, at Vincennes, four 
Sisters, with Sister Mary Jo­
seph, as Superior; Sister Augus­
tine headed the school at Jasper, 
with three Sisters; the Young 
Ladies Academy, Madison, 
where four Sisters taught, was 
under the direction of Sister Ba­
salide; and at the Academy at 
Fort Wayne, where Sister Mary 
Magdalen served as Superior, 
four Sisters labored. 

The Theological Seminary at 
Vincennes, with its seven ec­
clesiastical students was con­
ducted by the clergy of the 
Cathedral. 

There were fifty Catholic 
churches and chapels in the 
State of Indiana in 1849, accord­
ing to the above mentioned rec­
ords. 

A group of Brothers of the 
Sacred Heart who are said to 
have left France at the time of 
the revolution arrived in Mobile, 
Alabama, in 1849, and after a 
few years came to Indianapolis 
where they opened a Novitiate 
under the leadership of Brother 
Odon, S.C. The Order, accord­
ing to Brother Hubert, S.C., one 
of its members, owned a ten­
acre tract of land at one time 
in Prospect street, near St. Pat­
rick's church. The institution 
was known as the St. Joseph In­
stitute and served as the Novi­
tiate for the Brothers of the Sa­
cred Heart in the United States 
and Canada which composed one 
Province. The Novitiate was 
moved to Canada in 1893, and 
the property near St. Patrick's 
was sold in about the year 1906. 
The Brothers had been conduct­
ing boys' schools in St. Patrick's 
and St. John's parishes for a 
number of years and are said to 
have left St. Patrick's about the 
time the property there was 
sold, but continued their school 
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The Most Rev. Joseph Elmer Ritter, present Bishop of the Diocese. Bishop Ritter 
was consecrated titular Bishop of Hippos and Auxiliary Bis,hop to Bishop Chartrand 
on February 3, 1933. He was named as Bishop of Indianapolis on March 26, 1934. 
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at St. John's until 1929. The 
Novitiate for the United States 
Province was opened in Metu­
chen, New Jersey, after its re­
moval from Indianapolis. The 
Brothers of the Sacred Heart 
now conduct the Gibault High 
School in Vincennes. 

Bishop St. Palais visited Eu­
rope three times during his 
Episcopacy, in 1849, 1859, and 
1869-ad limina Apostolorum. 
On his return from the first visit 
he spent a short time at Maria 
Einsiedlen, Switzerland, and re­
ceived from the Benedictine Ab­
bot a promise to send a colony 
of Benedictines to the Diocese 
of Vincennes. 

It was during Bishop St. Pal­
ais' time that the Diocese of 
Fort Wayne was erected, J anu­
ary 8, 1857. The Rt. Rev. John 
H. Luers was consecrated its 
first Bishop. About this time 
the Archiepiscopal See of Tou­
louse, in France was offered him, 
but he declined. 

Catholicity enjoyed a rapid de­
velopment during Bishop St. 
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Palais' administration, and when 
his eyes closed in death the Dio­
cese numbered 90,000 souls, with 
a hundred and fifty-one church­
es, and a hundred and seventeen 
priests. Upon his invitation Re­
ligious Orders of both men and 
women came to labor here. 
Among the men were included 
the Benedictine Fathers; the 
Franciscan Fathers at Olden­
burg and Indianapolis ; the Fran­
ciscan Order of Minor Conven­
tuals; and the Brothers of the 
Sacred Heart. The Orders of 
women who came included the 
Sisters of St. Francis, Sisters of 
the Order of St. Benedict, the 
Daughters of Charity, Sisters of 
the Good Shepherd, Little Sis­
ters of the Poor, Ursuline Sis­
ters, and the Sisters of St. Jo­
seph. 

Although a scarcity of infor­
mation seems to exist today con­
cerning activities of Catholic 
interest in the Diocese during 
the Civil War period, a long 
story might be woven about the 
labors of the Sisters of Provi-

dence whose aid had been sought 
by the authorities to assume 
charge of the Military hospital 
in Indiana polis during the War. 
This institution was the old City 
hospital near Fall Creek and 
Locke street. The strenuous 
work of the Sisters in caring for 
the sick and wounded soldiers 
was commended on all sides. 

Sister Mary Ambrose who 
served as superior of the St. 
John Academy in Indianapolis 
from the year 1859 to 1863 was 
known to borrow a horse and 
buggy after school hours and 
drive out to the hospital to bring 
in one of the nursing Sisters 
who might be spared so that she 
would have the opportunity of 
assisting at Mass the following 
morning. After the Mass the 
Sister would be driven back 
again to the hospital. By taking 
turns in this manner each nurs­
ing Sister was afforded the op­
portunity of receiving the Sac­
raments once each week. 

Bishop St. Palais had offered 
the use of the Catholic Seminary 

in Vincennes for the sick and 
wounded soldiers after the Bat­
tle of Fort Donelson, and two 
Sisters of Providence served 
there also as nurses. 

Records at Vincennes show 
that the sick of the Nineteenth 
Illinois Regiment were also 
cared for at this emergency hos­
pital. Also, according to his­
torical annals, the college build­
ing was offered for the use of the 
soldiers when a contagious mal­
ady broke out in a camp near 
Vincennes. Again the Sisters 
of Providence furnished nurses. 

At the close of the War the 
Sisters opened what was known 
as St. John's Infirmary in Indi­
anapolis, to be used for the care 
of infirm soldiers who had no 
other place to go. 

THERE appeared in Indiana 
about this time what was ap­

parently the first Catholic pub­
lication in the state, the Ave 
Maria. It has become widely 

Continued on page 56 

A scene from the Pontifical High Mass celebrated on a platform erected in front of the Old Cathedral at Vincennes May 6, 1934, the 
100th anniversary of the founding of the diocese. In the foreground on the right of the Stars and Stripes but with his back to the 
camera is the Most Rev. Joseph E. Ritter, Bish9p of Indianapolis; to the flag's left but back is Paul V. McNutt, Governor of Indiana; 
also to the back but to the flag's right is the Most Rev. John T. McNicholas, O.P., Archbishop of Cincinnati; and further to the right, 
outlined against a pillar of the bridge, is the Rt. Rev. Ignatius Esser, O.S.B., Abbot of St. Meinrad Abbey. The celebrant of the 
Mass, the Most Rev. Amleto Giovanni Cicognani, Apostolic Delegate, is in the right of the sanctuary, but is not visible in the above. 
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11Veritas Omnia Vincitll 

RARE, indeed, is the able 
autobiographer and thus 
when it comes to tell the 
story of itself, The Indi­

ana Catholic and Record is in the 
quite unenviable position of re­
citing something which in the 
sense that it represents talking 
about itself, runs counter to true 
journalism. But to say that 
there is but little of interest in 
the history of this paper would 
hardly be in line with the facts. 
Too many things can happen in 
twenty-five years. 

On February 4, 1910, the first 
issue of The Indiana Catholic 
made its appearance. No start­
ling news event heralded this in­
itial effort; in fact, the stories 
carried were very much in tune 
with the times, peaceful and 
placid. 

Page one carried among its 
various articles such news sto­
ries as "In Local Churches," 
"Catholic Women's Association 
Starts With Big Initial Meet­
ing," and for the "lead" story, 
by which is meant the story oc­
cupying the top of the first col­
umn to the right on the front 
page, "Prof. Monaghan's Bril­
liant Address." Professor Mon­
aghan, who was introduced in 
the story as being formerly from 
Notre Dame, had spoken in In­
diana polis upon educational sub­
jects. The architect's drawing 
of the "new St. Mary's church" 
also appeared on page one. 

An announcement in this first 
issue of the paper stated that 
The Indiana Catholic Printing 
and Publishing Company was 
incorporated under the laws of 
the State of Indiana, at Indian­
apolis, on "Friday of last week," 
which was January 28, 1910. 
No names appeared on the 
"masthead" on the editorial 
page of February 4, but the ad­
dress of the publication offices 
was given as 15 N. Pennsyl­
vania street, with a telephone 
number, New Phone 1496. Men­
tion was made that application 
for second class mailing privi­
leges had been made at the Post 
Office in Indianapolis. 

Among the editorials appear­
ing in this . issue was one enti- . 
tied, "Is Christianity Advanc­
ing?" and another on "Liberal 
Education." 

Directly beneath the mast­
head a foreword appeared, as 
follows: 

"In response to a general de­
mand from the rapidly growing 
Catholic population of Indiana, 
The Indiana Catholic Printing 
and .Publishing Company was 
organized and incorporated and 
presents the first issue of The 
Indiana Catholic, printed and 
published in the metropolis of 
the state. 

"The progress of our Catholic 
people in the United States has 

"Truth conquers all things." The Indiana 

Catholic and Record rounds out twenty,-f ive 

years as the curtain of time nses upon 

a second century for the Diociese. 

been marked by the gradual de­
velopment of a Catholic press, 
which has in no small degree 
contributed to placing the Moth­
er Church in the proud position 
which she occupies in the Re­
public today. 

"A home journal devoted to 
the interests of the Catholic 
clergy and laity of Indiana, this 
publication will endeavor to em­
ulate the highest standard of 
Catholic journalism, and aim to 
earn the esteem of its readers 
as a def ender of the Faith and 
an exponent of Catholic opinion 
on all public matters. 

"The Indiana Catholic Print­
ing and Publishing Co." 

An announcement appeared 
beneath the foreword, in which 
it was said that beginning with 
the next issue of the paper Jo­
seph Patrick O'Mahony would 
assume editorial charge. His 
name appeared as editor in the 
following issue. 

No story of The Indiana 
Catholic and Record would be · 
complete without "J. P." Born 
in Ireland, he came to the United · 
States as a young man and be­
came connected with various 
daily newspapers in a news or 
an editorial capacity. After 
some service. with the Catholic 
Columbian Record, then publish-

. ing an edition in Indiana, he 
founded The Indiana Catholic. 

Mr. O'Mahony in many re­
spects was typical of the school 
of editors of the latter part of 
the nineteenth and the early 
part of the twentieth century 
which made the editorial page 
the focal point of a newspaper 
and in this hub of editorials, pos­
itive and vigorous opinions were 
freely expressed. This practice 
was carried into The Ind'.iana 
Catholic so that while acquies­
cence could hardly be called the 
general reaction to this type of 
editorial, a charge of a lack of 
vigor was seldom made. Re­
gardless whether or not this 
type of journalism should have 
been permitted to lag in favor 

of the later school which be­
lieved in the placing of the ob­
taining of news first, Mr. 
O'Mahony did leave h is mark in 
the field of his work-Catholic 
journalism as represented in 
the Catholic newspaper. 

Mr. O'Mahony diem at Indian­
apolis on March 4, 19135. 

The name of T he Indiana 
Catholic was changed to that of 
The Indiana Catholic and Rec­
ord on March 5, 19H5, when the 
Indiana edition of th e Catholic 
Columbian Record, of Columbus, 
Ohio, was absorbed by the local 
paper. 

Up to June 24, 19'.27, The In­
diana Catholic and Record 
printed a seven-column page, the 
columns measuring twenty and 
one-half inches in length. The 
first eight-column page appeared 
on July 1, 1927. 

In approximately equal chro­
nological divisions, are repro­
duced in this edit ion "first 
pages" of The Indiana Catholic 
and Record. On page 20 is the 
first page of Volume 1, Number 
1; on page 21, is the first page 
of an issue in 1918; on page 22, 
is the first page of an issue in 
1926; and on page 23, is the 
first page of an issme in 1934. 
These in many ways tell the his­
tory of the development of the 
paper better than what might 
be written, and to this is the un­
doubted added interest of the 
very news printed in the years 
which have gone. 

JUST what is the Catholic 
press; of what does it con­

sist; and what are its claims, 
particularly those of the Cath­
olic newspaper, for existence'! 

What is called the Catholic 
press includes newspapers, re­
views, journals of opinion, peri­
odicals devoted .to literature and 
the arts, and technical publica­
tions dealing in a scholarly way 
with special fields of investiga­
tion, scientific, educational, 
philosophical, religious, , and 
historical. Many small maga-

zines of a devotional nature are 
published, and nearly all of the 
dioceses in the United States 
have their own diocesan week­
ly newspaper. 

Since the news pa per is the 
most widely read medium of in­
formation today, the diocesan 
weekly holds a place near to the 
top in importance to the Catho­
lic reader. 

Of all publications it is the 
diocesan newspaper that justly 
claims a close relationship to the 
Catholic family. It is through 
these columns that the family is 
acquainted with news concern- . 
ing the principal events, move­
ments, and activities of the 
Church, not only in this country 
but abroad as well. 

In addition to this information 
the diocesan newspaper supplies 
accurate accounts of the various 
movements and events outside 
of the Church which are of vital 
importance to the reader who is 
eager to keep abreast with cur­
rent events as they affect his 
Church, Catholic 1 if e and 
thought, and society in general. 
Thus supplied with an abundant 
source of Catholic knowledge, a 
religious and cultural influence 
finds -its way unobtrusively into 
the home. 

That there is a vacancy in the 
home, and in the world today 
which can be filled only by the 
presence of a deeper religious 
influence is more than proven in 
the lives of the Catholic men and 
women who, perhaps through 
habit hear Mass on Sunday, 
say their morning and evening 
prayers, receive the Sacraments 
occasionally, and are outwardly 
practical Catholics-yet, when 
confronted with questions or 
problems which are of real inter­
est and importance to themselves 
they are as pagan as a Marcus 
Aurelius in their views and 
judgments. 

It has been said that men's 
minds are influenced in a greater 
measure than they know, by 
what they read, and that the 
sure instinct of a Catholic for 
sane and wholesome living is 
contaminated by a queer mental 
twist which follows the reading 
of publications whose basic ideas 
of truth are a little vague. It is 
the work of the Catholic press to 
aid the resistance in as far as is 
humanly possible the progress 
of this spiritual disease of our 
day. 

There are many honest claims 
made by the Catholic diocesan 
newspaper for its right to exist­
ence, but, if there was not a 
single other argument in its 
favor than that it aims princi­
pally to help its readers in be­
coming intelligently Catholic­
minded, that argument alone 
would earn -for the publication 
its right to live. 
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evening at .8 o'cloclt. Special dev.0 • Though many laud Itnlia's clime, 
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diction o[ the Blessed Sacrament. And worship old Hispania, 
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The St Anue's a.nd the Tabernacle The winds of Hea.ven n ever fa nned, 
Societies· o[ St . .Joseph's Church will Th e circling sunlight never s panned 
receive Holy Communion Sunday The borders of a better land COMING EVENTS 
~~!"~!n"tenten devotions at St. Brid· Than ou r owi0 Indiana. 
get's Church will be h eld only 011 F,J· K. of C. reception thl' even[ng at the 

ball on East Wash.1111;ton ~ treet. All 
members or 437 should be present . .dafh!v~~~~~
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Society of SS. Peter and 

·p~ul's Cathedral was in charge of the 
d lstrtbution .of. the candJes \Vednes­
dav mo,rntng of th i s week. 

. ..,J?.e,,~ Q';,~!;,/;~~~f .. 11S;-~1~~\\; r~~J;, 
Holy Communion Sunday moruin~. 
· The Rev. Vince nt Dwyer of St. Jo• 
seph's Parish has organized a class or 
young people to take up the study of 
ih0 ··Faith of Our Fnlhers." The work 
will be carried out according to t~ e 
plalll or study lai d down by Dr. Shiel 
or the Catholic Uo ive rs 1lY, and prom· 
1ses to be of ;:_-re~l Ui?nc tlt to those 
who have taken it 11p. The young 
men as well as the young women are 
asked to join , and as the ·need ot well­
jn etructecl Catholic layme n is so urg­
ent. the stud y of this famous book of 
Cardinal Gibbons will fill a long-felt 
want. The class will meet on Friday 
evenings a t St. J oseph's Hall . G15 East 
North Street. 

The Confraternity or th e Holy Ro· 
sarv !or tbe men or the Holy Rosary 
Chllrch, which numbe red twenty-six 
on the day of its organization n fe w 
111,•eeks ago, bas now r eached the mem­
bersh ip or forty-one. The members 
have all pledged th emselves to make 
their Easter duty a nd to receive Holy 
Communion in a body. Many of the 
members of th is society ha "e n ever 
been properly instructed and the work 
o{ instn1ctlng 1hem will be taken up 
by the pastor, the Rev. Marino Priori, 
wltbln a few days. 
. A number or the young men of tbe 
Holy Rosary Parish have conceived 
t he Idea ot forming an orchestra _and 
ha ve decided to contribu te a certain 
amount for the purpose of hiring an 
·instructor shortly after Easter. 

The Mothe r or God Society of St. 
Mary's Church will receive Holy Com­
munion Sunday morning. A weetmg 

1
of the society will be held after Yes• 
pers Sunday afternoon . 

Lenten devotions at the church ?f 
St. Francis de Sales, Brightwood, will 
be · held on Wednesday and Friday 
evcuings during Lent. Th e services 
on Wedne sday e ve nings will consi s t 
of fl scrm<Jn and benediction and on 
f'r iday evenings the re will be the 
Way of the Cross and Benediction or 
th~ Most Blessed Sacrament. 

J:~e~~f1st:y .:~dasiI!d:r ;/e;~~~i~k~! 
cb.1rch tor th e Lenton serv ices. Ou 
Wednesday even ings the instruction 
wil lbe folio\\ ed by Ben ediction of the 
Bl,issed Sacrament and on Friday 
ewning there will be the Stations o( 
thi Cross and Benediction. 

·:he Altar Society of St. Patrick·s 
cturch will receive Holy Communion 
in a body, Sunday morning. 

fbe St. Aleoysius Boys Society will 
r(f!-.elve Holy Communion Sunday 
mn;niug a t Holy Angel 's. church . 

'~he devotions during Lent at the 
Hoy Angel's ch urch "'ill be he ld only 
on Friday evenings , 

\ re1>et ition o[ tb e "Milkmaid's Con· 
VJDtlon," which was successrully given 

fr 8
tti,/

0~:~~e~' H!'.'.x~i;~; ;~ee~!rfi'a~ 

~

. uncll, Y. M. I., will be given at 
. Frances de Sales Hall, Bright· 
ood, Sunday evening at 8 o'clock. 

inder the avspi<:es of the Young 
.. adies Sodality o! the pari sh. The 
11all hns only lately been r efrescoed 
bnJ decoratC'd and the ente r tai nment 
will be the fir st one given in it s ince 
~•,-. .... cnovation. Tbe p lay ·is ou e that 
a1as o~~en been acted and is alw ays 
well recpJ·,,vl. Arthur J . Beriault, one 

;o[ tue best known of the sewi-profe-s-

En"1-own,ed with forests grand ·anrl old, 
FJntllroned <>11 mineral wealth untold , 
CoinJ11g hes soil to yellow gold, 

T hrough la bor's great Arcana; 
She .foster ij eommerce, science, art, 
With wllling hands and ge n'ro\Js heitri, 
And •~nd~ to mauy a forelg11c m'll,'t 

Prnt-•c'l'B- i,t l ndln1•a 

But even while our hearts rejoice 
ln the dear homeland of our choice, 
"\:Ve should, with one united voice, 

Give thanks, and slag Hosanna 
To Him whose love and bounteous 

grace 
Gave to the people ot our race 
A freehold, an abiding placl,, 

In fertile Indiana. 
-Sarah T Bolton. 

C. W . A. 

Catho lic Wome n's Associat ion Starts 
W ith Big Initia l Meeting • . 

E~t=;~: e'::f~ f~; ,1::rr;:ur::1~t sr:~ 
Ho~y Rosary. Fini, concert prt>· 
gram. 

T~orrnd Gt:i\ p'\'l'f~ ~-(11~-s rP.ce{!• 
tlon th is even ing, Feb. 4., at Mc, 
Cabe Council Y. M. I. Club Rooms, 
1415 E. Washington Street. 

-Dramatic entertainment.. "A Noble Sac­
rifice," Sunday after noon . and even• 
Ing, Feb. 6th, Sacred Heart Hall. 

Annual banquet .Capitol Council Y. M. 
I., next Sunday evening at the Deni­
son; Goverllor Marshal l as a guest. 

Card party, L. A. A . 0 . H. (Div. 8). 
St. J oseph's Hall, this (Friday) 
evening, Feb. 4. 

22,587,079 CATHOLICS IN U. S 

MILWAUKEE, Feb. '2.-There are 

Over four hundred ladies, drawn ~~lte
7i07t~~th

~~~~~d~;;e"t~h\fv~~~~ 
from the various organizations and sheets of the Wiltzlus Offi cial Catbo• 

branches or the city, met at K. o( C. ~iunfr1:c~::irJes'P:hb~!:h":r ~~~e.Un~~; 
Hall Sunday to hear plans discussed States proper, Alaska, the. Philippines, 
for the formation or a Catholic Worn- Porto Rico and the Hawaii Islands. 
en 's Association, which will under take T he Catholic population under the 
the good work o! establtshlng a cen• British fl ag, according to the same 

tra.l meeting place, rest room and dt;~ct~;;• ~sni!!f
5
~·:;t~s proper t here 

lunch room for the Catholic working are 14,347,027 Catbollcs, showing a 
girls of the city. The project was gain or 111,576 over a :rear ago, The 
first thought about over a year ago, directory shows 4,845 parocblal schools 
when an entertainment was given by ~~2i~.~5siountry with an attendance ot 

t he L . A. A, 0. H. at Tomlinson Hall, Cathollc population of the leading 
and quite a handsome sum was real- states in the Union is as follows:_ 
ized for the purpose. Mrs. John M. New York ...... , . ....... .' .. 2,722,649 

Taylor, county president o[ the A. 0. iifi~~~:1v_a~l-a . ·.:: ::: ::·.-.-.:::: t:~g~g 
!·eet~~:11:;~• l';f;~~siif1~ ~~ll~n~~d~~! ~:i~sacb~·s·e·t·t~. :: .' .' .' : ." ." .' .' ." .': .': l ,iit:~~~ 
secretary. Louis iana . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 557,431 

Mrs. Taylor outlined the aims a nd Wisconsin . ..... . , . , . , ...... . 532,217 

f,bj:i:'c~~c~!:1rr::dtit~~\::~e~
1ti; New Jersey . . . 49G,OOO 

such an institution. ~!~:~~~~ .".':.::::: :·.-.·.·_-_-_-_ ~ ~:: !~t;~~­
ed ~~~~hT:~~0

~.:J~nt~i~e~ad~e!u~!~~~i~tf Minn esota . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . 427.627 
s peakers, and addresses were made •by California · · · · · · · · • · · · · · · · · 391 ,SOO 

Hon. Chas. A. Gauss, Maurice Don- ~~~=c'.i_c_u_t_. :: ::::." .' .'.'.'.'.".'::: •i~tii~ 
~~f~lJ~itiT~-~~ srog~~t!i;t';re;~~~~~~e~ft t~~ Iowa .... . .. ' . .... ... ... . ... 242,00U 
A. Kavauaugb or the A. o. H.: Dr. Rhode Js lnnd .... . .. , .. , . . . 242,000 
Jno. F. McCool, an<l J. P. O'Mahony. Illdiana . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 218,75S 

Those who made adrlresses h eartily Kentucky · · · · · · · · .. · · · · · · · l 94,2% 
·~ndorsed the ideas advanced by Mrs. 
Taylor and the ladies who in spired 
the movement 

A temporary organization was 
fot·med, and committees on constitu­
tion , by.Jaws and organization were 
selected 

In the n ea r future an organization 
nieel ing will be called to give f0rru 
to Ow ideas advanced at Sunday'::; 
mee ting. 

It was pointed out at the meeting 
that in all the large cities ot the 
United States Catholic women's or­
g:ini zat ions have already bee n · estab• 
li shed for a s imilar purpose, and it 
was shown that the large Catholic 
µoµ ul ation or Indianapolis ought to 
have s uch an institution for Catholic 
women. 

The meet ing opened with a chorus 
rendition or tho '·Harps That Once" 
and "Die ,Yacht Am Rhein," and 
c losed with "The Star•Spang led Ban­
ner.'' 

The I ndiana Ca t holic. th e home 
pape r of Indiana. should be in every 
Cathoric home in th e Hoosier state. 
Subscri be t oday. S.ee subscription 
cupon on last page. 

Visi t in g t he Poo r 

A number of Catholic women of the 
city met with ll!rs. S. P: Sheerin, 1010 
North Pennsylvania street, Wednes­
day afternoon, to take up the worl< 
of f,i endly visiting among the Catholic 
poor of Indi:inapoli s Until now, this 
work has bet>u done only by individ· 
ual s aad to a ce rtain extent by the 
members o[ aid societies of various 
parishes. Tb e number or Catholic 
families in the city who are really in 
need is appalling 

Tile wome n who met with Mrs. 
Shee rin are not to give financia l aid 
to destitute famili es, but to vi s it the m 
and become their fri e nds a nd in this 
minner improv e, or rat be r show the ru 
bow to improve their conditions. 
\ \llatever aid is needed will be sup· 
pli ed by th e charity organization so­
cie ty with which the fri e ndly ,·isi tors 
will cu-ope rate. 'rbe work is yet in 
its Infancy aud is be ing al te nq>tcd 
only on a small scale, but doubtless 
will be a p.:,wer o[ good among the 
poorer classes 

THE NEW. ST, MARY'S CHURCH, INOIANAPOLIS. 

The new. !church ror St. Mary's (Ger• 1 The Very Rev. Anthony Scheidler, v. 
man) congregation will be one the G., pastor or old St. Mary's, bas set 
most magnU!cent ed ltlces In Indian• his heart on t he completion o! t his 
apol!s a,nd will be erected at t he sot1th- grand structure, ground for which 
east cotner or New J e rsey and Ver· will be broken In the spring 
moot streets. 

ST, JOHN'S SCHOOL. 

Roll of Honor. 
Grade 10.-E. F . Holloran, V. P. 

King, J. T. Moriarty, F, J. Trenck. 
Grade 9.-L. Connolly, P . Powers, L. 

Creeden, J. Lynch, E. Dur in. 
Grade 8.-L. Mahoney, n. Neilan, F . 

McNeliis. D. Moran, G. Carson . 
Grade 7.-J. Wood, L. M. Basso, F. 

E Meyers, G. Burns, R. Wec hsler, T. 
1-l'!llloran, L. McGrath , J . M. Mounta in, 
C. O'Lea ry, B. Delaney 

Grade 6.-W. Meany, J. Sullivan , J. 
1"Jaley, A. Klee, F , Glick, E . Harrold, 
E . Driseoll, 'f. Griffin, T . Lamoureux, 
J. Griffin, W Lynch, J Hayes, E. 
Dugan 

Grade 5.-G Jonas, T . Welch, W . 
Dwyer 

Grade 4.-ll!. O'Connell, M. Cahill, 
R. Hunter, M. Moran , J. Shea, T. 
Sullivan, L. Harrold, T . Ryan 

Grade .- J . T. Sulllvan, J. Swtc ney, 
M. Mulrine, L. Basso. 

Grade 2.-T. Bray, L . J\loran, F. 
M,oore, R.. Cooper, M. Hayes, J . Mc­
Hugh, T o·connors, T. Sullivan, N. 
Shea. 

Grade 1.-J. Cunningham, E . War• 
den, P. O'Connors, P . Haboush, M. 
McCrayel, J. McGln ley, J Murphy, J . 
Moran 

The Ora to rica l Contest. 

will be well taken care or In the 
bands of E . B. Schroer,, whose past 
performances a re sufficient evidence 
or what way be expected or this char­
acter. Mr. John Lauck, Jr. , is cast 
as Johann Rame noff, . an outcast and 
ex-convict, a strong part and,. one may 
be sure, in exc8iient bands. Mr. Frank 
Gantner as Myron Arnold , Mr. Aug. 
Mueller as Capt. Kendrick Aruold, Mr. 
Henry Biltz as Lieut. Arthur Manley, 
and Mr. Ralph Volz as .lames , th e, 
servant, are ail c.ast in good parts and 
good work ls expected from each. 

,Isabel, , Vald emar's wife, will ·be 
played by Mis:,; Clara Volz, wbose 
pla)ing in the pas t has delighted 
ma ny audiences. Miss Abbi e \ Vahl, 
as Edith, their adopted daughter, wi ll 
also command considerable attention 
through her fine work in tb.e pas t. 
The part O[ Maymle, a child, will be 
play ed Uy Jitt le Anna Schludeckt'r, 
who, in spite of he r very tender age. 
bas already had experience in this 
line of work. Th e comedy part ot 
the play ls left in the bands or Mr. 
Chas. L auck a nd Miss Louise Mue ller, 
a pair who In the past hal'e de lighted 
every audience before which they 
nave p lafed, and this play wi ll pro,·e 
no exception . 

The pe rformance is unde r the 
direction of Mr. E. B. Schroer, asslsled 
by Mr. John Lauck, Jr 

Emmet Anni ve rsary. 

Al, Friday night's meeting or the 
Francis J . W e nnlger, of Noire Dame Emmet Club final arrangeme nts will 

University, will represent that ins ti· bt"l made for the annua l production or 
tution to-night at Caleb l\tills H,a ll in " Robert Emmet, ·• the great drama by 
the State oratorical contes t. ~otrc Jose ph I . C. Cla rke. at the Colonia l 
Dame enthusiasts arrived Thursday I (fbeatre, Sunday evenin g, Morch 6th. 
e ve ning and will he · on dec.l( ' to The 1Jroductwn las t y('ar was a g reat 
··boost· • the r e presenta tive of the ir success and there was a g13 nr ral l1 P.­
alma mater. Those d('siring to get mane!. for a r(•production with tb e 
seats should be on hand early cast 

Morrison Hall was we ll filleu 
,vcctuesday e vening, F ebruary 12th, 
when the Lad ies•· AUXIiiary, A. 0. H .. 
celebrated the feast of St. Bridget. 
An excellent paper was read by Mrs. 
Maurice Donne lly, giving a ieomplete 
sketch o! the great lrlsb Sai nt. 

This excellent pape r will be printed 
In fu ll in next wee k's Issue ot the : In• 
dlanll Catholic, as It ls well worthy or 
reproduction. 

Mrs. Donnelly was given a ri s ing 
vote of thanks. 

Catho lic Pubiishers Meet. 

The Catholic Pub\J shers of Am erica 
he ld the ir second annua l banquet in 
New York on the evening o[ January 
28. The committee in clud ed Me!is rs. 
D. 1''a uss o[ N 0w "\'orlt, T. J . Flynn 
or Boston. J . G. Gummc rs bacb. o f SL. 
Loui~, Arthur KC'nnecty of New Yor :,, 
l•'ertlm a nd \Vild erm a nn of Nc- w York . 
Tbe SJleake~s wei;c },' , .1. Quinlan, l\1. 
D., former presid ~J1l or th e Catholic 
Club, a nd th e Lael.arc Meda lis t or the 
UniversHy of Notre Dame, lndtana, 
[or 1906; and Professor D. C. Ke rbe r• 
man, or Catholic Encyclopedia Asso-. 
dation ; Mr. Thomas J . Flynn, of t he 
we ll-known, J , Flynn & Company 
house, Boston, represent ed the Ne w 
l.-;u gland dis trict. Mr. Fly nn was on 
hi:; way home from a. winte r vaca tion 
triJl o t' several ·weeks through. Cuba 
aud the South. 

NOTED EDUCATO R SPEAKS TO 

GREAT THRON G AT CALEB 

MILLS HAL L 

Necessity of T ec hnica l T raining. In• 

dustri,1 A rt a nd Education­

Tho Complete Add ress. 

Monday night at Calch Mill s Hali 
Prof. James C. Monagha n, form e rly of 
Notre Dame, spoke to a great meeting 
o! business men of Indianapolis in the 
mterest of the Technical Ins titute . 
Former Mayor Charles A. Bookwalte r 
introduced the brillla• t educator. 
The l ndiaoa Catholic pre-seats a rorn­
ple te s teuogra pbic report o[ the Pro­
;:~~~r'a address. Prof. .Monaghan 

I always teJI an old story whe neve r 
I gel hold of a new 1111dirnc.c and 
th b one Ls approp rbte as it i.s a -~choo l 
story. Th e 1.eacb<.'r of th e ·arit hmcti c 
rla.ss said to J ohnJJ y, ··.'\ow, .J ohnn y , 
su ppose your fath e1· owed $1 00. Hnd 
promised to pay $~5 e \'e ry t hree 
months, how much would h f' s r.111 o we 
at the end or tho year?' ' ··one hun -

~:~\~1 ,'' u~:l\~rsl·~ e ~~~~he/ 01
;·~-~~ a1'.~':>i~ 

s tupid bo.v an d don't kn ow you r l~ 

~ 1~·: ~~b,lc!:i~: ~t~d t~.~~~~J:-' i~• I yi~ 
don't know Pa." · 

THE BRITISH RE SULTS. 

I am just a little puzzl~,t to-night 
to k11ow what . line of ta.Ht would be 

1 the most valuabl e. l f a:i)~body has 
bee n making any promi sC's abbut a lee• 
tur.e, let rue ldl you that 1 am not 

Time alone can -tell what advantage r:1
~:l~o ~~ctt~ri~ a;u~~~~u~f r i~i~u:~:~'l!f 

the Irish people will r ea p from th e education. and Jet m e <Hid. indus trial 
present commanding positJon In . art, nod let 111 0 al so add, h .. -c hni ra l Cd· 

;~~o~~~ !:~!e~~-t~,n~esd i~:el~~hnT~~ ueation. l hope to cliffc•rf' ntiatc in th 
par-ty of eighty-two Irish members can ucation. I hope to dJO'e ren tiate in the 
make or unmake Liberals or Tories. very beginning. 

It is the greatest- opportunity that all!~:~! !~\::;i:;,or:eor~
11

;;~!·py 'lema:r~ 
an Jrish Parllamentary leader could lean family, and If at th e end -0! the 

:::;,e~~at \tobi~ J~~m~~~a\~:! eoie~o~~~ ta lk any of you have any questions to 
or will ever have again. How he a s k, I hope you w il lask them. I may 
ought to use It ls clear ly indicated not l>e able to ans wer, but I shall 

fa{:l~::!~t1~0~1~1~;:1t?:;e:~1: lfi;/~l11r!~i~t~ii;f;;f.~~~?{::l' 
~i~ i~r:~~~el l~e~~s~n 1-1~~':no~~l.: fec~etter und erstanding or this su l>-

l)lace t<;>day be would qule\lY wait In Man ua l T raini ng . 
gri m sJl~oce for tbe final result or the I °'1 ii::; h firsJ to say tha t I woul<l like 
rlectiou~ and then Jet the eaders of yo~, tr, J1Ft\•1 l'tniate lktwe~ n what c:o n­
both parties know that they co uld not st~t utes lct hnical edurat lon, iµdu s­
take office with the hope of holding tnaJ, or industrial art. and wbat i s 
on for a month unless they came to known as manual tra~ning. Ma nual 
his terms oo the question of Home .training has come into our sc-hoo1 
Rule and the Bud~e-t. F'or It is in• system, and it has become s nt h a part 
conceivable that Pa rne11 would ever of our edu cationa l system in the 
consent to a Finaoc~ Bill that would Uni ted States that we could hardl y 
rob Ireland or an additional J:2,000,00U e ither dispense it or di s!)Ose of it 
a year, ruin one of the fe w remaining better than we have already done. Jt 
industries of the country, and impose has become a part or our so-call ed cui• 
intolerable burd ens on th P. farmers tural st udi es, but the un fo rtuna te fea-

w~~ i~a~~ g~r~~~!~d t~~1i~r~~~~d wi ll ~~~~ei~s t!a~oi~f~:i~is~,r°~l~~!~o~~• ~;~~ 
now exact some thlug more than nection with manua l trainin g aLHl 
evasive promJses from the English what we ca ll jodustrlal art trai ning. 
Liberals. Her representatives have i t Manua l training i~ a n essentia l e le-
in tbeir power , to force he r de mands. ~~~~ietf ~ .:~y w~ial;ngu;irfu~irna~ 

through grammar, or 11igh, or other 
schools, is expected to get more or less 
manual training. ,vhe the r it Is right 

,A PARENTAL WARN I NG ! 

Wilton Lackaye, the well-known or wrong, I am not here tonight to 
actor , in an address on ''The Powe r discuss. But if you want my opiuion, 
or the Drama," de liverc<I In Chicago I think it•· is good . I do not look 
on Sunday last, d e plored the growing upon it as ll fad, but as one of those 
tendency or the t heate r o[ today to helpful parts of cui,tural study that is 
present plays that foste r vice and good in e\·ery way. Time was, when 
immorality. · we lived in the rural distri cts more 

As a remedy for this state of' t han wo do now,--out In the co untry, 

~~ii!~st~;· c~~~~!:1;,~.gg~~s fn 8~~~! ~~t :e o!~t :~!o:a;~;l t~:i~;~,f~o
0n~ 

connection he utte red some home the country ls the best worker in th e 
t ru ths tbat should be taken to heart world. He bas learned to wo rk not 
by parents In general. ruone with his l1ead, but with his 

" It Is appalllng," he said, "the ln- hands. H when be wohked in the fur­
diff'ereace of t be ordinary ' intelligent row th ings stuck and did not go right. 
parents to the all:alrs or th e theater. he had to work and pull and haul 
They trust $2 in'to the bands o! their unti !be could make it go straight, 
children and send them forth to visit and trls work on the farm in the old 
the playhouse without taklng tbe trou· days, the spinning and we,·n ·ing and 
ble to inquire whether the plays they household work, the work on th <> 
are to see ar~ fit for Immatu re minds farm and in the barn :1ud In the or• 
and impressionabl e natures. This is, cha rd . devcolped the head nnd t.he 
to my way of thinking, c rimina l care- hands s ide by s ide. 

~~l~~ne~~ld ~c l~~t~eno~~~~:t~(:n~i~~?r• du~\;~i:t:~11e~~:~:~~ra i1 al~:~:;;c~
11 

~;; 

Such words as th ese coming as t h.e y ,1re leavin g the fa rms and coming in to 
do t"rom an eminent actor is a reas- the big cit ies. I nd iana t0day b; mo re 
s~1rlng sign of the awa ke ning or the of a n indust rial a nd c-0 11 1m(' rri a l StatA 
mt•mbers of ttle theatri ca l profession th:u1 it is :i.n agl"icuttura l St:1te. An <l 
to a se nse of th eir respons ibility in so one reason the ho.rs t l1at c-ome in 
this matt er; and it s hou ld serve as a off the fnrm s are the most s uctl·ss fnl 
ch.eek on those tbeat riral managers, men, is ber.1usc they h a\'C" l<':irned the 
who ,in face of a ri s ing public opinion. fund amental e~scntial to cUuration. 
In s ist upon pande ring to all that Is They have learned llow lo lire and 
prurient and viciou s in our n ational l\ow to form judgments. And so w~ 
life. could ~ee in those days the ('u ltur;1l 

T HE FIRST TEAC H ERS. 

Professor J. l\J. Greenwood , supe rin· 
tendent or Kan sas City publi c sc hools , 
pa id a ust tribute to the Jrls b the 

~~i :~1J1a[~a~vhheer~ bfn sa~~/ss~::~tc :;:! 
Iri shmen. Back in 1798 wbeo th e En g­
li sh suppressed the rebel lion and alter 
HobPrt Emmett bad bee n banged 
many or th e inte lligent young tnl;!n 
of Ireland fl ed to th e United States . 
Seeking to avoid extradition, th ey 
ca me into the inte ri or , whiC'h at that 
time was almost a wild ern ess. Some 
of them be-came sc hoo lmasters in 
Mi ssouri an d were thi s s ta tc ·s fir s t 
teachers." '\\'hat the Professor says 
of l\1issouri ts true al so of ('VCry mid · 
wes tt1 rn state. 

st udy manual trai ning' is now givln~ 
us 

Industrial Educati on. 

But industri al l'ducati on, or ind u~­
trial .trt, or rter l.rn ic:il t ra inin g aro 
distinct Urom manu al tra ining. a l• 
though, let me make it pb.in-wh :-_1t 
almost everyone kaow o;:;- lhat thf' lnr• 
gf'st part of what we t:all ind11 ; tr ir1 l 
educat ion, or industrial ,nrt, or In· 
ctus trlal ed ucati on , is manual train• 
ing In character. That is, yo u ca n 
not girc iudust ri:ll trainin ~. or indu!:l­
trial art it.raining Wii thout ma nl~•t 
training. And .again 1 hope th ,•re wi ll 
nol be any confu sion in r ,rn11 er- tion 
with thi s. bec-a use I want to n1al<c it 
plain nod c- lear, nnll th e ~•oo n<'r w~ un­
de rstand this , the soo1w r will \'; c 
ach ieve the result s ll e~i rr•r l. r thint 
the opportunity for inq•ron'nwn t li es 
a long the lin ~ of \\: ha t the C1-rm;n1 r ·, 11 

Those w ho advertise in Catholic the gc\\'rrbt} ,srhnl c- n 11. hP ind w.; tri:1..1 
newspapers deserve well of the Cath- ~<:hool. or thr. ~1Jw ,.: rhr lw n:;t , t hC iu 
olic reading public. Show the right tlu f t rial al't school, Ht11 l I ,•r.1pl: ;p;izt~ 
spirit t hen and reciprocate by support• i t again, hN.:.Ju se we Jll ll i:! 1 nnl l<>S" 
ing them! I (Contiou C'd on P rir,..: :i . , 

Page one of Volume I, Number 1 of The Indiana Catholic. Appearing under a date of February 4, 
1910, the newly founded diocesan ne·wspaper was only another venture on the sea of Catholic jour­
nalism. It was an ente·rprise launched in a land of peace, a nation of contentment and what seemed 
then, tremendous isolation. Ambitions were not so great and sleepy Indiana countrysides still 
slumbered undisturbed by the impending awakening at the hands of the automobile. The World 
War itself was something which existed only in too ambitious minds. 

Depending upon one's viewpoint does the year 1910 seem remote or near but Pius X sat in the chair 
of Peter; William Howard Taft was president of the United States ; the episcopal see of Indianapolis 
was headed by Bishop Chatard, Bishop Chartrand having not as yet been consecrated ; and Thomas 
R. Marshall was governor of Indiana~ Today, all of these men are gone. 

f 
• 
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Know What's 
· Going On In 
· Catholic Circles 

R E AD THE 

Indiana Cathollc&Record 
THE INDIANA CATHOLIC A Happy 

New Year 
To All 

Vol. 9, No. 463. 

Pope's Fine Trib.u'te 
To the Hetoic 

Poles 
1n Letter to Archbishop of 

War.saw Benedict Cong.ratii­
latcs Redeemed Nation 

on Its Heroic Resist-
ance to Foes. 

DEMANDS I NDEPENDENCE 

( By C. P. A.) 

~ -RJ:CORll 
--&NII: YJ:.lB f 2.00 

111:l MOJITBII SI.IMI Single Copiee 5 Centa 

K. of C. Secretaries 
Return Home From 

Fra.nce 
Seventeen Men W ho Saw Active 

Service on the Front Lines 
Helping the Soldier ,Boys 

Arrive at New York. 

THE IR WORK PRAISE D. 

NEW YORK, Dec. 23.-Seventeen 
--------- ------ ------------ ----- !Knights · or Columbus overse.as secre• 

Religious Matters Discussed lpjt~:a~-~r'te,rut~tp 'Cardinal Gibbons is .Hop· eful :i;r$;t.;~;f~tii\~r.?~ 
~ Belgium and a ll related niany t hrill· 

l·n Germa~ Rep·ubl·1·c Case of· 'W'orld Outlook ~~-~ ~xr."d" ~~:i;"iia~ ai~;~:!i;e.~,~~d~~ the bloodiest battles ·of lhe year. 
Every man in t be palty underwent 

Sign~ of Impending Strife Between the Centre Party 
and the Extreme ·Socialists . . Catholic Party Shows 

Growing Streoth in the Rhine Region. 

Clear a_nd C$,J(incing Statement 
of the Right:'6f the Irish Peo­

ple to G,l'aim American 
Suppor\ in Struggle 

for i_:Freedom. 

Venerable Arcblbishop of Baltimore -Gives Out Inter­
view on the Peace Council and. Prospects (Qt 

the New Year's Achievements 

many severe hardships while serving 
our fi ghters. i,~or mop.tbs th ey experi­
enced a ll the trials and many of tho 
dangers of soldiers ·in the actua l light• 
ing · lines. They travelle\l r ight with 
Pershing's men, served · them while 
Chey fought at C-hauteau Thierry, while 
they wei•e lfoning ·out tlie ,1un savent. 
at St. Mibiel and while they chased the 
foe back toward the German border. 

Eight years go by . Much of the news appearing on this first page of The Indiana Catholic and Rec­
ord of 1918 has taken on an international aspect. Men are returning home from France, religious 
matters in the new German republic are told about, and the carto<1>n t ells the Kaiser's story. 

At this time·, Benedict XV was the reigning ponti~; Woodrow Wilson occupied the White House; 
the Diocese of Indianapolis had Bishop Chartrand as its head, Bishop Chatard having died but a 
few months eiarlier; and James P. Goodrich was governor of Indiana. Mr. Goodrich is t he only one 
of these men alive t oday. 
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THE INDIANA CATH 
/1!JRECORD. 

. q;~~. · ·•ai>e,· 
Is a Perpetual 0 LI Missi.on ··. i.n the. 
Home-Leo XIII 

ONE VEAA 9!.~0 
&IX MONTHS 11.111 INDIANAPOLIS, IND., FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 1926. -TEN PAGES- Single Copies, 5 Centi 

Fourteenth and Meridian Streets to be Site of New Structure 

Eight more years come and go as this issue in 1926 of The Indiana Catholic and Record appears. A 
trend away from the news of 1918 is to be seen; no mention is to be found of the war and educa­
tion seems to have been the dominant note. The Eucharistic Congress held in June, 1926, at Chicago, 
was the subject of a news story which told of the musical plans then being developed. Cardinal 
Mercier had but recently died which brought forth a tribute from Protestant Bishop Johnson. 

Of the men who headed church and state, Pius XI, the present pope, was pontiff; Calvin Coolidge 
was the chief executive of the United States; Bishop Chartrand was Bishop of Indianapolis; and 
Ed Jackson was Indiana's governor. Death has come to two of these, Calvin Coolidge and Bishop 
Chartrand. 
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Veritas 
Omnia 

Vincit THEINDIANACATHOLICANDRECORD [I] 
Vol. XXV, Whole No. 1264 ONE YEAR a2.oo 

SIX MO NTH S ,1.00 INDIANAPOLIS, IND., MAY 4, 1934 ,-EIGHT PAGES--< Single Coples, 5 Cent& 

DIOCESE CLOSES FIRST CENTURY 
MOODY TELLS 
OF .STUDY THAT 
LED TO CHURCH 

Dogmas That Puzzled 
Him Made Clear By 

Investigation 

. PLEA. TO URGE NEGROES 
TO SEEK CONGRESS VOTE 

ON ANTI-LYNCHING BILL THE WHI TE HOUSE 

· CEREMONIES TO INAUGURATE 
MEASURE AUTHORIZ1NG 

OQTOBER 12 COLUMBUS 
DAY PASSES CONGRESS 

BALTIMORE, April 27.-A plea WASHINGTOJ':1 , April. 28.-The 
CENTENNIAL AT VINCENNES 

~~a~:gk~~\y~f [!e t~~~te~e!i~!!!~t~~ J\.pri 
1 1 

G, 
1 

:):${ " resolution authorizing the Presi-

Lives in Congress their interest in ~;:,~~ 
0
bc~~be~·~~e:actta;:!/l/c~: Apostolic Delegate Will Be Celebrant Of 

the passage of the Costigan-Wag- Jumbus Day has now been adopted · , . 
~;. A~~~Ly;~chihffveBil~h~i,w ~\';f; by both Houses of the Congress. - High Mass Before Old Cathedral 
friends do the same, is fflade in a The measure, introduced by Rep-

~:tt:;a~v:ilc:'n i~.~~;~orn i:::~::· t:~~ Uy dO(U' Bl shop R1 ttel' I ~·::rt:~iv: ioi~~z;.:;~;~~ion~\a~s~; On Next Sunday 
200 Catholic churches for colored the Senate this week in the fo llow-
~•~obl~a"r'ts~S.J~,a~.2;,~~i~~-~ttro:~ With the obsorvance of its Centenary on May inlf.;;~;;;~cl by the Senate and . V INCENNE~, May 2.-The celebr;i t ion of .a_ Pontificat 
St. Francis Xavier Church here, sixth, the Diocese of Indianapoli s wlll look; back upon House of ·Representatives of the High Mass at 11 o clock S unday mornmg; May 6, will officially 
who has requested lhal the mes- ono hundred years of intimate connectio'l wit'h the growth United States of :America in Con- open the solemn observance of the Diocesan Centennial in 
;age be read next Sunday, has ex - and devolop,nent of the Middle West. Oric;inally estab- gress assembled, that the President Vincennes. His Excellency , the Most Rev. Amleto Giovanni 

Te~ii~;~]i~G~;,~r,~ce A~t1rJ~~li; g;-"~!ct 2t0: 0zi1tfc~~~t J;t~~~~.°f~ ~!~t:d h:! ;::r~i::~s: ~d!i::~:~;f1~:n;
0
~,;iu!~~! ana- ~~d

th
r~q~~~~::J ~o~~~~e,sa aP~~~1~~~''. Cico~nani, Apostolic Delegate to t he United · States , will 

and non-Calholics that once .he hacl the United States will be reached ovor a wide area, particularly in the advancement of t ion calling upon officials of the pontiAfica1te.f I b 
"g,·asped the great _un<lel'i ying doc- n,rectly by thi s message. Government to display the flag "of · Pat orm , ms een erected immediately in front of the 
Lrines of the Ca_tholi,· Church, al l The appea l to u,e Negroes of the relli;ion, th0 promotion of the causa of educat i on, and the _United_ States on all Govern- Old Cathedral, on which the Holy Sacrifice of the Mass will 
those seem111gly detachecl dogmas, country Lo make manifest their in- the inculcation of r i i;ht prinoiplos of citizenship, menl bmldmgs . on October 12 of be -offered. 

~~~~~~ ~~: ~~1-8(\~u,~n~s:~~·;;bl~~~ ~:~~~\:Ja~e;t t~r t\h: ~~l~a~:s Jb;di~ The people of the Diocese of Indianapolis ~~c~h~e•unf~~ 's;~t:e:g tt;eoi;:it~: The Most Rev. James H. Ryan, D. D .• Titul'"ar Bishop of 
ically into place and offered no fu r- ciary Committee in an amended the day in schools and churches, or Modra and Rector of the Catholic University of Washington, 
ther difficulty," John Moody, na- form; that its passage is likely if ~~~; ~c:f~:~cyca,u:~ r0p~d0 i,!~/y~~ouinrtstha,lal:\,1~~ osef_venth the,- suitable _places, with appro- D. c., will be the principal speaker. The Most R ev. ·John T . 
t1onally-kno1vn layman and con- a vote can be obtained, but that • ~~•blt~ ~=~~~~_:'~tsb:fii;;~:;i:~.°!nt:i~ McN(cho!~s, Archbi~,hop of Cincin~ati, the Most Rev. ~oseph 
I°B;c~~:~v:r'c1arholl~~·::sa°;;~~~; ~~~ti~;~t ~~i:c~l!ie i~efoo:~1h;,° .~.. ~:~: named t6 pre side over the Seo in one )nmdred versary of the discovery of Amer- E. R1tte1' D. D., B1~hop of the D10,cese, and many B1shopt, 

~h~igJ!th~l;;eD~~~';:fe~~~ ~~•l~e~-~ journmenl of Congress. ica." _____ h~~oeuf~ii~;.~;t~~u~?h:~:a\1J:~~ent, and for whom thrones 

icaThe Most Rev. J ohn M. McNa- w Al with great I 1~::;e;~~:: ~f.,!h:e;;P~:!!i't~o!:~:::1;;s · r u S J / The Rev. Albert Busald, pastor of St. Anthony's Church , 

~~~:: p~~;~:ar~t ~;;;<;r,.:tL:a~;,i,i e l Pussyfoot heart iest ~reetings and felicitations on this occasion. t. . tu ent s , i~~:;e~p;~:t:.il~rst
1

esP~~~~~ ~~~~:h~~~~ir:g~i~: ~i7ln :~ 

the "Question Box" was conducted O R •, • . s w • (}f p • s ub-deacon. The Deacons of H onor. will be the Rt. Rev. 
by the Rev. A. J. Burggraf, C.S.P., fl . e fgJOfl ays Very s incerely yours, lflfl~r . YlZe Fretleric K etter, pastor of St. Anthony's church, Evansville, 
~:~;

1
~tc~ll::e ~~~1~;;1;1iiuai°~i.-!~: and the Rt. R ev. Maurice O'Conn01·, pastor of St. Joan of Arc 

tor of the League. Miss Grace M,· .. ,·ster At Meet ~ ~~ In Arc·h,·tecture church, Indianapoli s ; the Rt. Rev . Raymond R. Noll, V. G., 
Sprucebank, Grand Regent of It · / · pas tor of St. Philip N eri church, Indianapolis, will be the 
Court District of Columbia, C. D. , .,.,,.,.,.;{ ','-- • Assistant Priest: The R everend D eacons from St. Meinrad's 
of A., delivered a message of greet- -- Seminary will serve at the Mass. 
~i~e;nbdy ~t;d~~~~alolT;;~i~ c:i~ Tells Michigan Educators The Most Reve rend Joseph "E. Ritter. D.D., $1 450 Annually For Two Chaplains to Bishop Ritter will be the Rev. William V. 
1 ~ishop of Indianapolis, ' • Boland, St. Mary -of-the-Woods, and the Rev. William P. Gar-
eg~ome Non-Catholic Opinions Of Subjects Taboo · The Bishop's House, Years And Study rity, pastor of St. Vincent de Paul church, Bedford. 

Mr Moody who is president of At U Of M 13~7 North Meridian Str eet, In Rome The Master s of ' Cer emonies will be the R ev. Eberhard 
Mood.y's lnv~stors Service, began • • l ndi anapolin. Indianu. Olinger, 0. S. B-., of St. Meinrad's, and the Rev. James Hickey, 
his address by tell ing some of the Cathedral, Indianapolis. . 
i~~:·:f ~:;;~c;~;/1~1i:~~[e~~J=~-e;f:.~: DETROIT, Apri l 28.-"We're all NEW YORK, April 27.-Robert The St. Meinrad Chancel Choi1·, wi th Dom . Thomas 
ing his conversion. It was attrib- J)Ussyfooters" wh_en _it comes to re- A. Weppner, Jr., twenty-seven Sch,aefers, 0 . S. B., as dir~ctor, and t he Rev. Stephen Thuis, 
~!~~;./eai~i~

0
;,~/.!• h•;~o~~,;~

1
~~!: ;~~-' 0;f 1~,'~,;•;~b~;~kM~th~~~~ti!,,i!: years old, a graduate student in 0 . S. B., at the organ, will render the sacrea music at the 

11..:ss ~ he • was "enticed into the copa] C~u~·ch , tflld a J~1ry' panf-1 .of tCha"1·. hSocl_1hcooUln'.¢..1'v·e~rs·,.·wy,. ~~of tAurme.e•,~,-tca.th,·ne .Mas~. 
Church by 

O 
plotting ,J es tlit t~e Rel~g1ous Ed t~ cat,011 AR~oc,a-

1 
_______ ________________________ I ,rsit - - - ------- Buildings Restored 

fi~!e~~:;li tI~s wo~s li;~,i,~ :;; c~~ /;~'('. t•~:~:~t~h:01~~,i~::.:_·it:•r:r Michi- BROTHERHOOD I CONFERENCE OF JEWS DIGNITARIES AT ~~~~:h/~~:n, w~~~er'w:;\li:!';o:~ WILL DEDICATE th;d~-~{ r,"J~hai~~;ri~; ;~~ J~/!r~~: 
~i/~!t o~: d~~~y'j~~1_1,ish ._ his !nind fi~~~ef\oF~i~:~·R: a!!~I '~~~~foenni; . I Prize in Architecture. Thi~ award, . . · ~:!/eb~1fJ1~:le::~~ ~;,e ~~d !hr:1ct 

"Now it wi ll be noticed," he .said, real politics on the campus. In so- ANO CHRISTIANS HELO valued at $4,ooo, IS giveJl m an an- 18 the priests of the Diocese studied 

"t~at not a single one . of _ these ciol?gy there are some phases that DAY OBSERVED BISHOP O'BRIEN nu 
I 

compet,trnn spons!ll'Rdfy t~e G AULT PLAZA durmg the years between 1830 and 
cr1t1cs gives any cons1derat1on to cant be di scussed. In economics AT YALE UNIVERSITY ::i:~;;~a;h/;~nd;e~'~o'$l,4t0 :-yea; lc~~~;e:t~dd t~~t~ttlSet_chGaapberl1feol,rsmceornl~ 
; hc~~:~~~l~~hen~~;.yh!i~p~:c~~:~ ih:t i::!:;fe~~:c~~fthiie:;f~p:.~~~ause -- fo1 two years and fre e residence. vent and afte1 the n f t h 
son that he ·had found .Catholicism · The Rev. Joseph A, Luther, S.J., NEW HAVEN , April 27 _,,c0m. and , •tudRo at 

th
" American, ,Acad- AT VINCENNES S1st~rs of Providenc~

0
,':;\f4~ wit~ 

~~~~~:~\:~~~-~:-ioe~F::£2thhii ~;1ll(fi!ra,~~}~t~nn{¥~,;R::; AT EVANSVILLE ~:;n a c~,~:~;::•P::n~:::n!~e h:~t:~ CONSECRATION :~]} }~~ {G~-p;};~~~:t7w~~t,P1;'~ m:~~~{£: n:t;1?:t p1;~i:m 
thought whatever 1s given to the I takes 1ts. young people to the social Yale University here under the entiiants from schools ill a ll parts, - - used as museums. 
possibility that it was not emotion, j centers, does youth get a vita] -- auspices of aB religious orgnnizn• -- of the cou~try comp_e~ed. As a re-:- '· . During the past three weeks. 
~ot sentimentality, not subjectiv- · grasp of social problems." • J tions on the cam us and with the • ~ult of ,th1 5 competition ten /final- Statue To Be Erected thousa nds of persons have already 
ISIII of a_ ny sort; but that reason, Later in the discussion, Dr. F ish- True American S Role f f t~ Jl1 (" ] C Impressive Ceremon- "i5 fc, e selectc\~f/h'trn fln~i· T visited the Old Cathedral to view· 
~ogical }1Uman reason, a!1.d object- er asserted t hat while " no one • coopera ion O e a 10_na_ on- • lS s our were a O IC m~ers1 y 1.n Plot Facing the work t hat has been going on. 
,ve proof, may have led .11m to the could object to a reasonable profit," Shown At Goodwill ference of ~ews and Chr,st,ans. Jes As Prelate Is stud ents. No other school_ m the Religious Will Attend 
portal s of the Church. yet the "profit motive becomes 'un- The conference was inaugurated - ' countiy could ,~oaSt of moi e thnn Cathedral b h · · · 

Only Natural . Chris(ian'" when "you make profit Meeting with a U-table session_, at which Elevated is~:_representat,ve .among the final- co!~'::nfu!sof ~heo V~lO~S :~~%'e~~; 
"All of which is quite ' natural the motive of all human

11
endeavor th.e Rev. T. Lawra~on Riggs, Chap- M . W . . . f L k _ _ frofn Vince~nes, witfT attend the 

For . to take i;eriously the s llgges- and the gauge of success. , -- lan:,. of the Cathol.1c Club at Yale, __ woo 1
• eppner, 8 nati~e 0

• ~-e- . . Centennial celebrations Sunday,. 
tion that Catholicism can be effect• Jn sumn:iarizino- ti1e r esu:ts of dehvered the opemng remarks and · f N., to., .l)ttendid the ~mveisit~ ·VI NCE'JI.TNES, May 2.-Among with their relatives and friends 
ive]y defended by human reason, th c-di scuss,on , Dt Fisher said that t" EVIA~S~~L\E,: P[/ 29 - N~- introduced Dean Luther A. Weigle CHICAGO, Apri l 25.-Members ~hen oe~~erer'li;~ 0caf;er %etr, _ an the prin~ipal events "of the after- These will include members of th; 

:;:~~~~t~~~,i~tait/\:~1:1~. •:i~~~~ :~:e:h:;r~nhgsm:: ;eb~;~~:~ ~··;~-~~t:: s~~~~-d h:~e e;~d
0
a
0
y in a~ ciid,~ili ;te;i~~l3fm~~;i~tttsest:t\~

1g ~·a~-~ i~nt,,h~/;~::r,i';Jtsf~~cailii1i~•u,;i~ sity of America, fr~m :hi~h ~~v~;: noon P;Ogram ' of celebrations in fi~!e':n~f :~~~~1:~;~· ~:d!~~e~~d 
seems to penetrate the mind of the of a new social order ; second]y, Meetmg hel.d I~ the' Central H~gh m the U-table discussion were th_e vers ities and ·colleges, Abbots, Dio- w~ve~n;/sh~:~hl~~r !o~efh!e·Se~r; conn:ct1on with _the D1oce~an Cen- other"corhmunities of Sisterhoods. 
rnd ifferent outsider, whether he be thal educators mus t go further in School a~d1tormrn. The meetmg Rev. L. C. ~ cCarthy, O.P., Pres!- cesan Adminis trators, representa - M s11 f h ~ .. I . o tenma1 next Sunday at Vincennes Likewi se many prjests former 
a Protesta.nt Christian, a pantheist l teachinj!" the evils of the presei,t Vas pres•d~dd overf bih Al~eri t- ~ent of ProvidenGe Coll ege, Prov,- tives of religious Orders and wide- ofeA~·rh~tecisetC~f::,n.y w~tu:- will be the dedication of, the boys of the city, will be present. 
0:·r~i/)~f~;' hi s own previous in - ~~:~~;, ~~~j;" ';;~~n~h~:-~:\ h'!t 0,~g; co::~mo

1
't'vi~d;:bu~gh C~unf; :nd ,.;~~=gi/i;;':/:tor :'f_g~0~;,,~~~!~:J'. ~~~~-~~i:~ 1

t"Ici:';n0~tt~nedef1J~te ~~~: P,-ize, and the Third Paris Priz: Gibault 1'.laza_ at 3 o'clock by the Pr_e pare for Crowds . 
. _ , next generation is going to do for~er State Depu_ty o! the Father McCarthy was a lso a speak- William D. O'Brien, as titular Bish- of the Beaux Arts I nst1tute. Hon. Clem Richards, chairman _of _Approximately. 200 automobiles 

Contmueo on Paae 7. someth ing a~out it anyway. 11 K1!;~:tss;!a~:~:m~:~u1;e~n~~aen\u. ~In~n ~ 11

~ri~~°;uuee"Mhee~dor~~it H;\I~~ ~f <gh~:~~~a C~~j~x~~~Yp~~5:i~~ . . !~:n.~orge Rogers Cla1·k commis• ~~~ :~dt ~tifl t}~,~:1s~u~~=~s~~~:: 
Rev. Francis P . Ryves, p.astor of where the oth~r speakers were Rev. were among the foreign countries Brute' Medallion • . . t10n for elderly men an? women, Pope's Acqua ·nt w ·th w Id Assumption church· Rabbi Milton Everett R. Clmchy, of New York, represented while prelates from His Ex_cellenc_y, _th~ MoSt Rev, for those guests who w,11 be ac-. l ance l or Greenwa ld of Washington avenue a Presbyterian minisler, and Ra~ such widely sepa1·aled United Aj"leio lG,ovanm f 'c{'f~anJ, SA~os- com pa med b~ smaH children, and 
temple· Dr. T. A. Wigginton of Morris Lazaron, of Baltimore. States possessions a s Alaska and to. 1c e egate tot e mte ta es, for the official v1s1tors , who will 

Affal.rs Ma·kes Deep lmpress,·on On Washi~gton avenue Presbyterian The conference opened the fol- Puerto Rico cam• to felicilate the t• ll .hies~ the Plaza. An addresl~ arrive at . the _Main street stalion . 
church; Col. Louis ' L. Roberts, Ca- ]owing day with three group dis- noted supporter of American mis- 1JY ~oveinor Pau] V. McNutt W I This station 1s l?cated at a dis-

• • tho]~a~~y i~~~=:~~~~tir:t ~~~~~~ ~~~si~~~iod::Nt~ ,:':!i~t:lenr~0~:~a:~d ---------- 1 • fo~o viife.-size ' ~ro11ze s tat~e of t~~cca~te~~~lt g~~~~l~S~lock s from Publisher Of M mneapolis Tribune s~ntative;' and _Isaac Salm, J ewish Creeds" and "Intolerance at Yale." The MOS t Rev. William D. Fa
th

~~ pt:r\e Gfbau:~· tt~n~~~~,:~· Committees are_at work in prep-
lay representative. ~ather Riggs directed th e discus- 3~~1'~es"A.~;~i·~r;ii!ho~o~;ech~: f~ws b~a e~~cte3 in° t he Plaza i~ arat10n for housing arui serving 

,- ----. - • th~~~~l ~i;.tt~~u:~;:.~~-r~a:i~:,sd~~ fh~ b~o~~~1~"n":;d :1~;;:5e ,~rt~up~ cago took place on April 25, will i:0ncto~pt~:e~a}~:d~h~ bc!n~~~nr:1: t~\~s~:\~~~:nd~e;\~;nd~;_exr:~!~~ 
Assocrated Press Art,cle, Wntten After not in any way countenance religi- luncheon sess,o~ ~t which three be the guest of the Rt. Rev. Ma- In its pla~e. hO\~ever, will stand a d1 t1on to the_ hotels and_ roomm_g-

A d
• A . ou s hatred, ~nd the rol e of an Yale s!u?ents, ~ep1esentmg ? itt:er- r ino Priori, pastor of Holy Ros- plaster model, so that due honor houses, tou~1st rooms m s.eveial 

u rence t Vatican, Tells of Inter.est American citizen could be tr~ly ent r~hg1on behefs, gave their _1 m- !~{o,~~~~~h,M~~~~;~~;.• ;:J~rtt~ may be given to the priest through hund'.·ed pnvale homes will be 
In Reconstruction Program of U S ~~:! ~ c~~hampered by religious d1f- ~~ds~~Mo~~;hoef cB~Jij;f;~e~a~,~~; the Diocesan Centennial at Vin- whos_e_edefftohrts _thet ~ol·~hi al t't"'.~ ~~a;~ebl:~o:0~1~~hae~d w~:-~v~: i: ~rh:~ 

• • . Catholic speaker. cennes Sunday. Bishop O'Brien a,cquu e gi ea 01 wes e been made for ample parking 
. . deJ~! r!~ld~~ssth! 1!~~~j~norw!%v:~ • . will say the 5 30 Mass at Holy r it'J'}t~· statue will stand on a high spac~. Ho:~~e.ver, there wi11 be no 

In an article written for the ary with whom we have ha d hus• foll owh g Rosaiy Church Sunday. ·J. bise and will represent the priest parking w1thm_600 fe~t fr_om the 
Associated Press fo llowmg an au- lllO'S durllll( n•cent years." The "I remembe , about twent ea1 s Bolshevik Monument To . clothed in his clerical garb, admin- Old Calhed'.·al, m all d1rect1ons . . 

~~"s-:cep;~;ct;,~ues hxtw;,t;eJ!:~cr
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The final eight years in our cyc~e brings us to the issue in 1934 of The Indiana Catholic and Record 
which tells about the close of the first century in the Diocese of Indianapolis. This is the dominant 
note in the news stories on this front page. Much is told of the celebration which was to take place 
on the ensuing Sunday at Vincennes, and prominent place is given to the letter of congratulation 
from President Roosevelt. 
The same group of men who head church and state now were also the heads then, and each, either 
directly or indirectly, had some part in the centennial celebration at Vincennes. Pope Piux XI was 
represented through the Apostolic Delegate's presence at Vincennes; President Roosevelt extend~d 
his congratulations to Bishop Ritter; and Bishop Ritter and Governor McNutt were both present m 
person for the celebration. · 



: l 

The Indiana Catholic and Record 

A Modern Monastery 

I T is very fitting that the hills 
of Spencer county should 
have been chosen as the site 
of the present St. Meinrad 

Abbey, an offshoot of the fa­
mous Benedictine Abbey at Ein­
siedeln, Switzerland. For years 
the priests who labored in the 
Diocese of Vincennes-which 
then comprised the whole of In­
diana and about one-third of Il­
linois-had been recruited al­
most entirely from Europe. At 
the time of Bishop Brute's con­
secration, one bishop and three 
priests served as best they could 
the religious needs of from three 
to four thousand Catholics scat­
tered over approximately fifty 
thousand square miles. By 1838 
the need was so great that the 
bishop was forced to ask for 
German-speaking priests to ac­
commodate the vast numbers of 
German immigrants, who, to­
gether with a few Irish refu­
gees, were arriving every day 
and settling along the Wabash 
and Erie canal and throughout 
Indiana. One of the first priests 
to answer this call was the Rev. 
Joseph Kundek, later to become 

In Spencer county-St. Meinrad's, the 

Alma Mater of most of the priests in 

the diocese, holds an interesting 

story since the early days when Swiss 

Benedictine Fathers chose Indiana as 

the ideal location for their abbey. 

Vicar General under Bishop de 
St. Palais. 

All the Ordinaries. to Bishop 
de St. Palais had continued this 
practice of securing priests, but 
it was his ambition to build 
more permanently by establish­
ing in the diocese a school to 

train American-born young men 
for the priesthood. Returning 
from his first "ad limina" visit 
to Rome, he stopped at Einsie­
deln to beg the Benedictine Or­
der, famous both for its mission­
ary work and for its teaching, 
to send priests to establish a 

permanent house in the United 
States. But conditions were 
such that the abbot was unable 
to grant this request. Since the 
recent civil war in Switzerland 
had ended with the complete de­
feat of the Catholic cause and 
with the expulsion of the J esu­
its, it was necessary for the ab­
beys to take over the schools left 
vacant. There were no avail­
able men to send to the United 
States. 

Just one year later Father 
Kundek went again to the ab­
bey on the same mission. This 
time conditions were more fa­
vorable, and the abbot, Henry 
Schmid, or Henry IV, who had 
for some time been considering 
the advisability of sending mis­
sionary priests to the new world, 
was favorably impressed. On 
July, 1852, he wrote to Father 
Kundek that although he had 
neither the men nor the funds 
for an extensive undertaking, 
he was willing to "make a little 
venture, provided this can be 
done with humble means." In a 
second letter dated August 20 
of the same year, the abbot 
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The o!d church at St. Meinra:1 Ahh=Y, 
which was erected in the year 1858. 

stated that his objective was to 
establish a monastery in the dio­
cese, affiliated with Einsiedeln, 
in which the monks were to be 
primarily missionaries and sec­
ondarily teachers to develop a 
native clergy. Father Kundek 
was in complete accord and 
wrote guaranteeing a living to 
the priests sent over. 

THE abbot then sent the Rev. 
P. Gallus Morel, O.S.B., to 

Rome to place the proposal be­
fore Pope Pius IX who gave it 
his approval and sent his bene­
diction to the abbot and to all 
the members of the Order who 
would participate in this work. 
Two priests, the Rev. P. Ulrich 
Christen and the Rev. P. Bede 
O'Connor, were appointed to go 
to America and take the first 
necessary steps toward the 
founding of a monastery. They 
left Einsiedeln on December 21, 
1852, landing in New York on 
January 31, and arrived in Vin­
cennes eighteen days later. Af­
ter several months spent in mis­
sionary work throughout the 
diocese they purchased a tract 
of land in southern Indiana 
which had the necessary qualifi­
cations of a central location and 
of plentiful supplies of the nat­
ural resources of coal, timber, 
stone, and water, needed for the 
future monastery. The land was 
purchased from a Mr. Denning 
for the sum of $2,750. 

abbey, now that the preliminary 
work had been done, decided to 
spur on the enterprise, and sent 
two priests, the Rev. Jerome 
Bachman and the Rev. Eugene 
Schwertzmann, naming Father 
Jerome superior of the group 

· which was to make its headquar­
ters at Ferdinand. 

By the middle of March, 1854, 
all was in readiness, and on the 
Feast of St. Benedict, March 21, 
a solemn High Mass was cele­
brated in honor of the Holy 

. _, '. -<;.\I~f_/·> -
. •,··=: .. ·•2s·· 

Ghqst. · Immediately_: ~ftti:-;iki' 
Mass, the members of, tlte .. com- · 
munity and over ..:fift~en . hii:n.7 .. 
dred settlers from the·sm~round..: ·•· 
ing territory · set out- ·in · proc~s- · 1 

sion for the ·new· · St. Meinrad. 
Large vans made their way over · ·.t · .. ·,- J 

the rough roads in •the ·then· · ·. · :. 
· . stormy weather. The first held 

the Cross and Banner, and the 
Mass servers. The second wagon, . · ..... 
drawn by oxen, was· cover,ed 
with flower garlands, and · .car-
ried twenty small girls, dressed 
in white, and the four-hundr~d­
pound bell. The Vicar General, 
the clergy, including the pastor 
of Ferdinand, Father Neuber, 
and three Benedictine priests 
rode in the last van. The people 
followed as best they could, eith-
er in wagons, on foot, or on 
horseback. 

FATHER JEROME in a letter 
written to the abbot on 

March 25, 1854, tells of the for: 
mal taking possession of the new 
home. "Arrived at St. Meinrad, 
Father Kundek blessed the log 
house, the bell was 'baptized', 
and then Father Prior sang the 
solemn High Mass at which the 
Jasper brass band and the Fer­
dinand choir furnished the mu­
sic. The Mass was to have been 
followed by a solemn Te Deum, 
but as. everything was thorough­
ly soaked by the rain, only sol­
emn Benediction with the Bless­
ed Sacrament was imparted. As 
a conclusion to the celebration 
Father Kundek wanted to say 
just a few words to the assem­
bled people about its significa­
tion and importance. But his 
zeal so carried him away that he 
spoke for more than an hour 
with great enthusiasm, and the 
people listened with equal spirit, 
notwithstanding the rain and 

Their beginning was simple 
-a small two-room log house 
situated in the midst of one hun­
dred and sixty acres of farm and 
timber land. With this base of 
operations, new personnel was 
needed to carry on the work, and 
letters were sent to the mother 
abbey requesting more men. The 

A northeast view of the Abbey follow­
ing the fire of Sept1e'mbe·r 2, 1887. 
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The Rt. Rev. Martin Marty, O.S.B., first AbbQt 
of St. Meinrad Abbey. Later consecrated titular 
Bishop of Tiberias, he was subsequently trans­
ferred to Sioux Falls and St. Cloud. The above 
is the last picture taken of Bishop Marty. 

The Rt. Rev. Ignatius Esser, O.S.B., the 
present Abbot of St. Meinrad Abbey. Abbot 
Ignatius was elected Coadjutor Abbot in 1930 
and became Abbot in 1932. This picture of 
Abbot Ignatius was taken in France in 1934. 

cold. Father Kundek was still 
far from concluding when Fa­
ther N euber, with a significant 
frown, laid a watch beside the 
preacher; the latter took the 
hint and brought his sermon to 
a close, but even then prayed 
five truly devout Our Fathers 
with the people to call down the 
blessing of heaven upon the new 
monastery." 

The next day work began in 
earnest. The two monks, Father 
Jerome and Father Eugene, a 
brother candidate, and a hired 
man began at once to clear the 
land, and before the end of sum­
mer had put under cultivation 
forty acres of land, and had set 
out over a thousand grape vines 
and a hundred and fifty apple 
trees. Four small rooms were 
added to the monastery, and the 
school officially opened on April 
17, 1854, with an attendance of 
two students. 

Three months later, on July 
4, seven candidates for the 
Brotherhood arrived from Wur­
temburg, Germany. The sum­
mer was an unusually severe 
one, and the community, made 
up almost entirely of foreigners 
unused to this kind of weather, 
suffered greatly from the heat, 
and from the attacks of dysen­
tery which followed it. It was 
during the epidemic that Father 
Eugene and one of the candi­
dates died. 

Abbot Henry was concerned 
about the future of the commu­
nity so far away. He was anx­
ious to make the journey to 
America, but as this was impos­
sible, he wrote to Father Jerome 
asking him to come to Einsie­
deln to report on the state of af­
fairs at the monastery. As soon 
as he could Father Jerome sailed 
for Europe bearing with him 
the urgent request of the com­
munity for more men. Abbot 
Henry, in answer to this re­
quest, decided to send the dean 
of the abbey, the Rev. Atha­
nasius Tschopp, to America as 
Superior, and Rev. Chrysostom 
Foffa as a missionary. On their 
arrival, the membership of the 
monastery consisted of Fathers 
Athanasius (Prior), Jerome, 
Ulrich, Bede, Chrysostom and 
ten lay brothers. 

But Father Athanasius was 
soon forced to return to Europe 
because of ill health. Father 
Jerome accompanied him, and 
Father Chrysostom was left in 
full charge. The new Superior's 
first endeavor was to complete 
the work of the school, which 
had been neglected for the mill, 
the monastery's chief source of 
income. Work had already been 
begun on a frame Gothic church 
and a monastery building. The 
new home was in a two-story 
frame building thirty by sixty 
feet, and with these accommoda­
tions Father Chrysostom re­
opened the school on January 
21, 1854, a heavy obligation 
since he was the only priest at 
St. Meinrad. Fortunately, the 
Rev. Isidore Hobi, who arrived 
soon after, was able to take over 
many of the teaching duties. 

News of this state of affairs, 
the early death of Father Eu­
gene, the return of Fathers Ath­
anasi us and Jerome, and the 
heavy debt of the community, 
all discouraged the abbot who 

seriously considered selling the 
land and recalling all the men 
except those who wished to re­
main, subject to the bishop. The 
monks themselves were not wor­
ried either by the debts or by 
the hardships, but they were 
worried by another problem. 
The community could not grow, 
for St. Meinrad was not a can­
onically established priory and 
they could not accept the vows 
of their novices, and consequent­
ly their existence was far from 
assured. 

BISHOP DE ST. PALAIS on 
his second "ad limina" visit 

went to Einsiedeln to reassure 
the abbot that all would end 
well. On his return he went to 
St. Meinrad's and consulted with 
the Fathers in regard to 
finances, offering to adopt the 
whole establishment, including 
the indebtedness until all obli­
gations had been satisfied, and 
finances placed on a sure foot­
ing. Encouraged by this the 
monks appealed to the abbot for 
more priests and the right to 
receive vows. This was grant­
ed. 

On August 25, 1860, two 
monks were sent out to the com­
munity, the Rev. Martin Marty 
and the Rev. Fintan Mundwiler, 
both of whom were later to be­
come abbots of St. Meinrad. 

In the meantime Fathers 
Chrysostom and Isidore had di­
rected the building of the new 
church, the cornerstone of 
which had been laid on April 21, 
1858. It contained a piece of 
stone from the cave of St. Bene­
dict in Subiaco, brought over 
from Europe by Father Kundek. 
Mass was offered for the first 
time in the new building on the 
Feast of Corpus Christi. The 
original church, which was 
forty-five by thirty-five feet, 
had a south wing and a wooden 
floor added in 1863. A north wing 
was added much later, as was 
a statue of Our Lady of Einsie­
deln which was placed over the 
high altar. The church also con­
tained two masterpieces of the 
Swiss painter, Paul Deswanden, 
one of St. Meinrad presented by 
the artist, and one of St. Bene­
dict, a present of the Einsiedeln 
abbey. Mass is now offered in 
the church on each of the Ro­
gation Days. 

As soon as Father Marty, who 
had been named Superior, ar­
rived he began to build up the 
school. In the summer of 1861 
he erected a building capable of 
accommodating thirty boarders. 
The .school offered a course of 
studies, which included ancient 
and modern languages, history, 
mathematics, grammar, rhet­
oric, philosophy, and even theol­
ogy. The faculty consisted of 
three Benedictine priests, two 
secular priests, and three theo­
logians. In the beginning of 
1864, the community was com­
posed of ten priests, three pro­
f essor.s, and three professed lay 
brothers. Bishop de St. Palais 
who saw that his ambition of a 
native clergy was about to be 
realized, was overjoyed. He of­
ficially entrusted the theological 
seminary to the community in 
1866. In the same year he made 
Father Bede his chancellor, and 
Vicar General three years later. 



Now that affairs were prog­
ressing so smoothly, Father 
Martin returned to Eihsiedeln 
to consult with the abbot. in re­
gard to the future of St. Mein­
rad. Both visited Rome, and 
on May 25, 1870, Pius IX issued 
a breve elevating St. Meinrad to 
the rank of an independent ab­
bey, and appointing Father 
Martin as first abbot. 

In 1871, the brief arrived, but 
due to the tremendous work in 
connection with the Vatican 
Council, and the destruction 
caused by the storming of Rome, 
the appointment of Father Mar­
ty wa.s never received. An elec­
tion was held which gave Father 
Marty thirteen out of fourteen 
votes, his own being the nega­
tive vote. The new abbot se­
lected Father Fintan as prior. 

The first duty that required 
the attention of the new abbot 
was the rebuilding of the house 
and church, both of which were 
rapidly becoming too small for 
the needs of the community. 
Accordingly, on May 2, 1872, he 
laid the cornerstone of the new 
monastery, and on September 
14 of the same year the Bishop 
laid the cornerstone of the new 
church which was to be con­
structed of Monte Cassino sand­
stone quarried near the abbey. 
This monastery forms the east 
wing of the present monastery 
proper. 

The finances of the commu­
nity demanded the immediate at­
tention of the abbot who decided 
to rent the land the community 
could not cultivate, and to lay 
out a town on a twenty-acre 
field. Plots were sold at public 
auction, money at low interest 
rates was borrowed in Europe, 
and the resulting decrease in 
expense soon materially less­
ened the debt. 

FOUR years later Abbot Mar-
tin, at the request of the 

Catholic Indiana Bureau, took 
up the missionary work in the 
Dakota mission fields. In order 
that he might devote his entire 
energy and time to this work, 
the Pope appointed him Vicar 
Apostolic of the Territory and 
Titular Bishop of Tiberias. He· 
was consecrated in the parish 
church at Ferdinand on Febru­
ary 2, 1880, by Bishop Chatard, 
and then set out, accompanied 
by Father Foffa, for his mission 
territory, nearly twice the size 
of Italy. 

Father Fintan Mundwiler, 
the prior, was elected to fill the 
office, and thus became the sec­
ond abbot of St. Meinrad. At 
the time of his consecration, the 
community numbered forty-two 
priests, thirty-three lay broth­
ers and twelve clerics, while the 
college had an attendance of 
sixty students and the seminary 
of forty-two. Buildings amply 
large had been constructed, and 
the work of the community was 
progressing splendidly. Appar­
ently all was going well and the 
community could s,ettle down to 
a period of quiet growth. 

On September 2, 1887, the 
members of the community were 
just beginning dinner when the 
fire alarm was heard. A fire, 
probably originating in a kitch­
en chimney, had begun in the 
southeast corner of the monas-
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tery, and was rapidly spreading, 
fanned by a strong south wind. 
A desperate effort was made to 
save whatever it was possible to 
save. Valuable books were 
thrown out into the courtyard 
only to be destroyed by falling 
embers. Only two thousand of 
the books out of the original li­
brary of ten thousand and the 
supplies in the crypt of the 
church were saved. In three 
hours the work of thirty-four 
years vanished. The Blessed 
Sacrament had been saved, and 
placed temporarily in the home 
of a Mr. Bingeman in the town. 
As soon as the fire was com­
pletely out, Abbot Fintan car­
ried the Sacred Host back to the 
church in solemn procession. 

Many of the monks felt that 
the site of the abbey should be 
removed to a place more accessi­
ble, since St. Meinrad was many 
miles from rail or water routes, 
but when it was discovered that 
the remaining walls of the mon­
astery were in good shape, it 
was decided to rebuild at once 
under the direction of the Rev. 
Benno Gerber. The barns and 
the frame church were only par­
tially damaged. The religious, 
while rebuilding the monastery, 
lived in the homes of the people 
of the little town of St. Meinrad, 
which had been founded by the 
Fathers on January 21, 1861, 
in honor of the thousandth vear 
anniversary of the death of St. 
Meinrad. The college work was 
continued in a vacated convent 
building in Ferdinand. On the 
second anniversary of the fire, 
the monks again took possession 
of their home. 

Since the fire, St. Meinrad has 
done much building. Under Ab­
bot Athanasius Schmitt, elected 
in 1898, the library, the abbey 
church, and the Major seminary 
buildings were completed, and 
work had just been started on 
the Minor seminary when his 
health failed. The Rev. Ignatius 
Esser was elected Coadjutor Ab­
bot with the right of succession 
on March 11, 1930. He immedi­
ately began the construction of 
the farm buildings, and the erec­
tion of the new Minor seminary 
buildings, which were completed 
in September, 1932. 

The chief work of the Bene­
dictine Order at St. Meinrad af­
ter the "Opus Dei" ( daily reci­
tation of the Di vine Office) has 
always been that of which Bish­
op de St. Palais desired of them 
-the education of young men 
for the priesthood. Whatever is 
to be seen at St. Meinrad has for 
its purpose the making of such 
training more efficient. Chapels 
and churches have been built to 
further the spiritual work, while 
recreational facilities, such as a 
gymnasium, baseball diamonds, 
and other athletic necessities, 
have been built to help do what 
is essential for full bodily devel­
opment. 

A VISITOR to the abbey finds 
a miniature city with a total 

population during the school 
year of about 500 persons. The 
abbey, the Major seminary, and 
the Minor seminary are separate 
units, each having its own su­
periors and its own order of the 

Continued on page 7 4 

One of the old buildings which is still stand­
ing at St. Meinrad's. The Abbey, now almost 
a hundred years old, was erected in 1855. 

This sketch, which was drawn from 
memoiry, shows St. Meinrad's as it 
appeared before the fire of 1887. 

A group of stone masons, taken at the time 
when they were working on the erection of 
the Abbey church, some thirty odd years ago. 
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A Pioneer Sisterhood 
From a log house in the forest, St. Mary-of-the-Woods 

has developed, since its founding in 1840 by Mother 

Theodore Guerin and her tiny band of Sisters of Prov­

idence, into a modern convent and college for women. 

One of the, spots of majesty and beauty at St. 
Mary-of-the Woods-the conventual church. 

I
N 1840, the four miles which 
separated the little town of 
Terre Haute from the place 
chosen for the site of the 

Motherhouse of the Sister s of 
Providence likewise separated 
the comparative civilization of 
the town from conditions which 
resembled, if indeed they did not 
duplicate, those of the original 
frontier. When the six sisters 
who were to establish the school 
arrived at this spot, they found 
themselves in the midst of a 
dense, uncleared forest , and they 
decided to name it, following the 
ancient Catholic custom, with 
the title of Our Lady in the 
character of the environment­
St. Mary-of-the-Woods. In like 
manner, a little later, another 
part of Indiana was given a simi­
lar name, in French, Our Lady of 
the Lake, now known by its first 
words, Notre Dame. 

But the hardship of finding 
themselves alone in the midst of 
an Indiana woods was not the 
first the sisters had been called 
upon to endure. Hardships com­
menced almost as soon as the 
newly consecrated second Bishop 
of Vincennes, the Rt. Rev. Celes­
tine de la Hailandiere, arrived 
at Ruille-sur-Loire, their Moth­
erhouse. While there he ap­
plied to the Mother Superior, 
Mother Mary, for missionary 
sisters to establish a house in 
his diocese where their work 
could be of such incalcuable 
worth. 

The matter was proposed to 
the Congregational chapter and 
was favorably received. Al­
though Mother Mary had told 
the Bishop she knew of only 
one sister capable of under­
taking such a task, Sister Theo­
dore, she did not even hint her 
opinion to her choice, but asked 
the members of the Community 
to volunteer for the project. 
Sister Theodore, a woman of 
great strength of will, but of lit­
tle vanity, felt that she was 
neither capable nor worthy, and 
so did not place herself among 
those who offered their services. 
When the suggestion was finally 
made to her by a third person in 
authority, she readily consented. 

The work of beginning a mis­
sionary foundation in Indiana 
was confided to Sister Theodore 
Guerin as superior, and five as­
sistant sisters: Sister St. Vin­
cent Ferrer, Sister Basilide, Sis­
ter Olympiade, Sister Mary Xa­
vier, and Sister Mary Liguori. 



The choice of Sister Theodore 
as superior was a most fortu­
nate one. She had received an 
excellent education in France 
prior to her joining the com­
munity, and had continued to 
supplement her knowledge in the 
years after her profession, even 
studying medicine under the cel­
ebrated Dr. Lavoisier. As head 
of the schools in the towns of 
Rennes and Soulaines, she had 
been so successful an educator 
that her work had come to the 
attention of the Academie Fran­
caise, which had, after careful 
investigation, decorated h er, 
th us making her one of the few 
women ever to receive this 
honor. 

THE tiny band of missionaries 
left Ruille July 12, 1840, and 

before sailing from Havre, went 
first to Mans to receive the bless­
ing of Bishop Bouvier, a devoted 
friend of both the Community 
and Sister Theodore. The forty­
day journey on the sailing 
ship "Cincinnati" was a trying 
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ditions they might expect to 
find. 

Mother Theodore's diary con­
tains a graphic account of their 
arrival: "Suddenly we stopped 
in the midst of a dense forest. 
It was growing dark. Father 
Buteaux announced briefly that 
we had arrived. We were per­
fectly silent; the gravity of the 
moment excluded any inclina­
tion to loquacity. Imagine our 
astonishment upon finding our­
selves still in the midst of the 
forest, no village, not even a 
house in sight. Walking a short 
distance down a hill, we beheld 
through the trees on the other 
side of the ravine a log house 
with a shed in the rear. 'There,' 
said the good priest, 'is the 
farmhouse where the postulants 
awaiting you have a room, in 
which you will lodge until your 
house is completed.' 

". . . Called from our brief 
devotions we went to meet the 
four postulants who had been 
waiting a week for us. They 
led us to a small room which 

tasks necessary for t he main­
tainence of life in t he pioneer 
surroundings. 

Since it was impossible to be­
gin the school at once it was de­
cided to build an academy to 
house the sisters and the pros­
pective pupils. As Bishop de la 
Hailandiere had already begun 
the foundation for the building, 
workmen were secured to finish 
the structure which was complet­
ed on July 4, 1841. The first 
school year, for which twelve 
students had enrolled, opened 
with the Mass of the Holy Ghost, 
the beginning of a tradition still 
maintained. 

Classes were held in French 
and English, the girl receiving 
an education similar to that re­
ceived by young ladie in schools 
in France. But activities were 
not wholly of a mater ial or edu­
cational sort; spiritual activities 
were really foremost. Mother 
Theodore had made one stipula­
tion before consenting to come 
to America-that the Blessed 
Sacrament should be reserved in 
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that I have thought I should be 
glad to die; but immediately 
thinking of my companions, I · 
have been ashamed of my cow­
ardice and have asked God's· 
pardon." 

THE little Community of nuns 
began to grow steadily. As 

early as February, 1841, ten 
novices entered the convent, a..nd 
the clergy, who hoped to soon 
gain teachers for their parish 
schools, were doing what they 
could to help. Mother Theodore, 
herself, was afraid of a too 
rapid expansion, feeling that the 
new members should remain at 
St. Mary-of-the-Woods until they 
were capable of making both 
good religious and good teach­
ers. But at last she consented. 

The first mission school to be 
opened was in Jasper, on the 
Feast of St. Joseph, March 19, 
1842. The Rev. Joseph A. Kun­
dek, the Pastor, had succeeded 
in securing a comfortable house 
completely furnished for the 
teaching sisters. The opening 

First "Providence" at SL Mary­
of-the-Woods. From an old cut. 

Second "Providence", built 
in 1853. From an old cut. 

one, especially for Mother Theo­
dore, who as a novice had been 
given a violent remedy for a 
stomach ailment which had left 
her digestive system so impaired 
that she could never afterwards 
take solid food. Suffering in­
tensely from sea sickness, her 
illness became so acute it was 
feared she might die. 

Their venture almost came to 
an unfortunate ending upon 
their arrival in Brooklyn, New 
York. Forced to disembark dur­
ing a heavy storm, the sisters 
were required to descend a sway­
ing rope ladder into a tossing 
boat in order to be landed. In 
her diary, Mother Theodore 
states that she expected them 
all to be killed, but as they had 
no choice but to make the at­
tempt, she went first and the 
other sisters, following her ex­
ample, finally gained sufficient 
courage to descend. 

A few days later they began 
their six weeks overland trip to 
the spot in Indiana which had 
been selected for the site of 
their school. Their first glimpse 
of their new home must have 
been a severe shock even to 
these hardy souls who had forti­
fied themselves against any con-

good Farmer Thralls had given 
up to them; this, with a corn 
loft, serves our every purpose­
dormitory, refectory, recreation 
room, lavatory, and infirmary. 
A shed outside is the kitchen. 
Think of ten of us trying to live 
a religious life in a single room 
and an attic! But we are happy, 
though located in the very heart 
of the forest far from human 
habitation." 

For six months the sisters and 
postulants remained in Mr. 
Thrall's home, but at the end of 
that time the family moved 
away and left the community in 
charge. Life was far from plea­
sant, the sisters having to sleep 
in the attic, protected from the 
weather only by a po or 1 y 
shingled roof which let in snow 
and rain as well as the cold air. 
"Sometimes when we awake," 
wrote one of the sisters, "we 
find a comfort of down on our 
beds . . " 

the chapel and there should be 
daily Mass. Gradually more de­
votions were introduced; May 
devotions, Forty Hours, and the 
processions. and liturgical cele- · 
brations of great feasts, all of 
which were approved by the ec­
clesiastical authorities. 

The future of the school and 
even of the Community itself was 
frequently threatened during the 
first years of its existence. The 
sisters underwent many trials • 
and privations because of their 
poverty and the inconstant atti­
tude of the then Bishop of the 
diocese. But some of their trials 
were of a more violent nature. 
They were very systematically 
persecuted by certain of the peo­
ple of Terre Haute 'who tried to 
undermine their credit, and who 
constantly threatened to burn 
the convent and the school. This 
threat must have been not only 
most discouraging arid alarming 
but very real as well, for Mother 
Theodore writes in her diary: 

MUCH of the manual work of "How often this winter have I 
clearing the land for plow- not started out of my sleep 

ing by gathering brush and roll- thinking that I heard the flames 
ing logs was done by the sisters. and saw their terrible light! I 
All of them worked together, believe that our situation here 
gathering the harvest, carrying is not well understood. Some­
wood, cooking, and all the other - ·times I have felt so oppressed 

of the school was celebrated 
with some ceremony, the Bishop 
marching in procession, carry­
ing the Blessed Sacrament, and 
followed by the congregation 
singing hymns. 

Needless to say the missions 
were very poor. Mother Theo­
dore, in a letter, describes the 
school of St. Peter's, established 
in 1843: "They occupy what 
was the original Mother House 
of the Brothers of St. Joseph 
(Holy Cross) in America. It 
is in the midst of the forest, a 
log house open to every breeze. 
The furniture consists of a table 
surrounded by old benches, two 
clothes-presses, two bedsteads 
equally fine, one chair made of 
the bark of the trees and one- of 
common wood. This is all, with 
a few kitchen utensils. Had I 
been there I should not have had 
the courage to allow them to pass 
the . winter in such a house. I · 
cannot conce'ive how the good 
brothers could have lived there 
for a year. I think they must 
have left behind them their 
spirit of poverty, for when I 
proposed to the sisters that they 
should quit their old shed and 
return to St. Mary's these poor 
children pressed me so urgently . 

· ·; 
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Mother Theodore Guerin, the 
foundress of St. Mary-of-the­
Woods. Mother Theodore died 
in 1856. To her is due much 
of the credit for the later 
d e v e I o p m e n t of the Order. 

.. . that I decided upon leaving 
them there until the retreat. 
Three of the principal person­
ages of the borough came also 
as deputies from the congrega­
tion, to entreat me not to take 
away the sisters. However, if 
after the month of August they 
are not rich enough to repair 
the log hut, buy a lock for the 
door, and some bedding, I shall 
order their removal. Imagine 
how heartily we laughed in the 
evening when, before retiring to 
what we called our dormitory, 
we were obliged to place the 
furniture against the door, be­
cause it possessed neither catch 
nor lock." 

TOW ARD the end of 1842, the 
community sustained a se­

vere loss by fire, and it was 
decided that Mother Theodore 
and another sister should re­
turn to France to solicit funds. 
After receiving the Bishop's per­
mission, she and Sister Mary Ce­
cilia, a novice, sailed for Paris. 

While in France many kind 
friends, both lay and clerical, in­
terested themselves in behalf of 
the cause, but little progress was 
made insofar as money was con­
cerned, and to this difficulty was 
added trouble of a more serious 
nature. 

When she arrived at Ruille, 
Mother Theodore was amazed to 
hear that Bishop de la Hailan­
diere, disregarding the Rule of 
the Community, had received the 
vows of two novices ( of whom 
she was doubtful as to their be­
ing received) and had called an 
election for the office of Mother 
Superior, although Mother Theo­
dore had received that title for 
life. The sisters re-elected 
Mother Theodore, and incurred 
the displeasure of the Bishop 
who felt they had been dis­
obedient. 

Mother Theodore, on the ad­
vice of the Bishop of Mans, 
started at once for Vincennes. 
While at sea they encountered a 
storm so terrific that she vowed 
a chapel to her patron, St. Ann, 
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if the passengers were saved­
the .. shell-lined chapel at St. 
Mary-of-the-Woods today is the 
fulfillment of this vow. The 
sisters landed at New Orleans 
where Mother Theodore became 
very ill and was forced to re­
main in the hospital there for 
nine weeks. 

After her return to St. Mary­
of-the-Woods, conditions grew 
gradually worse. She continued 
her yearly visits to the missions, 
founded new schools, and in gen­
eral proceeded as if nothing had 
happened. Several times the 
sisters applied for approval of 
their Rules, but this was consist­
ently refused. 

In 184 7, Mother Theodore 
made her regular visit to the 
sisters' house in Vincennes 
against the wish of the Bishop, 
who felt that the Rule on this 
point should not be observed in 
places under his supervision. De­
ciding that stringent measures 
were necessary, he issued a no­
tice of excommunication against 
her and expelled her from St. 
Mary-of-the-Woods, to which 
she was ordered not to return. 
This sentence of the Bishop in 
consequence led to a serious ill­
ness of Mother Theodore. The 
sisters decided they would re­
main with her going into an­
other diocese if this could be 
arranged. But it was not neces­
sary, as Bishop de la Hailandiere 
had resigned and the Rev. John 
Stephen Bazin had been ap­
pointed to succeed him. 

Bishop Bazin, a man of con­
siderable insight, went immedi­
ately to the core of the matter, 
and the sisters were soon deeply 
entrenched in his regard. Un­
fortunately his episcopate was 
very short. Six months after his 
consecration Bishop Bazin be­
came ill with pneumonia and a 
week later was dead. His wish 
regarding the appointment of 
his successor was respected, and 
the Rev. Maurice de St. Palais 
became fourth Bishop of Vin­
cennes. 

WITH the elevation of Bishop 
1 de St. Palais to the episco­

pal office, St. Mary-of-the-Woods 
passed into a period of compara­
tive peace. Bishop de St. Palais 

understood the difficulties and 
the troubles of the Community 
and did his best to lessen them, 
giving uninterruptedly his sup­
port to its work. At the begin­
ning of his administration, he 
granted the request of the sis­
ters that Mother Theodore be 
made permanent Superior, an 
act which was to have such a de­
sirable effect upon the stability 
of the Community. In a letter 
to the sisters, he says : 

"Convinced like yourselves 
that the good of the Community 
demands that Mother Theodore, 
foundress of the Sisters of Prov­
idence in Indiana, should be re­
tained in the office of Superior 
during her lifetime, I accede to 
your desires and confirm with 
all my heart the nomination 
made by his Lordship, the 
Bishop of Mans. 
(Signed) Maurice, Bp. of 

Vincennes.'' 
The reputation of the Sisters 

and of St. Mary-of-the-Woods 
had grown with the years and 
more and more pupils were com­
ing to the academy each school 
term. The original farmhouse 
had been improved and enlarged 
from time to time in order to 
take care of this increase, but 
the facilities were still inade­
quate. In 1850, the Community 
decided to replace it entirely by 
building a large new brick struc­
ture, a tremendous undertaking 
for that time, in a spot so far 
from the city. The cornerstone 
was laid on the Feast of Cor­
pus Christi, 1852, and was com­
pletely finished by August 6, 
1853. The Community in this 
year had eighty-eight members, 
including sixteen postulants. Be­
sides eighty-five boarders at the 
academy, over a thousand pupils 
were being taught by the sisters 
throughout the diocese. 

In 1854, another milestone in 
the history of the institution was 
reached. This item is found in 
the diary: 

"October 8.-The silence of 
our forests, which from the be­
ginning of the world had not 
been broken, save by the war­
bling of the birds and the cries 
of native animals, was disturbed 
last night by the whistling and 
puffing of the steam-engine. The 

The first academy erected at St. 
Mary-of-the-Woods. This p i c t u r e 
has been reproduced from an old cut. 

Reve,rend Mother Mary Raphael, 
the present Superior General 
of the Sisters of Providence 
at St. Mary-of-the-Woods. She 
was elected in the year 1926, 
succeeding Mother M. Cleophas. 

cars can now go as far as Paris, 
Illinois." 

Great changes took place at 
St. Mary-of-the-Woods after the 
introduction of train service in 
this part of the country. Its 
isolation was largely done away 
with, and the school began to 
develop rapidly. Pupils might 
now come from a great distance, 
and during the Civil War the en­
rollment was so large that the 
academy buildings were taxed to 
their capacity. 

MOTHER Theodore's health 
was now failing. After an 

accident in which she was almost 
drowned, she never fully recov­
ered. Later, the death of her 
dear and devoted friend, Sister 
St. Francis, was a heavy blow to 
her, and on March 17, 1856, she 
was forced to take to her bed. 
For two months she gradually 
grew weaker each successive day 
and on May 14 of the same year 
she died. Buried originally near 
the Chapel of St. Ann, her body 
was later removed to the Com­
munity cemetery, then to the 
crypt in the conventual church. 

It would not be inexact to say 
that the present prosperity of 
St. Mary-in-the-Woods is to a 
large extent due to the zeal and 
wisdom of Mother Theodore who 
built firmly the foundations of 
her Community as well as those 
of the school. Less than twenty­
five years after her death, the 
membership of the Community 
had reached eight hundred sis­
ters caring for over sixty acade­
mies and parish schools, and two 
orphanages, or over twenty 
thousand pupils. 

St. Mary-of-the-Woods has 
continued to grow and expand 
under Mother Theodore's suc­
cessors as Superior General : 
Mother Mary Cecilia, Mother 
Anastasia, Mother Mary Eph­
rem, Mother Euphrasie, Mother 
Mary Cleophas, and the present 
Reverend Mother Mary Raphael. 
Schools and academies opened 
in the early days in Indiana, as 



well as schools opened later in 
California, Illinois, Maryland, 
Massachusetts, and Oklahoma, 
are still continued. Mother Mary 
Cleophas' long and able admin­
istration of thirty-six years is 
largely responsible for the mod­
,ern growth and development of 
the Order and of the facilities 
of the college. 

In 1920 the institution, which 
had grown from the efforts of 
missionary sisters from another 
Motherhouse, in turn sent out 
missionaries. In response to 
the invitation of the Most Rev. 
A. Taccone, six sisters left for 
Kaifeng, Honan, China, to begin 
there the work of higher educa­
tion among Chinese women. 
During the Civil War uprisings 
the sisters were forced to take 
refuge in Korea, but when peace 
was established they returned to 
their mission, and since that 
time the work of the Ching-I 
school has gone forward with 
great rapidity. In 1931 three 
more sisters were added to the 
number already at work there. 

In Kaifeng the sisters have 
€Stablished a Society of native 
Catechists, an association which 
has been recognized and ap­
proved by the Holy Father. This 
band of Catechists supplement 
and assist the labors of the sis­
ters, by seeking out the poor and 
needy, and by bringing to the 
Holy Family Convent those who 
need material and spiritual help. 
Three Chinese girls recently 
came to Saint Mary-of-the­
w oods in order to be trained in 
the religious life there, with the 
intention of returning ultimate­
ly to China to carry on the work 
of the sisters. A new high 
school, with a faculty partly na­
tive and partly religious, pro­
vides the necessary instruction 
for young women. 

THE changes which have taken 
place at the Motherhouse in 

the last ninety-five years have 
been many and varied. The orig­
inal Community of five sisters 
and a superior has grown to 
more than fourteen hundred sis­
ters, and the original one and 
one-half acres has expanded into 
a tract of over sixteen hundred 
acres. 

The administration of the 
present Mother Superior, Mary 
Raphael, has been marked by 
many new ventures; the open­
ing of four schools in California, 
several in Oklahoma, and one in 
North Carolina, as well as many 
changes which tend to advance 
the educational efficiency o.f the 
Community. 

Growing so large that a 
change of government was made 
necessary and in obedience to 
the Holy See, the Order was di­
vided in 1933 into four prov­
inces-one in California, one in 
the East, one in Indiana, and 
one in Illinois. The Indiana 
province conducts grammar 
schools, high schools, a junior 
college, and a senior college. 
Several of the high schools are 
almost as old as St. Mary-of­
the-W oods itself. One of these 
is St. John's academy, Indianap­
olis, and another is St. Augus­
tine's, Fort Wayne, the latter 
dating back to the early forties. 

In 1926 Ladywood school, for 
boarding and day pupils, was 
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opened on the six hundred acre 
Fletcher estate near Indianap­
olis, and a short time later all 
facilities of St. Mary-of-the­
w oods other than those strictly 
to do with college work were 
moved there. A new building, 
Loretto Hall, added in 1929, 
greatly increased the housing 
facilities for boarding students. 

The modern St. Mary-of-the­
Woods contains, besides the cam-

. pus of the college, the Mother­
house and residences of the Sis­
ters of the Order of Providence. 
Its service equipment alone 
would make an interesting and 
profitable study. 

On the east, at about a half 
mile distant from the campus is 
the coal mine which has been 
productive for about thirty 
years, the rich and abundant 
veins of coal being reached 
through a shaft sunk two hun­
dred and fifty feet in the earth. 
Connecting the mine with the 
power house is a spur of rail­
road track over which the en­
gine and coal cars convey their 
freight to the furnaces and 
boiler rooms. The huge genera­
tor in the power house supplies 
all the buildings with electric 
current, and the central heating 
plant provides for the heat and 
water supply. The permutation 
plant nearby transforms the 
hard lime water of the region 
into soft. 

The bakery, in charge of 
experienced bakers, is well 
equipped with all the requisite 
machinery for the supplying of 
bread, pastry, and other forms 
of baking, for the seven hundred 
people to be supplied on the cam­
pus. On the first floor of this 

building and connected with the 
bakery proper is the fruit pre­
paring room and the fruit stor­
age department. On the second 
floor ' is the Providence Press, 
one of the few convent print 
shops in the country. The print 
shop equipment includes type 
setting machines, a large press 
and a smaller one, and such ac­
cessories as an automatic folder, 
a binder, a cutter, and many 
other supplementary aids to the 
handling of material. Provi­
dence Press now prints the col­
lege quarterly magazilne, the col­
lege yearbook, the college news­
paper, programs and all types of 
printed work. It is owned by 
the . sisters and operated by a 
master printer and assistants. 

The laundry, a separate build­
ing, has adequate facilities for 
the work required by the many 
residents of St. Mary-of-the­
w oods. So well organized and 
extensive are its resources that 
the presence of the majority of 
the sisters on the campus during 
the summer vacation does not 
create any problem in attending 
to their wants. 

The dairy farms, spotlessly 
clean, are frequently inspected. 
Here the care of the cows and 
the handling of the milk, cream, 
and butter contribute much to 
the efficiency of the kitchen. 
Nearby are the riding stables 
which house the seventeen 
horses for the use of the stu­
dents, while orchards. and farm 
lands stretch on either side. 

About a half mile to the west 
is the famous old Rouquet farm, 
the present site of the chicken 
farm, where thousands of chicks 
are hatched. later to serve as a 
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source of supply to the tables. 
In these simple ways a large 
part of the food for St. Mary-of­
the-W oods is procured. 

QN the campus proper there 
are seventeen large well­

equipped buildings devoted to 
the housing, instruction, and 
service · of the sisters them­
selves, of the novices, and of 
the students of the College. 

Providence Convent, the 
Motherhouse of the Sisters of 
Providence in America, is a 
simple but imposing structure 
of brick faced with Bedford 
stone. Connected with this 
building by corridors is the 
Novitiate which resembles the 
convent in architectural design. 
The convent, like the medieval 
monasteries, provides living 
quarters for the sisters, ref ec­
tories, reception rooms, and the 
administrative offices of the 
Reverend Mother and her as­
sistants. It is the third structure 
to be erected on this site, re­
placing a structure still in ex­
istence in Mother Theodore's 
day, but which was restroyed by 
fire in 1889. The freshman resi­
dence hall, known as Anne 
Therese Guerin hall, is a white 
brick · building in Italian Re­
naissance style, and faces beau­
tifully landscaped gardens. Lo­
cated just south of Woodlawn 
Irin and facing the main avenue 
is a modern residence hall, 
LeFer Hall, which was begun in 
the early spring of 1921. It con­
tains sleeping and living rooms 
for about three hundred stu­
dents besides lecture rooms, re-

Continued on page 54 

The entrance to the main building at Ladywood school. Ladywood 
is a school for boarding and day pupils, located just outside of 
Indianapolis, and was opened in 1926 by the Sisters of Providence. 
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In a Village of Spires 

In the approximate eighty-five years smce Father Rudolf came to 

Oldenburg, it has developed from a group of three tiny log cabins 

into a 

T
HE visitor to the modern 

town of Oldenburg finds 
little evidence of either 
its beginning or its de­

velopment. One finds it difficult 
to imagine that scarcely a hun­
dred years ago, almost within 
the memory of present men, 
Oldenburg was a tiny collection 
of log huts situated among roll­
ing, forest-crested hills. The 
early inhabitants of the town 
and the surrounding farms were 
mostly of German stock, mis­
erably poor, and possessing only 
the opportunities of aliens in a 
country whose customs were 
both strange and unusual to 
them. They had few luxuries 
and even fewer traditions, but 
they had denp within them a 
feeling that they possessed a 
nobler heritage in their faith, a 
heritage that neither they nor 
their children could afford to 
lose, and their one desire was 
that these children should re­
ceive a Catholic training. In 
1850 their desire was accom­
plished. 

To the Rev. Francis Joseph 
Rudolf is given the honor of be­
ing the founder of the Olden­
burg Community of the Sisters 
of St. Francis. Ordained in 
Strasburg, Alsace, on August 
10, 1839, when the Diocese of 
Vincennes was but five years 
old, he had early proposed to 
become a missionary to Ameri­
ca, but had been prevented from 
carrying out this ambition until 
three years later. In 1842, he 
was allowed to go to the United 
States, having been appointed 
a missionary priest under the 
i urisidiction of the Ordinary of 
Vincennes, the Rt. Rev. Celes­
tine de la Hailandiere. 

Bishop Hailandiere received 
him cordially, grateful to wel­
come another priest to the tiny 
band of missionaries who min­
istered to the thirty thousand 
Catholics scattered over an area 
of 35,885 square miles. Father 
Rudolf was appointed pastor of 
Fort Wayne, and remained there 
two years when he was trans­
ferred to the pastorate of Old­
enburg. 

Here for the first time since 
his arrival he was able to taste 
the real joys of the true mis­
sionary, for little but privation 
and hardships awaited him at 

quaint little town clustered arou~d the Motherhouse 

Sisters of St. Francis and the academy 

which they conduct; in the same length 

of time the Community of nuns which he 

founded has grown into one of the most 

valuable teaching Orders now working in 

the cause of education in this diocese. 

The entrance to the Motherhouse and 
Immaculate Conception Academy of the 
Sisters of St. Francis at Oldenburg. 

of the 

his new post. His parishioners, 
far from wealthy, had been hard 
pressed to present him with 
three tiny log cabins for use as 
a church, a rectory, and a 
school. His first care was to see 
that the church was immedi­
ately set in order, and the school 
opened as soon as a reasonably 
well educated man had been se­
cured to act as teacher. 

When the school had been 
taken care of, Father Rudolf 
decided to build a stone church 
and parsonage, and since there 
were no available or prospective 
funds, he was forced to use 
what remained of his paternal 
inheritance. Although the cor­
nerstone of the church was laid 
in 1846, the church itself was 
not completed until April, 1848. 
The parsonage, too, was finished 
in this year and the four-room 
structure was so magnificent 
that it gained for the pastor the 
enviable reputation of being an 
extremely wealthy man. 

NOW that all the preliminary 
steps for the founding of a 

permanent parish had been ar­
ranged, Father Rudolf began to 
put into action his plans for the 
establishment of a school where 
the children of the parish would 
receive a suitable and a thor­
ough Catholic education. After 
serious deliberation, he came to 
the conclusion that only by 
founding a community of nuns 
of the Third Order Regular of 
the Sisters of St. Francis, could 
he accomplish his purpose. For 
two years he was unable to pro­
ceed, but at the end of that time 
conditions had changed, and he 
felt that at last an auspicious 
moment had arrived. His first 
move was to consult the Fran­
ciscan Fathers of the Cincinnati 
Province. After receiving evi­
dences of their good will and of­
fers of assistance, he wrote to 
the Rt. Rev. Maurice de St. 
Palais, the then Bishop of Vin­
cennes, asking perrrussion to 
proceed with the project, a pe­
tition to which the Bishop 

' readily acceded. Finally, he 
wrote to the Cardinal Pro­
tector of the Third Order in 
Rome, stating the great difficul­
ty of obtaining suitable teach­
ers, as well as the urgent need 
for a Catholic training of the 
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children in such pioneer par­
ishes. His request for permis­
sion from the Holy See to con­
tinue with his plan was imme­
diately granted. 

With the preliminary work 
finished, the real difficulty of 
securing the Sisters commenced. 
While Father Rudolf made 
plans for the building of a con­
vent, the Rev. Father Buch­
maier, a Franciscan missionary 
in New York and a friend of 
Father Rudolf, went to Europe 
to try to interest a community 
in this work. His efforts were 
rewarded in Vienna. 

The Mother Superior of a 
Franciscan Convent in that city, 
after hearing Father Buch­
maier's plea, proposed the plan 
to her community. Two sisters 
volunteered but one of them 
later decided that she lacked the 
necessary attributes of a good 
pioneer nun and refused to con­
tinue. The other was made of 
sterner stuff and thus it hap­
pened that Sister Teresa Hack­
elmeier set sail alone for a new 
and strange country. 

On January 6, 1851, Sister 
Teresa arrived in Oldenburg. 
As the proposed convent had not 
been finished, a small house had 
been rented to serve the pur- · 
pose. But the convent was not 
empty for in the meantime the 
pastor had accepted three postu­
lants who had indicated their 
desire to enter the religious life. 
The convent itself was being 
erected on ground purchased 
from the Bishop, who had re­
ceived it from a parishioner able 
in this way to defray the ex­
penses of a son's education as a 
seminarian. 
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The convent and academy at Oldenburg as they were rebuilt 
after the fire of 1857. This picture was taken from what 
appears to be an old sketch which was made many years ago. 

The normal conventual life, 
as applied in pioneer surround­
ings, was · immediately begun. 
As the Sisters were soon to be­
come regular teachers in the pa­
rochial school, Father Rudolf 
thought it best they should be­
gin some course of studies to 
better fit them for their work. 
A parishioner, Professor Probst, 
whom Father Rudolf had be­
friended, consented to become 
their instructor. It was through 
the efforts of this gentleman 
that a lady whose. acquaintance 
he had made in Switzerland, be­
came a postulant of the Olden­
burg community, who was later 
to play an important role in the 
history of the community as one 
of its Superior Generals, Mother 
Antonia. This new · addition 
swelled the membership to five; 
Mother Teresa, Sister Michaela, 
Sister Gabriella and Sister Jo­
sepha, all three of whom had 
been invested with the novices' 
habit on April 21, 1851, and the 
new postulant. 

The new convent was ready 
for occupancy on October 31, 
1851, but it was far from com­
plete. The structure itself was 
hardly more than four walls and 
a roof. Many of the windows 
were unglassed, allowing the 
bitterly cold winds of the severe 
winter of 1851 full play 
throughout the entire building. 
But the school work for the 
twenty pupils, each of whom 
was expected to pay $2.50 a 
month tuition, was begun at 
once. 

Naturally the small sum 
gained from this tuition was not 
sufficient to cover the living ex­
penses of the community. The 

Sisters were more or less de­
pendent upon the bounty of the 
priest and the few of the 
wealthy parishioner::; who were 
better able to help. The very 
color of their religious habit is 
due to their poverty stricken 
condition. The traditional brown 
of the Franciscan Sisterhoods 
must, according to primitive 
custom, be made from the wool 
of brown fleeced sheep. But 
this was too expensive, and 
since the black material was 
easily and cheaply plt'ocured, the 
black was adopted. The color 
has never been changed. 

THE convent itself in 1851 was 
anything but magnificent. 

The chapel, naturally the most 
ornamented room in the build­
ing, contained only an altar 
made of rough wooden boards 
covered with a green cloth, two 
fashioned wooden candlesticks, 
a wooden box lin,ed with silk 
which did duty as a tabernacle, 
and a sanctuary lamp which had 
been ingeniously constructed 
from a large hollowed out turnip 
covered with gilt paper. 

But there were joys to tem­
per the sorrows and cares of 

. this kind of life. In the late 
autumn of 1852, the Bishop had 

· granted the privilege of reserv­
ing the Blessed Sacrament in 
the chapel, and in the same 
year, the Holy See granted per­
mission to admit novices to pro­
fession, a step which allowed the 
Sisters the consolation of know­
ing that their work was not in . 
vain, for the Community of Old­
e;nburg could now be a perma­
nent one. 

At this time six children were 
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received for schooling who were 
to remain at the academy 
throughout the entire school 
year, thus constituting the first 
boarders in the academy. Soon 
ten more such pupils were en­
rolled. In this same year the 
original three novices were pro­
fessed and two postulants re­
ceived the habit. 

During the autumn of this 
year the district school was 
placed under the direction of 
the sisters, who, since the chil­
dren were all Catholics, were ap­
pointed public teachers as soon 
as they had taken the required 
examination. This system is 
still in force. The sisters were 
only able to care for the sixty 
girl pupils, the boys being cared 
for by a male teacher. 

In December, 1853, the com­
munity was made up of thirteen 
members. Since the arrival of 
several postulants was expected 
at any time, it was thought de­
sirable to enlarge the academy 
building, and construction was 
begun at once, but because of 
lack of funds, it was not com­
pleted. This year, too, was 
marked by the beginning of the 
Sisters' work with the orphan 
children of. the diocese. Despite 
their own poverty they accept­
ed, on the advice of Father Ru­
dolf, the care of eleven friend­
less orphans. 

On May 3, 1854, the Sisters 
opened the community's first 
mission school at Dover where 
three sisters were placed in 
charge of a hundred students. 
Later in the same year they ac­
cepted two more schools-one at 

Continued on pnge 72 
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T RADITION tells us that 
the founder of western 
monasticism, the great 
and sagacious St. Bene­

dict of Nursia, whose Rule 
formed the basis of the Constitu­
tions of so many of the religious 
Orders founded throughout the 
Middle Ages and into modern 
times, considered it both good 
and wise that a Community of 
nuns should dwell close to each 
Benedictine Abbey and buttress 
its work with their skill and 
knowledge. Whether this be 
true or not, we know from his­
tory that he was identified with 
his twin sister, Saint Scholasti­
ca, in the founding of a convent 
for devout women five miles 
from the celebrated Mother mon­
astery of the Benedictine Order 
at Monte Cassino. 

The Sisters of St. Benedict 
first arrived on this continent in 
1852 when three nuns from the 
convent of St. Walburgis in 
Eichstaett, Germany, settled at 
St. Mary's, Pennsylvania. They 
came in response to an invitation 
from the Rt. Rev. Abbot Boni­
face Wimmer, O.S.B., who felt 
that the growing needs of Ca­
tholicism in America would best 
be served in this manner. This 
original convent prospered so 
greatly that within fifteen years 
its sl)here of influence had wid­
ened until it then included south- . 
ern Indiana and parts of Ken­
tucky. 

Thirty-three years had then 
elapsed since the diocese of Vin-
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Hill top Convent 

High on the top of a hill, the convent of the Ben­

edictine Sisters at Ferdinand, together with their 

academy, stands as a beacon which lights the way 

for many youthful students in search of learning. 

cennes had been defined by a 
Bull of Gregory XVI. The dio­
cese was rapidly growing, but 
there still remained all too nu­
merous vestiges of primitive 
conditions. It was evident that 

. the work of loyal sisterhoods 
could do much to help spread the 
teachings of the Church. 

Within a short time, the Very 
Rev. Martin Marty, O.S.B., first 
prior of the then recently estab­
lished St. Meinrad abbey ap­
plied to Walburg convent, situ­
ated at Covington, Kentucky, for 

sisters to establish a house near 
the abbey. Reverend Mother 
Alexia, O.S.B., accompanied by 
an assistant, Sister Mary Evan­
gelista, O.S.B., and the prior 
of the neighboring priory, the 
Very Reverend Celestine, O.S.B., 
visited St. Meinrad's in the early 
summer of 1866. As a result of 
this visit Ferdinand, a small 
nearby town of predominate 
Catholic population, was chosen 
as the site for the future con­
vent. 

Prior Martin entrusted the 

building of the convent to the 
Pastor of the little congregation 
at Ferdinand, the Rev. Chrysos­
tom F'offa, O.S.B., who began at 
once to make preparation for the 
sisters' coming. A temporary 
convent was set up in a three­
room cottage which was fur­
nished and set in order. Soon 
after four sisters, Sister Bene­
dicta, Sister Xavier, Sister Rose, 
and Sister Clare, arrived. Sis­
ter Benedicta was appointed Su­
perior until the convent grew 
sufficiently large for a holding 
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of a general election. In the 
same year, the Sisters opened a 
parish school close to the con­
vent, beginning in this way t heir 
work in the education of youth. 

A 8 time went on, a number of 
postulants petitioned for ad­

mittance to t he Community. 
This made the living arrange­
ments totally inadequate, and it 
was soon apparent that an addi­
tion t o the convent would have 
to be built. A chapel, too, was 
absolutely necessary. As con­
ditions were the Sisters had no 
appropriate place where they 
could recite the Holy Office or 
observe the practices of the Or­
der. 

It was decided to build the 
chapel first, and work on a frame 
annex to the little convent was 
immediately begun. On Decem­
ber 8, 1867, it was dedicated to 
the Immaculate Conception by 
Prior Martin. Mother Alexia 
was present, and t o the great 
happiness of the Sisters, she 
brought a gift from the Mother 
convent in that she presented 
the new chapel with a crucifix, a 
ciborium, a statue of the Child 
Jesus, candlesticks, a large 
stitched picture of the Immacu­
late Conception, and a small or­
gan, in this way completely fit­
ting out the tiny chapel. 

The cornerstone of a larger 
building was laid in the summer 
of 1868 by Fatp.er Chrysostom. 
The building as planned was to 
consist of a basement, two stor­
ies, and an attic. The main 
building contained a chapel and 
a dormitory and was connected 
with the old frame building 
which was later converted into 
music and community rooms. 
The chapel itself was dedicated 
on July 11, 1870, by Abbot Mar­
tin who offered there for the 
first time the . Sacrifice of the 
Mass. The building was com­
plete and ready for occupancy 
by the first of October. 

Father Chrysostom, who had 
been of inestimable value in 
building up the convent by his 
help and advice as spiritual di­
rector, was recalled to Switzer­
land, and his place was taken by 
the Rev. Eberhard Stadler, O.S. 
B. 

The first election according to 
the new Constitutions was held 
on July 1, 1872, Abbot Martin 
presiding. Sister Mary Benedic­
ta was elected Prioress. 

The convent continued to ex­
pand with unusual rapidity. In 
1873, the Sisters had purchased 
sixty-four acres of adjoining 
land which enabled them to pro­
vide themselves with the neces­
sities of life. Within elevn 
years the community had grown 
so that it now numbered thirty­
t hree persons including mem­
bers, novices, and postulants. 
The convent had again grown 
too small and plans were being 
made to enlarge it, when the 
sisters were besieged with calls 
for missionaries from several 
other dioceses. Three schools, 
at Ferdinand, St. Meinrad and 
Rockport were already under the 
care of the Sisters and with all 
these difficulties it was finallv 
decided to accept the invitation 
in two cases. In the middle of 
May, 1878, four Sisters, Sister 
Rose, Sister Placida, Sister 
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Maura, and Sister Anastasia, 
left Ferdinand for Standing 
Rock, South Dakota, where Ab­
bot Martin and the Benedictine 
Fathers had already begun their 
missionary work among the In­
dians. Four months later, Sep­
temberl6, 1878, Sister Bona­
venture, Sister Xavier, Sister Jo­
sepha, and Sister Isidore, to­
gether with the Rev. Father 
Wolfgang, O.S.B., left to form 
St. Scholastica's convent at 
Shoals Creek, Arkansas. 

After years of strenuous work, 
most of the pioneers returned 
to Ferdinand leaving the new es­
tablishments to continue their 
work with fresh recruits. In the 
meantime, Mother Agatha had 
been elected Prioress in 1878, 
and the community with the re­
turn of the missionary sisters 
and with the reception of new 
members, found it possible to 
take over the care of three other 
schools in the Diocese of Vin­
cennes. 

Much happiness was accorded 
the sisters when in 1881, the 
Most Rev. Silas Chatard allowed 
the introduction of Perpetual 
Adoration of the Most Blessed 
Sacrament in the conventual 
chapel. 

Mother Scholastica was re­
elected when the next general 
election was held four years la­
ter. Much good had been ac­
complished during her first term 
of office, but mainly in t he spir­
itual and interior life of the 
Community. Two years after 
her first election, a layman of 
Louisville, Kentucky, had pre­
sented the Sisters with a suit­
able altar for their chapel. This 
beautiful work in the Gothic 
style was solemnly dedicated 
on the feast of the Sacred Heart, 
1892. During her second term 
of office, a steam heating plant 
was put into place thus doing 
away with the necessiity of us­
ing stoves whose heat was inade­
quate for their purpose. Seven 
schools were added during these 
two terms. 

The year 1898 was the time 
for another election, and the Sis­
ters petitioned Bishop Chatard 
for permission to elect Mother 
Scholastica for the third time, 
but the Bishop at that time did 
not permit religious communi­
ties to elect Superiors for more 
than two successive terms. Their 
petition was refused and on June 
13 of that year Mother Veronica 
was elected. 

THE growth of the convent now REVEREND MOTHER VE-
necessitated · either the en~ RONICA'S' administration 

largement of the old convent or concerned itself with the beauti­
the building of a new and more fying and improving the physi­
spacious structure, and it was cal features of the cm1vent and 
decided to build a completely convent lands. Lawns and ce­
new building. Late in the sev- ment walks were put il1; an iron 
enties, a chapel of Our Lady of fence was constructed around 
the Dolors had been built on a the grounds; and a fireproof 
hill east of the parish church. slate roof provided. Three mis­
This hill was popularly known as sion schools were founded, and 
Mount Calvary. Another hill to First Friday devotions with ex­
the northward, known as Mount position of the Most Bllessed Sa­
Tabor, was considered a good crament was instituted in 1900. 
site for the future convent. When the next eled ion was 

Father Eberhard directed the held in 1902, Mother Scholastica 
work which began in 1883. On was elected Prioress. With her 
Trinity Sunday, May 31, 1885, knowledge of the needs of the 
the cornerstone was laid by convent much was immediately 
Bishop Chatard in the presence accomplished. On the recom­
of many of the Benedictine re- mendation of the chaplain, Fa­
ligious and the people of the sur- ther Fintan, O.S.B., the anti­
rounding country. The work quated and dangerous system of 
on the building continued so rap- lighting the buildings with kero­
idly that the structure was com- sene lamps was discontinued and 
pleted early in June of the fol- electrical fixtures were installed. 
lowing year. On June 19, the A large pipe organ for the chapel 
solemn dedication of the new was purchased and solemnly 
chapel by Bishop Chatard took blessed by the Abbot Athanas-
place. ius on May 24, 1903. 

The south and east wings, The continued growth of the 
which complete the rectangle, community required an increase 
were completed in the years in the supplies of food products. 
1886 and 1887, making the total Accordingly, on the advice of 
ground space covered 186 by 160 the farm manager, Mother 
feet . The outer wall enclosed Scholastica made several modest 
the chapel which was situated in purchases which increased the 
the center of the court. The ex- capacity of the farm to the ex­
terior of the building was com- tent that it was able to meet all 
pleted but because of lack of additional demands on :it. 
funds much interior work was Reverend Mother Scholastica 
left to be done. continued in office until 1914, 

Reverend Mother Agatha con- having been reelected in 1906, 
tinued to guide the Community and elected again in 1910 by spe­
through the difficulties of these cial permission of Bishop Cha­
days. During her administra- tard. During these twelve years 
tion, the convent bells. were put six mission schools wer e added 
in place but she did not live to to those already taught by the 
see the. completion of the chapel. Sisters, making in all a total of 
Her ambition for the saving of thirty schools under t lleir care. 
souls was such that during her . The academy boarding· school 
term of office, eleven mission which had been continued at the 
schools were established, thus Motherhouse since 1870, was ac­
placing the Community in .,credjted as a high school by the 
charge of fourteen such schools. Indiana State Board of Educa­
She was succeeded by Reverend tion on March 19, .1912. 
Mother Mary Scholastica, who When in the summer of 1914, 
was elected on July 8, 1890. her term of office again expired 
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she ref used another reelection, 
insisting that the duties of the 
office were too exacting for one 
no longer young. In the election 
held on J uly 7, 1914, Mother 
Mary Seraphine was chosen 
Prioress. 

The new Superior's first con­
cern was the completion of sev­
eral projects already planned by 
her predecessor. The first to be 
taken up was that of furthering 
the educational efficiency of the 
Sisters. A summer school was 
held, and on September 1, 1914, 
after a thorough investigation, 
St. Benedict's Normal was ac­
credited as a State Normal 
school. In order to continue this 
work of higher education, it has 
become necessary for the Sisters 
to gain university degrees each 
year. 

ANOTHER plan to which much 
thought was being given was 

the erection of a new convent 
church. After much delay, con­
struction commenced in 1915, 
and the cornerstone was laid on 
May 30, 1915, the Rt. Rev. Ath­
anasius officiating. The exterior 
was completed within fourteen 
months, but because of the high 
prices incident to the war, only 
the crypt was interiorly com­
pleted and was ready for divine 
service on July 6, 1916. On that 
day, the Most Blessed Sacra­
ment was carried in solemn pro­
cession and deposited in the 
crypt that was to serve as the 
community chapel for eight 
years. 

In 1920, the Most Rev. Joseph 
Chartrand, the then Bishop of 
Indianapolis, granted the com­
munity the right of weekly ex­
position of the Blessed Sacra­
ment on Thursday. Two years 
later work was again begun on 
the chapel and by the month of 
May, 1924, all marble work and 
furnishings had been put in 
place. Bishop Chartrand offici­
ated at the dedication which was 
held on June 20, 1924. 

The church proper is on the 
same level as the convent and 
connected with it by a cloister 
hall. The church itself is of face 
brick, built in the Romanesque 
style. Level with the convent, 
it extends to a length of 170 
feet and a width of 55½ feet 
resting upon massive walls of 
reinforced concrete•· masonry 
having at the rear an .elevation 
of 19 feet. · 

The great achievements of the 
community and its .harmonious 
spirit induced Bisho'.p Chartrand 
to permit Mother S'eraphine to 
be relected at the end of each 

·term up to the present date. The 
last election occurred in 1934, 
at which time she was chosen 
Prioress for the fifth -time. Dur­
ing this period of twenty-one 
years six mission schools have 
been founded, several others 
have been increased over their 
original size, and one Indian Mis­
sion has been accepted. At pres­
ent the Community numbers 
about three hundred. The Sis­
ters conduct an Academy and a 
Teachers' Training school at the 
motherhouse, and they are in 
charge of thirty-five parish 
schools in the Diocese of Indian­
apolis besides St. Ann's Indian 
mission at Belcourt, North Da­
kota. 
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THE largest and most com­
pletely equipped monas­

. tery of the Order of Poor 
Clares in the United 

States is located in Evansville, 
where a house was established 
during the late nineties, in re­
sponse to an invitation of the 
Most Rev. Silas Chatard, then 
Bishop of Indianapolis. The cor­
nerstone of this building was laid 
by him on January 14, 1897, and 
on August 12, he solemnly 
blessed and dedicated the new 
structure. November 27 of the 
same year the doors of the mon­
astery were solemnly locked by 
the Bishop, thus constituting a 
canonical enclosure,-and an­
other monastery of the Poor 
Clares was founded. 

This order has been estab­
lished in the United States since 
about the year 1793, when a 
number of French Sisters fled 
the French Revolution and came 
to this country, endeavoring to 
support themselves by opening a 
school in Washington, D. C., but 
when the first Abbess died the 
Sisters were unable to continue, 
and the property was sold, the 
nuns returning to Europe. 

The Poor Clares were perma­
nently established in America 
through the efforts of two Ital­
ian Sisters who came here late 
in the nineteenth century. They 
were sent from the Monastery 
of S'an Lorenzo-in-Panisperna, 
Rome, in obedience to the desire 
. of the then reigning pontiff, 
Pius IX, expressed through the 
Superior General in response to 
a petition of Mother Ignatius of 
the Third Order Regulars of the 
Franciscan Order. These two 
Sisters were Sister Maria Con­
stanza, and Sister Maria Mad­
dalena. 

After great difficulty and 
many trials, foundations were 
successfully made in Omaha and 
in New Orleans. In 1897 Mother 
Maddalena arrived in Evansville 
to begin the work of her third 
foundation. The early days were 
filled with much suffering, the 
monastery being burdened with 
debts. Many friends finally 
came to their aid, and by their 
contributions helped greatly 
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Cloistered Convent 

Established as late as 1897 the present 

Evansville monastery of the Poor Clares 

now enjoys the reputation of being the 

largest and best equipped house of that 

Order to be found in the United States. 

with the advancement and main­
tenance. 

Being a contemplative Order 
the Nuns devote themselves to 
a life of prayer and penance, 
which is offered to God for the 
welfare of the Church, for the 
Bishop and clergy of the Dio­
cese, and for the conversion of 
all souls to the Catholic Faith . 
The community is divided into 
Choir Nuns who live in the En­
closure, and Extern Sisters who 
dwell outside the cloister, and 
attend more directly to the out­
side business of the monastery. 
Several hours daily are set aside 
for manual labor. All kinds of 
Church vestments, altar linens 
and the altar breads for various 
churches are made. Exposition 
of the Most Blessed Sacrament 
takes place not only each day, 
but frequently at night as 
well. 

In May, 1932, the first process 
towards the beatification of 
Mother Mary Maddalena, who 
died with a reputation for sanc­
tity, was completed and sent to 

Rome, where it awaits investi­
gation. 

The present monastery of St. 
Clare is made up of thirty-five 
Professed Choir Nuns; two Pro­
fessed Choir Novices; six postu­
lates and seven Extern Pro­
fessed Sisters. Reverend Mother 
Frances Farrelly is Abbess. 
From this convent two other 
monasteries have been estab­
lished, one in Boston, in 1906; 
and another in Memphis, three 
years ago. 

The Order of the Poor Clares 
was founded by St. Clare of 
Assisi with the assistance of the 
founder of the Franciscan Or­
der, St. Francis. Soon sur­
rounded by a number of women 
who wished to follow the Rule 
of St. Francis, including many 
of her own family, she, follow­
ing the advice of St. Francis, 
went into retirement in the little 
convent of S'an Damiano near 
Assisi. In this way came into 
being the Second Order of St. 
Francis. 

The Second Order, especially 

This is the .Monastery of St. Clare, in Evansville, 
the convent ·of the Franciscan Poor Clare Nuns. 

in the person of the saintly 
foundress, continued to keep 
alive after his death the ideal of 
the evangelical life taught by St. 
Francis. Thus we find St. Clare 
petitioning Pope Innocent III, 
for the privilege of maintaining 
the Rule of absolute poverty, a 
request which the pontiff, highly 
pleased, granted with his own 
hand. 

After her death the Order 
spread rapidly throughout Eur­
ope, and continued to be an ex­
ample of the cloistered life. In 
the fourteenth century the Or­
der declined, and by the middle 
of the fifteenth there were few 
monasteries in which were held 
perfectly the Rule as originally 
followed. At this time fhe Or­
der was reformed by the cele­
brated St. Colette, who began 
the most rigorous reform the 
Order has ever experienced. Her 
desire for the following of the 
ideal of absolute poverty was 
largely granted when Pope Ben­
edict XIII appointed her re­
former of the whole Order, giv­
ing her the title of Abbess Gen­
eral over all convents she would 
either establish or reform. At 
the time of her death she had 
established seventeen such con­
vents. 

By development and interpre­
tation she expanded the Rule of 
St. Clare into what is now known 
as the Constitutions of St. Col­
ette and this work was later ap­
proved by Pope Pius II. 

In the Poor Clare monasteries 
tracing their origin to communi­
ties of her reform, the Sisters 
are now designated as Poor 
Clare-Colletines, this being the 
only distinction between the fol­
lowers of the Colettine reformed 
Rule, and the Poor Clares regu­
lar. 

The sisters fast at all times 
except on the feast of the Na­
tivity, and at no time may meat 
be used. Meals are eaten in 
silence. Each day one hour is 
allowed for recreation except on 
Friday. The Franciscan bre­
viary is used and the Divine 
office which holds an important 
place in the community life is 
recited, not sung. 

't 
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Youngest Yet Oldest 

WEST BADEN college, an 
institution of higher 
le~rning conducted by 
the priests of the Soci­

ety of Jesus for their Scholas­
tics, or students studying for the 
priesthood, is the youngest and 
one of the most beautiful reli­
lious houses in the Diocese of 
Indianapolis, if not in the United 
States. 

Formerly the West Baden 
Springs hotel, it was given, with 
the permission of the Most Rev. 
Joseph E. Ritter, Bishop of In­
dianapolis, to the Jesuit Order 
by the owner, Edward Ballard, 
on June 27, 1934. The school 
of philosophy was formally 
opened in September of the 
same year. Later it is planned 
to open graduate and post grad­
uate work in all the required 
theological and philosophical 
studies and their allied branches, 
but these courses will be given 
solely for the scholastics as no 
lay person will be admitted. The 
college will be affiliated with 
Loyola University located in Chi­
cago. 

The college is now dedicated 
to St. Robert Bellarmine, the 
famous Jesuit cardinal and theo­
logian. The course of studies 
required include a three year 
course in philosophy and various 
studies in education classical lit­
erature, English, the sciences, 
history, mathematics, and soci­
ology. Proficiency in these sub­
jects is made necessary in that 
the students are not only prepar­
ing themselves for their theo­
logical work but also as teachers 
in the other educational institu­
tions conducted by their Order 
in this Province. 

The faculty for the last school 
term, headed by the Very Rev. 
Thomas J. Donnelly, S.J., in­
cluded eighteen teachers while 
the college staff was augmented 
by seven lay brothers. 

Very little remodeling was 

After two centuries the priests of 

the Society of Jesus return to the 

state they helped colonize when 

Indiana was largely a territory cf 

dense forests inhabited by Indians. 

necessary to convert the hotel 
into a modern college building. 
This magnificent gift is a six 
story brick structure, built upon 
a steel and . concrete inner shell, 
and is situated upon a tract of 
land containing about 585 acres. 
The building itself contains over 
six hundred rooms, four hundred 
of which were originally intended 
as sleeping rooms. On the first 
floor is a large rotunda, having 
a floor space of 63,832 square 
feet, surmounted by a dome, the 
largest in the world, 130 feet 
from the floor. On this floor 
is the large dining room which 
is equipped to seat six hundred 
people, while the kitchen covers 
a space 60 by 94 feet. Another 
feature of the building is a fully 
equipped and modern hospital 
which is located on the sixth 
floor. A temporary chapel, as 
well as a series of smaller chap­
els, have been arranged in the 
building. 

The grounds contain, among 
other features, three spring 
houses where mineral springs 
flow copstantly, a large conserva­
tory, a dairy, a swimming pool, 
heating equipment, and a car­
penter, a plumbing and a print 
shop. 

THE Society of Jesus, popu­
larly known as Jesuits, was 

founded in 1534 by St. Ignatius 

Loyola, a Spanish nobleman. 
From a small group of disciples 
whom he gathered around him 
and who pronounced their vows 
with him on Montmarte in Paris 
where he had gone to study for 
the priesthood, the Society de­
veloped into a worldwide organ­
ization which proved to be the 
main bulwark of t he Catholic 
church against the onslaughts 
of the Protestant Reformation. 
The Order today numbers about 
twenty-four thousand members, 
about one-eighth of whom are 
engaged in missionary work 
throughout the world. 

The Order itself is governed 
by means of a central head gov­
erning through subordinate 
agencies. The General, or head 
of the Order lives in Rome, and 
is elected for life. Under him 
are seven Assistancies, Italian, 
German, French, Spanish, Eng­
lish, American, and Slavic. 
These are in turn divided into 
Provinces, at the head of which 
is a Provincial. Thus the Amer­
ican Assistancy is divided into 
the Provinces of Chicago, Cali­
fornia, Maryland-New York, Mis­
souri, New Orleans, New Eng­
land, and Oregon. The province 
of Chicago, of which West Baden 
is a part, numbers 752 persons, 
of which 336 are priests, 338 are 
preparing for the priesthood, 
and 78 are lay brothers. 

In addition to West Baden Col­
lege, high school, colleges, and 
universities are conducted in 
Chicago, Detroit, Cleveland, Chi­
cinnati, and Toledo. The Order 
has charge of two houses for 
retreats, a novitiate at Milford, 
Ohio, and one in Cleveland. The 
Province is also in charge of 
the Patna mission in India where 
sixty-eight of the Members are 
engaged in missionary work. · 

Although the West Baden 
school is the first work of this 
kind to be undertaken by the 
Jesuits in modern times, it is 
not their first work for Catholi­
cism in Indiana. Indeed, it is 
not unlikely that the first white 
man ever to set foot in the terri­
tory of what is now Indiana was 
a Jesuit priest, the Rev. Claude 
Allouez, S.J. From his mission 
house on the St. Joseph river 
radiated all the influence that 
might be called Christian in 
those trying days in the years 
from 1663 to 1689. But other 
zealous priests were to follow in 
his footsteps. 

Historians are in agreement 
when they say that there are 
at least four places in Indiana 
which were pioneered by these 
missionaries: A mission on the 
shores of the St. Joseph river 
near the present site of the 
University of Notre Dame; one 
at Fort Ouiatenon on the Wa­
bash just below the city of 
Lafayette; one at Fort Miami, 
now Fort Wayne; and one at 
Poste au Ouabache, the original 
site of Vincennes. 

There were other Jesuits in 
this territory who were not so 
intimately connected with the 
modern state of Indiana. Their 
work for the missions closed 
when their Order was suppressed 
in 1773 by a breve of Clement 
XIV, and it was not until 161 
years later that the Order again 
took up the work of education 
in the State of Indiana. 

. l 
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Mount Saint Francis 

T HE year 1935 which wit­
nesses the completion of 
the centennial year of the 

diocese of Indianapolis sees also 
the Conventual friary of Mt. St. 
Francis at Floyds Knobs finish­
ing its first twenty-five years as 
a minor seminary. Although 
the Order has been in possession 
of the property since 1873, it 
was not until 1910 that buildings 
were set aside as a school for 
young men who wished to be­
come priests in the Franciscan 
Order. 

The original friary, a small 
frame structure, was built in 
1896 on property comprising 
about four hundred acres of 
wood and farm land in southern 
Indiana. This land was ceded 
in 1885 to the Conventuals by 
the renowned Catholic actress, 
Mary Anderson de Navarro. At 
that time the purpose of the 
institution was designated as a 
training school for lay brothers 
of the Order, permission for the 
erection of a foundation of that 
nature having been obtained 
from the Rt. Rev. Silas Cha tard, 
the then Bishop of Vincennes. 
To accomplish this end, the 
Very Rev. Francis Neubauer, 
O.M.C., a former Provincial, was 
appointed Superior and Novice 
Master. For three years he la­
bored at this task, and under his 

The Conventual Friary at Floyds Knobs 

observes the silver jubilee of its 

Minor Seminary during this, the first 

centennial year of the Diocese-1935. 

direction the novices were not 
only trained in the religious life, 
but the modern property began 
to take shape through the work 
which was done toward improv­
ing the land. 

In 1890, the Very Rev. Clem­
ent Lutz, 0.M.C., succeeded 
Father Francis as Superior, car­
rying on the work with equal 
success. He, in turn, gave place 
to the Rev. Otto Rechtenwald, 
0.M.C. For none of these men 
was life a sinecure. The chron­
icle of the monastery shows that 
theirs was a life of isolation, 
frequent disappointments, and 

bitter poverty. Significant of 
the conditions of their mode of 
life is the following extract from 
the chronicle kept by Father 
Francis: "This is a very lone­
some place. . . . Ma'ny storms 
have passed over me; many 
sleepless nights have I spent, 
but I have learned to trust in 
God, who never abandoned me 
or the cause for which I worked." 

In 1908, when Father Otto 
turned over his office to the 
Rev. Paul Vollrath, O.M.C., Mt. 
St. Francis had become a splen­
didly productive farm with a 
comfortably habitable friary and 

The above is a general view of Mount Saint Francis, at Floyds 
Knobs, a preparatory school of the Order of Minors Conventual. 

a campus well adapted for future 
expansion. 

FURTHER growth was not long 
in coming. Because of con­

tinued increasing membership 
and a corresponding increment 
in the number of students, the 
Minor Conventuals in America 
found themselves in need of 
more adequate accommodations 
for students, and it was decided 
to utilize the facilities of Mt. 
St. Francis as a preparatory 
seminary. Father Paul Voll­
rath was designated Rector, and 
under his guidance a new wing 
was added to the monastery to 
provide for class-rooms, study 
hall, and dormitory space. This 
addition having been made, 
the new school was formally 
opened on September 10, 1910, 
with the name "Mt. St. Francis 
College." 

Since 1910, the development 
and improvement of Mt. St. 
Francis has been continuous. 
In 1915, the number of students 
was greatly augmented when 
the Conventuals closed their for­
mer preparatory school in Tren­
ton, New Jersey, and decided to 
send all their candidates to the 
western school. To satisfy the 
needs of the increasing student 
body and to remedy inadequa­
cies in teaching materials, 



Father Paul was continually 
forced to make additions to the 
original building. Finally, it 
became necessary to construct 
entirely new and more commo­
di us qu·arters. 

In 1922, the Provincial Coun­
cil instructed Father Paul to 
begin work on a modern build­
ing and on October 11, 1923, the 
completed building was blessed 
by the Very Rev. Leo M. Grue­
lich, O.M.C., then Provincial of 
the Conventual Province of the 
Immaculate Conception. 

Hardly was the unit completed 
for school purposes, when Father 
Paul directed his energies to­
ward the erection of a new 
chapel of a size ample enough 
t o meet the school needs and of 
a dignity and beauty consonant 
with the ideals of the institution. 
As a result of his endeavors, 
work was begun in 1925 on a 
beautiful chapel adjacent to the 
school building, and on May 11, 
1926, the completed edifice was 
dedicated by the Most Rev. Jos­
eph Chartrand, the then Bishop 
of Indianapolis. 

JN the summer of 1926, the 
· Conventual Province of the 

Immaculate Conception, which 
up to that time extended over 
t he entire United States, was 
divided into two parts and to 
the western jurisdiction was 
given the title of Province of 
Our Lady of Consolation. With 
the dividing of the provinces 
came also a division of the stu­
dent body, the boys from the 
eastern section of the United 
States being transferred to the 
newly erected minor seminary 
at Staten Island, New York. As 
a consequence, the accommoda­
t ions at Mt. St. Francis were 
more than sufficient for the de­
pleted student body and the need 
for material expansion was, for 
a time at least, at an end. 

Beautification of the campus 
and elevation of scholastic stan­
dards were the next objective 
of the Rector. Accomplishing 
these he labored until obedience 
ended in 1929 his twenty-one 
year tenure of office at Mt. St. 
Francis. His record at the mi­
nor seminary was a fine one, 
his work having done much to 
aid progress of the school, both 
materially and scholastically. 
Besides his supervision of school 
work, Father Paul's manage­
ment of the estate connected 
with the school had been very 
successful. By reason of his 
foresight and by dint of his 
labor, the monastery farm be­
came fertile. After the early 
years of his administration had 
brought about the clearing and 
cultivating of a large section 
of the land, Father .Paul bent 
his efforts to the development 
of a dairy. F'or this end he con­
structed an immense barn in 
1921. To insure an abundant 
water supply both for school and 
farm purposes, as well as for 
swimming opportunities for the 
students, a large wall was 
t hrown up, 265 feet long and 
20 feet high, across a valley on 
the school property, thus dam­
ming up a small stream and 
creating a lake of fresh water 
covering ten acres of ground. 

When Father Paul left Floyds 
Knobs he did so with the knowl-
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Students and faculty of Mount Saint Francis in 1912. The four 
priests shown in the center are tbe Reverend Fathers Paul 
Vollrath, Peter Scharoun, Frederic Schilhaub, and Justin Butler. 

edge that he had built for the 
Order an excellent minor sem­
inary. The material plant he 
erected is the foundation for the 
future glory of Mt. St. Francis. 

SINCE Father Paul's removal, 
the aims of the school have 

been chiefly toward scholastic 
progress in line with the best 
educational policies of the 
Church and State. One of the 
principal aims of the Very Rev. 
Aloys M. Fish, O.M.C., S.T.D., 
Ph.D., when he became Provin­
cial of the Province of Our Lady 
of Consolation in 1929, was the 
furtherance of the educational 
activities and the raising of 
scholastic standards in the prov­
ince. At his request, Mt. St. 

Mary Anderson de Navarro, cel­
ebrated Catholic actress, who 
donated the land for Mount St. 
Francis in 1883. She is now 76 
years of age and has her home 
at ·worcestershire, England. 

Francis (now called a Pro-Sem­
inary, the better to indicate its 
character) under the rectorship 
of the Rev. Theodore Eicholz, 
O.M.C., set about to reorganize 
the curricula, with a view of 
meeting standards set up by the 
State of Indiana. This was done 
to obtain recognition for work 
done at the school from standard 
universities as well as the state. 
With the cooperation of the 
state authorities, thfa work was 
completed under the administra­
tion of the Rev. Andrew Maas, 
O.M.C., who succeeded Father 
Theodore as rector in 1931. In 
1932, the institution was award­
ed a final certificate recognizing 
it as a Class A high school of 
the State of Indiana. 

In accordance with his objec­
tives the Provincial decided upon 
a more complete and thorough 
training for his t eachers; he 
demanded that each teacher be 
trained in his particular branch 
as well as in the best modern 
methods and technique of teach:.. 
ing. As a result of this policy, 
Mt. St. Francis is staffed at the 
present time by a corps of 
priests selected for t heir ability 
in certain subjects and trained 
at the best univer ities in the 
country. 

PROGRESS in the last six 
years has taken place notably 

in the development of the school 
plant. Building operations on 
the campus include a new brick 
faculty home, new ph ysical and 
science laboratories, and the re­
building of an old frame struc­
ture to provide for t he Junior 
college, a department added in 
1933. This insures that t he 
equipment of Mt. St. Francis is 
modern and ample in every re­
spect for the purpose of the 
school. 

Mt. St. Francis is located on 
a tract of beautiful woodland 
in the heart of the rolling hill 
country of southern Indiana, 
just four miles from New Al­
bany, and eight from Louisville. 

It, therefore, · offers the advan­
tages of the city without the 
attending distractions to the stu­
dent's scholastic and vocational 
interests. · 

The main building, a large 
three-story building of multi­
colored brick, cares for most of 
the students' activities. The 
lower floor is used for gym­
nasium and locker rooms, refec­
tory and kitchen, and on the 
main floor the students have 
their class rooms, parlors, meet­
ing rooms, and study halls . On 
this floor also are the Rector' s 
and Prefect's offices. The third 
floor contains the dormitories 
and the infirmary. 

Continued on page 55 

Very Rev. Andrew Maas, O.M.C., 
Rector of Mount St. Francis. 
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THE concept of humani­
tarian charity is a dis­
tinctly Christian one. 
W o r 1 d 1 y philosophies 

have always taught-both in an­
cient and in modern times-that 
man is but the unit upon which 
the greatness of the state is 
founded. If this conception of 
the worth of man be accepted as 
true, then the converse must 
also and inevitably be accepted, 
that the man, who through 
some physical or mental disa­
bility, is unable to play his part 
efficiently in the orderly de­
velopment of the nation, must be 
destroyed for he retards rather 
than effects the result for which 
he was made. 

This destruction of the weak, 
the disabled, and the unfor­
tunate has always been uncon­
ditionally opposed by the prin­
ciples of Christianity as found 
in the ethical teachings of the 
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The Golden Rule 

Through its charities, the Diocese of 

Indianapolis for nearly a century has 

endeavored to carry out the Divine 

mandate- "Thou shalt love thy neigh­

bor as thyself," in the person of its 

thousands of poor, needy, and unfortunate. 

Church, and the triumph of 
these teachings during the first 
centuries after Christ did much 
to aid such unfortunates. 

Throughout the Middle Ages 
the Church, through the agen­
cies of the monasteries, con­
ducted the only social service 

bureaus, the only centers then 
in existence for the distribution 
of charity for those who were 
in need of it. It is significant to 
note the Orders who conducted 
these monasteries, with the not­
able exceptions of some such as 
the Knights Hospitallers of St. 
John, were not founded for the 
purpose of alleviating human 
sufferings, but were Orders 
whose sole purpose in life was 
the serving of a God who said, 
"Inasmuch as ye do unto the 
least of these, My children, ye 
do unto Me." These Orders did 
not consider such work a duty 
but rather thought of it as an 
act of love. 

Contrast this condition with 
that period which immediately 
followed the Reformation, when 
restrictions on the work of the 
monasteries and similar agen­
cies led to the break down of all 
such work. It is interesting to 

An old picture of the home of the Little Sisters of the Poor at Evansville. This was taken some 
few years ago but its exact date is not known. The Little Sisters came to Evansville in 1882. 
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note that practically all Orders 
founded after this time contain 
provisions for work in the realm 
of education, hospitalization or 
similar work now classed as so­
cial service. The first Order of 
women who did such work, the 
Ursulines, was founded by St. 
Angela Merici, in 1537. Such 
Orders were founded to meet a 
distinct condition, and they met 
it well. 

The Diocese of Indianapolis 
has no need to be ashamed of its 
record in carrying on this tradi­
tion of the Catholic church, the 
diocese having been in existence 
only a few years when the first 
charitable institutions were 
founded. As early as 1849, or­
phanages were established to 
meet what was probably · the 
most pressing need for charity 
in the earlier days of our state, 
and this work has steadily and 
consistently progressed until at 
present there are as many as 
seven institutions for the care 
of the sick alone. 

St. Vincent School 

THE first institution for the 
care of homeless orphans in 

the Diocese of Vincennes was 
opened by the Rt. Rev. Maurice 
de St. Palais, the fourth Bishop 
of the diocese, in the middle of 
April, 1851. The care of these 
children had been a major prob­
lem since the establishment of 
the diocese, and the Bishop was 
determined that the problem 
would be efficiently and com­
pletely taken care of. A tem­
porary home which had been 
placed in the hands of devoted 
lay persons some years prior to 
1851, had been unsuccessful. Ac­
cordingly, he secured the old 
Vincennes college building, mak­
ing arrangements with Mother 
Theodore Guerin, foundress of 
St. Mary-of-the-Woods, for the 
Sisters of Providence to act · as 
teachers and directors. 

Bishop de St. Palais later de­
ciding that the boys would be 
happier and more content on a 
farm, moved the orphanage to 
"The Highlands", an estate 
which had been in the possession 
of the Bishops of Vincennes for 

was being erected. This build­
ing continued in use until 1926, 
when Mr. Francis Joseph Rietz 
of Evansville, donated sufficient 
money to completely renovate 
the old buildings and erect new 
ones in order that the boys and 
girls might be both in the same 
building, in this way eliminating 
the necessity of separating 
brothers and sisters. 

Before 1926, girls had been 
taken care of in St. Ann's or­
phanage established by Bishop 
de St. Palais in August, 1849, 
when he opened a Girls' Orphan 
Home near St. F'rancis Xavier 
Cathedral. Within fourteen 
years, the school had grown so 
large that it became necessary 
to find a larger house in another 
part of town. This home be­
came known as St. Ann's Asy­
lum. 

Here the girl.s remained until 
1876 at which time they were 
removed to Terre Haute. The 
orphanage was later removed to 
Indianapolis where the orphans 
were put under the care of the 
Sisters of the Good Shepherd. 
On August 16, 1929, they were 
transferred by the Most Rev. 
Joseph Chartrand, sixth Bishop 
of the Diocese, to the new build­
ing in Vincennes. 

The Sisters of St. Francis re­
placed the Sisters of Providence 
as teachers in charge of the 
home in 1922. At the present 
time Sister Mary Viola is the 
Superior in charge of the teach­
ers. The Rev. Frederick Bur­
get, S. T. L., is director of the 
institution, and the Rev. John 
Herold is his assistant. 

As only a very small number 
of the children · are of pre-school 
age, the regular primary school 
subjects are taught. In addi­
tion to school work instruction 
in vocational work is given; the 
girls learn to cook, sew, iron, 
and the proper carrying out of 
similar duties, while the boys 
learn to do the work which is 

a number of years. It had origi­
nally been purchased by the Rt. 
Rev. Celestine de la Hailandiere, 
the second Bishop of the dio­
cese, who had expressed his in­
tention of retiring there for 
rest. When he resigned, the im­
provements he had planned at 
"The Highlands" were never fin­
ished. The Rt. Rev. John 
Stephen Bazin, his successor, 
also had been fond of the place, 
and had made some improve­
ments, but it was left to Bishop 
de St. Paiais to build the new · 
brick house which was used as 
the orphans' home. Prior to 
that time, the home had been 
known simply as the "Boys Asy­
lum", but the bishop, who had 
great devotion to St. Vincent de 
Paul, named it St. Vincent's 
Asylum in honor of that Saint. 

done on the ordinary farm. Dur­
ing the summer, instruction is 
given the children who have 
special talents. Both boys and 
girls engage in athletics, and 
have games with the parochial 
schools of Vincennes. The boys 
also have their own band, and 
the girls have an orchestra. 

The orphanage has grown 
from fifteen girls and thirty-one 
boys in 1850 to ninety-eight boys 
and sixty-five girls at the pres­
ent time, although several years 
ago there were as high as 321 
children in the home at one time. 
Since its foundation over seven 
thousand children have been 
cared for. The orphanage de­
rives its principal means of sup­
port from the annual Christmas 
collection taken up in all the 
parishes of the Diocese. 

The Little Sisters of the Poor 

SIXTY-TWO years of caring 
for destitute old people who 

have reached the age of sixty, 
and who have no one to take 
care of them is the splendid rec­
ord of the Little Sisters of the 
Poor in Indianapolis. Their foun­
dation dates from February 5, 
1873, when five Little Sisters, 
Sister Mary Blanche, Sister 
Mary Anselm, Sister L. Au­
guste, Sister Albertine Joseph, 
and Sister Aristede came to that 
city at the request of the Most 
Rev. Maurice de St. Palais, 
fourth Bishop of Vincennes. 
Their .first home was a small 
frame house, a block south of 
St. John's church on Kentucky 
avenue. 
, On July 1, 1873, the Little Sis­
ters moved to their present lo­
cation, a two story frame house 
on Vermont and East streets. 
This house was then far from 
complete, the sisters and their 
charges suffering from lack of 
space and proper furnishings. 
They had no chapel and until 

In 1889, the entire orphanage 
was destroyed by a terrible fire. 
S'ince there were no available ac­
commodations in Vincennes, 
most of the children were trans­
ferred to St. Joseph's parish, In­
dianapolis, while a new building 

The new St. Vincent School, the diocesan 
orphanage, at Vincennes. This institution 
dates its foundation back to about 1850. 
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the erection of the · old tempo­
rary St. Joseph's church, had to 
walk to St. John's for Mass. 

The present brick · building 
was begun in .1880, the middle 
portion beiJ1g erected in that 
year. Twelve years later, the 
ground was broken for the con­
struction of a simple chapel. The 
two side wings for the main 
building were added in 1915, al­
terations and improvements be­
ing added to the buildings and 
grounds from time to time. At 
the present time, fourteen Little 
Sisters care for ninety old ladies 
and 110 old men. 

Another institution of the 
Little Sisters of the Poor was 
established in Evansville nine 
years after the opening of the 
Indianapolis home. The Little 
Sisters arrived in that city on 
April 19, 1882, in answer to a 
request of Mrs. Robert Fergus, 
a devout lady greatly interested 
in the welfare of the poor and 
homeless. Mrs. Fergus bought 
a piece of property and a house 
which could accommodate 
twenty-five, but as the house 
contained no furnishings, the 
sisters had to begin their mis­
sion by begging for the furni­
ture. The people were sympa­
thetic and by the middle of May, 
the home was open and caring 
for twelve old people. 

The number of persons who 
sought admission to the home 
increased so rapidly that the sis­
ters were forced to build a new 
home, a project which they were 
able to complete successfully 
mainly through the generosity 
of Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Reitz 
and other Evansville families. 
The sisters took possession of 
the house on July 12, 1882, and 
on October 30 the building was . 
solemnly blessed by the Rt. Rev. 
Francis Silas Chatard, then 
Bishop of Vincennes. 

The cornerstone of a new 
chapel, the gift of Mr. Joseph 
Reitz and his sisters, was laid on 
April 24, 1898, the chapel itself 
being dedicated by Bishop Cha­
tard in December of the same 
year. Mr. Reitz continued to act 
as benefactor to the Little Sis­
ters throughout his life, and in 
1910 added two wings to the 
original structure, the building 
again having in the meantime 
become too small. 

The extent of the work done 
by these two homes in the Dio­
cese of Indianapolis is not, nor 
never can be known. Not only 
are the physical and mental 
needs of the body cared for, but 
the spiritual necessities of the 
old people are as well, and many 
have found the peace and con­
solation of a return to a lost 
faith in the shelter house of the 
Little Sisters of the Poor. 

Perhaps one of the reasons for 
the success of their work lies in 
the fact that the sisters take a 
vow of hospitality, which en­
joins love and patience with the 
petulance and sufferings of the 
old. The sisters must care for 
these charges securing all pro­
visions for them through 
charity. 

The congregation of the Little 
Sisters of the Poor is not yet 
one hundred years old. Estab­
lished in Brittany, in the little 
village of St. Servan in 1840 by 
Jeanne Jugan and several com-
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The administration building and faculty house of the Gibault 
Home for Boys, near Terre Haute, which was dedicated in 1921. 

panions, the Order spread 
rapidly. 

Originally caring only for a 
few people in the village, the 
number of their houses soon in­
creased and were established in 
all neighboring towns. Finally 
their work spread throughout 
the world. The Congregation of 
six thousand nuns now cares for 
about fifty thousand old people 
in three hundred homes, having 
in ninety-five years cared for 
about five hundred thousand 
people. 

The Sisters of the Good 
Shepherd 

ESTABLISHED in the Diocese 
of Vincennes in 1873, the 

Sisters of the Good Shepherd 
have labored in the city of In­
dianapolis for sixty-two years, 
performing the work prescribed 
by their Rule-the caring for 
and rehabilitation of delinquent 
girls and the rescuing of or­
phans who have been exposed to 
a dangerous or criminal environ­
ment. 

The present convent of the 
sisters was founded in Indian­
apolis when five sisters came 
from Angers, France, in answer 
to a request sent to the Provin­
cial of the Order in Louisville 
by the Very Rev. August Bes­
sonies, at that time Vicar Gen­
eral of the diocese. As there 
were no available sisters in 
America, the request was trans-

mitted to Europe. The installa­
tion of the first Superior, 
Mother Mary of St. Anselm 
Wells, by Bishop Chatard took 
place in a small brick building 
belonging to Dr. Kinsella. 

During the same year, Mon­
signor Bessonies obtained pos­
session of the site of the present 
building of the Sisters of the 
Good Shepherd. The grounds 
contained a building then in the 
process of construction by the 
state, which was intended to 
serve as a Women's Reforma­
tory. This unfinished structure 
was given to the nuns on the 
condition that they would main­
tain a house for women prison­
ers for half the price charged by 
the city. Although the building 
was far from completed, the sis­
ters moved into it in March, 
187 4, taking up their quarters 
in the basement as neither the 
flooring nor the plastering had 
been done in the upper rooms. 

Sixteen children were placed 
in the charge of the sisters at 
this time, such a large number 
making it necessary to ask for 
an increase in the number of 
teachers. Three more were added 
to the staff in the same year, 
and since that time the convent 
has continued to grow. Two 
thousand seven hundred and 
forty-nine children have been 
cared for in the Indianapolis 
Foundation since 1874. 

The original building is still 
standing although it has been 
completely modernized, and 

many new features added in­
cluding a modern laundry and a 
new brick building for the Mag­
dalens. The modern building 
contains a refectory, kitchen, 
main entrance, dentist office and 
telephone room all on the first 
floor. The offices, small com­
munity room, and cells and 
chapel are on the second floor, 
while the third floor contains 
cells, sun parlor, infirmary, and 
emergency kitchen. 

The Sisters of the Good Shep­
herd were founded in 1641 at 
Caen, in Normandy, by St. John 
Eudes, who wished to found an 
Order which would provide shel­
ter for girls who wished to do 
penance for a life of sin. No 
pentinent is received unless she 
is willing to enter except those 
awarded their custody by the 
courts at the request of the sub­
ject's parents or guardian, and 
the convent of the Good Shep­
herd can never be called a 
prison. 

The Sisters of the Good Shep­
herd follow the Rule of St. 
Augustine and are a cloistered 
Order. Besides the three ordi­
nary vows of poverty, chastity, 
and obedience, the Sisters of the 
Good Shepherd take a fourth 
vow, namely, to work for the 
conversion and instruction of 
the pentinents. 

The houses of this Order were 
originally independent like the 
houses of the Visitation Order. 
A milestone in the Order was 
reached when Mother Mary of 

St. Euphrasia Pelletier was sent 
as Superior, in 1829, to open a 
house in Angers. A woman of 
great strength of will, she estab­
lished a Generalate similar to 
that of the Jesuits and her step 
was approved by Rome, in Janu­
ary, 1835. One hundred and ten 
houses were then founded by 
her in all parts of the world. 
The first house was opened in 
the United States September 8, 
1843, at Louisville, Kentucky, 
when five sisters answered the 
petition of the Most Rev. B. J. 
Flaget, the first Bishop of Louis­
ville. 

There are now 301 houses in 
all parts of the world, 52 of 
which are in the United States. 
The Religious number 9,827 and 
have in their charge over 33,000 
children. 

The Order consists of the 
Choir Sisters, the Externs and 
the Magdalens, who form per­
fectly distinct classes. They are 
separated and no communication 
between them is permitted. 
Each house has three separate 
Chapels. 

The Magdalens are pentinents 
who decide to spend their lives 
exclusively in the service of 
God. They have the Carmelite 
Rule and lead lives of prayer 
and penance varied by needle­
work of various kinds. 

Among the more recent cele­
brations of the Convent was the 
Triduum in 1934. in honor of 
the Beatification of the Holy 
Foundress of the Order, Mother 
Mary of St. Euphrasia Pelletier, 
which took place at Rome April 
24, 1934. During the three days 
of this celebration, Solemn High 
Mass was celebrated each morn­
ing, concluding with a Pontifical 
High Mass on the third day sung 
by the Most Rev. Joseph E. 
Ritter. 

The Gibault Home for Boys 

THE Gibault Home for Boys, 
opened by the Knights of 

Columbus in 1921, is an institu­
t ion which endeavors to per­
form the indispensable social 
duty of developing and prepar­
ing the character of young men 
who have made a false start in 
life. The directors propose to 
give these boys a new set of 
ideals upon which they can lay 
a foundation for the develop­
ment of worthy Catholics and 
good citizens. 

Although the project of erect­
ing a home for wayward boys 
in the Diocese of Indianapolis 
had been discussed by the 
Knights of Columbus as early 
as 1911, it was not until the 
1915 convention of the Indiana 
State Council that any definite 
action was taken. At that time 
it was decided to erect such a 
home as the contribution of the 
Catholic people in Indiana to 
the centenary of our common­
wealth. It was also decided to 
name the institution after the 
Rev. Pierre Gibault, as a token 
of gratitude for the work of 
this patriot-priest. 

Nothing definite was done 
during the years of the World 
War, so it was not until 1920 
that any further action was 

Continued on page 78 
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The Friars of Oldenburg 
In response to the deathbed request of the Rev. Francis J.oseph 
Rudolf, the founder of the Oldenburg Community of the Sisters of 
St. Francis, the Franciscan Friars of the Cincinnati province came 

IT has been said that there 
is no nation on the face of 
the globe that does not have 
its monastery of brown robed 

Friars of the Franciscan Order. 
This is particularly true in the 
western hemisphere for the Sons 
of St. Francis were found in 
America, working as mission­
aries implanting the faith in 
the hearts of the savage Indian 
tribes, shortly after Christopher 
Columbus had discovered the 
new continent. Their mission­
ary endeavors in the southern 
and western portions of our 
country, and more especially in 
California, are closely bound up 
with the early history of the 
United States. But it was only 
toward the latter half of the 
nineteenth century that the Fri­
ars effected a permanent settle­
ment in the territory now known 
as the Diocese of Indianapolis. 

The Franciscan Fathers who 
have resided at Oldenburg since 
1866 are members of the Prov­
ince of St. John the Baptist, 
whose headquarters are in Cin­
cinnati. 

Yielding1 to the · urgent re­
quests of Archbishop John B. 
Purcell, the Tyrolese Province 
of the Order of St. Francis sent 
missionaries to the United States 
to aid in the pressing work 
among the German - speaking 
Catholics who had settled in 
Cincinnati, the Rev. William Un­
terthiener, O.F.M., being the 
first to immigrate, in 1844. Dur­
ing the next fourteen years nine 
other Franciscan Fathers came 
to Cincinnati, among these was 
the Rev. Nicholas Wachter, 
O.F.M., who was later to become 
the first Franciscan Superior at 
Oldenburg. 

Before the Franciscans ar­
rived at Oldenburg, the spiritual 
needs of the community were 
administered by the secular 
clergy. Among these gallant pi­
oneers, the memory of the Rev. 
Francis Joseph Rudolf . will ever 
be singularly cherished, for his 
name is not only inseparably con­
nected with the annals of Holy 
Family parish, but with the tra­
ditions of the Franciscan con­
vent as well. 

Father Rudolf was appointed 
first resident Pastor of Olden­
burg in 1844. When he came, 
he found that his church ·was a 
rude unfinished log-cabin. This 
he decided to leave uncompleted, 
constructing instead a stone 
church from his own resources. 
He laid the cornerstone Septem­
ber 8, 1846, and had .the happi­
ness of saying the first · Mass 

to Oldenburg in 1866, and since that time have 
been active in the affairs of the parish church 
and in training young men for the priesthood. 

in the new church on the first 
Sunday of Advent in the year 
1848. When the stone church 
became too small for the grow­
ing congregation, Father Rudolf 
resolved to build the commodius 
brick structure which stands to­
day. The cornerstone of this 
edifice was laid May 20, 1861, 
by the Very Rev. Augustine 
Bessonies, and on December 14, 
1862, the Most Rev. Maurice de 
St. Palais, Bishop of Vincennes, 
assisted by Bishop Carroll of 
Covington, consecrated the new 
church. After twenty-two years 
of zealous service to the parish 
of Oldenburg and the neighbor­
ing missions, the saintly Father 
Rudolf died on May 29, 1866. 

Before his death, Father Ru­
dolf had requested that the par­
ish be placed in charge of the 
Franciscan Fathers of the Cin-

cinnati Province. This request 
was readily granted, and, on the 
invitation of Bishop de St. Pa­
lais, the Friars made their first 
settlement at Oldenburg on Aug­
ust 7, 1866, in the person of the 
Rev. Father Nicholas, who was 
appointed Pastor and Superior. 
With him came the Rev. Jacob 
Menchen, O.F.M. 

Father Nicholas remodeled the 
old stone church to serve as a 
convent. Two year later the 
first Franciscan clerics arrived 
in Oldenburg, and since that 
time the convent has served 
either as a novitiate or as a 
house of study for the members 
of the St. John the Baptist Prov­
ince. In 1890, when the noviti­
ate was transferred to Mt. Airy, 
near Cincinnati, the Oldenburg 
convent definitely became the 
house of studies. 

THESE pioneer Franciscans 
from Cincinnati did not, how­

ever, confine their activit_ies to 
Oldenburg · alone. Accordmg to 
the records of parishes in the 
Diocese, St. Ann's parish, Ham­
burg, was built under their di­
rection and the Friars were in 
charge from 1867 to 1884; St. 
John's parish, Enochsburg, was 
taken care of for several years, 
the Rev. Lawrence Osterling, 
O.F.M., having been appointed 
in 1862 as its first Pastor; and 
the church at St. Maurice was 
under their care from 1878 to 
1883. 

An increasing number of stu­
dents at Oldenburg had, in the 
meantime, shown the need for 
a newer and larger house of 
studies, and in 1894, construction 

Continued on page 71 
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Holy Family Monastery, Oldenburg, viewed from the east, 
with the steeple of the parish church in the background. 
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Carmel 1n Indiana 

A. decade after its humble beginning in this Diocese, a cloistered 

monastery of the Order of Discalced Carmelites was established in 

Indianapolis where spiritual sisters 

, 'CARMEL in Indiana", as 
the Monastery of Dis­
calced Carmeli tes is 
called by the N urns of 

that Order, came to the Indian­
apolis Diocese upon the request 
of the late Most Rev. Joseph 
Chartrand, who celebrated the 
first Mass in their temporary 
chapel at New Albany on the 
Feast of St. John of the Cross, 
November 24, 1922. One of the 
last acts of Bishop Chartrand 
along this line was to bring the 
Carmelites to his See City where 
the new monastery was opened 
in Cold Springs road on October 
3, 1932. It was Bishop Char­
trand who read the first Mass in 
the new chapel on that day. 

The opening of a Carmelite 
monastery in Indianapolis cre­
ated a considerable amount of 
interest, not only among the 
Catholic people of the city, but 
among the non-Catholics also, 
and it was said that during the 
time of the opening about a hun­
dred thousand persons visited 
there. 

The visitor to Carmel never 
knocks at the broad, wooden 
door. He walks in unannounced, 
and is at liberty to visit as he 
wills the tiny chapel and the va­
rious shrines on the main floor 
of the building. The first of 
these is a statue to the left of 
the entrance which represents 
the popular little Carmelite, St. 
Therese of the Infant Jesus, 
more commonly known as the 
Little Flower, who is lying upon 
a couch as she looked when she 
died. The statue is carved out 
of wood. 

Another statue of the Little 
Flower may be seen in a beauti­
ful shrine behind a wrought iron 
grill. The statue was a gift to 
Carmel, by the Bishop, and the 
shrine itself was also a gift from 
friends. A large crucifix, the 
Corpus of which is made of Cas­
telina marble, and the cross of 
black wrought iron hangs on the 
north wall of the monastery op­
posite the Little Flower shrine. 

A striking feature of the 
chapel is its stone altar. This 
was a gift of gratitude from a 
man who had asked the Sisters 
to pray that his father be re­
lieved from intense suffering. 
The father was not only re­
lieved, but actually cured. 

The non-Catholic people are 
said to be very appreciative of 
the Carmelite Order in Indian­
apolis. It is known that a cer­
tain non-Catholic man finds 
peace of mind in visiting the 
monastery at times when his 

of The Little Flower 'watch and pray.' 

The entrance to the monastery of Discalced 
Carmelites, in Indianapolis, whose broad 
wooden door is always unlocked to visitors. 

business worries become bur­
densome. On these occasions he 
is said to stop for a few mo­
ments of prayer in the chapel, 
and sometimes he steps to the 
grating for a word with the Sis­
ter there, but the man says that 
he always leaves with a feeling 
of relief, and that his worries 
somehow work out all right. 

An iron monastery bell with 
a chain hand-pull hangs in a 
convenient place against the 
wall if the visitor wishes to an­
nounce himself. 

A non-Catholic minister who 
at one time visited the monas­
tery to find out for himself if 
the Carmelite Order was not dif­
ferent than he had heard, and 

learning that it really was more 
like he thought it to be he re­
turned with his wife for an­
other visit. 

There are at this time five 
Sisters and one Novice in the 
monastery at Indianapolis, with 
the Reverend Mother Theresa of 
the Trinity, foundress, serving 
as Prioress. 

A few words concerning the 
Carmelite Order might be of in­
terest. It is one of the most 
strictly cloistered Orders of the 
Church. To guard the spirit of 
recollection and prayer the 
Church has instituted the clois­
ter. This isolation from the dis­
tractions of the world aids the 
Religious in keeping her soul 
more closely united with God. 
Silence is also one of the funda­
mental points of the Rule of 
Carmel. The silence of the 
tongue, of the mind, and of the 
heart, so necessary for a life of 
prayer, is carried out profoundly 
in the monastery, and is broken 
only by the sound of the bell 
which summons the Carmelite 
to the choir for the recitation of 
the Divine Office. 

The life of a Carmelite is one 
of love and praise of Almighty 
God, and is combined with sacri­
fice, penance, and labor. The 
Sisters confidently present to 
God the petitions of all who ask 
their intercession with Him. 
They ask God's blessings not as 
individuals, but as officials ap­
pointed by the Church for this 
duty. Their Rule also prescribes 
abstinence and fasting most of 
the time. The prayers, penances, 
and sacrifices of the Carmelite 
are not for her personal benefit 
alone, but for the benefit and 
salvation of the world as well. 

Manual labor also is urged in 
the Rule of the Carmelites. The 
Sisters in the local monastery 
spend much of their time at 
making altar breads, their orders 
during the week preceding Holy 
Week of the present year (1935) 
totaling 80,000. 

That Carmel would have been 
welcomed to the Diocese a cen­
tury ago is well understood in 
a few lines which have been 
quoted from a letter written by 
the first head of the Diocese of 
Vincennes, Bishop Brute, to the 
Carmelites at a monastery out­
side of the Diocese: "May be as 
the visitation days come this 
year Indiana may be beautified 
with some branch of Carmel, the 
first of all Communities granted 
by God to our America. Your 
prayers have called the others 
and blessed the whole land." 
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The Indianapolis Friars 
The inspiring story of the development of Sacred Heart parish is 

T HE Indianapolis Friary of 
the Franciscan Fathers 
of the Sacred Heart Prov­
ince was established in 

. that city in the year 1875, when 
Bishop de St. Palais, wishing to 
found a second parish for Ger­
man speaking Catholics, invited 
the Fathers at Teutopolis, Illi­
nois, to establish a house in his 
diocese. This invitation was 
cordially accepted, and the Rev. 
Fathers Alardus Andrescheck, 
O.F.M., and Francis Moening, 
O.F.M., were appointed pastor 
and assistant pastor respec­
tively. 

The two friars arrived in In­
dianapolis on July 25, 1875, and 
made their home in the old 
academy building of the Sisters 
of Providence at Capitol and 
Georgia streets, which was 
placed at their disposal until the 
present Friary at Union and 
Palmer streets became ready for 
occupancy toward the end of 
December of the same year. 
With the advent of two other 
Fathers, and three Franciscan 
Brothers, the personnel of the 
new monastery consisted of 
seven Friars at the beginning of 
1876. 

The Rev. P. Alardus Andre­
scheck, O.F.M., was the firs t 
Superior of the house, and pas­
tor of the parish at the same 
time. In his capacity of pastor 
he did much for the parish, be­
ing instrumental in the erection 
of the first church, which was 
designed as a three-story build­
ing to house the church, school 
and monastery. The third floor 
of the building was to be fitted 
out as living quarters for the 
Friars. This floor was suffi­
ciently complete by Christmas 
for the Fathers to move in, but 
as the winter had been severely 
cold, no plastering had been 
done, and no further work could 
be accomplished until spring. In 
this unfinished abode, the Fath­
ers and ·Brothers made their 
home. 

In February, 1877, Father 
Alardus was succeeded as pas­
tor and Superior of the monas­
tery by the Rev. P. Ferdinand 
Berneyer, O.F.M. The monas­
tery was still very poor, the 
Friars being forced to live on 
alms, since they received no sal­
ary for their work. During 
Father Ferdinand's term of of­
fice, the construction of the 
present Sacred Heart church 
was begun. 

His successor, the Rev. P . 
Francis Haase, O.F.M., did much 
for the benefit of the parish. 
While in office, the church was 
completed and the monastery 
enlarged, but it was not until a 
new church and school were con­
structed that the Friars received 

known to many; this is the story of the men who 

were instrumental in making that development 

both possible and successful - the Fathers 

of the Franciscan Friary in Indianapolis. 

Monastery of the Franciscan Fathers at the 
corner of Union and Palmer streets in Jn .. 
dianapolis. Sacred Heart church. is shown in 
the right of the picture. This view was 
taken about twenty years ago but little ilf 
any change has been made since that time. 

the exclusive use of the building 
which is now their home. 

Fourteen p r i e s t s followed 
Father Francis as Superior, in­
cluding the Rev. Fathers Berna­
dine Weiss, O.F.M., 1891-1894; 
Francis Haase, O.F.M., 1894-
1903; Co 1 um ban Valentine, 
O.F.M., 1903-1906; Hugo Fess­
ler, O.F.M., 1906-1909; Andrew 
Butzkeuben, O.F.M., 1909-1915; 
Honorius Busch, O.F.M., 1915-

1917; Maurice Baukholt, O.F.M., 
1917; Marcelline Kohlmeyer, 
O.F.M., 1917-1920; Oderic Der­
enthal, O.F.M., 19.20-1.926; Poly­
carp Rhode, O.F.M., 1926-1927; 
John Joseph Brogger, O.F'.M., 
1927-1930; Humilis Zweisser, 
O.F.M., 1930-1932; E u gene 
Hagedorn, O.F.M. , 1932-1933; 
and the present Superior and 
pastor, the Rev. ,John Joseph 
Brogger, O.F.M. 

At present five priests and 
four Brothers make up -the mem'."' 
bership of the Friary. They are, 
in addition to Father John Jo­
seph, the Reverend Fathers Eu­
gene Hagedorn, O.F.M., chaplain 
of the House of the Good Shep­
herd; Ethelbert Harms, O.F'.M., 
assistant ; Arthur Piontkowski, 
O.F.M., pastor of St. Roch's 
church ; and Servace R. Ritter, 
O;F.M., as s is tan t . The lay 
brothers include: Brother Fran­
cis· Lemkes, O.F.M., Brother 
Agapite Birk, O.F.M., Brother 
Joseph Worms, O.F.M., and -
Brother Anselm Peschel, O.F.M. 

The growth of the parish has 
been coincident with the growth • 
of the F 'riary, many of whose 
Superiors have been pastors of 
Sacred Heart church. The 
school was one of their first 
cares. In 1877 the enrollment 
consisted of 142 children, the 
larger ·boys being taught by 
Brother Leopold Breuer, O.F.M., 
the rest of the children having 
been placed in the care of the 
Sisters of St. Joseph, who had 
arrived shortly before. The 
children were moved in October 
of the next year to the new 
home of the Sisters on the cor­
ner of Meridian and Palmer 
streets. A part of this residence 
-four rooms-still serves as 
schoolrooms for some of the 
grades. In the year 1895, the 
number of children increased to 
five hundred, thus making it 
necessary to erect a new school 
building. Plans were imme­
diately drawn up for the school 
which was built just north of 
the church, and was to serve as 
a school, a meeting place for 
church societies, and a recrea­
tion place for parish dramatics 
and sports. 

The climax in parish building 
came in 1914, when the new 
$93,000 Sacred Heart high 
school, was built. This splendid 
building was completely paid for 
with the help of bazaars and 
other socials within the short 
space of eight years. · 

But the real work of the Fran­
ciscan Fathers in Sacred Heart 
parish has not been primarily 
concerned with the building of 
churches and schools, for the 
real life of the parish does not 
consist in a way that may be 
described in terms of expansion, 
decline, numerical strength, or 
magnificence of buildings. It 
does consist in the effective and 
useful spiritual life of each 
member of the parish. In like 
manner does the success of the 
priest depend, not on the num­
ber of buildings he may erect, 
but upon his success as a spirit­
ual leader of his parish. In 
neither case may Sacred Heart 
parish be found wanting. 
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.Secondary Education 

SINCE the word "education" 
has been defined to mean 
the provision of suitable 
instruction to fit the child 

for his duties of life, Catholics 
have always held that intellec­
tual education must not be sepa­
rated from religious and moral 
instruction. This being the 
case, the Bishops of the Dio­
cese of Indianapolis, from its 
very beginning a century ago, 
together with the several Reli­
gious teaching Orders of men 
and women in the diocese, have 
labored zealously toward this 
end, with the result that in ad­
dition to the 126 parochial 
schools there are now nineteen 
Catholic high schools, one col­
lege, one seminary for Diocesan 
clerics, and four for Religious 
Orders. 

INDIANAPOLIS 

Cathedral High School 

TO the zeal and desire of the 
late Most Rev. Joseph Char­

trand for the education of youth, 
Cathedral high school in Indian­
apolis largely owes its progress. 

For many centuries the bishops and 

priests of the Catholic Church have 

been outspoken in their contention 

that intellectual education must not 

be separated from the equally important 

moral instruction; the many secondary 

schools in the Indianapolis diocese 

testify to the heeding of their words. 

The idea of building such a 
school originated in 1917, on the 
occasion of the Bishop's silver 
jubilee. At that time the people 
of Cathedral parish, desirous of 
showing their affection for him, 
and appreciation of his work, 
decided that he would be most 
pleased by a gift of a high school 
for boys similar to the girls' 
school, the St. Agnes academy. 

On September 17, the men of 
the parish held a meeting, at 
which time an appeal for money 
was made to all the parishioners 
of SS. Peter and Paul Cathedral 

parish. Some progress resulted, 
and in the following year ar­
rangements were made with the 
Provincial of the Congregation 
of Holy Cross, for Brothers to 
act as teachers. The second floor 
of the grade school was fitted 
out for use as a temporary high 
school, and all provisions were 
made for the school's opening, 
which was to take place in Sep­
tember, 1918. 

The faculty at this time con­
sisted of three B r o t h e r s : 
Brother Bernard, C.S.C., who 
was to act as principal; Brother 

The present Cathedral high school in Indianapolis, which was 
erected in 1926. It replaced the temporary structure which had 
followed the use of the grade school for high school purposes. 
It was built after the completion of a million dollar drive. 

Austin, C.S.C., and Brother An­
thony, C.S.C. At that time it 
was intended to teach only the 
freshmen classes, but as ninety 
boys enrolled, many of them 
having already had a year at 
another school, another teacher, 
Brother Walter, C.S.C., was sent 
from Notre Dame, and the 
sophomore classes were begun. 

In two years the number of 
students had increased to two 
hundred and fifty, and the fac­
ulty to five teachers. In this 
year eleven pioneer students 
were graduated. 

In September, 1921, 370 stu­
dents had enrolled. The follow­
ing year Brother Bernard was 
succeeded by Brother Austin, as 
principal. In this year, a $60,000 
temporary high school was 
erected at Fourteenth and Me­
ridian streets. Brother Austin 
succeeded in securing a commis­
sion from the Indiana State 
Board of Education on the con­
dition that the requirement of 
a completely equipped and per­
manent building be met in the 
immediate future. This com. 
mission was renewed each year 
for five years with the same 
understanding. 
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The old St. Agnes academy in Indianapolis and some of its pupils. The time is 
not known but is before the entrance into the present academy building in 
1909. This old building was used as a Cathedral parish grade school until 1922. 

The registration for 1924 was 
so large that a two-session day 
had to be inaugurated. Stu­
dents attended from 8 to 11 :15 
o'clock, and others took their 
places from 12 to 3 :30 o'clock. 
This plan was unsuccessful, but 
it clearly showed the need for a 
new school. 

So pressing was this need that 
in 1924 Bishop Chartrand named 
an executive committee of all 
the pastors of the city and 
started a drive for a million dol­
lars to be used in erecting a p~r­
manent school. The Rev. Dr. 
James Hugh Ryan, now Rector 
of the Catholic University, and 
Titular Bishop of Modra, was 
called from Washington to con­
duct the drive. All plans were 
drawn up in 1925, and the. cor­
nerstone was laid in 1926. 
Brother Ephrem had been ap­
pointed principal in 1925, and 
the school had in that year an 
enrollment of six hundred, with 
a faculty numbering twenty 
teachers. 

The new school was dedicated 
by Bishop Chartrand on Sep­
tember 11, 1927, this ceremony 
being followed by a Solemn High 
Mass "coram episcopo" in the 
auditorium of the school. Fol­
lowing the services the Bishop 
also delivered the sermon. 

The school building is of 
Georgean-Colonial architecture, 
and contains besides the school 
unit, a large gymnasium and a 
Brothers' · house. The school 
proper consists of sixteen class­
rooms, four laboratories, a study 
hall, and a library. 

Since that time the school has 

continued to progress, gaining 
in enrollment, until the scholas­
tic year 1934-1935, numbered 
approximately 640. The twenty­
one members of the faculty were 
headed this year by Brother 
Bernard, C. S. C., who succeeded 
Brother William, C.S.C., as prin­
cipal in the fall. The Rev. Peter 
Killian is superintendent of Ca­
thedral high school. 

St. John Academy 

THE Diocese of Indianapolis 
was still very young when 

the Sisters of Providence opened 
old St. John's, the first Catholic 
school in Indianapolis, to eighty 
children on September 5, 1859. 
A small brick building on the 
northwest corner of Tennessee 
(now Capitol avenue) and Geor­
gia streets was being used at 
the time for the only Catholic 
school in the city, where Miss L. 
V. Keating was teaching a little 
group of about thirty American, 
Irish, German, and French chil­
dren. Four Sisters came when 
the new building was completed 
in August, 1859. They were Sis­
ter Mary Ambrose, who served 
as the first Superior, and Sisters 
Mary John, Gabriella, and 
Camilla. 

The school had no more than 
secured for itself a solid founda­
tion when, on May 15, 1861, in 
order to meet an urgent need of 
the Civil War period the sur­
geons at the Military hospital in 
Indianapolis made an application 
through the Rev. Augustine Bes­
sonies, then pastor of St. John's 

church, for Sisters to serve as 
nurses. Father Bessonies ap­
plied to the Mother House of the 
Sisters of Providence at St. 
Mary-of-the-Woods, and on May 
17, Sister A us tin, Sister Clotilda, 
and Sister Matilda arrived in In­
dianapolis, stopped long enough 
to take dinner with the Sisters 
at St. John's, then started for 
their immediate duties at the 
hospital. 

Sister Mary Ambrose fur­
nished transportation by means 
of a borrowed horse and buggy, 
for the Sisters, back and forth 
from the Hospital to St. John's, 
in order that they might one at 
a time have the opportunity of 
hearing Mass the next morning. 
By taking turns in thi"' way the 
Sisters were able to receive the 
Sacraments weekly. 

On September 8, 1865, Sister 
Athanasius, who had served in 
the hospital four years, and Sis­
ter Louise opened St. John's 
Home for the Invalids, which 
was operated in a rented house 
for a short time and later in one 
purchased by the SistE~rs at 125 
S. Tennessee street. The home 
was opened because of frequent 
applications made to t he Sisters 
for the nursing of sick persons, 
and in order that they might 
furnish care and accommoda­
tions for the sick who had no 
home. This institution was torn 
down in 1872, and the present 
St. John academy building was 
begun. The work on the new 
school having been delayed in 
1873, it was completed in 187 4. 
What seems to have been an ad­
vantage at the time---that St. 
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John Academy occupy the cor­
ner property, proved to be an 
impossibility because the corner 
had been . purchased for the 
Chamber of Commerce shortly 
before the Sisters built the 
academy. 

After the girls' school was 
transferred to the new academy 
building -in 1874, the boys occu­
pied the school house at Georgia 
and Tennessee streets, with the 
Brothers of the Sacred Heart in 
charge. Both the grade and 
high school girls were taught in 
the new building for some time 
until the grade school depart­
ment was transferred to the 
building on Georgia street, leav­
ing the new building for the use 
of the academy. In the year 
1879 the St. Augustine school 
was opened in S. Tennessee 
street for the accommodation of 
little children under twelve years 
of age who resided south of the 
railroad tracks, and after having 
reached that age, these children 
attended St. John's school. 

The St. John academy con­
tinued to grow during its 
seventy-five years of existence, 
and when its diamond jubilee 
was celebrated in May of this 
year thousands of visitors, a 
very great number of whom 
were former students, thronged 
the halls, class rooms, and gar­
den on homecoming day. Among 
the visiting Sisters were sixty 
of the many former students 
who had embraced the Religious 
life. 

St. Mary Academy 

WHEN the Diocese of Vin-
cennes was only thirty years 

old the Rev. Simon Sigrist, pas­
tor of the then struggling Ger­
man congregation of St. Mary's, 
in Indianapolis, requested the 
Sisters of St. Francis to open a 
school in his parish, and in 1864, 
three Sisters from their Mother 
House at Oldenburg came, with 
Sister M. Helen as their Su-
perior. · 

Like all pioneer schools of the 
Diocese, St. Mary's had its hum­
ble beginning, but as time went 
on the school became a flourish­
ing institution. There was a 
period many years ago when 
this school, which comprised 
from the first to the eighth 
grades, had an enrollment of 
about four hundred pupils. St. 
Mary's later became a boarding 
school, and in September, 1887, 
the high school was opened in 
which academic and commercial 
courses were offered. 

Ground was broken in 1910 
for a new academy building on 
its present site, 429 E. Vermont 
street, the dedication for which 
took place the following year. It 
included class rooms, chapel, and 
Sisters' apartments. 

The boarding school was dis­
continued about this time. An 
annex was built to the academy 
in 1927 to accommodate the in­
creasing number of students in 
the commercial and academic 
classes. Art, under the direc­
tion of Sister Mary Rose, and 
music, under S'ister Francis An­
thony became outstanding fea­
tures. At the present time the 
courses in sewing and dressmak­
ing, under the supervision of 
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Sister Eva John, are in great 
demand. 

When the industrial district 
began crowding closely about St. 
Mary's, the resident parishion­
ers became so few that the 
grade school enrollment of the 
past year numbered less than 
fifty. The high sch0ol and com­
mercial classes had an enroll- · 
ment during the past term of 
240. 

Among the Superiors who 
have been in charge of St. · 
Mary's academy since the time 
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of Sister M. Helen are Sisters 
M. Amata, M. Petrina, M. Ju­
litta, M. Antoinette, l\1ary Aloys, 
Mary Agnes, M. Leonette, and 
M. Heriberk. The Sisters who 
have held the office of principal 
since the opening of the high 
school department in 1887, and 
the periods of time during which 
they · served are Sisters Mary 
Salome, 1887 to 1890; Mary 
Agnes, 1890 to 1896 ; Mary 
Aloys, 1896 to 1920; Mary Agnes 
again from 1920 to 1927; Mary 
Lawrence, 1927 to 1928; and M. 
Leonette, 1928 to the present 
time. 

The Reitz Memorial high school at Evansville. 

St. Agnes Academy 

THE first notation on the rec-
ord book of the St. Agnes 

academy, Indianapolis, was 
dated in the year 1893, and 
reads: "The St. Agnes acad­
emy opened October 9, 1893, at 
the request of Bishop Chatard. 
Sister Camilla, the first S'uperior, 
was aided by eleven Sisters. The 
enrollment was thirteen, and the 
first resident student was Laura 
Byther, age twelve." Evidently, 
the eleven Sisters must have in­
cluded the teachers for both the 
grade school and the high 
school. 

Previous to the opening of the 
academy on its present site, the 
southwest corner of Fourteenth 
and Meridian streets, a small 
two-room school known as the 
SS. Peter and Paul school was 
opened on the east side of 
Meridian street near the spot 
where the present Cathedral 
stands. The two Sisters of 
Providence, Sister Camilla and 
one companion, who were in 
charge of the school; and who 
resided at the St. John academy, 
went as "missionaries" to the 
little north-side school each 
morning and returned each eve­
ning. The records do not state 
how long these daily missionary 
tours continued, but it is 
thought probable that they 
were kept up by the Sisters until 
one year after the establishment 
of the ss·. Peter and Paul con­
gregation. It was then that a 
permanent residence for the 
Sisters was secured and the first 
St. Agnes academy was opened 
on its present site. 

A few interesting lines are 
quoted here in which are told 
something of the work in prepa­
ration for the new north-side 
school. 

"Early on Saturday mornings 
the Sisters from the St. John 
academy packed their lunches 
and rode out northward, where 
they spent the day at cleaning 
up the little house which was to 
become the new mission of the 
Sisters of Providence in Indian-

The graduating class of 1885 of St. John 
academy at Indianapolis. The school's first 
formal commencement was held in this year. 

a polis, the St. Agnes academy. 
Sister Marie, a well known mem­
ber of the staff at St. John's, 
and who was at that time one 
of the best musicians in Indian­
apolis, as well as a leader among 
the teachers of music, was one 
of the group of Sisters who 
helped prepare the house." 

The only available records of 
the academy between the years 
1893 and 1907 are the names of 
the Sisters who served as Su­
periors during that time. They 
were Sisters Camilla, Mary 
Cyril, Mary Raphael, the pres­
ent Superior-General of the Or­
der, St. Liguori, and Mary 
Gabriel. 

Preparations · were begun on 
the feast of the Sacred Heart, 
in 1907, for the moving of the 
old academy building to face 
Fourteenth street. The work 
was completed and the school 
opened on September 23. The 
old building was occupied by the 
academy until August 17, 1909, 
and was used later by the Ca­
thedral grade school until Sep­
tember 11, 1922, when the 
grades were transferred to the 
new building located at Four­
teenth and Pennsylvania streets. 
The old building was wrecked in 
November, 1922. 

On August 1, 1908, ground 
was broken for the new academy 
building, and one year later, on 
August 17, 1909, the academy 
was blessed by the Rev. Joseph 
Chartrand. A temporary chapel 
was opened on the same day, in 
the room now used as a recrea­
tion room for the resident stu­
dents. Mass was said for the 
first time in the new chapel, by 
Father Chartrand on the morn­
ing of August 18, 1909, and a 
few weeks later, on September 
15, the school opened with an 
enrollment of forty-two. 

September 16, 1910 was a 
happy day at the St. Agnes 
academy, because on that morn­
ing Bishop Chartrand, the 
newly consecrated Coadjutor of 
the Diocese of Indianapolis cele­
brated his first Mass as a Bishop, 
in the academy chapel. His con­
secration had taken place the 
preceding day. On December 
29, the new chapel of the Sacred 
Heart, the one now in use, was 
dedicated by Bishop Chartrand, 
and in December, 1912, the St. 
Agnes Academy Alumnae asso­
ciation was organized. 

Just as St. Agnes' was an out­
growth of the St. John academy, 
so in the year 1921 the St. Joan 
of Arc school became an out-

growth of St. Agnes', the three 
Sisters, Sister Mary Alexis and 
her two assistants who resided 
at the academy made the trip 
daily back and forth to the re­
cently opened little school in the 
newly organized St. Joan of Arc 
parish. 

The stretch of time between 
the years 1921 and 1934 were 
apparently unmarked by any 
spectacular event at St. Agnes'. 
Even the Jubilee year of 1918 
seemed to have passed quietly 
as far as records show. Whether 
or not events were recorded in 
many of the years since the es­
tablishment of the St. Agnes 
academy, they were marked by 
a steady increase, and by con­
tinual improvement. 

The enrollment during the 
past school year included repre­
sentatives from eighteen par­
ishes in the city. A comparison 
of the enrollments through the 
decades shows a steady increase 
as follows: From the year 1893 
to 1913, the number of students 
increased from thirteen to fifty­
nine; 1913 to 1923, the enroll­
ment more than doubled, the fig­
ures showing fifty-nine t o 144 ; 
and between the years 1923 and 

Continued on page 81 
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Procession of Parishes 
To a surprising extent, the strength and the vigor o~ a diocese depends upon 

the vitality of the parishes which are its units. Here 1is told something of 

I T seems difficult to imagine 
the problems, the condi­
tions, and the methods of 
living which confronted our 

forefathers who lived in the 
earlier days of Indiana. The 
year of the founding of the dio­
cese appears very distant, and 
holding little in common with 
the year 1935. And yet, in 
reality, this hundred years is 
but a short time, almost within 
the lifetime of present men, and 
it is only by imagining these 
· conditions, understanding what 
we have in common and visualiz­
ing the length of time, that we 
may comprehend what has 
transpired. 

The 1935 year book of the 

the source of this See's greatness. Un­

dramatic though these accounts of the par­

ishes may appear to be, behind them may 

be read a story of great endeavor, of 

sacrifice, and of sure progress, all of 

which together have brought to the dio­

cese its century of growth and development. 

Diocese of Indianapolis lists 226 
churches, missions, and chapels 
cared for by the 396 members 
of the clergy in Indiana. To in­
dicate the material parish ex­
pansion of the diocese in the 
hundred years of its existence 
we have but to contrast this 
number with the statistics pub­
lished in 1837 by the Diocese of 
Vincennes which then comprised 
the whole of Indiana and a large 
part of Illinois . 

In that year the directory 
states that there were approxi­
mately thirty-one churches in 
the diocese attended by about 
eleven diocesan priests who were 
in some cases assisted by a few 
missioners from neighboring 

The interior of SS. Peter and Paul Cathedral at Indianapolis as it was twenty­
eight years ago when this picture was taken. Since that date numerous changes 
have been made. In this picture, no side Altars are to be seen; these had not 
been erected at that date (May 23, 1907). The Communion rail, as well as the 
throne and the pulpit, were constructed principally of wood. And the Altar is 
as it was originally built, because to it a great deal has been added in later years. 
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states. This seems all the more 
remarkable when we read that 
there were two resident priests 
in Chicago, and services were 
only occasionally held in Indian­
apolis. 

In the following group of par­
ish sketches, no attempt has 
been made to give the complete 
history of each parish. An en­
deavor has been made, however, 
to indicate the growth of the 
Diocese of Indianapolis- and 
the vastness of that ·growth-by 
showing in some small way the 
growth of its units. 

INDIANAPOLIS 
SS. PETER AND PAUL CA­

THEDRAL, located at 1347 
North Meridian street, was 
founded as a parish in 1892. The 
pastors who served at the Ca­
thedral in the order of their 
service have been: Monsignor 
Bessonies, V.G., 1892 to 1905; 
the .Most Rev. Joseph Chart­
rand, sixth Bishop of the Dio­
cese, 1905 to 1925; the Most Rev. 
Joseph E. Ritter, seventh Bishop 
of the Diocese, 1925 to 1934; 
and the Rt. Rev. Raymond R. 
Noll, V.G., from 1934. The as­
sistants at the present time are: 
The Rev. Joseph B. Tieman; the 
Rev. George Dunn ; and the Rev. 
James A. Hickey. 

The present Cathedral was 
built in 1906. The original chap­
el, erected in 1892, which served 
as a parish church until the Ca­
thedral was completed, has 
been, through the generosity of 
a member of the parish, renewed 
and richly decorated for use as 
a Chapel of Adoration. On Sep­
tember 7, 1918, it was dedicated 
to the Blessed Sacrament, and 
every Friday the Blessed Sacra­
ment is exposed for the adora­
tion of the faithful. 

The first school of the parish 
was opened in 1892, and entered 
a permanent building in 1912. It 
is conducted by the Sisters of 
Providence. 

ASSUMPTION CHURCH is 
located at 1125 Blaine avenue. 
Although the late Rev. Francis 
A. Gavisk visited the district as 
early as 1888, the parish was or­
ganized in 1893 with only thir­
teen Catholic families by the 
!ate Rev. Joseph F. Weber, who 
served continuously to the time 
of his death in July, 1935. The 
assistant at the present time is 
the Rev. Joseph A. Laugel. 

The church was erected in 
1894, and a school was built and 
opened in the following year. 
The Benedictine Sisters from 
Ferdinand are in charge of the 
school. 

CHURCH OF THE LITTLE 
FLOWER, located at 14th street 
and Bosart avenue, was founded 
March 13, 1925. The first, and 
to date the only Pastor, the Very 
Rev. Charles Duffey, is assisted 
by the Rev. Cyril Conen, the 
Rev. Maurice Schoentrup, and 
the Rev. Raymond Marchino. 

The school, conducted by the 
Sisters of St. Francis, was built 
in 1926. 

Little Flower church is the 
youngest parish in Indianapolis. 

HOLY ANGELS' CHURCH, 
located at 28th street and North­
western avenue, was founded in 
1899 and the church built four 
years later. 

The Pastors who have been in 
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charge of Holy Angels are : The 
Rev. Stephen A. Donoghue, 1899 
to 1903; the Rev. James L. Car­
rico, 1903 to 1910; and the Rev. 
James A. Coulter, the present 
pastor, who was appointed in 
1910. The Rev. Joseph A. Ter­
stegge is the present assistant. 

The school, built in 1907, is 
conducted by the Sisters of St. 
Joseph. 

HOLY CROSS CHURCH, lo­
cated at 125 North Oriental 
street, was founded in 1895. 

The Pastors in the order of 
service have been: The Rev. Wil­
liam Quigley, 1895 to 1896; the 
Rev. Dennis McCabe, 1896- to 
1903; the Rev. James J. Wade, 
1903 to 1919; the Rt. Rev. Jo­
seph Byrne, 1920 to 1924; and 
the Rt. Rev. William F. Keefe, 
since 1924. The assistants at 
the present time are: The Rev. 
Walter A. Nugent; the Rev. Vic­
tor L. Goossens; and the Rev. 
Bernard J. Thompson. 

The school was opened in 1895 

in a combination church and 
school building. The school is 
taught by the Sisters of Provi­
dence. 

A new church was built in 
1921, and the old building re­
modeled into a modern school. 

HOLY NAME CHURCH, lo­
cated in Beech Grove, a suburb 
of Indianapolis, was called the 
Blessed Sacrament church for 
the first ten years, but after the 
Cathedral chapel was opened in 
1918, it was renamed Holy 
Name. 

The first Pastor, the Rev. Pe­
ter Killian, is still in charge. He 
is assisted by the Rev. Herman 
Mootz. 

The original church, built in 
1908, was a little chapel in the 
Pastor's house and served until 
1922 when the present church 
and school building was com­
pleted. Additions to the school, 
the convent, and the parish com­
munity facilities are now being 
built. 

The enrollment of the school, 
opened in 1922, has increased 
four times in the thirteen years 
of the school's activity. The 
school is under the direction of 
the Sisters of St. Francis, Old­
enburg. 

HOLY ROSARY CHURCH~ 
located at 539 Stevens street, 
was founded in 1909, its second 
church was built in 1912, and 
the present church was finished 
in 1925. 

The Rt. Rev. Marino Priori 
was Pastor from 1909 to 1934~ 
and the Rev. Ambrose J. Sulli­
van, the second and present Pas­
tor, is assisted by the Rev. Au­
gustine Sansone. 

The school, opened in 1912, is 
conducted by the Sisters of St. 
Francis. 

HOLY TRINITY CHURCH, .. 
located at 2618 West St. Clair 
street, was founded in 1906. 

The Pastors in the order of 
service are : The Rev. Joseph 
Lavric, 1906 to 1909; the Rev .. 

The Old Cathedral of St. Francis Xavier in Vincennes which was 
begun in 1824 and not completerl until years later. The steeple, 
conceived by Bishop Brute, contains a bell brought from France 
in 17 42, which is known as "The Liberty Bell of the Northwest." 

... 
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1917; the Rev. Albert Busald, 
1917 to 1918; the Rev. Maurice 
O'Connor, 1918 to 1919; the Rev. 
Raymond R. Noll, 1919 to 1927; 
and the Rev. Bernard Sheridan, 
1927 to 1934. The present ·Pas­
tor, the Rev. Joseph Clancy, is 
assisted by the Rev. Denis Spald­
ing. 

The present Assumption church at Evans­
ville. Oldest of that city's parishes, 
it will observe its centennial in 1937. 

John Smolej, 1909 to 1910; the 
Rev. Bonaventure Cicek, O.M.C., 
1910 to 1914; the Rev. Cyril 
Orevdac, O.M.C., 1914 to 1924; 
the Rev. Bonaventure Cicek, 0. 
M.C., 1924 to 1925; the Rev. 
Casimir Cvercko, O.M.C., 1925 
to 1932; and the Rev. Victor 
Rogulj , O.M.C., 1932 to 1933. 
The present Pastor, the Rev. Jo­
seph V. Somes, J.C.L., is assisted 
by the Rev. Michael Djubasz. 

The church was completed in 
1907. 

The school, opened in 1911, 
entered its present building in 
1926, and is under the direction 
of the Sisters of St. Francis, 
Oldenburg. 

OUR LADY OF LOURDES' 
CHURCH, located at 5315 East 
Washington street, was founded 
in 1909, and its first Pastor, the 
Rev. Joseph A. Poelhuis, was in 
charge until 1919, when he was 
succeeded by the present pastor, 
the Rev. Michael W. Lyons. The 
Rev. James W. Moore and the 
Rev. Charles F. Schoettelkotte 
are the present assistants. 

The present church was built 
in 1915. 

The school, opened in 1910, 
entered a new building in 1915, 
and is under the direction of the 
Sisters of St. Francis, Olden­
burg. 

SACRED HEART CHURCH, 
located at 1530 Union street, 
was founded July 14, 1875. 

The Pastors have been: The 
Rev. Alardus Andrescheck, O.F. 
M. , 1875, to 1877; the Rev. Fer­
dinand Bergmeyer, O.F.M., 1877 
to 1885; the Rev. Francis Haase, 
O.F.M., 1885 to 1891; the Rev. 
Bernadine Weis, O.F.M., 1891 to 
1894; the Rev. Francis Haase, 
O.F.M., 1894 to 1903; the Rev. 

Columban Valentine, O.F.M., 
1903 to 1906; the Rev. Timothy 
Magnien, O.F.M., 1906 to 1909; 
the Rev. Andrew Butzkueben, 0. 
F.M., 1909 to 1915; the Rev. Odo 
Richardt, O.F.M., 1915 to 1925; 
and the Rev. Didacus Gruen­
holz, O.F.M., 1925 to 1927. The 
present Pastor, the Rev. John 
Joseph Brogger, O.F.M., has two 
assistants, the Rev. Ethelbert 
Harms, O.F.M., and the Rev. 
Servace Ritter, O.F.M. 

The present church was built 
in 1883. 

The school, which was com­
pleted in 1875 and opened in 
1876, is conducted by the Sisters 
of St. Joseph of Carondelet, Mis­
souri. 

ST. ANN CHURCH, located in 
Mars Hill, R. R. 3, just outside 
of Indianapolis, was founded and 
the first church built in 1917. 
The second church was dedicated 
in 1927. 

The first Pastor, the Rev. John 
F. Patterson, has served up to 
the present time. 

The school, built in 1921, was 
opened in the following year, 
and is under the direction of the 
Sisters of Providence. 

ST. ANTHONY CHURCH, lo­
cated at · 379 North Warman 
street, was organized in 1886. 

The Pastors in their order of 
service have been: The Rev. 
Francis B. Dowd, 1889 to 1900; 
the Rt. Rev. Joseph F. Byrne, 
1900 to 1920; and the Rev. Al­
bert Busald, 1920 to 1934. The 
present Pastor is the Rev. Mi­
chael J. Gorman, and his assist­
ants are: The Rev. Ralph Pfau 
and the Rev. Thomas H. Mur­
phy. 

A combined church and school 
was opened in 1891, but a sepa-

rate church was built in 1904. 
The school is under t he care of 
the Sisters of Providence. 

ST. BRIDGET CHURCH, lo­
cated at 807 North West street, 
was founded in 1879. 

The first Pastor, the Rev. Dan­
iel Curran, remained in charge 
until 1918, when he was suc­
ceeded by the present Pastor, 
the Rev. John F. McSh ane. 

The school building was com­
pleted and opened in 1880, and is 
in charge of the SL.ters of St. 
Francis of Oldenburg, Indiana. 
From 1892 to 1919 St. Bridget's 
operated in conjunction with St. 
Ann's school, a school for the 
colored children of Indianapolis. 

ST. CATHERINE OF SIENA 
CHURCH, located at 1109 East 
Tabor avenue, was fo unded in 
1909 with the Rev. 0. C. Bosler 
as the first Pastor. He was suc­
ceeded by the Rev. James M. 
Downey, who has been Pastor 
since 1917. Father Downey is 
assisted by the Rev. Joseph A. 
Duffy and the ·Rev. Albert R. 
Walter. 

The school, opened in 1909 un­
der the direction of the Sisters 
of Providence, was originally 
combined with the church. The 
school has been added t o, first in 
1921, and again in 192:6. A new 
rectory was completed in 1926. 

ST. FRANCIS DE SALES 
CHURCH, located at 2191 Avon­
dale place, was founded April 29, 
1881, with the Rev. Charles Cur­
ran as its first Pastor. Father 
Curran continued until 1883, and 
from this year until 1900 the 
Franciscan Fathers were in 
charge. The Pastors since the 
latter date include: The Rev. V. 
J. Brucke~ 1900 to 1910; the 
Rev. Raymond R. Nolll, 1910 to 

The church was built in 1913. 
The school, built in 1903, is in 

charge of the Sisters of St. 
Francis. 

ST. JOAN OF ARC CHURCH, 
located at 4217 Central avenue, 
was founded in 1920 by the Most 
Rev. Alphonse J. Smith, now 
Bishop of Nash ville, Tennessee. 
On his elevation to the Episco­
pacy in 1923, the pastorate was 
temporarily assumed by the as­
sistant, the Rev. Jerome Pfau. 
The present Pastor, the Rt. Rev. 
Maurice O'Connor, was ap­
pointed in 1924. He is assisted 
by the Rev. James McBarron 
and the Rev. Joseph Grothaus. 

The school, which was opened 
in 1921, is taught by the Sisters 
of Providence. 

ST. JOHN CHURCH, located 
at 129 South Capitol avenue, was 
founded in 1840 under the title 
of Holy Cross, the first church 
being located on the northeast 
corner of Washington and Cali­
fornia streets. It · was attended 
by the Rev. Vincent Bacquelin 
who came twice a month from 
Shelby county. 

Pastors who were in charge of 
the church include: The Rev. 
Vincent Bacquelin, 1840 to 1846; 
the Rev. Patrick J. Murphy, 1847 
to 1848; the Rev. John Gueguen, 
1848 to 1852; the Rev. Dan Ma­
loney, 1852 to 1857; the Rev. 

Continued on page 92 

Joseph church at Terre Haute. 
parish was established in 1837 or 1838 and 
is the oldest in the city on the Wabash. 
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Healing The Sick 

The seven Catholic hospitals in this diocese are 

that many institutions where Christian Charity 

guides each task for suffering humanity's sake. 

A 
HOSPITAL, to some, 
might mean tall walls 
of brick or stone with 
stately portals; to oth­

ers it is a place of clean, quiet 
coolness; to a soldier, perhaps 
a hospital recalls only a crowded 

·tent at the edge of a battle field; 
but viewed broadly the typical 
modern hospital represents hu­
man solicitude for suffering, en­
nobled by Christian charity and 
made efficient by the abundant 
resources of medical skill. 

The word itself is taken from 
the Latin, "hospitium," meaning 
a guest-house or guest-room. A 
hospital was originally known as 
a place where strangers or visit-

ors were received, but as years 
went on the use of a hospital be­
came restricted to the care of 
the sick. 

That the care of the sick is a 
work of Christian charity was 
exemplified by Christ Himself in 
the numerous miracles He 
wrought to heal the various 
forms of human suffering. 

When and where the first hos­
pital was established is a matter 
of dispute. Some authorities 
state that St. Zoticus built one 
at Constantinople, but this has 
been denied. However, the first 
hospital in North America was 
erected before the year 1524, in 
the City of Mexico, by Cortes, in 

gratitude, as he mentioned in 
his will, "for the graces and 
mercies God has bestowed 
upon him in permitting him to 
discover and conquer New Spain, 
and in expiation or satisfac­
tion for any sins he had 
committed, especially those he 
had forgotten, or any burden 
these might be on his conscience 
for which he could not make 
special atonement." This hos­
pital was called the Hospital de 
la Purisima Concepcion, later of 
Jesus Nazareno, after a neigh­
boring shrine. 

The first hospital in the Unit­
ed States was erected on Man­
hattan island about 1663, "at the 

St. Margaret Mary hospital at Batesville. This is the youngest Catholic hospital 
in the diocese and was opened in 1932. It was made possible through the generosity 
of the late Mrs. Margaret Hillenbrand and her daughter, the late Mrs. Mary A. Mitchell. 

request of Surgeon Hendricksen 
Varrevanger for the reception of 
sick soldiers who had been pre­
viously billeted on private fami­
lies, and for the West India Com­
pany's negroes." 

Seven well-equipped Catholic 
hospitals are now located in the 
Diocese of Indianapolis, and the 
first of these, St. Mary's, was es­
tablished in Evansville in 1870. 

St. Mary's Hospital 
Evansville 

ST. MARY'S HOSPITAL, the 
oldest institution of its kind 

in the Diocese of Indianapolis, 
was established at Evansville 
sixty-five years ago, the proper­
ty having been deeded to the 
Sisters of Charity on July 6, 
1870. A corps of three Sisters 
of Charity from Baltimore, 
Maryland, opened St. Mary's in 
the old Marine hospital in the 
west end of the city, on the 
banks of the Ohio river. 

The foundation of a Catholic 
hospital in Evansville was made 
possible through the generosity 
of Mrs. William Fergus. It was 
incorporated under the -laws of 
the State of Indiana on March 
3, 1876, and was arranged by the 
Sisters for the accommodation 
of one hundred patients. 

After a few years, because of 
the encroachment of the rail­
roads and· manufacturing indus­
tries upon the neighborhood of 
the institution, combined with 
the natural growth of the city, 
the necessity of a larger hos­
pital became apparent. The Sis­
ters disposed of the old building 
and purchased the present prop­
erty at First avenue and Colum­
bia street, where in the year 
1889 the new building was be­
gun. When completed in 1893, 
the institution comprised three 
floors, with a capacity of more 
than one hundred beds. · 

The following year, 1894, the 
Sisters established a training 
school for nurses, offering a 
three-year course, upon the com­
pletion of which graduates were 
entitled to State registration. 

The institution continued to 
grow, and by 1922 a new annex 
was completed, which provided 
for twenty-five additional beds. 
The four floors of the building 
are occupied by the surgery and 
obstetrics, record room and pri­
vate rooms. 

The dietetic department, 
which is located on the first floor, 
ser ves as a laboratory where all 
diets requiring especial attention 
are prepared. Cooking classes 
for the nurses are also held on 
this floor, under the super.vision 
of a registered dietitian. In addi­
tion to these, the first floor ac­
commodates the office, the X-ray 
room, clinical laboratory, physio­
therapy, pediatric departments, 
and the nurses' dining room. 

The chapel is located on the 
second floor of the building op­
posite the main entrance of the 
hospital. In addition to the hos­
pital proper, two other buildings, 
a laundry and a power house, 
comprise the institution. 

At the present time twelve 
Sisters are in charge at St. 
Mary's, with Sister Dolores as 
Sister-Servant, and the Rev. Jo­
seph Lannert as Chaplain. A 
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training school for fifty or sixty 
nurses is maintained, and ac­
commodations are available for 
140 patients. 

The medical staff of the hos­
pital was formed in 1922. Its 
open staff organization places all 
members on an equal footing, 
and it also comprises men of the 
highest ability. The medical 
and surgical divisions are di­
vided into groups of three, each 
group serving a three-month 
period. According to this ar­
rangement three doctors are al­
ways on duty at the same time. 

S't. Mary's hospital is recog­
nized by the American College 
of Surgeons. 

St. Vincent's Hospital 
Indianapolis 

WHEN Sister Mary Theresa 
and her little band of three, 

Sisters Mary Oswald, Albertine, 
and Magdalen, arrived in Indian­
apolis from the Mother House 
of the Daughters of Charity of 
St. Vincent de Paul, in Emmits­
burg, Maryland, on April 27, 
1881, it can not be imagined 
that even they could have vis­
ualized the present modern St. 
Vincent's hospital, which ex­
tends from Illinois street to 
Capitol avenue on Fall Creek 
boulevard in Indianapolis. 

Today, after fifty-four years, 
the staff of four Sisters has ex­
panded to twenty-three, and the 
humble institution, St. Vincent's 
infirmary, which had it's begin­
ning in a part of the old St. 
Joseph church building, then lo­
cated in Vermont street between 
East and Liberty streets, has 
grown to five stories of brick, 
stone, and steel. 

The need for a Catholic hos­
pital in Indianapolis was shown 
not only in Bishop Chatard's 
request that the Sisters estab­
lish one here, but also in the 
steady growth of the infant in­
stitution, because after five or 
six years the Sisters found it 
necessary to seek a suitable lo­
cation for a larger hospital. By 
the year 1889, the then new St. 
Vincent infirmary, located on the 
southeast corner of Delaware 
and South streets, was com­
pleted. The Sisters thought at 
the time that they had a hospital 
building large enough to meet 
their needs and to serve their 
patients for many future years. 
As time went by, additional stor­
ies were built in the effort to 
suit the size of the building to 
its ever increasing number of 
patients. 1,200 patients were 
recorded as having been treated 
there in the year 1912, with the 
number promising to reach fif­
teen hundred. 

Preparations for building an­
other new hospital were begun 
in May, 1908, when Fair Bank 

· park along Fall Creek was pur­
chased. A part of the site was 
later absorbed by the Indian­
apolis Park Board, thereby link­
ing the hospital site with the 
park and boulevard system of 
the city and assuring the institu­
tion from encroachment by other 
buildings. . 

The new building, which was 
completed about Thanksgiving 

· day in the year 1912 was ready 
for occupancy in February of the 
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St. Vincent hospital in Indianapolis. This present St. Vincent hospital was completed 
in 1912. The original hospital, the second oldest in the diocese, was established in 1881. 

following year. The chapel and 
the altar were consecrated by 
the late Most Rev. Joseph Char­
trand, then Coadjutor Bishop of 
Indianapolis, on February 6, 
1913. The Rev. P. H. Griffin, who 
had served as Chaplain in the 
old · hospital for a number of 

years was the celebrant of the 
first Mass in the new hospital on 
that day. 

Patients from the hospital on 
Delaware street were moved to 
the new institution in six auto­
mobiles and three ambulances . 
a few days before, when the 

establishment was formally 
opened to new patients. Old rec­
ords show that seven operations 
were performed that day. Sis­
ter Mary Joseph, Superior, di­
rected a staff of sixty nurses at 

Continued on page 89 

St. Francis hospital at Bee,ch Grove, just outside oif Indianapolis. St. Francis hospital was 
established in 1913 by the Poor Sisters of St. Francis of the Perpetual Adoration. 
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TERRE HAUTE 

MAIN OFFICE-
643-5 Wabash Ave. 

BRANCH-
511-513 Wabash Ave. 
TERRE HA.UTE, IND. 

HERB LEACH QUALITY 
SHOP 

MEN'S FURNISHINGS and CLOTHING 
523 WABASH A VE. 

Terre Haute, Ind. 

Use Johnson's Superior 
ICE CREAM 

~ There Is None Better Anywhere 

iJOHNT~£~H~~;,~l~ co. 

HART'S FEED STORES 
Phone B-8912 

Purina and Quality Feeds 
TERRE HAUTE, IND. 

JERRY'S 
BELL BAKERIES, INC. 

Jerry's Interest and the Old Management 
Continues 

TERRE HAUTE, IND. 

Floyd G. Webster 
A GOOD PLACE TO TRADE 

GROCERIES, GOOD MEATS 
GENERAL MERCHANDISE 

Where Your Patronage Is Appreciated 

124 S. 4th Street Phone C-3500 
TERRE HAUTE, IND. 

ERMISCH BROS., INC. 
MY CLEANER 

Call Crawford 4381 
TERRE HAUTE, IND. 

EAT AND ENJOY 

PEARL ICE CREAM 
Terre Haute Pure Milk And 
Ice Cream Company, Inc. 

TERRE HAUTE, IND. 

TERRE HAUTE 
MONUMENT CO. 
109-111-113 WABASH AVE. 

Phone Crawford 5879 

Terre Haute, Ind. 

Visit Our New and Larger 
Store at 660 Wabash Avenue 

Sears, Roebuck 
&Co. 

TERRE HAUTE, IND. 
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A Pioneer Sisterhood 
Continued from page 31 

ception rooms, offices, and a 
social hall. 

The Conservatory of Music 
north of Guerin Hall is a three­
story building of white brick 
and limestone. A structure 150 
x 125 feet, it contains a triple 
entrance opening upon a foyer 
stretching across the entire 
width of the building. Imme­
diately beyond the foyer is the 
Cecilian auditorium rising the 
height of the building to a dome 
skylight, and seating about nine 
hundred persons. The fire-proof 
stage is furnished with a two 
manual pipe organ, and pro­
vides scenery for the stage and 
materials for the projection of 
photoplays. The musical equip­
ment comprises, in addition to 
the stage organ, a practice or­
gan and more than sixty pianos 
as well as harps, violins, and 
other instruments. The con­
servatory library contains the 
best of musical literature. Class 
rooms, studios, chorus rooms, 
and practice rooms open on the 
corridors surrounding the au­
ditorium on three sides. 

Beyond the Conservatory is 
Foley Hall, a building con­
structed of Bedford limestone. 
In it are located the Students' 
chapel, the art department, the 
college museum, the commerce 
and finance department, and the 
main library. 

The Refectory, a large white 
and amber hall, contains ac­
commodations for five hundred 
students and was used for the 
first time in March, 1921. It is 
equipped with the latest im­
provements in lighting, heating, 
and service, and is complete· in 
every detail. Another building 
close by is the gymnasium, a 
two-story red brick building. It 
contains a running track and 
full equipment for modern ex­
ercise, basketball, and all indoor 
sports. Adjoining the gymna­
sium is the Natatorium which 
contains a pool 35 by 72 feet, 
showers, dressing rooms, and 
drying rooms. It also contains 
a large bowling alley. 

THE library at St. Mary-of­
the-W oods comprises a cen-

tral library in Foley Hall and 
five departmental libraries con­
taining in all over 35,000 vol­
umes. 

The chemical, physics, and 
biological laboratories are well 
equipped. Five large hot houses, 
constituting in all the finest 
private horticultural plant in 
Indiana, have recently been con­
structed. A home economics de­
partment completely furnished 
with standard individual equip­
ment is also included. 

The Conventual Church of the 
Immaculate Conception is the 
most beautiful of the campus 
buildings. Built of pale gray 
Bedford stone in Italian Re­
naissance style, it is modeled 
after the Sainte Trinite in 
Paris. It contains beautifully 
polished N umidian marble col­
umns with delicately carved 
capitals. The seven white Car­
rara marble altars were made 
in Italy, as was the altar railing 
of Scyros marble. The stained 
glass windows are the work of 
Munich artists, while the murals 
and the work on the semi-dome 
is the work of the late Thaddeus 
Von Z ukotynski. 

The chapel of Perpetual Ado­
ration where the Most Blessed 
Sacrament is constantly exposed 
is one of St. Mary's most revered 
spots. 

Viewed in perspective the 
history of St. Mary-of-the­
w oods reflects in miniature the 
history of the diocese. Founded 
six years after a bull of Gregory 
XVI had established the See of 
Vincennes, it has kept pace with 
the growth of the diocese, culmi­
nating in its develbpment as one 
of the largest and most flourish­
ing institutions of religious or­
ders of women in the United 
States. In this respect, as well 
as in the mere outward aspect 
of its buildings and its campus, 
does it widely differ from the 
scene and conditions that Moth­
er Theodore knew. To one who 
sees in retrospect the entire 
history of this institution, the 
thought must inevitably come 
that St. Mary-of-the-Woods is 
firmly established-and for its 
own greater glory. 

The first chapel at St. 
Mary-of-the-Woods. 

TERRE HAUTE 

TERRE 
HAUTE 

SAVINGS 
BANK 

TERRE HAUTE, IND. 

THE PEERLESS 
WALL PAPER STORE 

ED. F. QUINLAN 

28 S. Fourth St. Terre Haute, lnd. 

!?JAB:~~~~- I 
DEPENDABLE CLOTHING FOR OVER 

75 YEARS 

TERRE HAUTE, IND. 

SNYDER'S ART STORE 
Pictures, Frames, Kodaks & Supplies 

A Complete Line of Catholic Greeting 
Cards and Supplies 

21 S. 7th St. Telephone C-5577 
TERRE HAUTE, IND. 

MILLER & YEAGER 
ARCHITECTS 

TERRE HAUTE, IND. 

TERRE HAUTE 
ENGRAVING CO. 

TERRE HAUTE, IND. 

OWSLEY 'S 
APPAREL SHOP 

"HOME OWNED" 
E. E. OWSLEY, Owner 

905 Wabash Ave. Terre Haute, Ind. 

Marshall Kirby & Co., 
Inc. 

FROZEN EGGS 
Phone CRAWFORD 4424 

525 S. First St. Terre Haute, Ind. 

Advance Electric Company 
DISTRIBUTING JOBBERS 

545 NORTH SIXTH STREET 

Terre Haute, Ind. 

SAYRE & CO. 
Bicycles and Sporting Goods 

Corner Fourth and Ohio Streets 

Terre Haute, Ind. 

EDW. S. LAMMERS 
PAINT & GLASS CO. 

Terre Haute, Ind. 



AURORA 

JOE CHRISMAN 
CLOTHIER 

PHONE 370-R AURORA, IND. 

BEN FRANKLIN 
STORE 

D. M . FEWELL, Owner 
216 MAIN ST. AURORA, IND. 

SHOP AT 

SOL VIGRAN'S STORE 
AND SA VE MONEY 

AURORA, IND. 

THE AURORA 
LUMBER CO. 

YARD ESTABLISHED 1848 

AURORA, IND. 

Dearborn Wholesale 
Distributing Co., Inc. 

PHONE 9 215 BRIDGEWAY ST. 

AURORA, IND. 

Robt. L. Johnston 
Frigidaire, Radio, Delco 

Light and Electric Appliances 

PHONE 93 333 SECOND STREET 

AURORA, IND. 

CRAWFORDSVILLE 

Mid-States 
Steel 

& . 
Wire 

Co. 
Crawfordsville, Ind. 

ELSTON BANK & 
TRUST CO. 

132 EAST MAIN STREET 

CHA WFORDSVILLE, IND. 

Crawfordsville Paint & 
Wall paper Co. 

221 EAST MAIN ST. 
CHA WFORDSVILLE, IND. 

CRAWFORDSVILLE 
SHALE BRICK CO. 

Manufacturers 
HIGH GRADE BUILDING BRICK 

CHA WFORDSVILLE, IND. 

United and Yellow 
Cab Co. 

B. C. Stewart Phone 63 

CHA WFORDSVILLE, IND. 
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Mount Saint Francis 

Continued from page 39 

The original building still 
stands, all the space being com­
pletely utilized. At present, its 
main floor houses the school 
library, chemical and physical 
laboratories, class rooms for the 
Junior college, a typewriting and 
mimeographing room, students' 
work shop, and storage rooms. 
Part of the second floor is de­
voted to the biological labora­
tory, the rest being divided into 
living quarters for the lay 
brothers, guests, and the do­
mestic help. 

Easily accessible from the 
main building by means of a 
covered archway is the beautiful 
chapel in the Romanesque style 
of architecture. With a seating 
capacity of five hundred, and 
with nine side chapels and altars, 
it is more than sufficiently large 
to meet the needs of the school. 
In its decorations it is calcu­
lated to foster and revivify t he 
outstanding events and the 
ideals of the F'ranciscan Order. 
Side and shrine altars &re dedi­
cated to Franciscan saints, and 
each richly stained glass win­
dow, surmounted by a depiction 
of one of the Conventual Popes, 
portrays some incident famous 
in Franciscan history. 

The sanctuary floor separates 
itself from the body of the 
chapel by means of a graceful 
elliptic curve, the same floor con­
taining all the altars. The main 
altar, a magnificent example of 
Italian art, is of vari-hued mar-­
ble and mosaic, enfiguring the 
Sacred Heart against a gold 
background, supporting the 
Mensa. 

Under the chapel is a com­
bination auditorium and recrea­
tion hall furnished with pool, 
ping-pong, card, and reading 
tables. At one end is a deep 
stage fully equipped for amateur 
theatricals. This auditorium is 
also equipped for motion picture 
projection. 

Excellent opportunities for 
healthful recreation are found 
by the students on the baseball 
diamonds, football fields, tennis 
courts, gymnasium, recreation 
rooms, and the lake. Longer 
recreation periods are usually 
spent in hikes or in the log cab­
ins which groups are allowed to 
build in the woods. 

THE curriculum and training 
of Mt. St. Francis Pro-Sem­

inary are designed to meet the 
needs of young men who desire 
to enter the novitiate of the 
Friars Minor Conventual of the 
Province of Our Lady of Con­
solation. The school desires to 
furnish the students with that 
knowledge which is necessary as 
a foundation on which to erect 
the superstructure of broad cul­
ture and knowledge requisite in 
the modern priest. At the same 
time it is the hope and desire 
of the faculty to foster, with 
learning, "a solid piety based 
on strong character, a lively 
enthusiasm for the spread of 
the Church, and an intense love 

for the ideals of St. Francis and 
of the Franciscan Order." 

The course of studies offered 
is considered as rich and varied 
as can profitably be offered to 
students of the minor seminary 
level. In the five years of high 
school and Junior college, stu­
dents pursue courses which 
include English grammar , rhet­
oric, prose and verse compo­
sition; Latin grammar and 
readings from classical and ec­
clesiastical authors; mathemat­
ics to trigonometry ; ancient, 
medieval, modern, American, 
and church history; general sci­
ence, biology, physiology, phy­
sics, chemistry, astronomy and 
geology; Greek grammar and 
authors; general psychology; 
and dogmatic religion. Extra­
curricular activities include: 
Dramatics, debating, intra-mur­
al athletics, and j ou:rnalistic 
work. Students are admitted 
and retained on a rigorously se­
lective basis, and after gradua­
tion are admitted to the noviti­
ate of the Minor Conventuals at 
Angola, Indiana. 

The Friars Minor Conventual 
who conduct Mt. St. Francis Pro­
Seminary are, along with the 
Friars Minor of the Leonine 
Union and the Friars Minor Ca­
puchin, one of the co-ordinate 
branches into which th,~ original 
Order of F'riar Minors stand 
today divided. The r.ailles Con­
ventual, Capuchin, Leonine Un­
ion distinguish the present day 
Friars Minors among them­
selves, each branch observing th2 
same Rule of St. Francis ac­
cording to its own Con titutions 
as approved by the Holy See. 
The initials, "O.M.C.", are used 
by the Conventuals aft er their 
names to distinguish them from 
the others, the O.F'.M.' and the 
O.M.Cap.'s. Because the Con­
ventuals are garbed in a black 
habit whereas the other two 
groups wear brown, the Con­
ventuals are sometimes known 
popularly as the "Black Fran­
ciscans." 

Corporately, the Friars Minor 
Conventuals were established in 
the United States when a group 
of the Fathers came from Ger­
many to Texas in 18S2 to take 
charge of a parish in Galveston. 
In 1872, a Province was canon­
ically established under the title 
of the Immaculate Conception, 
this being divided in 1905 into 
the Province of St. Anthony, 
and in 1926 into the P r ovince of 
Our Lady of Consolation. This 
latter Province embraces the 
Diocese of Indianapolis. In the 
three provinces, the friars num­
ber over five hundred professed 
members, and have established 
houses in thirty-two of the dio­
ceses in the United States and 
Canada. 

The teachers at Mt. St. Fran­
cis now number ten priests and 
one lay brother. The staff is 
headed by the Very Rev. An­
drew Maas, O.M.C., Rector, and 
the Rev. Stanislaus Ronnellen­
fitsch, O.M.C., Vice-rector. 
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Evansville 
U-Drive-It Co. 

Ford, Plymouth & Chryslers 

109 N. W. THIRD ST. 
(Between Sycamore and Vine Sts. ) 

STORAGE-CAR WASHING 

EVANSVILLE, IND. 

THE LINCOLN 
COTTON MILL CO. 

1401 PARK ST. 
EVANSVILLE, IND. 

MINIELLI & DEIG 
MONUMENTS 

Phone 2-0339 115 W . Missouri St. 

Evansville, Ind. 

Dr. R. A. Armstead's 
AGUE TONIC 

For Colds-Malaria-Chills and Fever 
At Your Druggists 

W. M. AKIN MEDICINE CO. 
EVANSVILLE, IND. 

I EM~R~c~!s':~E!YT?O· I 
1005 S. KENTUCKY A VE. 

Evansville, Ind. 

VON BEHREN 
MANUFACTURING 

COMPANY 
EVANSVILLE, IND. 

"SAY IT WITH FLOWERS" 

ZEIDLER FLORAL CO. 
" Always- At Your Service-All Ways" 

2019 N. Fulton Ave. Evansville, Ind. 

CHARLES F. BASLER 
Interior Decorator-Furnishings 

Our Specialty is 
ARTISTIC ROOM ARRA NGEMENT 

1023-1025 Main St. Phone 6425 
EVANSVILLE, IND. 

LAMEY'S FLOUR AND 
FEED 

(ZILIAK and SCHAFER) 

Evansville, Ind. 

WE FIT BY X-RAY 
SHOES OF QUALITY 

Priced from $4.00 to $12.50 

BAYNHAM SHOES 
323 Main Evansville: Ind. 

- USE-

"LITTLE LADY" BROOMS 
The Southwestern Broom 

Mfg. Co. 
EVANSVILLE, IND. 

PAUL H. SCHMIDT 
703 OLD NAT'L BANK 

EVANSVILLE, IND. 

I 
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EVANSVILLE 

MONSIGNOR F. P. RYVES 

The Centennial 
Anniversary 

of the 
Indianapolis 

Diocese 
In commemoration of the 100th Annivers, 
ary we realize that there have been many 
over the Diocese who have contributed 
much to the faith, but we here in Evans , 
ville are more familiar with the good which 
M onsignor Ryves has rendered in our com, 
munity. H e has contributed much to the 
spiritual welfare of the Diocese as well as 
to our civic welfare. H e has endeared 
himself t o hundreds not of his own faith 
and his good words and works shall live 
long in our memories . 
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known, is still in existence, and 
is published as a weekly maga­
zine. It was founded by Father 
Sorin, of the Congregation of 
Holy Cross, at Notre Dame, in 
1865. Father Gillespie, C.S.C., 
served as its first editor, the 
Rev. Daniel E. Hudson, C.S.C., 
took charge in 187 4, and the 
Rev. Patrick J. Carroll, C.S.C., 
is the present editor. 

It has been recorded that no 
Catholic paper existed in Indi­
anapolis until 1875, at which 
time, through the interest of the 
Rev. Denis O'Donaghue, a stock 
company was formed, and began 
the publication of The Central 
Catholic. This is thought to 
have been the initial adventure 
of a Catholic paper in the Dio­
cese of Indianapolis. 

Among the other early Cath­
olic publications in Indiana were 
The Scholastic Year, and The 
Notre Dame Scholastic, pub­
lished at Notre Dame in the 
years 1867 and 1869 respective­
ly; and The St. Meinrad's Raben, 
a devotional monthly published 
at St. Meinrad's in 1888; and St. 
Benedict's-Pamer, also a devo­
tional monthly published at St. 
Meinrad's in 1889. 

Bishop St. Palais died at St. 
Mary-of-the-Woods, June 28, 
1877, having attended the com­
mencement exercises there on 
the previous day. ·He was strick­
en with paralysis upon arising 
at five o'clock in the morning 
and died at four o'clock the same 
afternoon. The body was trans­
ferred to Vincennes June 30, and 
remained in St. Rose chapel un­
til July 3, when burial took place 
in the chapel basement of the 
Old Cathedral. 

It was said that special trains 
from Evansville, Terre Haute, 
Washington, and Indianapolis 
carried thousands to Vincennes 
for the funeral, and that the fu-

neral procession was the most 
imposing of any that Vincennes 
had ever witnessed. It included 
an Archbishop, four Bishops, a 
hundred priests, a number of 
Catholic societies, sixty-one car­
riages, the Sisters of Providence, 
pupils of St. Rose school, or­
phans, and a vast number of 
others. The hearse was drawn 
by six horses. 

UPON the appointment of the 
fifth Bishop of the Diocese, 

the Rt. Rev. Silas Marean Cha­
tard, it was directed that he fix 
his residence at Indianapolis, but 
the Cathedral and the title of 
the See were continued at Vin­
cennes. Later, by an Apostolic 
Brief dated March 23, 1898, the 
title of the Diocese was changed 
from the Diocese of Vincennes 
to the Diocese of Indianapolis. 
By the same Brief the patron 
saint of the Diocese remained 
St. Francis Xavier, the title of 
the Old Cathedral in Vincennes. 

The newly named Bishop had 
been serving as Rector of the 
American College in Rome for 
some years prior to his appoint­
ment. On his way to the Dio­
cese, Bishop Chatard was met in 
Cincinnati by the Very Rev. Au­
gust Bessonies, and the Rev­
erend Fathers Scheidler and 
Chasse~ It had been arranged 
that Vincennes· should· welcome · 
the new Bishop on August 11, 
St. Mary-of-the-Woods on Au­
gust 15, and Indianapolis on Au­
gust 18. He was enthroned in 
the Old Cathedral at Vincennes 
on August 11, 1878, by Arch­
bishop Purcell, of Cincinnati, 
who had also installed Bishop 
Brute in 1834. Thirty priests 
attended the ceremonies. He 
celebrated Pontifical High Mass 
for the first time in his Diocese 
on August 11. 

The people of Indianapolis 

The Old Cathedral library at Vincennes. It 
is the oldest library in Indiana, having 
been built soon after Bishop Brute's death. 
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were joyous over his coming, 
and, because of the central loca­
tion of his residence, the clergy 
of all parts of the Diocese found 
it much easier to visit their Su­
perior. Arriving in the city Au­
gust 17, 1878, Bishop Chatard 
was met at the depot by a vast 
crowd of people, and the so­
cieties and clergy of the city 
who conducted him in procession 
to his residence in G e o r g i a 
street, where James D. Williams, 
Governor of Indiana, and John 
Caven, mayor of Indianapolis, 
welcomed him to the state and 
city. 

Bishop Chatard celebrated 
Pontifical High Mass for the 
first time in Indianapolis, at St. 
John's church on August 18, 
1878. Just prior to this Mass 
the Very Rev. August Bessonies, 
Administrator of the Diocese, 
formally surrendered his admin­
istratorship into the care of 
Bishop Chatard. 

What was said to have been 
one of the grandest processions 
Indianapolis had ever witnessed 
marched that afternoon in the 
city's streets in honor of the new 
Bishop. On this occasion the 
Rev. Denis O'Donaghue wel­
comed him in the name of the 
societies of the city. 

Bishop Chatard plunged at 
once into the affairs of the Dio­
cese, and on November 11 of the 
same year he gathered his 
priests together in Indianapolis 
for the second synod of the Dio­
cese of Vincennes, which opened 
in St. John's church on Decem­
ber 10, about thirty-four years 
after the first was held by Bish­
op Hailandiere. Eighty-two of 
the one hundred and twenty­
seven priests of the Diocese in 
1878 attended the synod. 

"The Church of God," "The 
Clergy and the Laity," "The Sac­
rament of Matrimony," "Mixed 
Marriages," "Catholic Schools," 
"Secret Societies," and "Catholic 
Societies" were subjects treated 
in a pastoral letter issued by 
Bishop Chatard dated at Indian­
apolis, Feast of the Epiphany, 
1879. He shortly afterwards is­
sued a lengthy pastoral in behalf 
of purely Catholic marriages. 

The third Diocesan synod was 
held in Indianapolis November 
30, to December 2, 1880. 

THE Church in this section of 
the country was making rapid 

progress at this time, and judg­
ing from topics discussed in a 
pastoral letter which was pub­
lished at the close of the fourth 
Provincial Council of Cincin­
nati, March 19, 1882, and which 
Bishop Chatard attended, Ca­
tholicism was on the alert to 
combat the evils of the day. The 
topics discussed included "News­
papers," "Labor Unions," "Hu­
man Freedom," "Human Equal­
ity," "Bad Papers," "Music," 
"Secret Societies," "Catholic So­
cieties," "Marriage," "Divorce," 
"Mixed Marriages," "Civil Mar­
riage," "Authority," "Indian 
and Negro Missions," "Intem­
perance", and "Schools." 

Toward the close of the year 
1882, Bishop Chatard delivered 
the sermon when on November 
22, the remains of Bishop Hail­
andiere were brought to Vin­
cennes in the care of the Rev. E. 
Audran, a nephew, and were en-

EVANSVILLE tombed near the bodies of the i 
three other Bishops of the Dio- I 
cese, in the Old Cathedral. Bish- r============:1 
op Chatard's sermon was pub- H. R. Tilford 
lished soon after in pamphlet 
form. Bishop Elder, of Cincin- Monument Works 
nati, and Bishop McCloskey, of Evansville, Ind. 
Louisville, and twenty-seven 
priests were present at the en-
tombment. 

The SS. Peter and Paul Ca­
thedral in Indianapolis was built 
during Bishop Chatard's Epis­
copal career. Its cornerstone 
laying took place in the year 
1905, and dedicatory services 
were held in December, 1907. 
Hospitals also were established 
in Indianapolis, Terre Haute, 
and New Albany, and the Poor 
Clares were received into the 
Diocese, at Evansville. 

At the time of his death in 
1918, press accounts mentioned 
Bishop Chatard's silver jubilee 
circular letter which was issued 
March 26, 1903, about the time 
of the twenty-fifth anniversary 
of his consecration as Bishop, 
and which contained much his­
torical data. concerning t he Dio­
cese between the years 1878 and 
1903. The circular stated that 
from the total of one hundred 
and seventeen priests in the Dio-
cese in 1878, the year of Bishop 
C h a t a r d ' s consecrat ion, the 
number had grown, according to 
a directory of 1903, to one hun­
dred and ninety-six, an increase 
of seventy-nine priests in the 
period of twenty-five years. 

A check of the number of 
Catholics in the Diocese in 1902 
shows 104,495. The silver jubi­
lee circular also stated new 
schools for boys and girls were 
erected in twenty-two localities, 
and upwards of 14,564 children 
were receiving Catholic educa­
tion under the care of the Sis­
ters of Providence, the Francis­
can Sisters of Oldenburg, the 
Benedictine Sisters of Ferdi­
nand, the Ursuline Sisters, the 
Sisters of St. Joseph of Caron-
delet, the Servite Sisters, the 
Sisters of St. Francis, Milwau­
kee, and the Sisters of St. Fran­
cis, Syracuse. 

It also was recorded in the 
circular that twenty--three new 
churches were built in the Dio­
cese up to that time, 1903, in ad-
dition to the old ones that were 
rebuilt. The new ones were as 
follows : six in Indianapolis, 
three in Evansville, one each in 
Terre Haute, Poseyville, Schnell­
ville, Corydon, Linton, Clinton, 
Fontanette, Lexington, Ch~rles-
town, Bedford, Dubois, French 
Lick, Yankeetown, and one was 
dedicated at West Baden where 
it had been donated by a Mr. St. 
Clair. 

Mention was also made in the 
press at the time of the Bishpp's 
death, of his first pastoral letter 
which was sent from Rome in 
1878 on the day of his consecra­
tion, in which he made a strong 
plea for Catholic education, and 
which was noted by the press 
as having "borne great fruit in 
forty years." 

Bishop Chatard's golden jubi­
lee of ordination to the priest-
hood was quietly observed in 
1912. 

The reception of Holy Com­
munion and special prayers of 
the people of the Diocese were 
asked by Bishop Chartrand for 
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the aged Bishop's anniversary, 
and an autographed letter for 
the occasion from the Holy Fa­
ther to Bishop Chatard was re­
ceived at the Bishop's House. 

THE death of Bishop Chatard 
occurred e a r 1 y Saturday 

morning, September 7, 1918, at 
the Bishop's House, Fourteenth 
and Meridian streets, Indian­
apolis. He was nearly eighty­
four, and had served as Bishop 
of the Diocese for forty years. 

Bishop Chatard's funeral, the 
first to be held for a Bishop in 
Indianapolis, was conducted at 
SS. Peter and Paul Cathedral 
and was attended by two Arch­
bishops, the Most Rev. Henry 
Moeller, Archbishop of Cincin­
nati, and the Most Rev. John J. 
Glennon, Archbishop of St. 
Louis. The Rt. Rev. Owen B. 
Corrigan, of Baltimore, Mary­
land, represented His Eminence, 
James Cardinal Gibbons. 
There were sixteen Bishops, two 
Abbots, and an estimated crowd 
of more than three hundred 
priests; and it was said that rep­
resentatives of Religious Orders 
from all parts of the country 
also were present. State and 
city officials were there. Bishop 
Francis, of the Episcopal 
Church, was among the promi­
nent persons in attendance. 

The music at the Mass, which 
was rendered by the regular 
male choir of the Cathedral, was 
the famous Requiem composed 
by Monsignor Lorenzo Perosi, 
director of music at the Vatican, 
and which was sung at the time 
of the death of Pope Leo XIII. 
The rendition of this music at 
Bishop Chatard's death was said 
to have been its first in Indiana. 
The Rev. Francis H. Gavisk, 
Chancellor of the Diocese, pas­
tor of St. John's church in In­
dianapolis, and for years the 
Bishop's secretary, delivered the 
sermon. His remains were in­
terred in the Cathedral at Indi­
anapolis. 

Born in Baltimore, Maryland, 
December 13, 1834, Bishop Cha­
tard was graduated from Mt. St. 
Mary's College, Maryland, in 
June, 1853. He had studied 
medicine in Baltimore, but in 
1857 decided to study for the 
priesthood. He was an alumnus 
of the Urban College, Rome, 
where he was ordained priest 
June 14, 1862, by Cardinal Pa­
trizzi. He served as vice-rector 
of the American College, Rome, 
from 1862 to 1868; and as rec­
tor for ten years, from 1868 to 
1878. He was named Bishop of 
Vincennes March 26, 1878, at 
which time he took the name of 
Francis Silas. He was conse­
crated in Rome on May 12, 1878, 
by Cardinal Franchi, who was 
assisted by Monsignori Santori, 
Bishop of Fano, Italy, and Bish­
op Agnette, president of the 
Academia Ecclesiastica, at 
Rome. He was enthroned in the 
Cathedral at Vincennes, August 
11, 1878. 

Among the important cele­
brations in the Diocese up to 
this time was the previously 
stated silver jubilee of Bishop 
Chatard's consecration as Bish­
op. This event opened on Sun­
day, May 10, 1903, with a pro­
gram in Tomlinson hall, Indi­
anapolis. A. M. Sweeney, who 

acted as chairman, presented 
greetings of the Catholic laity, 
and addresses were made by 
Catholic laymen of the Diocese. 
The program also included a ju­
bilee song by a children's chorus 
of six hundred voices, and selec­
tions by the Boys' K. F. M. Brig­
ade band. 

Two days later a Pontifical 
High Mass was celebrated by 
Bishop Chatard in St. John's 
church, in the presence of His 
Eminence, James Cardinal Gib­
bons, of Baltimore ; the Most 
Reverend Archbishops Henry 
Elder, Cincinnati; John Ireland, 
St. Paul; Patrick N. Riordan, 
San Francisco ; John J. Keane, 
Dubuque; John M. Farley, New 
York, and James E. Quigley, 
Chicago; twenty-two Bishops; 
three Abbots; and a number of 
monsignori. Archbishop Quig­
ley delivered the sermon. The 
music at the Mass was rendered 
by the united choirs of St. 
John's, Cathedral, St. Patrick's, 
Sacred Heart, and Holy Cross 
Churches, with a hundred voices 
under the direction of Professor 
Emil H. Ginnsz, with orchestral 
accompaniment and Professor 
E. J. Schonacker at the organ. 

The priests of the Diocese 
gave a banquet in honor of Bish­
op Chatard and his guests at the 
Columbia Club the same after­
noon, at which the speakers in­
cluded Cardinal Gibbons, who 
addressed the assembly, the 
Very Rev. Anthony Scheideler, 
Vicar General, who spoke in be­
half of the clergy, and other 
Archbishops, Bishops and 
priests who gave toasts. 

QNE by one the various Cath-
olic organizations were be­

coming known in the Diocese, 
and, according to available rec­
ords, the Ancient Order of Hi­
bernians was probably the first 
well known group to form in the 
state. It was organized as far 
as can be definitely ascertained, 
at Knightsville, Clay county, in 
1871, under the authprity of 
Captain Kennedy, of Pittsburg, 
by Thomas McGovern, who was 
the first state delegate of that 
Order. Charles Sheridan served 
as the first state secretary, and 
John Smith as the first state 
treasurer. 

The Ladies' Auxiliary of the 
Ancient Order of Hibernians 
was organized in Indianapolis 
by a Mr. O'Reilly, of Terre 
Haute, on May 9, 1896. Wheth­
er or not divisions had been 
formed in other cities of Indiana 
prior to this time has not been 
definitely learned. However, an 
historical record of Catholicity 
in Indiana says that the Ladies' 
Auxiliary was organized at 
Terre Haute prior to the state 
convention held there in 1896, 
but it does not state in which 
month. It was under the lead­
ership of Mrs. P. H. McN elis. 

The Catholic Order of Forest­
ers in Indiana will be fifty-one 
years old in the fall of the pres­
ent year (1935) , the Order hav­
ing been organized in St. John, 
Indiana, by the Rt. Rev. Michael 
Berg, who was at that time pas­
tor of the church at Schererville, 
Indiana. J. H. Bueter, of Fort 
Wayne, is at this time (1935) 
the State Chief Ranger. The 
beginning of the Catholic Order 

.. 



of Foresters in the United States 
dates back to May 24, 1883, in 
Holy Trinity parish, Chicago. 

The Indianapolis Council of 
the Knights of Columbus, found­
ed on June 25, 1899, was the first 
of the sixty-four councils of that 
Order organized in the State of 
Indiana. William J. Mooney, 
who was among the first officers, 
was called then the Territorial 
Deputy. . 

Indiana saw the coming of the 
Daughters of Isabella with the 
organization of the Mother The­
odore Circle, in Indianapolis, on 
September 26, 1915. Mrs. John 
W. Trenck, first Regent of this 
Circle, also served as the first 
State Regent in Indiana. Among 
the early activities of this group 
were the Day Nursery, which 
was operated for a time in St. 
John's school, and the St. Eliza­
beth's Home. 

About twenty years ago the 
Catholic Daughters of America 
organized in Indiana at Loogoo­
tee. The Indianapolis Court is 
said to have been organized 
about the year 1928, with Miss 
Bess M. Bigane as its first Re­
gent. The first Junior Court of 
the Catholic Daughters of Amer­
ica in Indiana was organized 
about 1930, in Indianapolis. 
Miss Mary McCrossen was the 
first chairman. . The organiza­
tion now numbers close to five 
hundred members in the State of 
Indiana. 

Another of the older organi­
zations in Indiana is the St. Jo­
seph's State League, whose 
membership is composed of Ger­
man men and young men 
groups in parishes throughout 
the state. It was organized in 
Indiana in March, 1893, at Fort 
Wayne. 

The Catholic Woman's Union, 
an organization of Catholic 
women's groups from German 
parishes was formed in Indiana 
in 1921 at Lafayette. Mrs. 
George Kunkle served as its first 
president. 

The Knights of St. John, a 
fraternal organization, pledged 
to charity towards its members, 
insisting upon Catholic practice 
as a condition of membership, 
and seeking to enhance the so­
le:rimi ty of church functions by 
appearing at them in uniform, 
had a Commandery in New Al­
bany and Evansville and per­
haps other cities in the Diocese 
as early as fifty years ago. A 
Commandery was founded in 
Richmond through the efforts of 
a Colonel Wolf, of Cincinnati, 
in July, 1910, and has enjoyed a 
steady growth in that city. 

The St. Meinrad alumni asso­
ciation which held its eighth an­
nual meeting in September, 
1934, was attended by priests 
from Indiana, Kentucky, Ohio, 
Pennsylvania, Nebraska, Iowa 
and Illinois. It has been said 
that the association had made 
several attempts to organize, 
having started many years ago, 
before a permanent body was 
finally formed. 

THE Diocese of Indianapolis 
knew the work of the Society 

for the Propagation of the Faith 
as early as sixty-five years ago. 
In view of the fact that the First 
Plenary Council of Baltimore 
held in the year 1852, had al-
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ready decreed that the Society 
be fostered in all Dioceses, it is 
not to be wondered at that there 
were many parishes in the Dio­
cese of Vincennes in which ac­
cording to the personal knowl­
edge of the present (1935) Dio­
cesan Director, the Rt. Rev. 
Francis A. Roell, the work was 
introduced, as early as 1870. 
The alms collected were sent di­
rect to Lyons, France, and the 
bi-monthly magazine "Annals" 
came to pastors in the French 
and German languages for free 
distribution among the mem­
bers. Early in the last decade 
of the nineteenth century, Bish­
op Chatard urged all pastors to 
raise funds for the Society for 
the Propagation of the Faith by 
at least placing a contribution 
box in their churches to receive 
alms. 

The Archbishops of the coun­
try at their annual meeting in 
1897 took steps to organize the 
work on a better and wider ba­
sis by appointing the Very Rev. 
Dr. Magnien, S.S., National Di­
rector for the United States, and 
opening a central office in Balti­
more. He was assisted by the 
Rev. Henry Granjon, of the Bal­
timore Seminary, who became 
Bishop of Tucson, Arizona, in 
1900. His successor was the 
Rev. John Freri, D.D., of the 
Boston Ecclesiastical Seminary. 
Among the first Bishops to ap­
point directors was Bishop Cha­
tard, who early in 1899, appoint­
ed the Rt. Rev. August Besson­
ies, V.G., who continued to look 
after the work until the time of 
his death, February 22, 1901. A 
month later the present director, 
the Rt. Rev. Francis A. Roell, 
was appointed. When the reor­
ganization of the Society took 
place throughout the United 
States Monsignor Roell was re­
appointed by Bishop Chartrand, 
March 17, 1927, and by the Most 
Rev. Joseph E. Ritter, Bishop 
of Indianapolis, in June, 1934. 
Headquarters of the society for 
the Diocese of Indianapolis have 
therefore been in Indianapolis 
from 1898 to March, 1901, and 
since then in Richmond. 

It might be of interest to note 
at this point when some of the 
parish societies were organized 
in the Diocese. The Third Order 
of St. Francis was established at 
Sacred Heart church, Indian­
apolis, as early as 1877, by the 
Franciscan Fathers of the Sa­
cred Heart Province, whose 
headquarters then were in Illi­
nois, but are now in Chicago. It 
has not been ascertained wheth­
er or not this was the first or­
ganization of the Third Order of 
St. Francis in this Diocese, how­
ever, because the Franciscan 
Fathers from the Cincinnati 
Province came to the Diocese a 
number of years earlier, and it is 
thought they might have had the 
Third Order already started in 
another part of the Diocese. 

The Third Order of St. Dom­
inic was organized in St. Brid­
get's parish, Indianapolis, in 
August, 1900, or thereabouts. 
The Rev. John F. McShane has 
served as Diocesan Director 
since 1908. 

The League of the Sacred 
Heart was organized by the Rt. 
Rev. Francis H. Gavisk, pastor 
of St. John's church, Indianap-
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olis, more than fifty years ago. 
Monsignor Gavisk, the first Dio­
cesan Director for the league, 
served in this capacity for many 
years. 

The Confraternity of the Holy 
Rosary was canonically erected 
in Indianapolis during a Mission 
in St. Bridget's church, in May, 
1935. This is said to be the first 
parish where the confraternity 
has been erected in the vicinity 
of Indianapolis, if not in the 
Diocese. 

The Sodality of the Blessed 
Virgin, which now has a branch 
in possibly every parish in the 
Diocese, is thought to have been 
in existence at St. John's, Indi­
anapolis, as early as seventy­
five years ago. Whether or not 
this was the first organization of 
the sodality in the Diocese is not 
definitely known at this writing. 

The Holy Name Society in the 
Diocese of Indianapolis is about 
fifty years old. 

A group known as the Young 
Men's Institute, which came to 
the State of Indiana in 1894, or­
ganized its first Council, Mar­
quette Council, No. 195, in Wash­
ington, Daviess county. The 
Brownson Council, No. 272, was 
the first established in Indian­
apolis with William J. Mooney 
as its first president. The exact 
dates of organization are not at 
hand. 

MEN, women, and especially 
the little children, as well as 

the priests and prelates in the 
Diocese of Indianapolis, had, at 
the time of Bishop Chatard's 
death, already become well ac­
quainted with the zealous labors 
of their youthful Coadjutor 
Bishop, the Most Rev. Joseph 
Chartrand, who became the 
sixth head of the See of Indian­
apolis on September 7, 1918. 

Bishop Chartrand's duties in 
assisting the venerable Bishop 
with matters pertaining to the 
Diocese, however, dates back to 
his consecration on September 
15, 1910. He was named titular 
Bishop of Flavius and Coadjutor 
to the Bishop of Indianapolis 
just a quarter of a century ago 
-on July 27, 1910. 

The dawn of a new era broke 
upon the Christian world about 
that time, when Pope Pius X, by 
the decree "Quam Singulari," 
August 15, 1910, recommended 
that the First Holy Communion 
of children should not be de­
ferred too long after they had 
reached the age of discretion. 
The same Holy Father advised 
as early as December, 1905, that 
the faithful receive Holy Com­
munion frequently; if possible, 
daily. 

On January 6, 1911, a letter 
jointly signed by the Archbishop 
of Cincinnati, Bishop Chatard, 
and the other seven Bishops of 
the Province of Cincinnati, in 
which the Diocese of Indianapo­
lis is located, was published. 
The letter carried an explana­
tion of the decree on First Holy 
Communion, as well as the duty 
of parents, and those in charge 
of the children. 

A few weeks previous to this 
time an article, published be­
neath the name of the Rev. J. P. 
McNicholas, O.P., dealt with the 
serious problem of preparing for 
their First Holy Communion the 

vast number of children ranging 
from the average age at that 
time, which was, according to 
Father McNicholas' article, in 
many places from ten and one­
half to eleven years, down to 
seven years or less. These little 
ones who would have formed 
First Holy Communion classes 
from the year 1911 to about 1914 
or 1915, were all to be prepared 
and would, in many parishes, 
compose classes four or five 
times the ordinary size. 

The zeal with which Bishop 
Chartrand entered into the work 
of restoring this custom of an 
early First Communion, a prac­
tice not really new in the 
Church, together with the enor­
mousness of his task, can best 
be estimated by a review of the 
Diocesan statistics published~ at 
the time of his consecration. 

The Catholic population of 
the Diocese in 1910 numbered 
119,562 souls; there were one 
hundred and sixty-nine Diocesan 
priests, and sixty who were 
members of Religious Orders; 
sixty-five students in the semi­
nary for secular clergy, and 
forty-two students in seminaries 
for Religious Orders; one hun­
dred and forty-three churches 
with resident pastors, and fifty­
two missions ; one hundred and 
eighty men who were members 
of Religious Orders, and a thou­
sand seven hundred seventy-four 
women in Religious Orders; one 
hundred and twelve churches 
with parish schools ; and more 
than sixteen thousand children 
under Catholic educational con­
trol. 

BISHOP CHARTRAND'S ef-
forts in promoting devotion 

to the Blessed Sacrament and 
his fame as a speaker were well 
known before he became Coadju­
tor Bishop. His first sermon, 
after consecration, delivered to 
his congregation at the Cathe­
dral on Sunday, October 9, was, 
according to a press report, "on 
his favorite theme-'The Sacra­
ment of the Holy Eucharist' ." 

The simplicity with which he 
spoke to the little ones of his 
flock was most childlike and 
touching. He would tell them 
of the child saints such as St. 
Agnes and St. Pancratious. He 
fought steadily for personal 
sanctity in the lives of his peo­
ple. On one occasion, at Con­
firmation time, he was quoted as 
having said, "The most powerful 
preacher is not the Bishop nor 
the priest, but the Catholic lay­
man who preaches a continual 
sermon by the exemplary life he 
leads." 

The preparation of children 
for Holy Communion went on 
steadily with the result that ex­
tremely large numbers of chil­
dren in all parishes of the Dio­
cese made up the First Holy 
Communion classes in the year 
1911. In some cases these 
classes numbered as many as 
two hundred and even more. 
Where the number of children 
was very large two and even 
three classes were prepared for 
the reception of the Blessed 
Sacrament. 

In one parish of the Diocese, 
old St. Mary's, Indianapolis, 
First Communion day that year, 
while presenting so much happi-



ness in itself, was overshadowed 
with the thought that this was 
the last First Holy Communion 
ceremony to be held in the old 
church building. Here for fifty­
two years countless solemnities 
had taken place, and the parish­
ioners were soon to depart for 
their new church which then 
was under construction. First 
Holy Communion day in another 
parish of the Diocese, Holy 
Rosary, also in Indianapolis, 
marked an epochal event-the 
breaking of the ground for a 
new church for the only Italian 
parish in the Diocese. 

Confirmation classes likewise 
were exceptionally large in 1911, 
numbering in some places two, 
three, and in one recorded case 
about five hundred. Early in 
June of that year Bishop Chart­
rand traveled much about the 
Diocese and hardly a day passed 
when he did not administer the 
Sacrament to several classes. 

While these conditions con­
cerning Holy Communion might 
naturally be understood to have 
existed in every Diocese that 
year, the people of the Diocese 
of Indianapolis experienced an 
additional joy in the knowledge 
that Bishop Chartrand was be­
coming known as the "Bishop of 
the Blessed Sacrament." Some­
times missionary priests who 
came into the various parishes 
complimented the people upon 
this fact, and upon the large 
number of communicants. Fig­
ures published in January, 1918, 
showed that 205,200 persons re­
ceiv_ed Holy Communion at the 
Cathedral, a weekly average of 
3,946, during the previous year. 
This was an increase of about 
27,000 over that shown for the 
year before. 

BISHOP CHARTRAND'S ser-
mon's at Forty Hours Adora­

tion services were not entirely 
confined to the Cathedral, but 
were delivered in other parishes 
as well. 

As a church speaker Bishop 
Chartrand's talents covered a 
wide range. He delivered an 
address at the commencement 
exercises at the University of 
Notre Dame on June 11, 1917, 
the climaxing event of the dia­
mond jubilee celebration there. 
His sermon at the field Mass on 
the occasion of the dedication of 
the Knights of Columbus build­
ing at Fort Benjamin Harrison 
on Sunday, July 21, 1918, con­
tained thoughts that were in 
reality gems. While delivered 
at a time when the United States 
was at war, one of his state­
ments made on this occasion 
could well be fitted to peace. 
"Patriotism," he said, "is nat­
ural to man. The absence of 
patriotism points to perversion 
of man's nature. Patriotism, 
however, is not fostered by a 
gospel of hate, but attains its 
full power and beauty when 
men's minds are enlightened and 
men's hearts are generous." He 
made an address of welcome at 
the opening of the Regional con­
vention of the Priests' Eucharis­
tic League at St. Mary-of-the­
w oods in September, 1924, 
where more than three hundred 
prelates and priests were pres­
ent. In October of the same 
year he preached in the Church 
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of St. Susanna in Rome. He de­
livered a sermon on the Holy 
Eucharist at St. Thomas Ac­
quinas church, Chicago, Sunday, 

·June 20, 1926, the opening day 
of the twenty-eighth interna­
tional Eucharistic Congress in 
that city; and the fourth an­
nual regional convention of the 
Priests' Eucharistic L e a g u e 
which was held at Buffalo, N. Y., 
in September, 1927, again heard 
Bishop Chartrand. 

EXTENSIVE church building 
was carried on in the Diocese 

during the past twenty-five 
years. Since the year 1910 nine 
entirely new parishes were 
founded, according to records. 
Five of these were in Indian­
apolis: St. Ann, 1916; St. Joan 
of Arc, 1920; St. Rita, 1919; St. 
Roch, 1922; and St. Theresa, 
1925. Two were in Terre Haute: 
St. Margaret Mary, 1920; and 
Sacred Heart, 1922. One in 
Evansville, St. Benedict, 1912; 
and one in West Terre Haute, 
St. Leonard, 1911. 

Countless dedications took 
place. In addition to the newly 
formed parishes, a great number 
of · churches were rebuilt and 
remodeled. Included among the 
dedications were: St~ Henry's 
church at St. Henry, on July 16, 
1911, the Rt. Rev. Athanasius 
Schmitt, Abbot of St. Meinrad 
Abbey, having blessed the 
church ; Holy Rosary, Indian­
apolis, the first Italian church 
to be erected in the State of 
Indiana, was dedicated by 
Bishop Chartrand in April, 1912; 
and the new St. Mary church, 
Indianapolis, was dedicated in 
September of that year. Among 
the other church dedications in 
1912 were: St. Leonard, West 
Terre Haute, and St. Joseph, 
Terre Haute. 

St. Mary's, Richmond, and St. 
Francis de Sales, Indianapolis, 
were among the churches dedi­
cated in 1913 by Bishop Chart­
rand. The new St. Vincent hos­
pital, Indianapolis, was opened 
in February of that year, and 
on July 16 of the same year the 
cornerstone for St. Francis hos­
pital, Indianapolis, was laid. St. 
Francis was dedicated on July 5 
of the following year. 

Among other dedications dur­
ing 1914 was St. Benedict 
church, Evansville, on April 19. 
The St. John rectory was re­
modeled, as well as the Chan­
cery offices, Indianapolis, in 
1914. St. Martin church, Law­
renceburg, and Our Lady of 
Lourdes church, Indianapolis, 
were dedicated in 1915, in No­
vember and December respec­
tively. Other churches dedicated 
about this time were: Sacred 
H e a r t , Schnellville, Dubois 
county, October 24, 1916; a 
chapel for the new parish of St. 
Ann, Mars Hill, Indianapolis, on 
Sunday, January 14, 1917; and 
the new Church of St. Bernard, 
at Rockport, September 2, 1918. 

The original chapel of the 
Cathedral parish, Indianapolis, 
completed in 1892 when that 
parish was founded and which 
served as the parish church until 
the erection of the Cathedral, 
was completely remodeled in 
1918. St. Rita church, Indian­
apolis, the only church espe­
cially for colored Catholics in 
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the Diocese, was dedicated Au­
gust 3, 1919, by Bishop Chart­
rand. 

Among other dedications re­
corded was St. Joan of Arc 
church, Indianapolis, on July 17, 
1921. The St. Elizabeth's Home, 
Indianapolis, was opened No­
vember 6, 1921. Bishop Chart­
rand officiated at the consecra­
tion of the altar in the newly 
erected Chapel of the Immacu­
late Conception academy at Old­
enburg in May, 1922. The new 
church and school of the St. 
Charles Bo'rromeo parish, Bloom­
ington, was dedicated on June 
25, 1922, and Holy Cross church, 
Indianapolis, was dedicated the 
following month. On November 
24, 1922, Bishop Chartrand dedi­
cated the new cloistered monas­
tery of Our Lady of Mount Car­
mel, in New Albany. Among the 
churches dedicated during the 
year 1923 were St. Roch's, In­
dianapolis, and Sacred Heart, 
Terre Haute. The new Sacred 
Heart school, Terre Haute, was 
dedicated July 13, 1924; St. 
Ann, New Castle, also in the 
same month, and St. Joseph, 
Evansville, the following month. 

IN addition to officiating at 
· practically every dedicatory 

service himself, it was also the 
custom of Bishop Chartrand in 
a great many cases to deliver 
the sermon on these occasions. 

Among other dedications were 
Holy Rosary church, Indianapo­
lis, May 3, 1925; St. Vincent 
church, Prescott, September 6, 
1926; St. Therese, or the Church 
of the Little Flower, Indianapo­
lis, said to be the first parish 
church in the world placed un­
der the patronage of this saint, 
was dedicated September 12, 
1926; and St. Ann, Mars Hill, 
Indianapolis, September 5, 1927. 

The new St. Elizabeth's Home, 
replacing the one destroyed by 
fire in December, 1925, was sol­
emnly blessed by Bishop Chart­
rand on May 22, 1927. The 
dedication of the new Monastery 
chapel of Mt. St. Francis at 
Floyds Knobs took place in May, 
1926. 

St. Benedict's $250,000 church 
in Evansville was dedicated on 
March 18, 1928. The new church 
for St. Patrick"s parish, Indian­
apolis, erected in the place of the 
one destroyed by the work of a 
firebug in June, 1927, was dedi­
cated February 10, 1929; Sacred 
Heart church, Evansville, April 
14, 1929; and the new St. Joan 
of Arc church, Indianapolis, on 
December 15 of the same year. 
St. Benedict's parish, Terre 
Haute, also witnessed the dedi­
cation of its church December 
13, 1931, on the site of the 
church destroyed by fire July 20, 
1930. The St. Margaret Mary 
Hospital, Batesville, was blessed 
by Bishop Chartrand in October, 
1932; and St. Croix' dedication 
took place in June, 1933. 

Mass was celebrated for the 
first time in the new Catholic 
chapel at the Indiana Reforma­
tory, then located at Jefferson­
ville, on August 20, 1911. Up 
to this time the Catholic inmates 
worshiped in the main chapel at 
the institution, where there were 
no provisions for the proper ob­
servance of Catholic rites. The 
work of installing the altar, 

chancel, and seats was done by 
the inmates. 

DOTTED here and there over 
the territory of the Diocese 

of Indianapolis are many beau­
tiful shrines, some of which are 
nearly a century old. In many 
instances these shrines are 
within or near churches, some 
being of the rugged stone grotto 
type and others are only little 
wayside devotional places. Per­
haps the oldest of these is the 
crypt beneath the Old Cathedral 
at Vincennes, built in 1840, one 
year after the death of Bishop 
Brute. Historic paintings on the 
age-old walls and ceiling keep a 
silent vigil with the bodies of 
the four Bishops buried there. 

An old cross, erected in 1847, 
near St. Joseph church, Jasper, 
is the fulfillment of a promise 
made on a storm-tossed vessel 
by one of a party of eleven 
pioneer families who were on 
their way from Germany to 
America. The shell chapel of 
St. Ann at St. Mary-of-the­
w oods, the grotto of Our Lady 
of Lourdes there, and also one 
at St. Francis hospital, Indian­
apolis; a grotto at St. Boniface 
church, Evansville; two large 
wooden crucifixes, one in front 
of the Chapel of Our Lady of 
the Springs, F 'rench Lick, which 
was erected in honor of the J ubi­
lee Year in Rome, 1933-34, and 
the other on the campus at 
Ladywood school, Indianapolis, 
which bears an inscription, 
"Holy Year 1933-1934, com­
memorating the nineteenth cen­
tenary of the crucifixion and 
death of Jesus Christ," are only 
a few of the many shrines in the 
Diocese. 

The Chapel of Our Lady of 
Monte Cassino, which stands in 
a rustic setting on a hill-top near 
the St. Meinrad Seminary, is a 
place of pilgrimage for people 
from many parts of the Diocese. 
Its history dates back to the 
early days of the Benedictines 
when the priests, brothers, and 
students sought out the spot for 
their recreation hour. It was 
on one of these occasions that 
a student, in the year 1857, hav­
ing carried a picture of the 
Blessed Virgin to this spot, 
there erected a shrine in a niche 
hewn out of the trunk of an oak 
tree and placed a kneeling bench 
before it. This act of devotion 
laid the foundation for an his­
toric spot in the Diocese. 

EDUCATIONAL progress in 
the Diocese of Indianapolis 

during the past quarter of a 
century is best shown in a 
roughly sketched account of the 
erection and dedication of a 
large number of the schools, 
which took place during this 
period, some of which were 
newly founded and a great num­
ber of others which were rebuilt. 

Contracts for two new build­
ings at St. Mary-of-the-Woods, 
the Anne Therese Guerin hall 
and the Conservatory of Music, 
were awarded in August, 1911. 
The buildings were dedicated on 
October 12, 1913. The corner­
stone for the St. Mary academy, 
Indianapolis, was laid September 
8, 1912; St. Andrew's new 
school, Richmond, was dedicated 
August 17, 1913; and a new de-
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partment of social studies was 
opened at St. Meinrad's, also 
during that year, as a part of 
the world-wide movement in the 
Church to accomplish social re­
form t hrough the application of 
the Church's teachings regard­
ing society. 

The completion of the new 
library building at St. Meinrad 
Abbey, and the beginning of a 
new Seminary building there 
took place in 1914. October, 
1915, saw the dedication <;>f the 
new Sacred Heart high school in 
Indianapolis. No schools were 
dedicated in 1916. A four-year 
high school course for boys was 
opened in 1917 at St. John's, 
Indianapolis, under the direction 
of the Brothers of the Sacred 
Heart, who had previously con­
ducted a business course at the 
school, and who were for many 
years in charge of the boys' 
school there. The new school in 
St. Anthony's parish, Morris, 
was dedicated in September, 
1917 . 

THE silver jubilee of Bishop 
Chartrand's ordination, which 

fell on September 24, 1917, 
marked an important turning 
point in the progress of educa­
tion in the Diocese. There was 
no celebration. The Bishop said 
his Mass as usual at 5 o'clock on 
that morning, at which the 
Cathedral choir, as a surprise, 
r endered a program of music. 
More than two thousand persons 
r eceived Holy Comm union at the 
early Masses on that day for his 
intention, and at the 8 o'clock 
Mass the boys and girls of the 
parish also received. A number 
of priests attended a dinner at 
the Bishop's House, and greet­
ings by letter and wire were re­
ceived from over the state and 
country. These came from 
members of the hierarchy, 
clergy, and laity. 

The people of the Cathedral 
parish, who had been working 
quietly, raised a fund of approxi­
mately $50,000 for a Cathedral 
high school for boys, as a jubilee 
gif t t o Bishop Chartrand. This 
idea of a high school · for 
boys, always uppermost in the 
Bishop's mind, was realized with 
t he opening of a free Cathedral 
high school at Fourteenth and 
Pennsylvania. streets, Indian­
apolis, on September 12, 1918, 
by the Brothers of Holy Cross 
from Notre Dame. Indiana.polis 
t hen had three free Catholic 
high schools for boys. 

In May, 1922, the property on 
t he northwest corner of Four­
teenth and Meridian streets was 
purchased for a new building 
for the rapidly growing four­
year old Cathedral high school. 
Construction work began in 
July, and the first building was 
opened, with eight classrooms 
completed, in September. 

A million dollar drive con­
ducted from November 16 to 29, 
1924, assured the erection of the 
present Cathedral high school 
building, the work on which 
started in July, 1926. The school 
was dedicated by Bishop Chart­
rand on Sunday, September 11, 
1927. 

THE Gibault Home for boys, 
near Terre Haute, was dedi­

cated on October 9, 1921. 
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The school and temporary 
church building in Holy Name 
parish, Indianapolis, was dedi­
cated November 5, 1922; and St. 
Catherine school on September 
3 of that year. The new school 
of St. Patrick, Indianapolis, was 
dedicated on February 11, 1923; 
and the dedication of St. Patrick 
school, T~rre Haute, took place 
in November, 1923. A new 
$100,000 school building in St. 
Boniface parish, Evansville, was 
completed in Janua.ry, 1924; 
and the new Reitz Memorial 
Catholic high school, also in 
Evansville, of which Francis 
Joseph Reitz was the donor, was 
dedicated by Bishop Chartrand 
in January, 1925. 

The year 1926 witnessed the 
cornerstone laying and the com­
pletion of many schools through­
out the Diocese, among these be­
ing : The Washington Catholic 
high school dedication in June; 
the cornerstone for the new 
Holy Trinity school, Indianapo­
lis, as well as for St. Gabriel 
Catholic high school, Conners­
ville, both in July; and St. Mary 
school, Rushville, which was 
dedicated September 19. 

Ladywood school for girls was 
opened in Indianapolis in Sep­
tember, 1926, the property hav­
ing been purchased in N ovem­
ber, 1925, by the Sisters of 
Providence; and another Indi­
anapolis school, St. Philip Neri, 
was dedicated on October 17 in 
that year. The addition to the 
St. Mary academy, Indianapolis, 
representing an expenditure of 
approximately $90,000, was 
opened in February, 1927, and 
blessed by Bishop Chartrand. 
In April of the same year the 
Gibault high school, and St. Vin­
cent's school, the Diocesan or­
phanage, were dedicated. Other 
dedications in 1927 were the new 
Holy Trinity school, Indian­
apolis, on June 26; St. Gabriel 
school, Connersville, on October 
16 ; and St. Lawrence school, 
Lawrenceburg, on November 20. 

School building slumped dur­
ing the years 1928, 1929, 1930, 
and 1931, but in 1932 St. An­
thony school, Evansville, was 
dedicated; and in 1934 St. Am­
brose school, in Seymour, was 
re-dedicated. The Jasper acade­
my, a prep school for boys, which 
had been conducted by the Bene­
dictine Fathers at Jasper for 
many years, was moved to 
Aurora, Illinois, in the summer 
of 1933. It is now known as 
Marmion. The academy was 
sold to a society called Little 
Work of Divine Providence, 
Bishop Chartrand h a v i n g 
granted permission in N ovem­
ber, 1933, for the establishment 
of their Order in the Diocese of 
Indiana polis. 

St. Meinrad's opened an Ob­
late school for junior Brothers 
in September, 1933. It was dur­
ing the joint Episcopal admin­
istration of Bishop Chatard and 
Bishop Chartrand that the 
Diocesa.n School Board started 
to operate. The efficiency of 
the school system in the Diocese 
has been proved many times by 
the victory of its pupils in state 
contests. As early as 1911 a 
pupil of St. Joseph's school, 
Jasper, was the winner in a 
state-wide spelling contest. The 
successful student, Miss Ardella 

EVANSVILLE 

St. Mary's Hospital 
EVANSVILLE, IND. 

A public hospito:l which ha s been faithfully and efficien tly 
serving the public in its community since 1870. 

Under the care of the Sisters of Charity this medical center 
offers general and special hospitalization. 

Trained dietitia ns, surgical and operating departments, 
pleasant guest rooms, and an efficiently equipped nursery . 

The maternity d epartment is the best one in appointments 
in this en tire section , and affords all possible comfort for g u ests 
- restful and under the care of nurses especially trained for 
this exacting service . 

St. Mary 's--- the hospital referred to with p ride 
and appreciation. 

LIBERTY 

THESE FIRMS OF LIBERTY. INDIANA. EXTEND THEIR 
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The Huighes Dry Goods Store 
W. H. H. Clark Sons 
A & B Garage 
W. A. Fosdick & Son 
J. A. Bertch & Son 
Union County National Bank 

INDIANAPOLIS 

CONGRATULATIONS 
Catholics On Your Centennial! 

The C. M. R. A. can pt· vide you with good sound insurance-both Casualty and Life 
on an actual cost basis. We operate on a 4 percent legal reserve basis and carry a full 
legal reserve plus three times as much surplus. Persons eligible--ages 16 to 65 for Accident 
and Health insurance or 16 to. 60 for Life insurance. Ten percent dividend paid on Life 
Policies. For full particulars without obligation write us giving your date of birth as we 
insure by mail. 

CHURCH MEMBERS RELIEF ASSOCIATION • 
J. K. AKE, President 

827-30 Occ:idental Building Phone RI. 9768 R A 
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WAYNE ROOFING CO. 
C. C. SETTLES, Mgr. 

Res. Phone 39294 

14 SO. 11th ST. RICHMOND, IND. 

F. N. WATT CO. 
MANUFACTURERS OF 

Undertakers' Supplies 

RICHMOND, IND. 

SODA LUNCH 

HUDSON'S 
COLD BEER 
1034 MAIN ST. 

RICHMOND, IND. 

Eyes Examined Glasses Fitted 

Dr. F. W. DraGoo, 0. D. 
Successor to Clara Sweitzer & Meigs 

PHONE 1099 23 SOUTH 8th ST. 
RICHMOND, IND. 

Focht' s Food Market 
I. G. A. STORES . 

Groceries and Meats 
PHONE 65374 400 S. W. 2nd ST. 

RICHMOND, IND. 

Richmond Gravel Co. 
INCORPORATED 

"Anything in Gravel" 
Office, 720 S. 5th St. PHONE 6383 

RICHMOND, IND. 

RICHMOND CHINA 
& GLASS CO. 

LUNCHEON SETS, BRIDGE SETS 
DINNER SETS 

1008 MAIN ST. RICHMOND, IND. 

Quality Footwear for the Entire Family 
at City's Lowest Prices 

The Big Shoe Store 
WE ASSURE YOU OF A PERFECT FIT 

WIDTHS AAAA to EEE 

708 MAIN ST. RICHMOND, IND. 

MILLER-KEMPER 
LUMBER CO. 

LUMBER, MILLWORK, PAINT, 
HARDWARE 

" Everything to Build Anything" 
PHONE 3547 

RICHMOND, IND. 

C. D. KENNY CO. 
Established 1870 

TEAS, COFFEES ANQ. . SUGARS 
TELEPHONE 4601 

N. 6th St. and Washington . Ave.-Branch 
RICHMOND, IND. 

HOLTHOUSE 
FURNITURE STORE 
COMPLETE HOME FURNISHERS 

Mrs. J. B. Holthouse, Prop. 
PHONE 2190 533-535 MAIN ST. 

RICHMOND, IND. 

COMMONS LUMBER 
COMPANY 

PHONES: 7313-7332 

Always Anxious to Serve 
711 Sheridan St. RICHMOND, IND. 

The Roland-Swisher Co. 
HEATING-AIR CONDITIONING-
AUTOMATIC COAL STOKERS-OIL 

FURNACES 
32-34 North 7th St. Richmond, Ind. 
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Rose Salb, stood the last of 
thirty-eight prize spellers. An­
other one of the victorious 
students was Paul Harrington 
of Cathedral high school, Indi­
anapolis, who was awarded first 
honors in a state essay contest 
on "Good Roads" which was held 
under the auspices of the State 
Board of Education in October, 
1921. 

The Rev. Leonard Wernsing 
is the present Diocesan Super­
intendent of Schools, and the 
following priests compose the 
school board: The Rev. Philip 
Schneider, chairman; the Rev. 
Albert Wicke; the Rev. Pierre 
Brisse; and the Rev. John Doyle. 

QNE of the disasters of the 
twentieth century, which 

affected the people of the 
Diocese in a serious manner, was 
the flood of 1913. The late Rev. 
Joseph Weber, pastor of As­
sumption church, Indianapolis, 
was hailed as the hero of that 
city during the flood. He spared 
no energy in behalf of those 
whose homes were flooded, hav­
ing thrown 9pen his home to 
them, set his table for all who 
might be hungry, opened his 
wardrobe to the needy, and gave 
his sleeping rooms to the sick. 

Bishop Chartrand kept in 
communication with other places 
in the Diocese where the flood 
raged, and among reports re­
corded at the time is the fact 
that the Blessed Sacrament was 
moved, for safety's sake, to the 
second floor of the church at 
Lawrenceburg where the base­
ment was under water. Condi­
tions were also bad in New Al­
bany, Terre Haute, Jefferson­
ville, Mount Vernon, and other 
places. Priests and people from 
parishes which escaped the flood 
sent help to those parishes in 
which losses were suffered. A 
check of $3,000 was sent from 
the Supreme Council of the 
Knights of Columbus to the Indi­
ana flood sufferers. The old St. 
Vincent hospital building in 
Indianapolis was fitted up with 
gas stoves, and other heating 
appliances, and was arranged to 
accommodate about a thousand 
flood victims. 

Other occasions of sadness for 
the priests and the people of the 
Diocese were several church 
fires in addition to those men­
tioned, and one or two• serious 
church robberies. Sacred Heart 
church at Clinton was broken 
into in April, 1914, during the 
absence of the pastor, the Rev. 
William F. Keefe, who was in 
Indianapolis at the time attend­
ing a conference of the clergy. 
The tabernacle was forced open, 
the most valuable of the sacred 
vessels were taken, and the 
Sacred Hosts were scattered 
over the altar steps and the floor. 
The church fires included St. 
Vincent, Prescott, near Shelby­
ville, in April, 1924, the loss hav­
ing been estimated at about 
$80,000; the beautiful old St. 
Mary church, Daviess county, 
near Loogootee, was destroyed 
by fire two days after Christ­
mas, 1925. The Blessed Sacra­
ment was saved. The new 
church here was dedicated in 
1926. St. Michael church, at 
Charlestown, was destroyed by 
a fire of undetermined origin on 

April 15, 1928; and a damage 
estimated at nearly $100,000 
was the result of a fire at St. 
Joseph church, Terre Haute, on 
January 9, 1934. This church 
was re-blessed by Bishop Ritter 
on December 9, 1934. 

Among the happy events of 
recent years was the granting 
by the Holy See to the Sisters of 
Providence the privilege of Per­
petual Exposition of the Blessed 
Sacrament at the Motherhouse 
of that Order, St. Mary-of-the­
Woods. The devotion was in­
augurated June 10, 1914, by 
Bishop Chartrand who cele­
brated Mass on the altar of Ex­
position where the Sisters 
throughout the succeeding years 
have kept a perpetual watch 
during the hours of the day and 
night. 

The Rev. Francis H. Gavisk, 
pastor of St. John church, Indi­
anapolis, and Chancellor of the 
Diocese at that time, was elected 
to the presidency of the National 
Conference of Charities and Cor­
rections, of the United States 
and Canada, in May, 1915. 

ACCORDING to a press ac-
count published October 25, 

1918, what appears to have been 
the first Diocesan Consultors 
meeting was held in October, 
1918. The group of six con­
sultors, appointed by Bishop 
Chartrand, included the Rev. 
Francis A. Roell, Richmond; the 
Rev. Francis H. Gavisk, Indi­
anapolis; the Rev. F. X. Unter­
reitmeier, Evansville; the Rev. 
Joseph F '. Byrne, Indianapolis; 
the Rev. F. B. Dowd, Indian­
apolis; and the Rev. Theodore 
S. Mesker, Connersville. 

Meetings concerning the or­
ganization of a Catholic Council 
of Men for the Diocese of Indi­
anapolis were held in May, 1921, 
the first of which took place 
at the Catholic Community 
Center then located in W. 
Georgia street, Indianapolis. 
The first Diocesan convention of 
this group took place January 
28, 1924, in Indianapolis, with an 
attendance of about two hundred 
delegates, clergy and laity. 

An interesting bit of history 
was disclosed in March, 1922, 
when an announcement taken 
from The Indianapolis Sentinel 
dated Friday, March 18, 1864, 
carried an account of the first 
public celebration of St. Patrick's 
day in Indianapolis. 

A two-day celebration at Vin­
cennes, in February, 1929, 
officially opened the sesqui­
centennial year's observance of 
George Rogers Clark's capture 
of Vincennes and capture of the 
Northwest Territory from the 
British. 

The formal opening of the new 
Carmelite monastery in Indian­
apolis took place on October 3, 
1932, when the dedicatory 
services were conducted by 
Bishop Chartrand. The monas­
tery at New Albany which had 
been opened ten years prior to 
this time was moved to the new 
location. 

JF it is true that the more loyal 
a man is to his God the better 

citizen he is able to be, then the 
spiritual foundation that sup­
ported the patriotism of the 
Catholic people in the Diocese of 
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TATE 
Practical Cleaning & Dyeing 

Chas. H. Tate, Prop. 
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CLIFF BEVINGTON 
COMPANY 

Radios and Radio Service-Refrigerators 
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RICHMOND, IND. 

ROYE. BENHAM 
Everything Good To Eat Here 

l'HONE 1882 SOUTH 9th & B 

RICHMOND, IND. 

PLUMBING HEATING 
"Repair Service" 

ECONOMY PLUMBERS 
WHOLESALE - - RETAIL 

PHONE 4876 4th and MAIN ST. 
RICHMOND., IND. 

Forrest Monger 
RICHMOND, IND. 

PEEK'S CASH 
GROCERY 

GROCERIES, 
FRESH MEATS - VEGETABLES 

N. W. Cor. 8th & I Streets 
RICHMOND, IND. 

L. C. HASECOSTER 
STAPLE AND FANCY GROCERIES 

South 9th and C Sts. 

RICHMOND, IND. 

Jigs, Tools, Dies, Gauges, Fixtures 
Designing, Engineering 

Builders of Special Machinery 

Indiana Tool Company 
MANUFACTURERS 
RICHMOND, IND. 

BRINKER BEVERAGE 
COMPANY 

Wholesale Distributors of 
FINE BEERS AND ALES 

515 North Sixth St. Richmond, Ind. 

C. EDW. RUCH 
FLORIST 

Cut Flowers, Floral Work, Bedding Plants 
Phone 3765 

RICHMOND, IND. 

SMITH&SONS 
MEAT MARKET 

340 N. W. 5th St. 
RICHMOND, IND. 

EWBANK & KRAMER 
GROCERIES & FRESH MEATS 

Grant and Ridge Sts. 

KRAMER'S MARKET 
2115 N. E. Street 

RICHMOND, IND. 
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PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 
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THE 

FIRST 
NATIONAL 

BANK 
RICHMOND, IND. 

LANNING & HOFF 
Filtered, Cleaned and Water-Washed 
Forced Air-Circulation for Warm Air 

Heating Systems-Slate, Tile and Metal 
Roofs-Air Conditioning Systems­

Furnaces and Furnace Repairs 
185 Ft. Wayne Ave., Phone 1669 

RICHMOND, IND. 

Indianapolis during the World 
War, 1917 to 1918, must have 
been a strong one. The quota of 
this Diocese, according to the 
reports on file in the National 
Catholic· Welfare Council Bureau 
of Historical Records, at Wash­
ington, D. C., was 5,929, but the 
Diocese gave 7,134 men to the 
various branches of service, 
divided as follows: Army 1,718; 
Navy 197; Marines 19; and 
branch not listed 5,200. There 
were 132 deaths overseas, and 
34 in the United States. 

Six Catholic men were re­
ported to the Bureau of Histori­
cal Records as having been 
decorated by the United States 
Government. Their names as 
they appear on the records, to­
gether with their respective 

_r.:=========================- parishes and cities in which they 

i 
lived then, are as follows : Robert 

PERRY T. WILLIAMS 
COMPANY, Inc. 

MONUlVIENTS 
33 N. 8th ST. RICHMOND, IND. 

A. Madden, Holy Angels, Indi­
anapolis; Francis J. Monahan, 
Holy Cross, Indianapolis ; Mike 
O'Neal, St. Augustine, Jefferson­
ville; Henry A. Strobel, St. John 

l.!:::============:::.J Chrysostom, New Boston; and 

Downyflake Shop 
RESTAURANT 
DELICIOUS FOODS 

PHONE 7202 

908 MAIN ST. RICHMOND, IND. 

LUKEN'S DRUG 
STORE 

626 Main Street 
RICHMOND, IND. 

FOX RADIO SERVICE 
(Richmond's Most Complete Service 

Laboratory) 
RADIO AND REFRIGERATOR 

Installation-Maintenance 
PHONE 4676 221 MAIN ST. 

RICHMOND, IND. 

CHASE ELECTRIC CO. 
ELECTRICAL ENGINEERS 

· AND CONTRACTORS 
Our Service You Will Like 

Night Service-TEL. 6832 
Day Service-TEL. 6034 

11 N. 10TH ST. RICHMOND, IND. 

S.S. KRESGE 
5 and 10c STORE 

801 MAIN ST. 
25c to $1.00 STORE 

823 MAIN ST. 

RICHMOND, IND. 

Jerome E. Wagner, St. John, Os-
good. Major John McDonough, 
of Holy Name parish, Indian­
apolis, was decorated with a dis­
tinguished service medal. 

Very soon after the entrance 
of the United States into the 
World War the Catholic people 
of Indianapolis, upon the sug­
gestion of Bishop Chartrand, 
met on April 25, 1917, to perfect 
an organization to cooperate in 
the work of the Red Cross. At 
this meeting Father Gavisk ad­
dressed the assembly on the 
purposes of the Red Cross. 

About three hundred and 
eighty young men who were in 
training for the Officers Reserve 
Corps, at Fort Benjamin Harri­
son, attended the first Mass in 
the new camp since its forma­
tion. The Mass was celebrated 
in the assembly hall by the Rev. 
P . H. Griffin, of St. Bridget 
church, Indianapolis, on May 20, 
1917. About a dozen Notre Dame 
boys volunteered to serve the 
Mass, and two of them were 
chosen. 

An interesting Fourth of 
July program that year was a 
flag raising at the Convent of 
the Good Shepherd at Indianap­
olis when the convent garden, 

r.=========================-1 for the first time, was opened to 
TIVOLI the public. Father Gavisk 

opened the program, Father 
THEATRE Griffin , and Charles L. Barry 

spoke, and hymns and patriotic 
RICHMOND, IND. songs were sung by the children 

who were at that time in the 
care of the Sisters. 

WASHINGTON 
COAL CO. 

J. E. BELL, Mgr. 

RICHMOND, IND. 

J- V. Burton, 45 S. 18th St. 
J. W. Rice, 709 S. W. A St. 

Richmond Monument Shop 
Granite Memorials-26 Years' Experience 

PHONE 6990 
1000 National Road West-Opposite 

Earlham Cemetery 
RICHMOND, IND. 

C. G. DeBolt Const. Co. 
Ready Mixed Concrete 

Northwest Fifth and F Sts., P. 0. Box 29 
PHONE 4891 RICHMOND, IND. 

In August, 1917, Bishop 
Chartrand appointed Father 
Gavisk to cooperate with Her­
bert Hoover in matters of food 
conservation. Father Gavisk 
represented the Diocese and all 
information on the subject was 
to be sent through him to the 
priests, and to the Religious 
houses. 

A recreation building had 
been promised for Fort Benj a­
min Harrison, to be erected un­
der the auspices of the Knights 
of Columbus Committee on War 
Activities, and to be open to all 
soldiers, regardless of their re­
ligious belief. Many people to­
day, no doubt, remember one 
Sunday in the early summer of 
1918 when, because the new K. 

of C. building was not quite 
complete, a big tent was being 
used for some activity or an­
other. A terrific wind storm 
blew up in the vicinity of the 
Fort, and the tent, which was 
crowded with people, was blown 
down twice. Perhaps because 
war 1s one of the things in 
which all 1s fair, a group of 
soldiers restored it after the 
first time, but the second blow­
down was reason enough for the 
incomplete building to be in­
formally opened to the public. 
A military field Mass, attended 
by approximately ten thousand 
people, marked the dedication 
of the new building on July 21, 
1918, with Father Griffin as the 
celebrant. The altar for the 
Mass was erected in the vesti­
bule of the building, a military 
salute was fired at the Eleva­
tion, and Bishop Chartrand, 
James Goodrich, then Governor 
of Indiana, Charles Jewett, then 
Mayor of Indianapolis, and 
others, spoke from the same 
platform. A concert of sacred 
and patriotic music was ren­
dered by the Tenth Infantry 
band. 

BY the time the Third Liberty 
Loan drive swept the coun­

try many patriotic services had 
taken place throughout the Dio­
cese. Noteworthy among those 
recorded were the blessing and 
elevation of the service flag in 
the Old Cathedral at Vincennes 
on the evening of April 7, 1918. 
The flag represented the fifty­
nine from that parish who had 
answered the call to the colors. 
A flag raising was also held at 
the St. Meinrad Seminary on 
April 23, 1918. 

The full extent of war work 
done by those who remained at 
home "doing their bit" will 
probably, like many other good 
deeds, never be known in this 
world. In addition to classes in 
parish and civic groups, the con­
vents also organized classes 
which devoted time, energy and 
enthusiasm in the preparation 
of first-aid supplies. Knitting 
was done on a large scale, and 
the people as a whole accepted 
the retrenchment of sugar, flour 
and meats uncomplainingly. 

In October, 1918, a short time 
before the war was over, an 
epidemic of influenza placed a 
ban on public gatherings, and 
for a period of two or three 
weeks even the churches were 
closed. 

pEACE came at last. A press 
account dated November 15, 

1918, states that Bishop Char­
trand's first visit to the Old 
Cathedral at Vincennes as 
Bishop of the Diocese of Indian­
apolis, occurred at the time the 
Armistice was signed. He had 
stopped in Vincennes on the 
evening of November 10, 1918, 
on his way to St. Meinrad' s. He 
was accompanied by the young 
priest, destined to become his 
successor to the See of Indian­
apolis, the Rev. Joseph E. Ritter. 
When the news of the signing 
of the Armistice marking the 
end of the World War had 
reached Vincennes, a short time 
before three o'clock on the 
memorable morning of Novem­
ber 11, Bishop Chartrand, Fa-
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Established 1909 
Silver, Nickel, Copper Plating-Polishing, 
Oxidizing, Lacquering-Mirrors Resilvered 

209 WEST MAIN ST. 
PHONE 6814 RICHMOND, IND. 

Main Street Market 
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MEATS - VEGETABLES 
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RICHMOND, IND. 

HARRY PATTI 
520 MAIN 

RICHMOND, IND. 

Harry C. Thornburgh 
Sheriff, Wayne County 

Richmond, Ind. 

MATT BRINKER 
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SMOKED MEATS 
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RICHMOND, IND. 

V. H. Juerling & Son 
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"Everything in the Building Line" 
RICHMOND, IND. 

Hershey's I.G.A. Market 
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UNSER & WALTERMANN 
HOM;E FOR FUNERALS 

AMBULANCE SERVICE 
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32 SO. ELEVENTH STREET 

RICHMOND, IND. 

"Service and Satisfaction" 

PHONE 2175 
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ther Ritter, and the Rev. James 
Gregoire, pastor at the Old Ca­
thedral, immediately celebrated 
their Masses at three altars 
there at 3 :45 o'clock. The 
Bishop's Mass, according to an 
available record, was celebrated 
in honor of St. Martin of Tours, 
a soldier saint of the fifth cen­
tury who gave up his army life, 
entered the service of the 
Church, and later became the 
Archbishop of Tours. The day 
happened to be that saint's feast 
day. The large bell at the Old 
Cathedral, which rang for lib­
erty in 1779, is said to have 
been the first bell in Vincennes 
to ring for peace in 1918. 

Much might be written con­
cerning the days of the Ku 
Klux Klan · in Indiana- those 
days which caused perhaps 
greater anxieties and heart­
aches in many cases than the 
war itself could possibly have 
caused. It will be sufficient to 
mention here that a meeting on 
March 17, 1923, held in Indian­
apolis under the auspices of the 
Ancient Order of Hibernians in 
Marion county, marked the 
opening of Indiana's battle 
against that organization of 
bigotry. The Marion county 
branch of the American Unity 
League was formed during the 
same year. A state organizer 
of the Klan in Ohio, by what 
seems to have been a provi­
dential coincidence, died in St. 
Vincent's hospital in July, 1923, 
penitent, resigned, and grateful 
to the Sisters for kindnesses 
shown toward him. A Catholic 
information bureau was incor­
porated about that time, estab­
lishing itself in Indianapolis for 
the purpose of spreading the 
truth, and records ~ow that a 
paid advertisement was inserted 
in The Indianapolis News on 
September 20, 1924, bearing a 
head line, "About Roman 
Catholics." 

A MEDLEY of feelings in which 
pride, sorrow, and anxiety 

filled the hearts and minds of 
the clergy, and the laity, was 
experienced during the early 
part of the year 1925, when 
Bishop Chartrand received offi­
cial word from Rome of his ap­
pointment as Archbishop of the 
Province of Cincinnati on May 
19. It was said at the time that 
the Vatican received many mes­
sages from residents ~n the 
Diocese of Indianapolis urging 
that he be permitted to remain 
in Indianapolis, but on the other 
hand, Cincinnati Catholics 
wanted Bishop Chartrand as 
successor to the late Archbishop 
Henry Moeller. 

Although it was understood 
then in his own Diocese that 
Bishop Chartrand desired to re­
main in Indianapolis, it was 
thought that his refusal to ac­
cept the Papal appointment as 
Archbishop was not likely. It 
further was said that it was 
not known there were any re­
fusals of this kind on record ; 
however, some historical data 
relates that about the time the 
State of Indiana was divided 
into two Dioceses, Bishop de 
St. Palais was offered the 
Archiepiscopal See of Toulouse, 
in France, but he declined. 

Naturally much anxiety hung 

over the Diocese in 1925, and 
when the reappointment of 
Bishop Chartrand as Bishop of 
the Diocese of Indianapolis was 
made public in July, 1925, there 
was rejoicing among the clergy 
and the laity. In a statement 
given to the press at the time, 
Father Ritter, then secretary to 
Bishop Chartrand, said, "Al­
though Bishop Chartrand had 
accepted his promotion to Cin­
cinnati, as announced last May, 
Pope Pius saw fit to rescind his 
appointment. Bishop Char­
trand, although realizing the im­
portance of his promotion, was 
desirous of remaining in Indian­
apolis. Because of his many 
friends in Indiaanpolis, and be­
cause of his recent poor health 
he is more than pleased with the 
latest announcement from 
Rome." 

The change in the Pope's ap­
pointment concerning Bishop 
Chartrand, according to a press 
statement, was the result of nu­
merous requests cabled to Rome 
by the clergy and the laity of 
his Diocese, following the origi­
nal appointment. The Rt. Rev. 
John T. McNicholas, who was to 
succeed Bishop Chartrand, was 
named to the Cincinnati Arch­
diocese. 

Like the Klan, volumes could 
be written concerning experi­
ences in the Diocese during the 
depression. However, the fol­
lowing is worthy of some men­
tion. In October, 1931, Bishop 
Chartrand issued an official an­
nouncement that in all churches 
of his Diocese a triduum should 
be held in preparation for the 
Feast of Christ the King which 
fell on Sunday, October 25. The 
Holy Father had appealed to the 
whole world for special prayers 
and sacrifices in behalf of the 
poor and the needy. The Act 
of Consecration to the Sacred 
Heart of Jesus and the Litany 
of the Sacred Heart were or­
dered to be recited daily during 
the three days and on the feast. 
Bishop Chartrand's announce­
ment also appealed to the peo­
ple of his Diocese to receive 
Holy Communion during the 
triduum and on the feast and to 
off er these devotions for the 
poor, needy, and suffering of 
humanity. 

BISHOP CHARTRAND was 
born in St. Louis, Missouri , 

May 11, 1870, the son of Joseph 
and Margaret S. Chartrand. 
After attending the local parish 
schools, he entered, while still 
very young, the St. Louis uni­
versity and was graduated from 
there. His theological studies 
were made at St. Francis Semi­
nary, Milwaukee, and at Inns­
bruck, Austria, completing his 
preparation for the priesthood 

/ when hardly twenty years of 
age. He was much too young 
for ordination, so while waiting 
he spent his time teaching in 
the college at St. Meinrad. By 
dispensation, his ordination was 
permitted on September 24, 
1892, Bishop Cha ta rd confer­
ring the Sacrament of Holy Or­
ders in Indianapolis. The youth­
ful priest was appointed as as­
sistant at the chapel of the 
Cathedral parish, and in 1905, 
he was made~rector. 

He was appointed Vicar Gen-
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eral of the Diocese on February 
13, 1910, and on July 27 of the 
same year he was named titular 
Bishop of Flavius, and Coadju­
tor to the Bishop of Indianap­
olis. Bishop Chartrand was 
consecra tea in the Cathedral at 
Indianapolis on September 15, 
1910, by the Most Rev. Diomede 
Falconio, Apostolic Delegate, 
who was assisted by the Most 
Rev. D. O'Donaghue, Bishop of 
Louisville, and the Most Rev. 
Herman Alerding, Bishop of 
Fort Wayne. He became Bishop 
of Indianapolis, September 7, 
1918, and was appointed Assist­
ant at the Pontifical Throne 
February 4, 1928. 

Bishop Chartrand's death oc­
curred in the early evening of 
the Feast of the Immaculate 
Conception of the Blessed Vir­
gin, December 8, 1933. His last 
day upon earth was spent in his 
customary way. He said his 
Mass at five o'clock and spent a 
part of the morning in the con­
fessional, as was his practice. 
All his business affairs of the 
day were taken care of, and if he 
felt any illness at all it was not 
evident. After an early dinner 
at five o'clock, and about half 
an hour's chat with the clergy 
of his household, he retired to 
his own room. A sudden attack 
of illness caused . his death at 
five minutes after seven o'clock, 
and, "he died as he would have 
wanted to die-at the close of 
the holy day of the Blessed Vir­
gin," was quoted as having been 
said of him. His death occurred 
only a few feet away from 
where Exposition of the Most 
Blessed Sacrament was taking 
place in the very chapel to which 
he had remained so closely 
united during his entire forty­
one years of priestly life. 

Bishop Chartrand's funeral 
took place in the Cathedral on 
Wednesday morning, December 
13, 1933, with an unusually 
large number of members of the 
heirarchy, monsignori, clergy, 
and Sisterhoods in attendance, 
in addition to prominent civil 
authorities headed by Indiana's 
Governor, Paul V. McNutt, and 
members of the laity from all 
parishes in Indianapolis, and 
from many throughout Indiana. 
The Most Rev. Amleto Giovanni 
Cicognani, Apostolic Delegate to 
the United States, celebrated the 
Pontifical High Mass of Re­
quiem, after which the casket 
containing the remains of a 
greatly loved Bishop was car­
ried by the priests of the Dio­
cese to its final resting place in 
the crypt beneath the Cathedral, 
in a niche beside that of his pre­
decessor, Bishop Chatard. 

At the time of his death, the 
Religious Bulletin of the Uni­
versity of Notre Dame published 
some interesting statistics, a 
portion of which follow: 
"Twenty-five thousand confes­
sions a year ... 'ego te ab­
solvo a peccatis tuis' ... 25,-
000 times a year on the average 
... and forty-one years in the 
priesthood ... twenty-three of 
them as a Bishop who went into 
the confessional before five 
o'clock every morning and re­
mained there until nine, with 
time out only for his Mass . . . 
what a record of zeal! 

"That was the life of the Most 

The Indiana Catholic and Record 

Reverend Bishop Chartrand of 
Indianapolis-a full million con­
fessions-and many millions of 
Communions, for he never let a 
penitent go without saying, 
'Never, never, never, miss a 
Communion that you can pos­
sibly make'." 

Bishop Chartrand' s years in 
the Episcopate were also charac­
terized by his great zeal in pro­
moting vocations to the priest­
hood. No appeal from a worthy 
aspirate was ever rejected. An 
examination of old records shows 
that during his lifetime, he or­
dained approximately 350 young 
men, diocesan and religious, to 
the priesthood. These figures 
represent, as nearly as can be 
ascertained at this time, the fol­
lowing: 250 at the St. Meinrad 
Seminary, eighty-three at the 
Franciscan monastery in Olden­
burg, and about twenty at the 
SS. Peter and Paul Cathedral 
at Indianapolis, and in other 
churches. 

In May, 1934, the year follow­
ing Bishop Chartrand's death, a 
class of twenty-five young 
priests, eighteen diocesan and 
seven Benedictines, was ordained 
in the Abbey church at St. Mein­
rad. This was the largest class 
of ordinations ever to have taken 
place during the one hundred 
years of the existence of the Dio­
cese. St. Meinrad's ordination 
class of the present year, 1935, 
was composed of fourteen young 
priests. 

The largest group of young 
men ever to have entered the 
Novitiate in St. Meinrad's Abbey 
received the habit of the Order 
of St. Benedict on August 6, 
1934, from the hands of the Rt. 
Rev. Ignatius Esser, Abbot at 
St. Meinrad. 

THE latest published statistics 
of the Diocese show that in 

addition to the Bishop there are 
259 diocesan priests and prel­
ates, one Mitred Abbot, eighty­
four Benedictine priests, seven 
Franciscans of the Cincinnati 
Province and six of the · St. Louis 
Province, seventeen Franciscans 
of the Order of Minors Conven­
tual, eighteen of the Society of 
Jesus, and three of the Congre­
gation of Holy Cross, making a 
total of 396 members of the 
clergy. The students in the 
Major and Minor diocesan sem­
inaries number 308, 181 of which 
were for this Diocese and 127 
for other Dioceses. 188 students 
were in seminaries for Religious 
Orders, including Benedictines, 
Jesuits, Franciscans, 0. F. M., 
and Franciscans, 0. M. C .. 

A study of figures of enroll­
ment in Catholic schools, acade­
mies, and colleges in the Diocese 
emphasizes the progress gained 
in the field of Catholic education. 
There are 215 college students 
listed; 2,717 boys and girls in 
the nineteen Catholic high 
schools and academies in the Dio­
cese; and 22,718 pupils are en­
rolled in the 126 parochial 
schools. The grand total shows 
an enrollment of 25,650 in Cath­
olic education institutions, not 
including the seminaries. 

There are 332 men in Religious 
Orders, including priests of the 
Benedictine, Franciscan, Jesuit, 
Minors Conventual, and Holy 
Cross Orders; Jesuit Brothers, 
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Brothers of Holy Cross and the 
Sacred Heart Brothers. The 
2,685 women members of Re­
ligious Orders in the Diocese 
represent the Sisters of Provi­
dence; Sisters of St. Francis, 
Oldenburg; Sisters of St. Fran­
cis, Lafayette; Sisters of St. 
Francis, Hartwell, Ohio; Sisters 
of St. Benedict; Sisters of the 
Good Shepherd ; Magdalens ; 
Poor Clares; Sisters of Charity; 
Little Sisters of the Poor; Sis­
ters of St. Joseph; Ursuline Sis­
ters; Carmelite Nuns; and Do­
minican Sisters. 

Steps have been taken toward 
the canonization of two found­
resses of Religious Orders, 
Mother Theodore Guerin, of the 
Sisters of Providence at St. 
Mary-of-the-Woods, whose death 
occurred there on May 14, 1856; 
and Mother Mary Maddalena 
Bentivoglio, of the Sacred Heart 
of Jesus, of the Strict Observ­
ance of the First Rule of St. 
Clare in the United States, and 
who died in Evansville on Au­
gust 18, 1905. 

SEVEN priests have gone from 
this Diocese as bishops. They 

are as follows : 
The Most Rev. Augustus M. 

Martin, who came to the United 
States with Bishop Hailandiere 
in 1839, went to New Orleans in 
1847, was made Vicar General 
of that Diocese in 1852, and was 
consecrated Bishop of Natchi­
toches, Louisiana, November 
30, 1853. He died September 29, 
1875. 

The Most Rev. Martin Marty, 
0. S. B., first Abbot of St. Mein­
rad, who was consecrated titular 
Bishop of Tiberias and Vicar 
Apostolic of Dakota Territory at 
Ferdinand, Indiana, in 1880. He 
was made Bishop of Sioux Falls 
in 1889 and was transferred to 
St. Cloud, Minnesota, in 1895, 
where he died on September 19, 
1896. 

The Most Rev. Denis O'Don­
agh ue, who was born in Daviess 
county, Indiana, in 1848, and was 
ordained by Bishop St. Palais 
in Indianapolis on September 6, 
187 4. He served as Chancellor 
of the Diocese from 1878 to 
1899, and was made Vicar Gen­
eral in 1899. He was named 
Bishop of Pomaria and Auxil­
iary to the Bishop of Indianapo­
lis February 13, 1900. His con­
secration took place in St. John's 
church, Indianapolis, April 25, 
1900. He was appointed Bishop 
of Louisville February 9, 1910. 
His death occurred in Louisville 
on November 7, 1925. 

The Most Rev. Herman Aler­
ding, who was ordained by Bish­
op St. Palais at St. Meinrad in 
1868, and was named Bishop of 
F'ort Wayne August 30, 1900. 
He died in Fort Wayne on De­
cember 6, 1924. 

The Most Rev. Emmanuel B. 
Ledvina, who was born in Ev­
ansville, Indiana, in the year 
1868, and was ordained at Indi­
anapolis in 1893. Having la­
bored in several parishes in the 
Diocese for a number of years, 
he became secretary of the Cath­
olic Church Extension Society 
at Chicago, in 1907, later be­
coming vice-president of that 
society. He was appointed a 
Domestic Prelate on June 18, 
1918, and April 30, 1921, he be-

came Bishop-elect of Corpus 
Christi, Texas. His consecra­
tion took place at St. Mary-of­
the-W oods on June 14, 1921. 

The Most Rev. Alphonse J. 
Smith, who was born in Madi­
son, Indiana, in 1883, and was 
ordained in Rome on April 18, 
1908. He served as assistant at 
the SS. Peter and Paul Cathe-• 
dral until 1920, after which he 
established the parish of St. 
Joan of Arc in Indianapolis. He 
was made Bishop-elect of Nash­
ville, Tennessee, in 1923, and 
was consecrated at the Cathe­
dral in Indianapolis, on March 
25, 1924, by Bishop Chartrand. 

The Most Rev. James Hugh 
Ryan, titular Bishop of Modra 
and Rector of the Catholic Uni­
versity of America, Washington, 
D. C., since 1928, was born in 
Indianapolis, December 15, 1886. 
He labored in the Diocese as 
Chaplain and Professor of Phi­
losophy at St. Mary-of-the­
Woods from 1911 to 1921 dur­
ing which latter year he was 
made secretary of the Educa­
tional Department of the Na­
tion Catholic Welfare Confer­
ence at Washington, D. C. His 
bishopric appointment was made 
on August 15, 1933, and he was 
consecrated by Bishop Chartrand 
on October 25 of that year, in 
the Shrine of the Immaculate 
Conception at Washington. 

The following Vicars General 
have served the Diocese since its 
beginning: The Very Reverend 
Simon P. Lalumiere, Celestine 
Hailandiere, Augustus M. Mar­
tin, M. de St. Palais, Hippolytus 
Dupontavice, Joseph Kundek, 
John Corbe, Bede O'Connor, 0. 
S. B., August Bessonies, and 
Anthony Scheidler; the Rt. Rev. 
Denis O'Donaghue; the Most 
Rev. Joseph Chartrand; the Rt. 
Rev. Francis H. Gavisk; the 
Most Rev. Joseph E. Ritter; and 
the Rt. Rev. Raymond R. Noll. 

FROM the evening of Decem-
ber 8, 1933, to March 26, 

1934, the Diocese of Indianapo­
lis, for the sixth time, awaited 
the appointment of a new Bish­
op. The Diocesan Consultors 
met in the Cathedral city the 
day after Bishop Chartrand's 
death, and named Bishop Ritter 
as Administrator. 

On March 26, 1934, only a 
year after his consecration as 
titular Bishop of Hippos and 
Auxiliary to Bishop Chartrand, 
Bishop Ritter was appointed the 
seventh Bishop of the Diocese 
of Indianapolis by the Holy 
Father, Pope Pius XI. Up to 
this time, no native son had ever 
served as head of the Diocese 
but the appointment of Bishop 
Ritter brought one who was 
born, reared, educated, ordained, 
and had spent all of his priestly 
labors within its territory. 

Bishop Ritter was born in 
New Albany, Indiana, July 20, 
1892. He received his early ed­
ucation in the parochial schools 
there and made his studies for 
the priesthood at the St. Mein­
rad Seminary where he was or­
dained on May 30, 1917, by 
Bishop Chartrand. His conse­
cration as titular Bishop of Hip­
pos took place in the SS. Peter 
and Paul Cathedral March 28, 
1933, with Bishop Chartrand as 
his consecrator . 
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State of Indiana was divided 
into two Dioceses, Bishop de 
St. Palais was offered the 
Archiepiscopal See of Toulouse, 
in France, but he declined. 

Naturally much anxiety hung 
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The first appointment on Bish­
op Ritter's initial Confirmation 
tour took him to St. Mary's 
church, New Albany, his own 
former home parish, on Sunday 
morning, April 23, 1933. 

He was solemnly enthroned as 
head of the Diocese of Indianap­
olis Tuesday morning, April 24, 
1934, in the Cathedral. At the 
Pontifical High Mass Bishop 
Smith pontificated at the Fald­
stool, and the Most Rev. John 
T. McNicholas, 0. P., Archbishop 
of Cincinnati, presided at the 
Throne. Following the enthrone­
ment Bishop Ritter delivered the 
sermon and imparted his first 
blessing. 

Assisting Bishop Ritter in the 
administration of the affairs of 
the Diocese at this time (1935), 
are the Rt. Rev. Raymond R. 
Noll, as Vicar General; the Very 
Rev. Henry Dugan, Chancellor ; 
the Rev. Bernard Sheridan, Vice­
Chancellor ; the Rev. Henry Her­
mann, secretary to the Bishop; 
and a large number of priests 
and prelates who compose the 
various official committees. 

Bishop Ritter's first pastoral 
letter as Bishop of the Diocese 
was issued at the time of his 
enthronement, and was on the 
subject of the Diocese and its 
coming Centennial celebration. 
In this pastoral the Bishop paid 
tribute to the zeal and to the 
Apostolic spirit of the pioneer 
Bishops, priests and lay people 
of the Diocese. He had been 
named in 1933 by Bishop Chart­
rand to serve as chairman of the 
Centennial committee. 

As early as September, 1933, 
plans were outlined for the Cen­
tennial celebration to be held 
on May 6 of the following year. 
In preparation for the event the 
Old Cathedral and surrounding 
buildings went through a period 
of restoration. The church in 
the midst of ancient evergreens, 
with its newly decorated in­
terior was not the least among 
the scenes of historic interest 
to the thousands of people who 
visited Vincennes at the time 
of the Centennial. The old Sem­
inary building, in which the 
priests of the Diocese studied 
during the years between 1830 
to 1849, and the little chapel 
which was formerly connected 
with the St. Gabriel convent, and 
after the coming of the Sisters 
of Providence in 1843 with the 
St. Rose academy, were re­
stored as museums. Both 
buildings which had been neg­
lected for many years and which 
were in an advanced state of 
ruin were repaired as nearly as 
possible to their former sty le. 

A CLOUDLESS spring day 
greeted the one hundredth 

birthday anniversary of the Dio-
cese on May 6, 1934, when more 
than ten thousand people from 
not only the Diocese of Indi­
anapolis, but from neighboring 
dioceses and states gathered in 
Vincennes for the Centennial. 
The celebration of a Pontifical 
High Mass at 11 o'clock, by the 
Most. Rev. Amleto Giovanni 

I 
DENNY MOTOR TRANSFER I Cicognani, Apostolic Delegate to 

the United States, officially 
241 M~R~;.Y ST. opened the solemn observance 

PHONE HARRISON 3275 of the day. A colorful feature 
Ft. Wayne, Ind. of the morning's program was 

============ ::::!.I the procession which preceded 

the Mass. Members of the 
Knights of Columbus, the 
Knights of St. John, h undreds 
of visiting priests, a group of 
monsignori, and acolytes who 
had formed ranks at the Gibault 
high school auditorium, met the 
visiting Bishops, Bishop Ritter, 
Archbishop McNicholas, and the 
Apostolic Delegate at the rec­
tory of the Old Cathedr al. From 
there the entire procession 
moved to the sanctuary which 
had been erected on a large plat­
form in front of the Old Cathe­
dral. The Apostolic Delegate, 
in "Cappa Magna" was accom­
panied by four little boys who 
served as pages. Thrones were 
erected in the sanctuar y for the 
Bishops, and a special seat in 
the sanctuary was occupied by 
the Governor of Indiana, Paul 
V. McNutt. 

The altar and the throne of 
the Apostolic Delegate were 
draped in dark crimson, the floor 
of the sanctuary was carpeted 
in green, and overhead the 
breeze, playing about the un­
furled Papal and American 
flags tossed a wave of white and 
gold to one side of the sanctu­
ary, and of red, white and blue 
to the other. 

Members of the St. Meinrad 
Chancel choir, who were sta­
tioned in front of the Old Ca­
thedral to the right of the sanc­
tuary, rendered the sacred music 
for the Mass. Trumpets were 
used at the Elevation, and an 
old Missal, which had been pre­
sented to Bishop Brute in the 
year 1836, but which was more 
than 120 years old, was used at 
the Mass. This Missal is now 
the property of the Diocese and 
is kept in the library of the Old 
Cathedral. At the conclusion of 
the Mass, Bishop Ryan delivered 
the sermon. 

More than five hundred guests, 
among whom were the visiting 
dignitaries of the Ch urch and 
Governor McNutt, attended a 
banquet in the Gibault audito­
rium where Bishop Ritter pre­
sided and delivered the principal 
address. 

The outstanding event on the 
afternoon's program was the 
dedication of the Gibault plaza, 
in front of the Cathedral, on 
which a life-size bronze statue 
of Father Pierre Gibault was 
to be erected. Clem Richards, 
president of the George Rogers 
Clark memorial commission, per­
formed the dedicatory ceremony, 
the Apostolic Delegate blessed 
the site, Governor McNutt 
spoke, and St. Vincent's band, 
an orchestra composed of boys 
from the diocesan orphanage, 
rendered musical selections. 

Greetings were received by 
Bishop Ritter upon the celebra­
tion of the Diocesan Centennial 
and upon his own installation 
as Bishop of Indianapolis, from 
Franklin D. Roosevelt, President 
of the United States, in a letter 
dated at Washington, April 16, 
1934. Bishop Ritter was also in 
receipt of a letter from Rome. 
dated April 23, 1934, and signed 
by Cardinal Pacelli in which was 
expressed the greetings and 
pleasure of the Holy Father as 
well as his special blessing on 
the occasion of the Centennial. 
A tribute to Bishop Chartrand, 
together with expressions of en-
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couragement to Bishop Ritter, 
were included in the letter. 

A SHORT time after the Cen-
tennial celebration, the Dio­

cese of Indianapolis joined forces 
in the fight against indecent 
moving pictures when Bishop 
Ritter issued through the Chan­
cery office, a letter on the sub­
ject to every pastor and admin­
istrator in the Diocese. Thou­
sands of pledge cards were sent 
out to Catholic high schools and 
to all the pastors. It was made 
clear to the people that by sign­
ing the cards they were not 
pledging themselves to attend no 
movies at all, but that by so 
doing they were to signify a 
sincere intention to keep away 
from the then prevalent sug­
gestive and immoral type of 
moving picture. A letter on the 
subject was also sent to the man­
ager of every motion picture 
theater in the Diocese. In the 
text of this letter it was ex­
plained the campaign was not 
a war on the movies, but it was 
a war on the indecent kind. By 
the end of July, 1934, nearly 
thirty-seven thousand signed 
pledge cards of the Legion of 
Decency had been reported to 
the Chancery office at Indianap­
olis. The campaign was carried 
on among the grade schools 
after the opening of the fall 
semester. 

With the opening of West 
Baden college by the Jesuits in 
September, 1934, the Diocese of 
Indianapolis listed among its in­
stitutions of higher learning the 
first to be conducted by the So­
ciety of Jesus in this Dio­
cese. The purpose of the 
college is for the education 
of Jesuit Seminarians (Scholas­
tics) of the Chicago Province, 
who are preparing for the priest­
hood. It is affiliated academ­
ically with Loyola University, 
in Chicago. The college prop­
erty, which was formerly the 
West Baden Springs hotel was 
presented as a gift from the 
owner, Edward Ballard, to the 
Society of Jesus of the Chicago 
Province. The transfer of the 
property was made at West 
Baden on June 27, 1934. Bishop 
Ritter officiated at the formal 
blessing of the college building 
on November 26, 1934. 

Another event concerning the 
institutions of the Diocese oc­
curred when the Congregation 
of Holy Cross took over the 
active management of the Gi­
bault Home for Boys, near Terre 
Haute on September 1, 1934. 

Among other interesting hap­
penings in the Diocese during 
the immediate past was the 
purchase in October, 1934, of 
a home in Brownstown, the 
small parlor of which served as 
a chapel for the celebration of 
Mass for the first time after 
a lapse of a period of thirty 
years. Bishop Ritter's intention 
in reopening a chapel at this 
place was two-fold, he thought 
not only of the fifty or more 
Catholic people who reside in 
that vicinity, but also of the 
spiritual welfare of those in the 
two C. C. C. camps near by. 

A noteworthy fact in recent 
years is that for the first time 
in the history of St. Meinrad's a 
retreat for laymen was con-

ducted there on August 19, 20, 
and 21, 1933. 

JN an official announcement 
· made by Bishop Ritter in Oc­

tober, 1934, he directed that, on 
the Feast of Christ the King, the 
Confraternity of the Blessed 
Sacrament be canonically estab­
lished in all parishes of the Dio­
cese. A quotation from the 
Bishop's letter follows: "Our 
Diocese is known for its great 
Eucharistic Devotion, particu­
larly daily Holy Communion, due 
to the zeal of our beloved prede­
cessor. It should be our desire 
not only to preserve what has 
been accomplished, but to in­
crease and to extend this most 
fruitful of all devotions and 
bring our people closer to the 
Blessed Sacrament." 

As the first anniversary of 
the death of Bishop Chartrand 
drew near, a solemn Pontifical 
Requiem Mass was officially an­
nounced by Bishop Ritter for 
December 10, 1934. It also was 
stated the anniversary date 
should be observed with solem­
nity in all the churches and 
chapels in the Diocese. 

The Diocesan Commission on 
Church Music, the first of its 
kind ever to have been ap­
pointed for this Diocese, was 
named by Bishop Ritter on Jan­
uary 22, 1935. 

An announcement was made 
in June, 1935, concerning the 
reorganization of the Catholic 
Community Center, Indianapo 
lis, according to recommenda­
tions contained in a recent sur­
vey of Catholic Charities. 

NOW, the story of a Diocese 
draws to a close-a Diocese 

whose beginning in a wilderness 
of the New World knew an in­
finite amount of struggle, labor, 
and blessings. This trio might 
be termed the ladder, steep 
though it has been, upon which 
step by step Catholicism in the 
Diocese of Indianapolis has 
mounted during its first one hun­
dred years. That its course will 
continue upward is a thought to 
be considered at this time, and 
one to which has been given sin­
cere expression in a paragraph 
of Bishop Ritter's first pastoral: 

"VV e may rejoice, therefore, 
in our glorious history, but we 
must not rest as though the 
task is ended. The future will 
itself become history. What 
may be said of us a hundred 
years hence matters only in so 
far as it reflects the truth, but 
we want the truth to be that 
we have not neglected the foun­
dation which has been laid, 
rather that we have faithfully 
built upon it. There is no rea­
son why we cannot do so. Al­
though circumstances and diffi­
culties have changed, the for­
mula for the success of the 
Church is the same now as in 
the time of Bishop Brute. We, 
Bishop and priests, need only 
have the same restless zeal, the 
same generous self-sacrifice, the 
same spiritual-mindedness. The 
people need only the same ap­
preciation of their Faith, the 
same devotion to their pastors. 
The example is before us. God 
grant us the courage and perse­
verance to follow it." 

•. 
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The Friars of Oldenburg 
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on a new building was started. 
Named the Convent of the Holy 
Family, it was solemnly dedi­
cated on December 10, 1895, by 
the Most Rev. Silas Chatard, 
the then Bishop of Indianapolis. 
Without regard to the altera­
tions and additions made since 
that time, the convent measured 
a little over 164 feet in length, 
and 40 feet in width. It is situ­
ated in the rear of the present 
church, and in front of the old 
stone one which now served as 
a refectory and community room 
for the priests. 

No major additions to the 
convent buildings were made un­
til the year 1929. For a long 
time before this, the Friars had 
felt the need of a new library 
room, where valuable books 
could be stored without danger 
from fire. Finally, plans for a 
suitable structure were drawn 
up and on April 19, 1929, work 
was begun on its construction. 

This new library addition is 
attached to the southern end 
of the present monastery, thus 
continuing the building along 
Pearl street, so that it reaches 
almost to Water street. It 
comprises a suite of rooms on 
the first floor, reserved for the 
Bishop; two living rooms above; 
a stairway, and the library 
proper. The library part is of 
fireproof construction through­
out, and consists of a main floor, 
measuring 30 by 33 feet, with 
two balconies measuring 8 feet 
wide around all the walls. A 
huge skylight above, and twen­
ty-eight windows along the walls 
provide a plentiful amount of 
light. The new structure was 
blessed by the Most Rev. Joseph 
Chartrand, Bishop of Indianapo­
lis, on January 6, 1930. 

The library has available many 
unusual volumes to complete its 
collection of theological and ec­
clesiastical works, including the 
famous Migne's Latin and Greek 
Patrology. In addition to this 
work, there are various special 
editions of the Fathers and the 
Doctors of the Church. It also 
contains a valuable group of 
both ancient and foreign books, 
increased largely through the 
acquisitions of the Friars who 
have studied abroad. The Fran­
ciscana collection is a real treas­
ure to the student of Franciscan 
history. Of the many books of 
interest in the library is a Paris 
edition of St. Augustine's work 
Opera Omnia, dated 1651, which 
was originally the property of 
the Rt. Rev. Simon Brute, the 
first Bishop of Vincennes. 

At the present time, six Fath­
ers, forty clerics, and eight lay 
brothers reside at Holy Family 
Monastery. The Rev. Baldwin 
Schulte, O.F.M., is Guardian and 
the Rev. Hugh Staud, O.F.M., 
Custos of the Province, Vicar 
of the Convent. The forty cler­
ics studying for the priesthood 
represent only the three higher 
classes of theology, for since the 
fall of 1934, the first year theo­
logians have been assigned to 

Duns Scotus college, the Fran­
ciscan House of Philosophy, in 
Detroit. 

Besides training young men 
for the priesthood, the Fathers 
are also engaged in spiritual 
work. The Rev. Hugh Staud~ 
O.F.M., has been Pastor of Holy 
Family church for the past eight 
years, and the Rev. Ferdinand 
Nirmaier, O.F.M., is the assist­
ant Pastor. The Rev. Baldwin 
Schulte, O.F.M., is chaplain of 
the St. Margaret Mary hospital, 
Batesville, and the Rev. Lambert 
Brockmann, O.F.M., is chaplain 
of the Immaculate Conception 
convent, Oldenburg. In addition, 
the Fathers conduct retreats, 
hear confessions, and give re­
ligious instructions and courses 
in Scholastic philosophy at the 
Sisters' convent. 

From its humble beginnings, 
Holy Family monastery has de­
veloped into a flourishing com­
munity. A well-appointed book­
bindery serves as a valuable ad­
junct to the library, and during 
the summer months the clerics 
bind hundreds of books to help 
stock the shelves of the new 
library. The monastery also, 
despite its rather confined quar­
ters, is equipped with a com­
plete printery, a tailor shop for 
making habits, and a carpenter 
shop for repairs necessary to 
the monastery. 

Eight hives of golden Italian 
bees, situated near the southern 
wall of the refectory provide the 
community with honey through­
out the year. The monastery 
gardens are a source of great 
pleasure to the community, and 
several lay brothers are profi­
cient agriculturalists who see 
that the Friars' daily diet con­
tains home grown fruits and 
vegetables. 

Many years have elapsed since 
Father Nicholas established the 
first house of the Franciscan 
Fathers in Oldenburg. Since his 
time glowing accounts have been 
penned which displays the zeal 
and achievements of those pio­
neer Franciscans and their suc­
c~ssors who have laboired so 
devotedly and successfully in 
Oldenburg and vicinity. Any 
such sketch would be incomplete 
without some mention of the 
Very Rev. Louis Haverbeck, 
O.F.M., who spent the greater 
portion of the seventy-three 
years of his religious life in the 
priesthood in Holy F 'amily mon­
astery. Received into the Order 
of Friars Minor on September 
17, 1862, he celebrated the sev­
entieth anniversary of his or­
dination in 1934. Much of this 
time he spent as teacher and pas­
tor in Oldenburg. He died less 
than a month after his jubilee. 

It is to be hoped that the 
memory of Father Louis, as well 
as other traditions of the Fran­
ciscan Fathers of Oldenburg will 
inflame many a young priest who 
leaves this house of studies with 
the true Apostolic zeal that has 
always characterized the Sons 
of St. Francis. 
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St. Leon and one at Brookville. 
Two years later, they took 
charge of a school at Wolf's 
Creek, agreeing to teach in re­
turn for lodging, food, and a tui­
tion fee of thirty cents a month 
from each child. But the par­
ishioner who owned the house 
which had been rented by the 
parish for a combined convent 
and school, was unable to secure 
the rent of eight dollars a 
month from the parish. When 
rent day arrived and there was 
no settlement, he seized the 
property, set the Sisters' goods 
out in the main road, ordering 
them to leave the house at once. 
There was nothing for them to 
do but return to Oldenburg. 

WHAT was probably the worst 
blow the little community 

had yet suffered ushered in the 
year 1857. On January 23 of 
that year, at two o'clock in the 
afternoon, the Sisters were ob- • 
serving their rule of silence for 
this hour when they were 
alarmed by hearing cries of 
"Fire! Fire !" and the violent 
ringing of the church bells. Fire 
from a defective flue had set the 
attic ablaze, and it was burning 
fiercely, fanned by a strong 
wind. Naturally there were no 
means of extinguishing the 
blaze and the Sisters, aided by 
the townspeople, concentrated 
upon removing furniture, books, 
and linens, most of which were 
saved. Father Weber succeeded 
in securing the Blessed Sacra­
ment. In a short time only 
smoldering ruins were left to 
show the results of seven years 
hard work. 

The Sisters, after working 
most of the afternoon in the 
deep snow, found refuge in the 
old log church which was still 
standing, as it was sometimes 
used as a barn. When Father 
Rudolf returned from New Al­
sace and heard of the disaster, 
he placed the rectory at their 
disposal as a temporary convent. 
Classes were soon resumed and 
life continued in much the old 
established paths. 

But to carry on their work a 
new convent had to be built. 
The loss had been complete as 
there had been no insurance. 
Since there were absolutely no 
funds nor any evident way of se­
curing any, recourse to the gen­
erosity of Catholic friends had 
to be made and Mother Teresa, 
although far from well, set out 
with a companion, Sister Doro­
thea, for a collection tour 
through Cincinnati. Most of the 
trip from Oldenburg to Cincin­
nati was made on foot. Later, 
Mother Teresa went to St. Louis 
on the same mission. The sums 
raised on these trips were aug­
mented by contributions sent by 
friends and missionary associa­
tions in Bavaria, Munich, and 
Vienna. 

The convent that these funds 
made possible, was completed 
November 19, 1857. On Decem­
ber 8, 1858, the F'east of the Im-

maculate Conception, and two 
years before official promulga­
tion of the dogma, services were 
first held in the chapel, and the 
convent, the academy, and later 
the junior college were placed 
under the patronage of Mary 
Immaculate. 

Two years later, in Septem­
ber, 1860, Mother Teresa died 
leaving a well-organized com­
munity of twenty-seven pro­
fessed sisters, twelve novices 
and one postulant, and in charge 
of six schools and one academy. 
In the election which followed 
Mother Teresa's death, Sister 
Antonia was elected Superior 
General of the Community. 
During the first year of her 
administration schools were 
opened in Missouri, Iowa, Ken­
tucky, and several more in In­
diana, including one in Indian­
apolis where the Rev. Simon Si­
grist of St. Mary's parish, asked 
the Sisters to open a girls' 
school. Two Sisters were sent to 
teach a school whose attendance 
of sixty-three pupils doubled in 
a year and rose to 425 in ten 
years. Another school was 
opened in the same year at 
Richmond. 

Another trial came upon the 
Sisters in February of 1864, 
when an epidemic of smallpox 
descended upon the town, but 
fortunately the casualties were 
not great. 

The year was a sad one in 
many ways for the Sisters. Six 
of the younger nuns became ill 
and died. The Bishop alarmed 
by the great number of deaths 
prohibited the nightly vigils be­
fore the Blessed Sacrament. 

The academy had now grown 
with the coming of new pupils, 
the total enrollment at this time 
nu~bering 117. Since the acad­
emy building was much too 
small, an addition corresponding 
in size and shape to the old build­
ing was constructed. 

A FF AIRS moved forward 
smoothly for some time but 

in 1866, the community was 
shocked at the death of its 
founder, Father Rudolf. On his 
death bed he had earnestly 
asked the Bishop that both the 
chaplaincy of the convent and 
the pastorage of Holy Family 
church in the town, be entrusted 
to the Franciscan Fathers of the 
Cincinnati province. This was 
done. 

The years from 1866 to 1872 
were eventful ones for the com­
munity which was now growing 
in every direction. New schools 
were constantly being placed in 
its charge in the four S'tates · of 
Kentucky, Indiana, Missouri, 
and Iowa, and the school estab­
lishments as well as the Convent 
quarters were improved and 
added to through the financial 
help of friends and through the 
labor of the Sisters. In 1872, 
the community again lost a be­
loved leader in Mother Antonia, 
who died on Saturday of Passion 
Week. Final rites were held for 
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TELL CITY 

W. J. GERBER, INC. 
Homes Furnished Completely 

CANNELTON AND TELL CITY, IND. 

Parkview Hospital 
DR. N. A. JAMES 

PHONE 38 TELL CITY, IND. 

WASHINGTON 

The B. Allen Company 
Washington's Leading Store 

New Location-203 E. MAIN for 
Service, Satisfaction and Reasonable Prices 

Smith's Service Grocery 
Kramer's Meat Market 

FREE DELIVERY 

PHONE 47 409 E. MAIN 
WASHINGTON, IND. 

SEYMOUR 

Blish Milling Company 
"Millers in Colonial Days" 

MANUFACTURERS OF WINTER 
WHEAT FLOURS 

SEYMOUR, IND. 

Established 1855 Incorporated 1893 

The Travis Carter Company 
HIGH GRADE MILL WORK 

Veneered Doors and Interior Finish 
Dealers in Lumber, Shingles, Laths, Sash, 

Doors 
SEYMOUR, IND. 

The Central Phannacal 
Company 

SEYMOUR, IND. 

SEYMOUR 
WOOLEN MILLS 

Established 1866 
SEYMOUR, IND. 

THE JAY C. STORES 
FOR 72 YEARS 

Better Quality, Lower Prices 

The John C. Groub Company 
SEYMOUR, IND. 

RICHARTS 
CLOTHIERS 

SEYMOUR, IND. 

Union Hardware Co. 
Hardware and Implements 

Harness, Lumber, Seeds, Etc. 

S. CHESTNUT ST., SEYMOUR, IND. 

I 
DENNY MOTOR TRANSFER 

co. 
SHIELDS TRANSFER CO. 

Phone 761 Seymour, Ind. 

. 



JEFFERSONVILLE 

THE GEO. S. ANDERSON 
COMPANY 

Incorporated 
FOUNDRY AND MACHINE SHOP 

425-427 WATT ST. 
JEFFERSONVILLE, IND. 

"THE PLACE TO EAT" 

Clark County Restaurant 
Everything Sanitary and Up-to-Date 

Open Day and Night-"Our Motto" 
"Promptness and Service to Please" 

PHONE 2075 121 W. COURT ST. 
JEFFERSONVILLE, IND. 

I 

BLACKMAN 
MOTOR SALES 

DeSoto, Plymouth, Pontiac 
724 SPRING ST. PHONE 724 

JEFFERSONVILLE, IND. 

: 

Pfeffer's Bakery 
Fancy Bakery Goods 

JEFFERSONVILLE, IND. 

I 

C.D.REEDER 
THE CLEANER 

LADIES' AND GENTLEMEN'S 
WEARING APPAREL 

6TH AND OHIO PHONE 731 
JEFFERSONVILLE, IND. 

P. F. Myers Lumber Co. 
CLAUD S. MYERS, Prop. 

TELEPHONE 37 714 MEIGS A VE. 
JEFFERSONVILLE, IND. 

SHANNON'S DAIRY 
DAIRY PRODUCTS 

JEFFERSONVILLE, IND. 

I 

Clyde F. Cooks 
PROSECUTING ATTORNEY 

Court House 
JEFFERSONVILLE, IND. 

JOHN Ma MADDEN 
MAGISTRATE 

522 W. Court Avenue 
JEFFERSONVILLE, IND. 

FALLS CITY 
TRANSFER CO. 

PHONE 187 205 E. COURT A VE. 
JEFFERSONVILLE, IND. 

H. N. Crooker 
Supt. Colgate Palmolive Peet Co. 

Jeffersonville, Ind., Plant 

-ENJOY-

CLARK COUNTY 
ICE CREAM CO. 

Jeffersonville, Ind. 

CALL 666 
TAX I 

107 W. Court Ave. Passengers Insured 
JEFFERSONVILLE, IND. 
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her, the Bishop officiating at a 
Pontifical Requiem Mass, on the 
Tuesday of Holy Week. In the 
same year seven Sisters died. 

Her successor, Mother Mi­
chaela, ruled the community for 

the community increased almost 
by one-half, the magnificent 
convent church was built, and 
the convent building completed 
and enlarged. In 1893, the com­
munity was honored by admis­
sion to full participation in the 
spiritual favors accor ded the 
First and Second Orders of St. 
Francis, and the final approba­
tion of the Holy See ix years 

.later, in 1899. 
Two outstanding events 

crown the administration of 
Mother Veronica who succeeded 
Mother Olivia in 1920; the erec-
tion of an adoration chapel and 
the acceptance of the off er to 
administer the diocesan orphan­
age at Vincennes. 

At present the community 
is under the care of Mother • 

JEFFERSONVILLE 

THE INGRAM SAND 
& GRAVEL CO. 

W. T. Ingram & Son 
JEFFERSONVILLE, IND. 

MILLARD A. BADGER 
County Assessor 

Clark County 
JEFFERSONVILLE, IND. 

WM. H. VISSING 
County Recorder 

Clark County 
JEFFERSONVILLE, IND. 
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. twelve years, from 1872 until 
1884. Mother Michaela's ad­
ministration was marked by 
many new ventures the most 
noteworthy being the accept­
ance of a school in yet another 
state-Ohio, and the more ex­
tensive building and• fitting out 
of additions to the academy 
buildings. So highly was the 
community regarded as a Moth­
erhouse of fine teachers that in 
one year alone-1877, eleven 
schools were offered, but had to 
be refused for lack of teachers. 
Unfortunately, the number of 
deaths among the Sisters was 
quite high, even reaching ten or 
more in some years so that the 
community, although professing 
as many as twenty sisters at 
one time, did not grow rapidly. 

Clarissa. During her term of l!::============::..J 

A new page in the history of 
the community was turned with 
the election of Mother Olivia to 
succeed the beloved Mother Mi­
chaela who died on April 9, 
1884. Mother Olivia's long ad­
ministration of thirty-six years, 
from 1884 to 1920, unified and 
strengthened the community. 
At the time of Mother Michae­
la's death, the community num­
bered 234 professed Sisters, 
forty-eight novices, and eleven 
postulants, the community be­
ing in charge of forty-four 
schools. 

During the administration of 
this Superior, the members of 

service, the community has suc­
cessfully erected two magnifi­
cent buildings, St. Anges Novi­
tiate and normal school at the 
Motherhouse, and Our Lady of 
the Angels, Archdioce an school 
at Cincinnati. 

Today Oldenburg is the Moth­
erhouse of this community of 
the Franciscan Sisters. Situ­
ated amid beautifully land­
scaped grounds are the build­
ings so beloved of the 815 mem­
bers of the Order, and the alma 
mater to which the grateful 
minds of several generations of 
alumnae often turn. A far cry, 
indeed, from the small frame 
house which welcomed a single 
nun, Sister Teresa, in 1851; but 
it is one which is typical of the 
great growth of the past one 
hundred years. 

The Rev. Francis Joseph Rudolf, 
founder of the Oldenburg Commu­
nity of the Sisters of St. Francis. 

NORTH VERNON 

UNION BANK AND TRUST 
COMPANY 

NORTH VERNON, IND. 

Capital, surplus, undivided profits $140,000 
Total Resources $840,000 

Officers and Employees: John Clerkin, Pres­
ident; Frank Robinson, Vice-President; A. 
E- Siener, Cashier; Arthur Ferguson, Asst. 
Cashier; Alice C. Davenport, Asst. Cashier; 
Dorothy Davenport, Bookkeeper. 

Each deposit up to $5,000 insured with 
F. D . I. Corporation 

"THE BANK OF STEADY SERVICE" 

HO~~k s~!;!~~!_OLE I 
Steam Heat, Hot and Cold Running Water 

Private Baths 
COFFEE SHOP IN CONNECTION 

NORTH VERNON, IND. 

FLETCHER DOWD 
FUNERAL DIRECTOR 

130-132 WALNUT STREET 
NORTH VERNON, IND. 

PHILIP FOX 
Fresh and Smoked Meats 

North Vernon, Ind. 

George J. Diekhoff 
Funeral Director-Furniture 

PHONE 50 
NORTH VERNON, IND. 

KREIN BROS. 
Electrical Work, Plumbing, Motor 

Rewinding and Repairing · 

Madison Ave. 

NORTH VERNON, IND. 

BANK WITH US 
The safety 0£ our depositors has always 

been, and will always be our first 
consideration. 

First National Bank 
A GOOD, STRONG BANK 

NORTH VERNON, IND. 

RICHMOND 

D.E.DeHAVEN 
Proprietor of E. J. KNAPP CO. 
Repairs to all Makes of Furnaces 

Sheet Metal Workers 
Phone 2371 331 S. Sixth St. 

RICHMOND, IND. 
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SOUTH BEND 

O'~N 
for owners who want the most 

out of paint. 
Paints and varnishes made with O'Brien Patented 
THERMOL YZED TUNG OIL instead of linseed or or­
dinary oils offer property owners new satisfaction and 
vastly increased economy] Made by an Indiana Man­
ufacturer of 60 years standing T.T.O. finishes embody 
smoothness, lustre, permanent color, and general 
wear that paint chemists did not dream possible a 
few years ago. For the most satisfactory painting 
you 've ever experienced . . . ask your dealer for 
O 'Brien T.T.O. Paints and Varnishes. 

O'BRIEN VARNISH COMPANY 
SOUTH BEND, IND. 

Since 1875 

ELECTRIC ARC WELDING - ST ACK BUILDING - ACETYLENE WELDING 
GENERAL BOILER WORK 

SOUTH BEND WELDING AND BOILER REPAIR 
PHONE 4-4631 SOUTH BEND, IND. 122 S. NILES AVENUE 

A. R. KNOEBEL 

INDIANA CAB CO. 
3-9333 

SOUTH BEND, IND. 

MADISON 

G. A. RANEY 

MADISON BOTTLING WORKS 
HIGH GRADE SOFT DRINKS AND BEERS 

316 WEST MAIN ST. MADISON, IND. 

MADISON UTILITIES 
CORPORATION 

PHONE 480 

GAS SERVICE IN MADISON SINCE 1851 

W. H. MILLER & SONS 
WHOLESALE AND RETAIL LUMBER 

EVERYTHING YOU WOULD FIND IN A GOOD LUMBER YARD 

PHONE 128-248 MADISON, IND. 823 W. MAIN ST. 

MADISON LIGHT AND POWER 
COMPANY 

Incorporated 

MADISON, IND. 

FRANKFORT 

THE ADLER CO. 
Frankfort, Ind. 

A Modern 
Monastery 

Continued from page 27 

day. The abbey numbers eighty­
two priests, thirty clerics and 
choir novices, forty-five lay 
brothers, three brother novices, 
and twenty-seven junior broth­
ers, most of whom are engaged 
in teaching. Ten priests are in 
Sioux Indian missions in Dako­
ta. Many of the other priests 
are working in the parishes of 
this and other dioceses. One 
preparatory school, Marmion, in 
Aurora, Illinois, with an attend­
ance of three hundred and 
twenty-five boarders and dav 
students, is under the care ouf 
nine of the Fathers and two 
brothers. · 

The institution has always 
been compared to a miniature 
city and correctly so, for it is al­
most completely self-contained. 
It has its own coal mines and 
its own quarries where, all the 
stone for the buildings is cut 
and trimmed by members of the 
Order. The beauty of this stone 
work in the chapel is so famous 
that of late architects are mak­
ing use of it in other buildings 
beyond the abbey confines-no­
tably in the Indiana State Li­
brary building in Indianapolis. 
Likewise, all the wood work is 
made from trees cut from 
among those on the 1,000-acre 
tract attached to the abbey, and 
the artistry of the brothers is 
best shown in the magnificently 
built and carved pontifical 
throne in the abbey church. The 
community has its own commu­
nity tailor and barber shops, its 
own smithy and forge. 

Horse barns and a modern 
dairy, complete with over sixty­
five Holsteins, and the most 
modern equipment including 
barns, silos, milk rooms, care­
taker's home, garages, pens, and 
everything else needed for the 
production of 54,000 gallons of 
milk per year are in evidence. 
Eighty-eight thousand eggs are 
produced by the 1,000 hens in 
the poultry houses, and 127,000 
pounds of meat are annually 
prepared in the sanitary slaugh­
ter house. All vegetables and 
garden produce are raised on 
the surrounding gardens, fields 
and vineyards. A large central 
heating plant, an electric power 
house, a pumping station filtra­
tion plant and water tower with 
a capacity of half a million gal­
lons fill in the picture. 

The cooking for the entire 
population on the abbey 
grounds is done in a modern 
kitchen equal to that of any in 
the larger hotels in the country. 
Electricity is used for all the 
stoves and steam tables as well 
as for the roller cabinets which 
convey the food hot to the six or 
more dining rooms on the sides 
of the kitchen. Father John 
Thuis is in charge of the com­
missary, which is called upon to 
serve seventy-five gallons of 
coffee, one thousand, five hun­
dred slices of bread, four bush­
els of potatoes and several 
hundred pounds of meat for one 
menu. Every modern conve-

MADISON 

I 
COFIELD-BARBER 

GROCERY CO. 
WHOLESALE GROCERS 

135-137 E. MAIN ST., PHONES 189, 463 
MADISON, IND. 
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MAIN MOTOR CO. 
~ SALES 

QUICK 
SERVICE - MADISON, IND. 

WETZEL'S 
West End Drug Store 
Drugs, Paints and Heavy Drugs 

PHONE 396 MADISON, IND. 

INGLIS HAS IT 

IF IT'S FOUND IN A 

DRUG STORE 

MADISON, IND. 

THE HAIGH FUNERAL 
HOME 

SIDNEY E. HAIGH 

PHONE 672 726 W. MAIN ST. 
MADISON, IND. 

THE COLEMAN CO. 
AUTOMOTIVE SERVICE 

MADISON, IND. 

The Farmer's Store 
Agents for John Deere Line 

Used Farm Implements Of All Kinds 

PHONE 231 MADISON, IND. 

OSCAR C. BEAR 
JEWELER and OPTICIAN 

MADISON, IND. 

John Knoebel & Son 
SOUTHERN INDIANA'S 

BEST CLOTHING STORE 

MADISON, IND. 

MORRIS 
Sc & 10c to $1.00 STORE 
MADISON, IND. 

SOUTH BEND 

HARRY D. ULLERY 
COAL CO. 

COAL, COKE AND MASON SUPPLIES 

319 S. ST. PETER ST. 
SOUTH BEND, IND. 

A FRIEND 
South Bend, Ind. 
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SHELBYVILLE 

CHAMBERS 
"The World's Finest Gas 

Range" 

CHAMBERS CORP. 
"Cook With the Gas 

Turned Off" 
SHELBYVILLE, IND. 

GOODMAN'S 
DEPT. STORE 

Rushville, Ind. 
Greenfield, Ind. 

Crawfordsville, Ind. 
Shelbyville, Ind. 
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nience is made use of, including ST. MEINRAD 
enormous refrigerating rooms. 

THE main buildings are joined 
in the traditional Benedic­

tine style, the quadrangle, the 
monastery forming the east 
front, the Major and Minor sem­
inaries the west side, the abbey 
church and the library closing 
the north side, and the Minor 
seminary wing at the south. The 
church is perhaps the most at­
tractive building of the group 
which is natural since, and as 
m all Benedictine institutions, 

massive structure two hundred 

"FOR BETTER SERVICE"---DAY OR NIGHT 

FRANK A. RUXER 
SALES 

SERVICE 
PHONE 15 

ST. MEINRAD, IND. 

AL VIN C. RUXER 
Authorized -~ Rain or Shine-Hot or Cold, We are 

SALES-SERVICE ~ Always ~::: to Serve 

ST. MEINRAD, IND. 

SHELBYVILLE 
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I 
great and elaborate care was 
taken in its building. It is a 

by seventy-two feet of stone 
masonry, built · in the Roman­
esque style. It contains an !.!=:===========~ exquisitely detailed high altar, 

Central States Grain 
Association, Inc. 

Highest Prices Paid for Grain and Seeds 
PHONE 85 

Shelbyville, Ind. 

STANLEY JONES 
AGENCY, INC. 

INSURANCE, REAL ESTATE 
AND INVESTMENTS 

18 North Harrison Street 
SHELBYVILLE, IND. 

C. P. SINDLINGER 
Wholesale and Retail Dealer in 

Fresh and Cured Meats and all Kinds of 
Sausage-Snow White Lard 

Phone 68 60 E. Washington St. 
Free D elivery Shelbyville, Ind. 

The Daniel DePrez 
Manufacturing Co. 

Shelbyville, Ind. 

SANDMAN BROS. 
"The Automobile Store" 

Shelbyville, Ind. 

FARMERS NATIONAL 
BANK 

Shelbyville, Ind. 

C ·OAL 
Scott and Snyder 

Phone 813 Shelbyville, Ind. 

FRANKFORT 

BLAKE & HAM 
JEWELRY STORE 

EST. 1874 
J. Leslie Rowe, Prop. 
S. SIDE OF SQUARE 
FRANKFORT, IND. 

BROOKVILLE 

I 
Complete Home Furnishings 

Roberts Furniture Co. 
724-726 MAIN ST. PHONE 44 

BROOKVILLE, IND. 

constructed in Europe of Italian 
marble· and firegilt bronze. Be­
sides thirteen a ltars, the church 
has various chapels, and the 
choir stalls of a monastic church. 
The art glass windows are rec­
ognized both here and abroad 
as some of the finest in America. 
In addition to the tower chimes, 
the church contains a double or­
gan of three thousand, one hun­
dred and fifteen pipes occupying 
two lofts in the chancel of the 

cial services. To the rear of the 

CHAS. M. EWING 

Funeral Director 
I earnestly endeavor to render a Sincere 
Service in your greatest hour of bereavement 

PHONE 139 SHELBYVILLE, IND. 

Kennedy Car Liner and Bag Co. 
Largest Producers of Hand Made Bags in the World 

SHELBYVILLE, IND. 

church. Two galleries are nee- I 
essary to hold the visitors at spe-

nave is the Lady chapel or Ein­
siedeln chapel fashioned after 
the "Gnaden Kapelle" of the ab­
bey at Einsiedeln, and in the ~=-=_=_=_=_=_=_=_=_=_=_=_=_=_=_=_=_=_=_=_=_=_=_=_=_=_=_=_=_=_=_=_=_=~_=_=_=_=_=_=_=_=_=~_=_=_=_=_=_=_=_::::.J_ 
crypt beneath the chancel are 
four grottoes built of Ohio 
stone, one a representation of 
the cave in which St. Benedict 
lived near Subiaco, Italy, an-
other a grotto of Lourdes, a re-
production of the Garden of 
Gethsemani, and fourth, the 
tomb of our Saviour. 

The abbey also has a three­
floor printing office where two 
monthly magazines, "The Grail" 
in English and the "Paradielies­
Fruchte" in German are printed. 
The s-chool paper, "Campus 
Chatter," books, leaflets in all 
forms, and printing work for 
other institutions are also print-

Claude F. Fix Rufus W. Fix 

ell F. FIX & soN 
MORTUJ!~RY-26 EAST BROADWAY 

COURTESY, PHOMPTNESS and EFFICIENT SERVICE 

Phone 293 Shelbyville, Ind. 

i;£i{]Yoi::_abb;{y ~~~efn 1;i:; ! THE SHELBY NATIONAL BANK I 
The abbey has three major de-

partments, the religious and , SHELBYVILLE, IND. 
spiritual, the educational, and We Are Here To Serve You 

the material. For the latter ==========================:::::..J 
there are thirty departments in-
cluding the farm executive and I 
the maintenance departments. I MILLER-Y ARLING ICE CREAM 
In regard to the educational por-
tion of the work, the courses in- STORES IN 
elude, twelve years of study, six Shelbyville-Columbus-Seymour-Greenfield-Greensburg 
in the Minor and six in the Ma-
j or seminaries. This curriculum ==========================:::::::.J 
provides for a classical, philo-
sophical, and theological train­
ing. 

When Father Martin was 
elected first abbot of St, Mein­
rad, Bishop de St. Palais re­
marked, "The prosperity of this 
community is, in my opinion, 
the prosperity of the diocese, 
and I hope the joy of Saint 
Meinrad will always be the joy 
of the Bishop of Vincennes." 
Later bishops have continued 
this policy and to their encour­
agement and assistance, partic­
ularly that of the late Bishop 
Chartrand, the abbey owes its 
success. 

GREENFIELD 

CONKL[N LUMBER COMPANY 
BUILDING MATERIAL-GOOD COAL 

MADE WELL MILL WORK 

South and Mount Streets-Phone 32 Greenfield, Ind. 

LYNAM FUNERAL HOME 
LADY ASSISTANT - AMBULANCE SERVICE 

Phone 92 Greenfield, Ind. 

-\ 
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Academy Of 

The Immaculate Conception 
FERDINAND, IND. 

A boarding and day school for girls and young ladies conducted by the 
Sisters of St. Benedict. Commissioned by the Board of Education of Indi­
ana to confer on its graduates all the privileges and rights of commissioned 

· high schools. 

Special facilities for the study of music and art. Location healthful and the 
convenient grounds are extensive and beautiful. The building is well 
equipped for educational work. 

AIMS: Physical health, solid knowledge, cultivated manners, and thorough 
moral and religious training. 

For Particulars, Address: 
t 

SISTER SUPERIOR, Academy of The Immaculate Conception, Ferdinand, Indiana. 

Convent of The Immaculate Conception 
SISTERS OF ST. BENEDICT 

Ferdinand, Ind. 

EDWARD J. SCHULTE, A. I. A. J. F. RUSSELL & COMPANY 
Architect General Contractors 

Cincinnati, Ohio Louisville, Kentucky 
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THE-W. D. 
CALLAN CO. 

VENTILATING 
AIR CONDITIONING 

3919 MAIN AVENUE 

Norwood, Cincinnati, Ohio 

Lumber and Millwork 

FURNISHED BY 

Louisville, Ky. 

m. J. (bllfplA-
ELECTRICAL WORK 

FERDINAND, IND. 

Geo. F. Voigt & Son 
PLUMBING and HEATING CONTRACTORS 

Telephone 66 - Voigt Building 

JEFFERSONVILLE, IND. 

JhR.. l1AL <ffli,.d.U(L & Ji!,,_ eo. 
FT. WAYNE, IND. 

TILE and TERRAZZO 

Main Office Toledo, Ohio 

SLATE - TILE - ASBESTOS ROOFING 
SHEET METAL WORK 

We did the Roofing and Sheet Metal work at St. Meinrad's 
Abbey and at the Academy of The Immaculate Conception 

OHIO VALLEY HARDWARE & 
ROOFING COMPANY 

Evansville, Ind. 

C. M. Robinson 
Company 

2327 Florence St. 

Cincinnati, Ohio 

DISTRIBUTORS Phone Main 1316 
"Plant" 85 % Magnesia 
Vermiculite High Temp. 

Home Insulation 

THE ASBESTOS 
SUPPLY & MFG. CO. 

Manufacturers, Contractors and Dealers in 

Asbestos and Magnesia Products 

E. C. WULFECK 57-59 Main Street 
Pres. & Treas. CINCINNATI, 0 . 

KENO RosA Co. 

Ji!JL WD'lk 
LOUISVILLE, KY. 

Humph:rey Construction 
Co. 

INCORPORATED 

RADIAL STACKS AND 
CHIMNEY SPECIALISTS 

We Do All Kinds of Steeple Jack Work, Sandblasting, 
Church Steeples, Crosses, Signs, Industrial 

Painting, Lightning Rod Equipment 
Installed 

WRECKING, REPAIRING, PAINTING 
FIRE BRICK AND BOILER WORK 

"NO JOB TOO LARGE OR TOO SMALL FOR US" 

909 REALTY BUILDING - PHONE JACKSON 3027 
LOUISVILLE, KY. 

We Are Constructing a Red Radial Tile Smoke 
Stack, 100 Fee1t High, for the Benedictine Sisters New 

Addition at Ferdinand, Indiana. 
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WASHINGTON 

TIP TOP CREAMERY COMPANY 
DAIRY PRODUCTS 

WASHINGTON, IND. 

WARD AUTO CO., INC. 
SALES ~~ SERVICE 

"FRIENDLY FOLKS" ~ PHONE 132 
~ WASHINGTON, IND. 

RELIANCE MFG. CO. 
BIG YANK WORK SHIRTS 

SOLD BY ALL LEADING STORES-WE APPRECIATE YOUR PATRONAGE 

WASHINGTON, IND. 

EATON & WAGNER 
MONUMENTS-MEMORIALS-MARK EVERY GRAVE 

FIFTH AND WALNUT STS. WASHINGTON, IND. 

LOANSl 
THE COMMUNITY LOAN CORPORATION 

PHONE 87 - ROOMS 213-214 STATE BANK BUILDING - 0. W. GREGORY, Mgr. 

SEYMOUR 

TOWER FUNERAL HOME 
I earnestly endeavor to render a sincere service in 

your greatest hour of bereavement. 

Phone Main 201 315 Walnut Street 

SEYMOUR, IND. 

Authorized Buick and Pontiac Sales and Service 
A COMPLETE LINE OF PARTS AND ACCESSORIES 

DAY AND NIGHT SERVICE 

SEYMOUR MOTOR SALES 
BODY AND WRECK REBUILDING 

101-103 W. 3RD STREET SEYMOUR 

GOLD MINE DEPT. STORE 
Over One-half Century of Faithful Service 

SEYMOUR, INDIANA 

YATER BEVERAGE CO. 
MANUFACTURERS AND DISTRIBUTORS OF BOTTLED BEVERAGES 

108-110 JEFFERSONVILLE A VE. PHONE MAIN 6 
SEYMOUR, IND. 

LOUISVILLE, KY. 

ROGERS CHURCH GOODS CO. 
RELIGIOUS ARTICLES 

Agents for Daprato Statuary Co. of Chicago 
and Olivaxine and Fides Sanctuary Candles 

FOR CHURCH AND HOME 

129 S. FOURTH ST. LOUISVILLE, KY. 
THE OLDEST CHURCH GOODS HOUSE IN THE SOUTH 

The Golden Rule 

Continued from page 42 

taken. In that year, when the 
state convention met, it was 
found that a considerable sum 
was in the treasury; and the 
committee appointed years ear­
lier returned to the task at hand. 

The first and most necessary 
step was the selection of a 
proper site, and although many 
generous offers were made, the 
committee finally decided in 
1921 to purchase the magnificent 
F'red B. Smith estate, five miles 
south of Terre Haute. This site 
was ideal in its surroundings, its 
buildings, and its equipment; 
its selection meant that opera­
tions might be immediately be­
gun. Although the original sale 
price of seventy-five thousand 
dollars created a stumbling 
block, the purchase price was 
finally set at fifty thousand dol­
lars, the remainder being con­
sidered a donation by the 
owners. 

Five months after the pur­
chase of the site the dedication 
and formal opening of the insti­
tution was held on October 9, 
1921. This opening was soon 
followed by many commitments 
of Catholic boys and in a very 
short time the Gibault Home 
had under its care more than 
the number of boys for which 
it had been originally designed. 

Although much was being 
done for the boys, there still 
remained a great deal to do be­
fore the Home could efficiently 
operate. The two bishops in 
Indiana, recognizing its great 
need, issued a joint pastoral let­
ter, appealing to the Catholics 
of the State for assistance. The 
Knights of Columbus, in the in­
terest of their project, were 
asked to contribute. The re­
sponse to both requests was 
sufficient for the building of a 
much needed dormitory, which 
was solemnly dedicated on May 
28, 1922. 

Two years had scarcely 
elapsed when the need for more 
buildings and increased facilities 
made another appeal necessary. 
On September 1, 1926, the first 
unit was opened. 

The Rev. Michael J. Gorman, 
founder and director of the 
Home for thirteen years , was 
replaced in 1934, when he be­
came Pastor of St. Anthony's 
church, Indianapolis, Indiana. 
On September 1, 1934, the 
brothers of Holy Cross from 
Notre Dame assumed charge. 
The present staff includes: 
Brother Rupert, C.S.C., Direc­
tor; Brother Anastasi us, C.S.C., 
Assistant Director; Rev. J. J. 
Reddington, C.S.C., Chaplain; 
Brother Oswin, C.S.C., Prefect 
of Discipline; Brother Avila, 
C. S. C., engineer and electri­
cian; and two lay professors. 

The same educational system 
followed in Catholic parochial 
high schools is used at the 
Home, the teachers being quali­
fied by the state and are grad­
uates of Notre Dame University 
and the State Teachers College. 
In addition to the regular school 

work, practical training is given 
in agriculture, vocational work, 
horticulture, printing, and shop 
work, in order to fit the students 
to become useful and productive 
citizens. 

The school is divided into two 
departments, junior and senior. 
All pre-adolescent boys are 
classified as "juniors" and are 
segregated from the older boys, 
who reside in a separate build­
ing. The senior department con­
sists of boys from thirteen to 
eighteen years of age. 

The growth of the institution 
has been rapid and continuous. 
During the first few years the 
enrollment ranged from fifty to 
eighty boys, and the Home has 
cared for 321 children since its 
opening. Although the present 
enrollment is fifty boys, ranging 
in age from ten to eighteen 
years, the real capacity of the 
Home is one hundred boys, the 
majority of whom are court com­
mitment cases, since the Home 
is primarily intended for delin­
quent or problem children. How­
ever, private wards are being 
cared for by the Brothers for a 
reasonable charge. 

Much work has been done 
since the Brothers have taken 
charge in improving and bring­
ing up to date the physical plant 
of the Home. The large dormi­
tory has been completely reno­
vated and painted and similar 
work has been done on the gym­
nasium. A new students' chapel 
has also been erected. 

The Catholic Community Center 
of Indianapolis· 

THE Catholic Community Gen-
ter of Indianapolis came into 

existence as a result of the 
realization that many Catholic 
people were economically inca­
pable of supporting themselves, 
many of them being in actual 
need, with little immediate hope 
their c o n d i t i o n would be 
changed. In order that the work 
of alleviating this need be effi­
ciently and effectively carried 
out, a centralized institution for 
the distribution of charity where 
there would be no duplication, 
was greatly needed, and the 
Community Center was formed. 
In reality it is an outgrowth of 
two other organizations which 
preceded it in this work-the 
Catholic Women's Association, 
and the Daughters of Isabella . 

The Catholic Women's Asso­
ciation was organized in 1910, 
mainly through the instrumen­
tality of the Rt. Rev. Francis 
H. Gavisk, V.G., and Mrs. Mar­
garet Taylor. Incorporated as 
an Association under the patron­
age of Our Lady of Good Coun­
sel, its original purpose con­
sisted mainly in the providing 
of a headquarters for the friend­
less girl who sought employ­
ment or was employed in Indian­
apolis. 

The first step was the renting 
of a home on Capitol avenue, 
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but for various reasons changes 
were made, and it was finally 
decided that a home should be 
bought as a foundation upon 
which the Association could 
progress consistently. Money 
and a tract of land on Tenth 
street were donated, and later 
a tract on Pennsylvania street 
was secured. One building was 
utilized as a home for girls and 
the other rented as a means of 
financing the project. Through 
social activities and membership 
drives, the Association became 
self-supporting. 

Meanwhile, the Daughters of 
Isabella, an organization having 
its inception on September 26, 
1915, had become active in 
similar work. After the diffi­
culties attendant upon founda­
tion, the organization began 
seriously to consider with what 
work in the sphere of social 
service it might best interest 
itself. During the World War, 
many women were engaged to 
take the place of the men who 
were in the army and were un­
able to properly care for their 
children, so the work of con­
ducting a Day Nursery was un­
dertaken. Because of the suit­
able location, St. John's · school 
was acquired as the first home. 

A drive for finances was be­
gun. Twenty thousand dollars 
was raised in a short time, this 
sum being later augmented by 
another allotted by the Com­
m unity Fund for the furthering 
of this work. After serious con­
sideration the opening of an­
other venture was proposed and 
it was decided to build a home 
for unmarried mothers. As a 
result of this decision, St. Eliza­
beth's home, 2500 Churchman 
avenue, was established in 1921, 
but four years later was com­
pletely destroyed by fire. A 
second and more modern home 
was immediately begun, the 
finances being secured by means 
of drives. The organization is 
now primarily concerned with 
the working of the home, but is 
most willing and anxious at any 
time to cooperate in any way 
intended to further work for the 
alleviation of suffering or priva­
tion. 

During this time the Rt. Rev. 

Maurice O'Connor, then chap­
lain of the Daughters of Isa­
bella, was engaged in social 
service work among needy 
Catholic families. But the de­
mand for help greatly exceeded 
the capacity of Catholic organi­
zations engaged in this work. 
The condition became acute in 
1921, when these families were 
being largely taken care of by 
the Shriners. After some dis­
cussion, the Most Rev. Joseph 
Chartrand, the Bishop of Indian­
apolis, gave permission for steps 
to be taken to change the situa­
tion. With the help of the 
Daughters of Isabella, a drive 
was made and a donation of 
funds secured from the Com­
munity Fund. Soon after, on 
May 2, 1923, the Directors of 
the Catholic Women's Associa­
tion, acting on Father O'Con­
nor's advice, deeded their Penn­
sylvania street property to the 
Bishop to be used as a Catholic 
Community Center. As a result 
of this action, the Catholic Com­
munity Center assumed the 
debt, and the Catholic Women's 
Association was dissolved, al­
though it still maintains super­
vision of the working girls' 
home at 1010 N. Pennsylvania 
street. 

These two buildings were 
taken over and immediately re­
modeled, both buildings being 
combined for use as offices of 
the Catholic Community Center 
and the Bureau of Catholic 
Charities. 

The Catholic Community Cen­
ter continued to function in this 
form until 1935, when it was 
decided that increased work and 
difficulties brought on by the de­
pression had so changed condi­
tions that a reorganization was 
considered desirable and neces­
sary. A survey of all Catholic 
Charities was begun by Miss 
Weltha M. Kelley, director of 
social case work at the Univer­
sity of St. Louis, at the request 
of the Most Rev. Joseph E. Rit­
ter, Bishop of Indianapolis. 

Miss Kelley's report included 
complete plans for the reorgani­
zation of the Center. The plans 
were approved by the Commu­
nity Fund officials and the new 
directors of the Community 

The present home of the Catholic 
Community Center in Evansville. • 

LAWRENCEBURG 

FITCH BHOS. FUNERAL HOME 
Office 56 - PHONES - Res. 305 

LAWRENCEBURG, IND. 

I THE PEOPLES NATIONAL BANK I 
FIFTY YEAHS OF SECURITY AND SERVICE 

I.A WRENCEBURG, IND. 

==========.J 

I 
LAWRENCEBURG ROLLER 

MILLS CO. 
DAILY CAPACITY-2500 BARRELS WHEAT STORAGE, OVER 1,000,000 BARRELS 

"TOWN TALK"-"HI-BOY"-"ROYAL MAIL" FLOURS 
LAWRENCEBURG, IND. 

===========.J 

JERSEYDALE 
ICE CREAM 

LAWRENCEBURG, IND. 

BOONVILLE 

Get Our Catalog and Prices 
Before Ordering Baby Chicks 

SCHEER'S ELECTRIC 
HATCHERY' 

BOONVILLE, IND. 

BOONVILLE OIL COMPANY 
GASOLINE, KEROSEN E, OILS AND GREASES 

TIRES, BATTERIES AND ACCESSORIIES 
JAMES F. ENSOR, Mgr. 

RES., 27-M PHONES OFFICE, 27-J 

Boonville Ice and Storage Company 
SOUTH FOURTH ST. BOONVILLE, IND. 

THE BOONVILLE NATURAL 
GAS CO. 

Hendrickson Chevrolet Co., Inc. 
TELEPHONE 600 BOONVILLE, IND. NORTH SECOND 

BEDFORD 

YOUR BANK 

THE CITIZENS NATIONAL BANK 
EDWARD E. FAR _ER, President WALTER H. SHERRILL, V-Pres . 

ARCH C. VORIS, Cashier RALPH A . M OORE , Asst . Cashier 

BEDFORD, IND. 



80 The Indiana Catholic and Record 

LINTON 

HAMILTON GEM 
DRUG STO'RE 5 AND 10c STORE 

LINTON, IND. LINTON, IND. 

DEPOSITS GUARANTEED BY THE FEDERAL DEPOSIT 
INSURANCE CORPORATION 

UP TO $5,000.00 FOR EACH DEPOSITOR 

PEOPLE'S TRUST COMPANY 
LINTON, IND. 

POWEL & NORRIS 
FANCY GROCERIES AND MEAT MARKET-QUALITY MERCHANDICE ONLY 

PHONE 34 and 85 LINTON, IND. 

A HOME OWNED INSTITUTION FOR 52 YEARS OF CONTINUOUS SERVICE 
GREENE COUNTY'S OLDEST INDUSTRY CATERING TO THE PUBLIC WITH 

QUALITY MERCHANDISE AT PRICES YOU CAN AFFORD TO PAY. 

J. W. WOLFORD & SONS 
LINTON IND. 

THE FASTEST GROWING BANK IN GREENE COUNTY 

Citizens National Bank of Linton 
LINTON, IND. 

TIPTON 

DEL MAR BEAUTY SALON 
CHOICE OF DISCRIMINATING WOMEN 

COMPLETE BEAUTY SERVICE - GRADUATE OPERATORS 

Women's Apparel - Phone 18 - Cosmetics 

128 East Jefferson Street Tipton, Ind. 

JASPER 

1876-1935-OUR 60th YEAR 

THE JASPER DESK CO. 
JASPER, IND. 

JASPER VENEER MILLS 
MANUFACTURERS OF 

COMMERCIAL VENEERS 
JASPER, IND. 

LOUIS M. BUECHBIN C. U. GRAMELSPACHER 

DUBOIS COUNTY BEVERAGE CO. 

PHONE 94 JASPER, IND. 

JASPER SEATING COMPANY 
INCORPORATED 

MANUFACTURERS OF 

OFFICE, SCHOOL AND OCCASIONAL CHAIRS 
JASPER, IND. 

Center include Bishop Ritter as 
honorary chairman, Charles L. 
Barry as active chairman, and 
the Rev. August Fussenegger, 
diocesan director of Catholic 
Charities, as secretary. The re­
organization by Father Fussen­
egger, assisted by Miss Kelley, 
began at once, and is now vir­
tually complete. Prior to the 
reorganization, the directors in 
c h a r g e included Monsignor 
O'Connor, the Rev. Bernard 
Sheridan, the Rev. Francis Mel­
len, and the present director, 
Father Fussenegger. 

At the present time, the bu­
reau of Catholic Charities as­
sumes responsibility for Child 
Welfare work, Family Case 
work, Individual Case work, and 
applications for entrance to St. 
Vincent School, Vincennes, while 
the Catholic Community Center 
does Family Case work and 
Court work. 

The Catholic Community Center 
of Evansville 

THE Catholic Community Cen-
ter of Evansville was for­

mally opened on January 1, 
1924, by the local chapter of the 
Daughters of Isabella. Prior to 
this time, the women of the 
organization had sought for 
some line of charitable activity, 
and after much consideration, 
determined to establish a house 
which would serve as a Catholic 
home for girls coming to Evans­
ville from surrounding towns to 
accept positions or to attend 
school. During the regency of 
Miss Therese B. Sieff ert, the 
possibility of such a home mate­
rialized. 

Miss Seiffert had long been 
interested in a project of this 
sort, her attention having been 
first called to it during a period 
of residence in Bisbee, Arizona. 
The project continued to grow 
and prosper and the Daughters 
decided to incorporate in order 
that they might buy and own 
property. By-laws were adopted 
and on June 29, 1926, the Catho­
lic Community Center was in­
corporated by the Daughters of 
Isabella, Evansville Circle No. 
144, hereafter known as the 
Catholic Community Center of 
Evansville, Indiana. Articles 
were adopted in which a Board 
to consist of the Regent, the 
Past Regent, the Vice-Regent 
and the three Trustees of the 
Circle and one Trustee chosen 
from the members in good 
standing annually at the time of 
the election of Circle officers, 
such Trustee to serve for the 
term of one year, were placed in 
complete charge. 

On July 1, 1926, two houses, 
adjoining each other, on the cor­
ner of Seventh and Vine streets, 
were purchased. The work of 
remodeling was immediately be­
gun and in September, 1926, the 
home, now known as the Catho­
lic Community Center, was 
ready for occupancy. The house 
itself was sufficiently large for 
eighteen girls to be accommo­
dated, containing in addition to 
sleeping quarters, reception par­
lors and a well equipped kitchen 
where the girls can prepare 
their own meals. 

Other features included a 

radio and circulating library. 
The atmosphere of home has 
done much to dispel the nos­
talgia and loneliness which girls 
so often encounter on their first 
experience a way from home. 
While strictly a Catholic home, 
non-Catholic girls are welcome. 

Later, in August, 1930, a house 
on the south side of the home 
was purchased. The house it­
self was razed and the ground 
landscaped, thus placing the 
home in a more attractive en­
vironment. Although the home 
is not self-supporting, extra re­
sources are gained by various 
monthly activities, among which 
are a Thursday noon luncheon, 
prepared for the public by the 
Daughters of Isabella, who gra­
tuitously give their time and 
labor to this work. The project 
has been so successful that the 
home and its furnishing, with 
an estimated value of about 
thirty thousand dollars, is en­
tirely free from debt. 

St. Vincent's Day Nursery 

THE St. Vincent's Day Nur-
sery, located in Evansville, 

was founded November 18, 1918, 
by a group of Catholic women 
known as the Ladies of Charity. 
The choice of this work as a 
suitable and worthy charitable 
enterprise was a most timely 
one. America's participation in 
the World War had caused a 
chaotic condition to exist in the 
field of employment. The vast 

. number of positions unfilled be­
cause of the male worker being 
called to arms, and the constant 
demand for manufactured prod­
ucts, in addition to the lowering 
of family income, resulted in the 
steady increase in the number 
of women workers. Naturally 
many of these women were 
mothers who were unable to 
properly care for their children 
throughout the day. 

In response to this condition 
a house owned by Assumption 
parish, and located near the As­
sumption school, was secured, 
but its growth was so steady, 
and the increase in demand so 
constant that within less than a 
year larger quarters were need­
ed. Through the generosity of 
Mr. John Fendrich, and his sis­
ter, Mrs. D. J. McCarty, a suit­
able building was purchased at 
517 Bond street. 

The Sisters of Charity of St. 
Mary's hospital were in charge 
throughout the day, returning 
to the hospital in the evening. 
Mothers brought their children 
in the morning and called for 
them in the evening, knowing 
that throughout the day they 
would be well and safely cared 
for. 

In the early part of 1931, Mr. 
Fendrich again demonstrated 
his interest and generosity by 
purchasing the spacious resi­
dence, 611 First avenue, just one 
block from St. Mary's hospital. 
This advantageous site was well 
adapted for use as a nursery 
and no time was lost in prepar­
ing the new home for its future 
work. At the present time over 
fifty children who range in age 
from infants to those of school 
age are cared for by the Sisters 
of Charity. 

.. 
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Continued from page 48 

1934 the increase in the enroll­
ment was from 144 to 225. 

Other Sisters who have served 
as heads of the academy, in ad­
dition to the names mentioned 
as having held that office from 
1893 to 1907, are Sisters Mary 
Ernestine, St. Clement, Mary 
Josephine, St. Louise, Aloyse, 
St. Cyrilla, St. Genevieve, Hilde­
garde, and Mary Manetto. 

As the years roll on toward 
1943, when the institution will 
mark its golden anniversary, 
those who are interested in its 
welfare and who are bound to St. 
Agnes' by old associations, hope 
to find it advancing, but not 
changing in the essential ideals 
that have made it so dear to 
them. 

Sacred Heart High School 

THE Sacred Heart high school, 
Indianapolis, had its begin­

ning with the opening of a com­
mercial school in the parish 
thirty-five years ago. Influenced 
by the success of this depart­
ment, and by an ardent desire 
to provide further educational 
advantages for the children of 
his parish, the Rev. Andrew 
Butzkueben, O.F.M., began the 
erection of the present high 
school building in the year 1914, 
the cornerstone for which was 
laid by the late Most Rev. Joseph 
Chartrand, then C o a d j u t o r 
Bishop of Indianapolis, on Octo­
ber 4 of that year. 

The new high school opened 
in September, 1915, offering a 
four-year course to the boy and 
girl graduates of the eighth 
grade of Sacred Heart school. 
Thirty-nine pupils were enrolled 
the first year. The formal dedi­
catory ceremonies, however, 
were not held until the following 
month, on October 4, with 
Bishop Chartrand not only offi­
ciating at the dedication, but 
also delivering the sermon dur­
ing the solemn high Mass which 
followed. 

On June 18, 1918, the school 
graduated its first student, Miss 
Victoria Lipps, who is now Sis­
ter Fulgentia Joseph, a Sister 
of the Congregation of St. Jo­
seph of Carondelet. 

At the beginning of the scho­
lastic year 1918-1919, the elev­
enth and twelfth · grades were 
discontinued and all energy was 
concentrated on a thorough com­
mercial department of two 
years. This arrangement lasted 
until 1921, when the eleventh 
and twelfth grades were rein~ 
troduced, and since that time 
the four-year classical commer­
cial course at Sacred Heart has 
merited much praise. 

The enrollment for the year 
1935 was two hundred, with a 
teaching staff of six Sisters of 
St. Joseph, who have been in 
charge of the school since its 
beginning. 

Four Sisters of this Congre­
gation, with Mother Peter 
Claver as their Superior, came 

to the Diocese to teach the 
Sacred Heart grade school's 
eighty-five pupils on August 18, 
1877. In June of the following 
year they purchased property on 
the corner of S. Meridian and 
Palmer streets and began tht 
erection of a convent and a 
school. As the attendance rap­
idly increased an addition was 
built to the school and was 
ready for occupancy by January 
10, 1886. The older boys for 
many years were taught in the 
monastery building and were 
later transferred to the new 
school building which was erect­
ed exclusively for the boys just 
north of the church, by the Rev. 
Francis Haase, 0 .F'.M. 

Among the Sisters who have 
served as Superior at Sacred 
Heart, succeeding Mother Peter 
Claver, are Mother Lidwina, who 
came in 1880 and labored in the 
supervision of the school for 
thirty years; Mother Clare, who 
came in 1911; Mother Severine, 
in 1920; Mother Clara Florina, 
in 1926; Mother Gerard Joseph, 
in 1929; and the present Su­
perior, Mother Anna Joseph, in 
1931. 

The Sisters of St. Joseph cele­
brated their golden jubilee in 
Sacred Heart parish in the 
autumn of 1928. 

This Order was founded in 
Le Puy in F'rance in 1650, by a 
saintly Bishop, Henry de Maupas 
du Tour, who had as a collabora­
tor a zealous missionary, the 
Rev. John Paul Medaille, S.J. 
During the Revolution the Con­
gregation was not spared, but 
Sisters were driven from their 
homes, many were imprisoned, 
and five met a martyr's death on 
the scaffold. Among those con. 
demned to die was Mother St. 
John Fontbonne, who, with 
three companions, spent eleven 
months in a prison cell and was 
saved from the guillotine only by 
the fall of the impious Robes­
pierre in the summer of 1794. 
In 1807, with the advice of the 
Cardinal Archbishop of Lyons, 
she gathered the scattered rem­
nant of her Community, and, 
with a small band of women who 
had organized uiider the Rev. 
Claude Cholleton, Vicar General 
of Lyons, Mother St. John saw 
her Congregation rise heroically 
from its own ashes. 

It was in 1836 that Mother 
St. John sent six Sisters from 
France to what then was their 
foreign mission-St. Louis. As 
the Community grew in num­
bers, its influence extended be­
yond the limits of St. Louis un­
til today its membership is more 
than three thousand. There are 
five Provinces, with houses es­
tablished in twenty-six Dioceses 
of the United States, and located 
in eighteen different states in 
the Union. 

Ladywood School 

LADYWOOD school in Indian­
apolis, although scarcely nine 
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years old, and much too young 
for an historical background, has 
acquired traditions that are 
nearing the century mark in age 
-those inherited from its 
mother institution, St. Mary-of­
the-Woods. Even before 1925 
the expansion and development 
of St. Mary-of-the-Woods col­
lege forced the administrative 
officers of that school to recog­
nize the need of another loca­
tion for the academic or high 
school department around which 
so many educational traditions 
of St. Mary's had been built. 

It was in 1925 that the Sisters 
of Providence came into the pos­
session of the Ladywood prop­
erty, which not only represent­
ed the final big investment of 
Mother Mary Cleophas, then 
Superior General of the Order, 
but was also the closing link in 
the long chain of educational 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ endeavors identified with her r: I name. The property includes 
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Laurel Hall, the former home of 
Stoughton A. Fletcher, with its 
garage and power house, a large 
greenhouse with three wings, 
three stucco houses, five cot-

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ tages, and a laundry, all on a r: tract of about two hundred and 
fifty rolling, wooded acres, lo­
cated northeast of Indianapolis. BOCARD DISTRIBUTING CO. 
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One of the most important 
factors in the choice of the 
estate as a site for the school 
was its pleasant surroundings. 
The large country house stands 
on the crest of a big hill over­
looking Fall Creek. It is beauti-
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fully landscaped. In its very _r.===========================i name Ladywood dates back tra-
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ditionally to the woodland days I 
of the Diocese, to the arrival at 

Providence. Just as the Sisters _:_= =_ =_ =_ =_ =_ =_ =_ =_ =_ =_ =_ =_ =_ =_ =_ =_ =_ =_ =_ =_ =_ =_ =_ =_ :::.,j_ 

have clung to the spirit of those 

Mutual Trust & Deposit 
Company 

NEW ALBANY, IND. 

early days, so have they carried 
the woodland name to various 
parts of the country-to Mary­
wood, in Chicago; to Maryhurst, 
in Maryland; to another Mary­
wood, in California; and last of 
all, to Ladywood. 

A unique feature in the trans­
position of a mansion into a 
Catholic school for girls was 
that very few alterations in the 
building were necessary. With 
little difficulty the various rooms 

Home Furnit~re and Carpet House ments, and the spacious ball I 
were converted into study halls 
and other necessary depart-

INCORPORATED room on the third floor at the 
FURNITURE, CARPETS, STOVES, ETC. 101-103 MAIN sT.-PHONE 448 head of a carved stairway be-

NEW ALBANY, IND. came the chapel. The altar oc-
EST ABLISHED TWENTY-FOUR YEARS AGO l!::==========================~ cupies a recess in the south end 

of the room, whose antecham-

Hopkins Fertilizer 
Company 

New Albany, Ind. 

Gohmann-Kahler Corporation 
POINTER FURNACES-HEATING STOVES-RANGES 

NEW ALBANY, IND. 

bers are used for sacristy pur­
poses. The arched Gothic ceil­
ings, ornamental effects, and the 
little niches along the sides have 
made the room admirably suit­
able for a chapel, the niches pro­
viding places for small shrines. 
The other buildings on the es­
tate have been put to use for 
various needs of the school. 

On September 7, 1926, Rev. 
Mother Mary Raphael, the then 
newly elected Superior General 
of the Sisters of Providence, 
Mother Mary Cleophas, and Sis-

- rand, who with his assisting ! 
ter Mary Bernard arrived at 
Ladywood, to be present for the 
blessing of the building by the 
late Most Rev. Joseph Chart-

I!::==========================~ clergy in solemn procession 
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NEW ALBANY 

~..c..Q E..!;.Afil.~. 
NEW ALBANY, IND. 

blessed all of the rooms in the 
house. Mass was celebrated for 
the first time at Ladywood the 
following morning, by the Rev. 
Henry Dugan, the resident 
Chaplain. When the school was 
open to visitors on September 
26, a crowd of about five thou­
sand persons inspected the in­
stitution. The dedication took 

_____________ _ place on September 28, with 

EDWARD Ja TIGHE 
INSURANCE AGENCY 

New Albany, Ind. 
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DR. C.F. FENCH 
Auditor, Floyd County 
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ESTABLISHED 1865 

RENN'S BOTTLING WORKS 
Manufacturers of 
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CARBONATED BEVERAGES 

Factory 601-603 State Street 
NEW ALBANY, IND. 

Willard G. Dieckmann 
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New Albany, Ind. 

Bishop Chartrand pontificating 
at the solemn Mass. Classes 
were formally opened for the 
first two years of resident col­
lege preparatory and high school 
work, on September 29, 1926. 
In addition to Father Dugan, the 
first staff included Sister Mary 
Stanislaus, Superior, and Sisters 
Mary Emmanuel, Florentia, 
Mary, Caroline, and a group of 
lay teachers. 

As the first school year pro­
gressed various activities multi-
plied, including the inauguration 
of the annual bridge-tea, riding 
through the open country and 
along the bridle path, cross­
country · hikes, and others; but 
it is said of the Ladywood stu­
dent that whether informally 
gay at picnics in the ravines, 
cozily joyous at Christmas par­
ties around the fireplaces, or 
formally gracious at the annual 
tea in the drawing room, she 
again enjoys the traditions of a 
long span of years. 

With the increased enrollment 
of the second school year, Loret­
to Hall was planned, and in 1928 
three members were added to 
the faculty. With the four-year 
course fully organized, and class 
rooms and laboratories equipped, 
Ladywood school was accredited 
by the State Board of Educa-
tion. The enrollment at the 

I 
school reached its peak in 1931, 
when twenty-five seniors were 
graduated; then, for a few years 
the depression made itself felt, 
but the class of 1935 showed a 

L!=============-i sixty per cent increase over the 

Judge John M. Paris 
Floyd County Circuit Court 

New Albany, Ind. 

previous year. 

I 
Ladywood has received many 

beautiful gifts during its few 
short years, including a number 
from the students themselves, 
or their parents. Among these 

~==============-i are several beautiful shrines; 
the Cararra marble statue of 

SOUTH BEND 

H. J. HAGERMAN & CO. 
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I 
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co. 
S. NOTRE DAME AVE. 

PHONE 4-5911 

South Bend, Ind. 

Our Lady of Loretto, in Loretto 
Hall; the stone statue of the 
Blessed Virgin, in the sunken 
garden; a marble statue of the 
Sacred Heart in the sanctuary 
of Ladywood chapel; the bronze 
wayside crucifix, and a great 
many others from friends among 
the clergy and the laity; and, 
when the student at her prayers 
in the chapel is wont to watch 
the steady, red glow of the sanc­
tuary lamp, she is reminded of 
an Episcopalian lady who keeps 
the little lamp supplied with 
lights. 

AURORA 
Immaculate Conception High 

School 

THE Immaculate Conception 
high school in Aurora was 

founded by the Rev. John Joseph 
Macke in 1892, with an enroll­
ment of eight students. Al­
though it is not classed among 
the larger institutions of its 
kind, the school is noted for the 
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high percentage· of its students 
having pursued their Catholic 
education in advanced studies. 
From this school have proceeded 
four priests, eight laymen who 
continued their education in 
Catholic colleges, and two Cath­
olic University graduates. 

Commercial and c 1 a s s i c a 1 
courses are offered at the Im­
maculate Conception high school, 
to classes of both boy and girl 
students. Last year's enrollment 
included twelve boys, and eight­
een girls. The Sisters of St. 
Francis, whose Mother House is 
at Oldenburg, are in charge of 
the school. 

Venerable Sister Fidelis, who 
headed the teaching staff at 
Aurora for a period of twenty­
five years, was succeeded by Sis­
ter Annunziata. Others who 
have labored here are Sister 
Mary Aloysia, Sister Justina, 
and Sister Angelica. 

The Rev. William Heuser is 
pastor of the Immaculate Con­
ception church at Aurora, in 
which connection the high school 
is operated. 

EVANSVILLE 

Reitz Memorial High School 

THE Catholic people of Evans-
ville view with pride the 

Reitz Memorial high school, 
their crowning achievement in 
secondary education, but to 
many the events which trans­
pired during the long years of 
development are unknown. 

The two outstanding names in 
the history of Assumption par­
ish, Evansville, are those of the 
Very Rev. E. F. McBarron, pas­
tor from 1879 to the time of his 
death in 1911; and the present 
pastor, the Rt. Rev. Francis P. 
Ryves. It was to Father Mc­
Barron that the task of opening 
a school was given, and, accord­
ing to the annals of the parish, 
Assumption had a high school 
department as early as 1892. 
Difficulties were experienced, 
however, students were few, 
problems were many, and the 
department came to an abrupt 
close in 1900. When Monsignor 
Ryves came to Assumption he 
directed his efforts toward a 
high school for girls, and under 
his sponsorship the second As­
sumption high school, or As­
sumption academy as it was 
sometimes called, opened its 
doors in 1912. The school was 
also called, Girls' Catholic high 
school. 

An unpretentious brick dwell­
ing on the south side of the 
school served the eight girls en­
rolled as first year students, and 
the Sisters of Providence who 
comprised the staff. Larger 
quarters became necessary, how­
ever, in 1916, and the school hall 
was remodeled for this purpose. 
Then the annals read, "young 
ladies vied with one another to 
get inside of the old walls to 
pursue a classical or a commer­
cial course under the direction 
of an efficient corps of teachers." 

A contribution of $10,000 
from Francis Joseph Reitz, of 
Evansville, made possible the 
establishment of a temporary 
high school for boys in the Holy 
Trinity school building in Evans-

ville. The school flourished un­
der the direction of the Brothers 
of HoJy Cross for five years, 
when a larger school became 
necessary. Then again Mr. Reitz 
manifested his interest in the 
progress of Catholic education 
and became the donor of the 
present magnificent building at 
an approximate cost of one mil­
lion dollars. He made the gift 
in memory of his deceased par­
ents, and dedicated it to the 
youth of Evansville. 

The late Most Rev. Joseph 
Chartrand officiated at the dedi­
catory ceremonies on January 1, 
1925, and since that time both 
the girls' high school, under the 
direction of the Sisters of Provi­
dence, and the boys' high school, 
which is conducted by the 
Brothers of Holy Cross, are· 
housed in the spacious building, 
with each department operating 
under its own principal. Depart­
ment policies are coordinated 
under the direction of a board 
whose members include Mon­
signor Ryves, the Rt. Rev. Fred­
eric Ketter, the Rev. Martin 
Hoppenjan, O.S.B., Messrs Ed­
ward Schaefer and Edward 
Thole, and Miss Therese B. 
Sieffert. 

Three hundred and thirty-five 
boys, and three hundred and 
seventeen girls have been 
awarded high school diplomas 
since the opening of the school, 
whose class of the present year, 
1935, numbered forty-nine girls, 
and thirty-four boys. 

LOOGOOTEE 

St. John High School 

WHILE the present St. John 
high school was opened in 

Loogootee in 1923, with a first 
year class of twelve girl stu­
dents, high school class work 
seems to have been carried on 
here as early as 1912, although 
records are somewhat incom­
plete. The first recorded class 
of graduates, in the year 1927, 
numbered eight. S'ince that time 
eighty students have been grad­
uated, several of whom con­
tinued their studies in institu­
tions of higher learning, notably 
at St. Mary-of-the-Woods col­
lege, the Terre Haute Teachers' 
training school, Indiana Univer­
sity, and the Indiana Business 
college at Indianapolis. 

The student enrollment of the 
past scholastic year included 
sixty-two Catholic girls from 
Loogootee, and the local rural 
parishes, under the direction of 
the Sisters of Providence. 

In 1923 the present school 
building was enlarged by the 
Rev. Joseph Gerdon, in order to 
meet the demands of an increas­
ing enrollment. It now houses 
eight rooms for the grade school 
pupils; two rooms, one class 
room, a science laboratory, and 
a library for the high school; 
aslo an auditorium with a seat­
ing capacity of four hundred. 

In addition to the regular 
academic course, three commer­
cial subjects - stenography, 
typewriting, and bookkeeping, 
are offered in accordance with 
the requirements of commis­
sioned schools in the State of 
Indiana. A certificate of con-
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tinuous commission was issued 
to St. John's on March 6, 1931, 
by the State Department of 
Public Instruction. , 

Sister Mary Theodora held 
the office of first Superior of the 
school. The staff during the 
past school year consisted of 
three full time teachers, one of 
whom was a teacher-librarian, 
and all of whom are qualified in 
accordance with the educational 
requirements of the State of 
Indiana. 

RICHMOND 

St. Andrew High School 

DURING the first eleven years 
in the existence of the St. 

Andrew high school, in Rich-

i 
mond, which opened on Septem­
ber 4, 1899, classes were con­
ducted in the old parish school 
building, the present up-to-date 
structure having been built in 
1912. Although the movement I.!:::===========~ toward the establishment of a 

Price & Donelson 
NORGE REFRIGERATORS, WASHERS 

DETROLA RADIOS 
Allan D . Price B. C. Donelson 
PHONE 4277 216 N. WALNUT ST. 

BLOOMINGTON, IND. 

SIMS POULTRY CO. 
POULTRY - EGGS - HIDES 

Wholesale and Retail 
FRESH DRESSED POULTRY 

219 N. Morton St. 
PHONE 5720 BLOOMINGTON, IND. 

i 
Alva Owens-Transfer 

LOCAL AND LONG DISTANCE 
HAULING 

621 N. Morton 
Phone 4054 BLOOMINGTON, IND. 

i 
YOUR BANK 

THE BLOOMINGTON 
NATIONAL BANK 
Waiting to Serve Yqu 

BLOOMINGTON, IND. 
:~ 

Bell Cleaning Works 
Cleaning, Dyeing 

Repairing and Pressing 
415 E. FIFTH ST. PHONE 6333 

BLOOMINGTON, IND. 

WILES DRUG CO. 
"The Kodak Store11 

We Deliver 
PHONE 5050 EAST SIDE 

BLOOMINGTON, IND. 

HUGHES BROS. CO. 
EVERYTHING IN BUILDING 

MATERIAL SINCE 1882 

PHONE 6115 BLOOMINGTON, IND. 

Citizens Loan & Trust 
Company 

CAPIT Alr-$300,000 
Fire-Proof Building and Vaults 

General Banking 
BLOOMINGTON IND. 

DENNY MOTOR TRANSFER 
co. 

301 WEST 3RD ST. 
PHONE 5519 

Bloomington, Ind. 

Catholic high school in Rich­
mond was inaugurated by the 
Rev. John Joseph Macke during 
the preceding year, it was the 
Rt. Rev. Francis A. Roell, now 
pastor of St. Andrew's church, 
who carried the work to a suc­
cessful completion. 

The first eighteen boys and 
ten girls who comprised the en­
rollment of the school were un­
der the direction of Professor 
Joseph M. Richter; and Sister 
Dynissa, a member of the Sis­
ters of St. Francis from Olden­
burg. Professor Richter re­
mained until 1919, when the 
Sisters were placed in complete 
charge of the school. 

An academic course exclu­
sively was offered during the 
first twenty years of the school's 
existence; but since the year 
1919, commercial subjects have 
been combined with the regular 
course. Since the time of Sister 
Dynissa, Sisters Liliosa, M. Au­
cilla, Noel, M. Magdalen, and 
James Marie have served as Su-
periors at St. Andrew's. The 
growth of the school has been a 
steady one, with an average at­
tendance of about one hundred. 
The school is co-educational, and 
is accredited by the Catholic 
University of America, Wash­
ington, D. C., and students who 
have passed the high school ex­
aminations as outlined by this 
university are admitted to 
schools of higher learning with­
out further examination. 

The first alumnus of St. An­
drew's to have achieved promi­
nence in his life's work is Dr. 
Otto J. Ramler, who is among 
the leading lay professors at the 
Catholic University of America. 
It is said that pupils of the com-
mercial department of this 
school are much sought after by 
business firms who are in need 
of stenographers, bookkeepers 
and assistants in various lines. 

SHELBYVILLE 

St. Joseph High School 

THE St. Joseph high school, 
Shelbyville, is one of the few 

parish combined grade and high 
schools in the Diocese of ln-

dianapolis. Founded in 1873 by 
the Rev. Francis Rudolf. the 
founder of the Oldenburg Com­
munity of the Sisters of St. 
Francis, who are now in charge, 
the school at that time was com­
posed of about sixty pupils. 

The present school building 
which was erected in Hl24, con­
tains complete school equipment 
in addition to a gymnasium au­
ditorium. The work offered in­
cludes the regular curriculum 
used in general by the diocesan 
high schools, and carriies in ad­
dition to this work, the usual 
subjects taught in t he grade 
schools. For this reason the 
schools hold a Continued State 
Commission, which permits sub­
jects for the twelve grades of 
primary and secondary work to 
be taught. There are two hun­
dred and forty student s in the 
schools at present. 

TERRE HAUTE 

St. Joseph Acadl,m1y 

"THIS morning our men went 
with the oxen to haul the 

brick for our house in Terre 
Haute." These few lines from 
Mother Theodore's diary, dated 

. August 28, 1848, recall the prim­
itive modes of tran portation, 
and the evident difficulty with 
which the pioneer Catholics of 
the diocese built the foundation 
of the present flouri shing edu­
cational system in Indiana. 

That summer the Rev. Simon 
P. Lalumiere, pastor of St. 
Joseph's church in Terre Haute, 
asked Mother Theodore, foun­
dress of the Sisters of Provi-
dence at St. Mary-of-the-Woods, 
to open a school in his parish. 
He promised to give the lot on 
the corner of Fifth and Walnut 
streets, adjoining t e church 
property, to the Sisters if they 
would erect the school building, 
and repair an old brick building 
farther back on the lot. Trust­
ing in Divine Providence, and 
encouraged by the promise of 
aid from a subscription already 
started by the pastor, the Sis­
ters began the work at once. 

The remodeling of the old 
house, and the building of the 
new were finished by the end 
of December, and on January 2, 
1849, St. Joseph's school was 
opened with an e :rollment of 
twenty-eight pupils. The first 
Superior, Sister St. Vincent 
Ferrer, was one of the pioneers 
who accompanied lVJ[ ther Theo­
dore from France. With her 
were · Sister Agnes, the first 
American postulant ;, Sister An­
astasia, one of the first students 
of St. Mary-of-the-Woods acad­
emy, who was destined to be­
come the third Super ior General 
of the Community; and Sister 
Alphonse, a young German 
music teacher. 

Girls only were received as 
pupils during the first years, but 
the attendance grew with the 
growth of the city. Since the 
early settlers of Terre Haute 
were not for the most part 
Catholics, a large percentage of 
the students during the early 
years were the daughters of 
non-Catholic parents who wished 
their children to rect~ive the 
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obtained only in a convent 
school. This fact seemed strange 
at a time when bigotry had 
gained a good start and the 
Know-Nothing movement was 
gaining. great power in Indiana. 
The Protestant patronage de­
creased, however, with the es­
tablishment of the public free 
school system. 

Little boys were received in 
the lower grades during the 
70's, but after the building of 
the St. Joseph's grade school by 
the parish, in 1888, the Sisters 
taught the boys of all grades 
from the first to the eighth in­
clusive. 

The younger children of the 
school were t h o r o u g h l y 
grounded in the fundamentals 
of a Catholic education, and the 
older girls were offered such 
courses as were found in the 
young ladies' seminaries of the 
day. To these subjects were 
added what were called the orna­
mental branches, or the accom­
plishments. From the begin­
ning, St. Joseph's was noted for 
the excellence of its music 
course, and for its drawing and 
painting classes. Sister Anas­
tasia's art class included among 
its members some of the promi­
nent ladies of the city. Other 
popular work at the academy in­
cluded instructions in embroi­
dery and tapestry. 

During the 70's and the 80's 
the higher classes were develop­
ing into the well-graded modern 
high school. Though many 
young women had finished the 
academy course of studies, and 
received honors at the closing 
exercises, it was not until 1895 
that the first formal commence­
ment, as it is understood today, 
was held at St. Joseph's. For 
more than twenty years St. 
Joseph's academy has been a 
standard high school, accredited 
by the State Board of Education. 
Its hundreds of loyal alumnae 
members include women of 
Terre Haute who are prominent 
in all walks of life. 

St. Patrick School 

JN response to the earnest re-
. quest of the Rev. F . X. Logan, 

the Sisters of Providence from 
St. Mary-of-the-Woods opened 
St. Patrick's school in Terre 
Haute in August, 1882. The 
house, a neatly furnished brick 
building, was erected and 
equipped by the Sisters for the 
purpose of caring for the edu­
cational needs of the children 
residing in the eastern section 
of the city. The attendance the 
first year numbered 140 pupils, 
and the number has steadily 
grown to reach 301 during the 
past scholastic year. 

The school building was en­
larged during the pastorate of 
the Rev. Victor A. Schnell, and 
a high school was opened in 1893 
under the supervision of Sister 
Celestine. After some years t he 
high school was closed, how­
ever, until 1923, when the Very 
Rev. James B. Delaney erected 
a commodious and well equipped 
building in South Nineteenth 
street, which houses both the 
grades and the high school. The 
high school is commissioned by 
the Indiana State Department 
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TERRE HAUTE 

-DRINK-

CQCA-COLA 
-IN BOTTLES-

Coca Cola Bottling Co. 
Terre Haute, Ind. 

Motor Freight Corp. 
GENERAL OFFICE 

9TH & MULBERRY STS. 
Terre Haute, Ind. 

OFFICES AND TERMINALS 

ST. LOUIS, MO. 
VINCENNES, IND. 

EVANSVILLE, IND. 
INDIANAPOLIS, IND. 

UNION LAUNDRY 
-ALSO-

DRY CLEANING 
Crawford 8501 

TERRE HAUTE, IND. 

of Education on a continuous 
basis, and the present faculty 
consists of twelve Sisters of 
Providence. 

The class of 1935 was the 
ninth to receive high school di­
plomas since the reopening of 
the high school in 1923, and to 
date sixty-five young women 
have been graduated from that 
institution. 

Sister M. Edward, St. Pat­
rick's first Superior, was accom­
panied by Sisters Mary Alberta, 
Gaudentia, Ann Veronica, St. 
Jerome, and Ann Augustine. 
During the succeeding years the 
following Sisters have held the 
office of Superior: Mother Mary 
Ephrem, and Sisters Pierolina, 
Gertrude, M. Eustelle, Celestine, 
M. Charles, M. Eugene, M. Vic­
toria, M. Ursula, M. Isabel, M. 
Aurelia, M. Agnita, Bernard 
Marie, M. Caj etan, Jos. Maurice, 
M. Hermandine, M. Annunciata, 
Catherine Marie, Margaret, and 

VINCENNES 

St. Rose Academy i 
lVI. Rose. 

'-============.! 

KADE L'S 
ART SHOP 

709 WABASH AVE. 
TERRE HAUTE, IND. 

Adam Snider & Company, Inc. 
Mrs. Mabel J. Snider 

Hardware and Radios, Electric Refrigeration 
Stoves and Ranges, Lewis Bee Supplies, 
Aladdin Lamps, DuPont Paints and Farm 
lmplements-325 Wabash Ave. 

TERRE HAUTE, IND. 

KRIETENSTEIN GLASS 
& PAINT CO. 

Phone Crawford 3628 
PAINT - VARNISH - GLASS - OIL 

"Home of Windshield Glass" 
S. W. Corner 4th and Cherry Streets 

TERRE HAUTE, IND. 

ST. ROSE ACADEMY for 
Girls in Vincennes, devel­

oped from a tiny school founded 
by the Rev. Benedict Joseph 
Flaget, later Bishop of Bards­
town, Kentucky. When Father 
Flaget first came to the old Vin­
cennes post in 1792, his first 
thought was to open a school 
where all the children would be 
taught without expense. In this 
school he taught reading, writ­
ing, some arithmetic, and some 
note singing. Three years 
later he was recalled to Balti­
more, and his place was taken 

i 
by the Rev. John Francis Rivet, 
who, at the suggestion of Presi­
dent George Washington, was 
paid an annual salary of two 
hundred dollars for his work. 

After Father Rivet's death in 
l!=============.i 1804, Father Flaget continued 

Martin's Photo Shop 
Commercial & Portrait Photographers 

Wabash Avenue at Seventh St. 
TERRE HAUTE, IND. 

WALKER ELECTRIC 
SUPPLY CO. 

WHOLESALE ELECTRIC SUPPLIES 
MOTOR REPAIRS & MACHINE WORK 
817 Ohio St. Phone Crawford 1215 

TERRE HAUTE, IND. 

J. G. McCRORY 
COMPANY 
TERRE HAUTE, IND. 

SMITH 
Hardware Co. 

TERRE HAUTE, IND. 

DENNY MOTOR TRANSFER 
co. 

603 TIPPECANOE ST. 
PHONE CRAWFORD 1680 

Terre Haute, Ind. 

to interest himself in the school. 
In 1823, he was able as Bishop 
of Bardstown to send four Sis­
ters of Charity from Nazareth, 
Kentucky, to continue the work. 
This was cut short by illness 
of the Sisters, and the first 
Bishop of Vincennes, the Rt. 
Rev. Simon Brute de Ramur, 
applied to Emmitsburg, Mary­
land, for teachers to remain un­
til the Diocese had a Sisterhood 
of its own. Four Sisters came 
in 1838 and remained until 1843. 

In 1843 Mother Theodore 
Guerin was able to send four 
Sisters of Providence to replace 
the Sisters of Charity who had 
returned to Emmitsburg. Soon 
after this the school, which had 
originally been located in a small 
building on Main street was re-
moved by Bishop Bazin to a 
small building near the old Ca­
thedral, where the old St. Fran­
cis Xavier school now stands. 

The Sisters suffered many 
privations in these first years. 
From October, when they first 
arrived in Vincennes, until 
Christmas, they slept on the 
floor with scarcely any covering. 
In Mother Theodore's journal 
we read of her visit to the mis­
sion of Vincennes, "In a few 
minutes more I was surrounded 
by my dear Missionary Sisters, 

TERRE HAUTE 

The Merchants National 
Bani{ 

YOUR HOME BANK 
TERRE HAUTE, IND. 

I 
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Terre Haute Boiler Works Company 
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I 
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THE ROOT STORE 
'rERRE HAUTE, IND. 

"THE BEST PLACE TO SHOP, AFTER ALL" 

RICHMOND 
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In this community whom we have 
strived to give the best of service 
for the past 36 years. 

Richmond Home Telephone Co. 
RICHMOND, IND. 

DAVIS JEWELRY CO. 
RICHMOND'S ONLY CREDIT JEWELRY AND OPTICAL STORE 

TELEPHONE 4665 
827 MAIN STREET' RICHMOND, IND. 

i=
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I 
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1402-1410 S. 8TH STREET PHONE 2002 
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:=============..1 

MID-WEST CASKET COMPANY 
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four in number. With what 
transports did we embrace one 
another. But imagine at sup­
per my Sisters did not have a 
glass or a plate to offer me. A 
little salt beef was the sum total 
of the delicacies set before me." 

-The school prospered. In 1875 
the girls of the Cathedral School 
were transferred to the old 
Seminary building standing on 
the site of the present St. Rose 
Academy. There are few build­
ings in Vincennes that have wit­
nessed as many changes as old 
St. Rose. The first Vincennes 
university, it became succes­
sively Territorial Legislative 
Hall, a hospital, a college, a 
seminary, an orphanage, and 
finally St. Rose Academy. 

The work in the school was 
at first, of course, elementary, 
but as conditions improved it 
enlarged its scope. A high school 
was opened in 1864, and 
branches which are now confined 
to the college curriculum were 
then taught in the high schools, 
such as logic, philosophy, astron­
omy, and other similar courses. 

In 1884 the old Seminary 
building was torn down and the 
present St. Rose Academy was 
built, St. Francis Xavier school 
being erected the same year. 
The school has continued to 
grow and on this account the 
grades have been transferred to 
the St. Francis Xavier and the 
Gibault buildings. 

St. Rose Academy is the cen­
tral Catholic high school of the 
city, attended by pupils from 
the three par.ishes . . Four Sisters. 
of Providence teach the one 
hundred and three girls who 
were enrolled during the past 
year, the curriculum being com­
posed of the ordinary subjects 
taught in high schools. 

Gibault High School 

THE Gibault high school was 
founded in Vincennes at the 

high school established in that 
city for the training of boys. 
A building was erected in 1924, 
and an agreement was made 
whereby the Brothers of the 
Sacred Heart would undertake 
the direction of the school. 

Gibault was opened for its 
first term in September, 1925, 
with four teachers making up 
the faculty: Brother Gilbert, 
superior, Brother Arthur, 
Brother Leopold, and Brother· 
Ignatius. Since that time the 
school has continued to grow, 
the enrollment now exceeding a 
hundred boys. The faculty of 
last year was composed of 
B r o t h e r Alexis, principal; 
Brother Dominic, Brother J us­
tin, and James Mc'Quaid, ath­
letic director. 

WASHINGTON 

St. Simon High School 

WASHINGTON Catholic High 
School is an outgrowth of 

a preceding institution. Shortly 
after the appointment of the 
Rev. John T. O'Hare as pastor 
of St. Simon's parish in 1918, 
a high school for boys was 
founded, beginning with the 
ninth grade. Shortly after, at 
the behest of the late Most Rev. 
Joseph Chartrand, Bishop of In­
dianapolis, Washington Catholic 
high school was begun, and the 
services of the Brothers of the 
Sacred Heart were secured to 
instruct in the boys' depart­
ment -

~====-=-=-=-=-=-=-=-==-==-==-==-==-==-=-=:_=_=_=_=_~ request of the late Most Rev. 
r;::::===========::::i- Joseph Chartrand, then Bishop 

of Indianapolis, who wished a 

In a short time the St. Simon 
academy for girls was embodied 
in the new high school as the 
girls' department, with the Sis­
ters of Providence continuing as 
instructors. In June, 1922, the 
Washington Catholic high school 
was commissioned by the Indi­
ana State Board of Education, 
and since that time its gradu­
ates have distinguished them­
selves in both scholarship and 
athletics. At the last term the 
school consisted of sixteen boys 
and seventy-eight girls. ELWOOD WILLIAMS 
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Phone 112-W-Day or Night 
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. WASHINGTON, IND. 
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WASHINGTON, IND. The Gibault high school, for boys, in 
Vincennes. This was ereded in 1924. 
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Healing the Sick 
Continued from page 53 

that time, and the Rev. John J. 
Gabriel served as Chaplain at 
the new hospital. 

Immense in its proportions; 
St. Vincent's, in a beautiful set­
ting of gradually sloping lawn 
on the north bank of Fall Creek 
is one of the beauty spots of In­
dianapolis. The architectural 
lines of the building follow no 
particular school. It was orig­
inally designed to meet the 
needs of the surgeons and pa­
tients, and, with a thought to 
the future development of the 
institution, provisions were 
made in designing the building 
for the addition of large wings 
to the north, as needed. 

Six Sisters of Charity have 
celebrated their golden jubilees 
and one her diamond jubilee, in 
Indianapolis. They were Sister 
Monica, who lived to be ninety­
one years of age, and who spent 
seventy-one years in the Order; 
Sister Josephine, who was 
among the first Sisters to serve 
as a nurse during the Civil War; 
Sister Cephas, who celebrated 
her diamond jubilee in 1929; Sis­
ter Ambrose, whose golden jubi­
lee was observed in 1929 ; and 
Sisters Martha, Gabriella, and 
Mary Joseph who celebrated 
their golden jubilees in 1933, 
1925 and 1933 respectively. 

The Superiors of St. Vincent's 
hospital, after the foundress, 
Sister Mary Theresa, were Sis­
ter Stella, Sister Madeline, Sister 
Mary Joseph, Sister Angela, and 
the present Superior, Sister 
Rose. At this time there are 
118 student nurses in the train­
ing school. The Rev. Joseph 
Bauer serves as Chaplain. 

The Community of the Sisters 
of Charity was founded in 1633 
by St. Vincent de Paul, and St. 
Louise de Marillac. The date 
of the foundation traces back to 
November 29 of that year when 
five young girls grouped about 
the charitable Mlle. LeGras for 
the purpose of assisting the poor 
sick who were at that time suf­
fering from a plague that raged 
in and around the city of Paris. 

At first these women nursed 
the poor in their homes until 
the year 1634, when it was de­
cided to establish a house for the 
Sisters where they might pre­
pare meals for a thousand sick 
patients. As the number of Sis­
ters increased their works multi­
plied until today their forty 
thousand members conduct 3,-
552 in various parts of the world. 

St. Anthony's Hospital 
Terre Haute 

THE original home of St. An-
thony's hospital, Terre 

Haute, was a two-story brick 
building on the corner of Second 
and Mulberry streets, which was 
owned by Herman Hulman to 
whom the founding of this insti­
tution has been credited. It 
was Mr. Hulman who brought to 
Terre Haute on September 11, 
1882, two members of the Poor 

Sisters of St. Francis of the 
Perpetual Adoration - Sister 
Ambrosia, who is still at the hos­
pital and Sister Rafaela from 
their Mother . House in Lafay­
ette, Indiana, to take charge of 
the new and only hospital in 
Terre Haute. The Chauncey 
Rose hospital, which had been 10.:. 
cated in the city, discontinued 
its services there several years 
before the coming of the Sisters. 

Feeling that a more suitable 
building for the new institution 
was that of St. Agnes hall, a 
seminary for girls which stood 
on _the site of the present hos­
pital, Mr. Hulman purchased it 
with its extensive grounds and 
moved the hospital there, the old 
building being abandoned on 
January 1, 1884. 

St. Anthony's hospital has en­
joyed a steady growth ever since 
its beginning. The middle wing 
and new entrance to the present 
building were erected in 1901. In 
1909, the north wing was opened 
and in 1923, the south wing. A 
laundry section was completed 
in 1910, the consecration of the 
hospital chapel took place in 
1914, and in 1927 the old part 
of the building was remodeled 
into the present nurses' home. 

Great care has been taken in 
the equipment of the four oper­
ating rooms, all of which have 
skylight windows, portable elec­
tric lights, and are so construct­
ed as to be easily flushed and 
cleaned. 

The hospital has admitted 72, 
501 patients during the period 
between September, 1882, and 
May 1, 1935. The number of ba­
bies born since 1919 to May 1 
of this year is 3,417. Accord­
ing to a check made in 1932, 
when St. Anthony's celebrated 
its golden jubilee, it was shown 
that during the fifty years of the 
hospital's existence in Terre 
Haute, at least one-fifth of the 
cases cared for were charity pa­
tients, the figure having been 
estimated at 13,250. Since then 
nearly three thousand more 
have been taken care of. 

A new isolation department, 
which is now ready for the ac­
ceptance of patients, both chil­
dren and adults who are suffer­
ing from communicable diseases, 
has recently been completed at 
St. Anthony's. One graduate 
nurse and two senior student 
nurses are on continuous duty 
in eight-hour shifts here. 

The children's department, 
which is located on the fourth 
floor, far removed from the 
adult patients is a lively and 
colorful place at St. Anthony's. 
Each child has his own little 
cubicle unit in which individual 
nursing technique is used. The 
posters, decorations and curtains 
are of such that naturally appeal 
to childish tastes. Toys are cen­
sored in order that no child re­
ceives anything with which he 
might injure himself. Black­
boards, scrapbooks, etc., are pro­
vided so that the child might find 
plenty of things to do. Diets 
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are given very strict attention; 
weight charts are kept; and spe­
ial care is taken by the nurses 
n the use of individual gown 

and mask technique as a con­
C urrent disinfection measure. 

The hospital library, which 
was organized in S'eptember, 
1934, is composed of the pa­
ients', nursing and medical. di­

visions. Fiction and other read­
t 

i ng matter is distributed to the 
patients, and the nursing and 
medical books, which are avail­
able for study and research, are 
classified according to the Cun­
ningham system which is used 
by the American College of Sur­
geons. The Dewey Decimal sys­
tem is used in the classification 
of other books. A package li­
brary is now in the process of 
organization. 

What is perhaps the most out­
standing feature of the library 
service is its analytic file, whose 
card index system is arranged in 
dictionary sequence according 
to subject, each card of 
which carries the different 
phases of the subject in­
cluding page numbers where 
material may be found. The 
spacious room contains some 
large cases which were origin­
ally the property of Mr. Hulman. 
Some of these pieces are con­
structed of solid walnut, one be­
ing of ebony. A desk and an­
other of the bookcases belonged 
to the late Dr. Thomas W. Moor­
head who had served as dean of 
the hospital staff. 

The Terre Haute Chapter of 
the National Catholic Federation 
of Nurses was organized in 
March of last year, and has a 
membership of forty, who have 
sent medical books to missions 
and are endeavoring to do their 
part in furthering the purpose 
of the Federation-the work of 
helping others. 

The Superiors who served dur­
ing the past fifty-three years at 
St. Anthony's hospital include 
Sisters M. Rafaela, M. Hilaria, 
M. Augustine, M. Kunigunda, 
M. Agathina and M. Alcantara. 
There are now twenty-five Sis­
ters on the staff, and forty stu­
dent nurses in the training 
school. The Rev. Lambert Weis­
haar is the Chaplain. 

St. Edward's Hospital 
New Albany 

WHEN the late Rev. Edward 
F·aller, pastor of St. Mary's 

church, New Albany, requested 
that the Poor S'isters of St. Fran­
cis of the Perpetual Adoration 
open a hospital in his city, the 
late Sister M. Hermana was sent 
from the Mother House of her 
Order in Lafayette, to fill the 
office of Superior when St. Ed­
ward's hospital opened in May 
1902. 

The institution's growth has 
been gradual. 168 patients were 
cared for during the first year, 
with each succeeding year wit­
nessing an increased number, 
until during the past several 
years the total number of pa­
tients cared for during the 
twelve-month period has reached 
1,350. 

In 1924, St. Edward's hospital 
was recognized and accredited in 
"Class A" by the American Col-

lege of Surgeons, and since then 
three of the hospital staff sur­
geons have met the qualifica­
tions for membership in that or­
ganization. 

Since the establishment of the 
hospital three major disasters 
afforded opportunities for the 
Sisters to assist the needy and 
afflicted people of New Albany 
and vinicity to a very great ex­
tent. These occasions were the 
terrific tornadoes in 191 7 and 
1925, as well as the flood in 1933. 

Since one of the sources of 
pride to a hospital is it's staff of 
physicians, St. Edward's enjoys 
the assistance and generous co­
operation of it's well organized 
group of doctors in every service. 
The institution has a graduate 
nursing staff of Sisters and 
nurses, as well as the services of 
a resident interne. Sixteen Sis­
ters are in service here at this 
time, and the Rev. James Car­
ri ca is the Chaplain. 

The Superiors who have suc­
ceeded Sister M. Hermana are 
Sisters M. Thoma, who was in 
charge for six years ; M. Cosma, 
who served from 1919 to 1924; 
M. Blanche; M. Kunigunda; M. 
Afra, who became Superior in 
1931; and Sister M. Canuta, who 
is in charge at the present time. 

In keeping with the growth of 
the hospital, twelve private 
rooms were added in the year 
1924; and in 1930, the latest ad­
dition, which is of fireproof con­
struction, enlarged St. Edward's 
to the extent of twenty-one more 
private rooms, three suites of op­
erating rooms with modern fa­
cilities and equipment, an X-ray 
department with fireproof cab­
inet for filing films, etc., and a 
laboratory equipped for the var­
ious tests and research work. 

St. Francis Hospital 
Indianapolis 

JT was largely through the in-
. terest exerted by the Rev 

Peter Killian, pastor of Holy 
Name church, Beech Grove, that 
St. Francis hospital was estab­
lished by the Poor Sisters of St 
Francis of the Perpetual Adora­
tion in the quiet, peaceful com­
munity of Beech Grove, just 
southeast of Indianapolis. 

1 
The Sisters purchased the 

ground on which the hospita 
stands in 1907, and under the di 
rection of Sister M. Kunigunda 
who had been selected as the 
first Superior of the institution 
it was completed and dedicated 
in August, 1913. The opening of 
the hospital was authorized by 
the late Most Rev. :Francis Silas 
Chatard, then Bishop of Indian 
apolis, and it was the late Most 
Rev. Joseph Chartrand, then Co 
adjutor Bishop, who formally 
dedicated the building to the 
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Sister M. Kunigunda, afte 
more than six years of servic 
at St. Francis, was succeeded by 
Sister M. Augustine who had 
previously held the office of Su 
perior at St. Anthony's hospita 
in Terre Haute. After two years 
Sister M. Kunigunda returned t 
St. Francis where she remaine 
until her appointment as assist 
ant to the Provincial of her Or 
der. Sister M. Adelina was th 
fourth Superior of the institu 
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tion. She made many improve­
ments in the building, and insti­
tuted a Radiological service dur­
ing her three years there. She 
was succeeded by Sister M. Ele­
nora who directed the decoration 
of all of the rooms in the hos­
pital, and after three years was 
followed by Sister M. Generosa. 
Among the outstanding events 
during the period of about six 
years in which Sister M. Gener­
osa directed the hospital was the 
erection of the new south wing. 
This was dedicated on January 
18, 1931. A leaf from the diary 
of Sister M. Generosa, dated July 
10 (presumably 1930) reads, "It 
is remarkable how cheerful the 
patients are with all the pound­
ing that is going on in the old 
building. They seem to rejoice 
like St. Francis did to see his 
houses grow." Sister M. Vin­
centiana succeeded Sister M. 
Generosa as Superior on August 
9, 1934. 

St. Francis hospital has been 
granted a "Class A" rating by 
the American College of Sur­
geons. There are eighteen Sis­
ters on the staff at this time, 
and the Rev. Walter Nugent is 
the Chaplain. 

One of the places of interest at 
the institution is the grotto of 
Our Lady of Lourdes. Setting 
some distance back from the 
highway in a shaded portion of 
the grounds, the grotto, which is 
in reality 2. little chapel, has 
grown to be a popular place of 
devotion for not only the Sisters 
and visitors to the hospital, but 
passersby often stop there for a 
moment of prayer. 

St. Elizabeth's Home 
Indianapolis 

THE establishment of a home 
for unmarried mothers was 

realized in the Diocese with the 
opening of the St. Elizabeth's 
home in Indianapolis on N ovem­
ber 6, 1921. At that time, it 
was decided that this institution 
would be maintained by the 
Daughters of Isabella, and that 
the admission of inmates would 
be on a non-sectarian basis. At 
the present time, St. Elizabeth's, 
which is one of the principal pro­
jects of the Daughters of Isa­
bella, is not only a place of ref­
uge for the mothers, but also is 
a home for about fifty dependent 
children under three years of 
age. 

. At the time of its establish­
ment, the Rt. Rev. Maurice 
O'Connor, who was the Director 
of Catholic Charities at Indian­
apolis, also served as the direc­
tor for the institution. He was 
succeeded by the Rev. Bernard 
P. Sheridan in August, 1924, 
who directed the charities and 
the home until June, 1927, 
when the Rev. Francis Mellen 
was appointed for this work. 
When Father Mellen took up 
studies at the Catholic Univer­
sity of America, Washington, D. 
C., in September, 1929, the Rev. 
August R. Fussenegger, the 
present director, was named for 
the post. 

The institution which was 
housed in a large, frame struc­
ture in the beginning was de­
stroyed by a fire said to have 
been ca used by spar ks from its 

own chimney one evening in De­
cember, 1925. The twenty-one 
little babes who were being 
cared for at the time were all 
carried to safety, and were im­
mediately cared for at the St. 
Francis hospital near by.. Later, 
these little ones were removed to 
a building on the St. Vincent's 
hospital property where they 
awaited the erection of a new 
St. Elizabeth's Home. 

The spacious, colonial type 
fireproof house of three stories 
was dedicated by the Most Rev. 
Joseph Chartrand, the then 
Bishop of Indianapolis, on May 
22, 1927. In his sermon on that 
day Bishop Chartrand called at­
tention to the appropriateness of 
St. Elizabeth of Hungary hav­
ing been selected as the patron 
for this home, because, since it 
was her great love for the unfor­
tunate and the destitute that 
made her a saint, it was most 
fitting that St. Elizabeth should 
guard the destiny of the young 
charges who might be placed 
here in her care. 

St. Margaret Mary Hospital 
Batesville 

THE youngest of the seven 
Catholic hospitals in the Dio­

cese of Indianapolis is that of St. 
Margaret Mary, in BatesviHe. 
Eight Sisters of the Poor of St. 
Francis, whose Provincial House 
is at Hartwell, Ohio, compose the 
staff, with Sister M. Alacoque 
serving as Superior. 

This hospital was 01oened on 
October 29, 1932, the dedicatory 
program continuing the follow­
ing day. The late Most Rev. Jo­
seph Chartrand, then Bishop of 
Indianapolis, officiated at the 
ceremonies on the m orning of 
October 29, following which the 
first Mass in the chapel was cele­
brated by the Rev. Fridolin 
Schuster, O.F'.M. During the 
afternoon program on that day 
the Rev. E. Slroehlin, pastor of 
St. John's Evangelical church, 
Huntersville, and president of 
the Batesville Ministerial associ­
ation, gave the invocation. It 
was said that more than ten 
thousand visitors wer e shown 
through the building during the 
two days. 

The hospital is a three-story 
fireproof structure with a pa­
tient capacity of fifty beds. It 
is built of mingled shades of 
brick with a roof of colorful tile. 
The ground floor houses the 
chapel, the administr ative of­
fices, and some of thE! patients' 
rooms. The second and a por-. 
tion of the third floor contain the 
balance of the patients' rooms, 
with the surgical and X-ray de­
partments also being located on 
the third floor. 

The erection of St. Margaret 
Mary's hospital was made pos­
sible through a bequest of $60,-
000 from the late Mrs,. Margaret 
Hillenbrand, and an additional 
$75,000 from her daughter, the 
late Mrs. Mary A. Mitchell. 
The ground on which the hos­
pital stands is a gift of George 
1\1. Hillenbrand. 

In its short span of two years, 
1,138 patients have been cared 
for at St. Margaret Mary's. The 
Rev. Baldwin Schulte, O.F.M., 
is Chaplain at the hospital. 
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Continued from page 51 

August Bessonies, 1857 to 1890; 
the Rt. Rev. Francis H. Gavisk, 
1892 to 1932; and the Rev. Clem­
ent S. Bosler, the present Pastor, 
who is assisted by the Rev. Wil­
liam J. Davis and the Rev. Edwin 
Sahm. 

The first church, which was 
built in 1840, was replaced in 
1850. The present church was 
erected in 1867. 

The school, which was opened 
in 1860, entered its building in 
1873. It is conducted by the 
Sisters of Providence. 

F ·or a time, St. John's served 
as a Pro-Cathedral. 

ST. JOSEPH CHURCH, lo­
cated at Noble and North streets, 
was founded in 1873. The pres­
ent church was built in 1880. 

The first Pastor, the Rev. Jo­
seph Petit, 1873 to 187 4, re­
signed, and the church was cared 
for from St. John's by the Rev. 
E. J. Spelman and the Rev. F. 
Mousset for five years. The pas­
torate was reestablished in 1879, 
and the Rev. Herman J. Aler­
ding served as Pastor until 1900 
when he was consecrated Bishop 
of Fort Wayne. The Rt. Rev. 
Francis B. Dowd, the present 
Pastor, succeeded Bishop Aler­
ding and has served for thirty­
five years. He is assisted by the 
Rev. Albert V. Deery. 

The school was opened in 187 4 
and the building completed in 
1881. It is conducted by the Sis­
ters of Providence. 

St. Joseph church, the third 
oldest in Indianapolis, originally 
occupied the site of the present 
Little Sisters of the Poor and 
was simultaneously used as a 
seminary until 1879, when it was 
utilized for a hospital by the 
Sisters of Charity. 

ST. MARY CHURCH, located 
at Vermont and New Jersey 
streets, was originally estab­
lished on Maryland street as a 
church for German-speaking 
Catholics in 1856. 

Because of a lack of funds, no 
progress was made until 1858 
when the Rev. Simon Sigrist be­
came Pastor. At his death in 
1873 no new Pastor was ap­
pointed until 1874, the church 
being taken care of in the mean­
time by the Rev. Bede O'Connor, 
O.S.B., and the Rev. Eberhard 
Stadler, O.S.B. In 187 4, the Rev. 
Anthony Scheidler was ap­
pointed Pastor, and remained in 
charge until 1918, when he was 
succeeded by the present Pastor, 
the Rev. John H. Scheefers. The 
Rev. Charles Wilberding is the 
assistant. 

The first church was dedicated 
in 1858, and the present church 
in 1912. 

The school, which was opened 
in 1864, is under the care of the 
Sisters of St. Francis, Olden­
burg. 

ST. PATRICK CHURCH, lo­
cated at 950 Prospect street, 
was founded in 1865 by the Rev. 
August Bessonies of St. John's 
parish. 

The Pastors have been: The 
Rev. Joseph Petit, 1865 to 1869; 

the Rev. Patrick R. Fitzpatrick, 
1869 to 1879; the Rev. Patrick 
McDermott, 1879 to 1882; the 
Rev. Hugh O'Neill, 1882 to 1885; 
the Rt. Rev. Denis O'Donaghue, 
1885 to 1910; the Rev. Victor J. 
Brucker, 1910 to 1914; and the 
Rt. Rev. John P. O'Connell from 
1914 to date. The Rev. Emile J. 
Goossens and the Rev. Amos A. 
McLoughlin are the assistants 
at the present time. 

The first church, called St. Pe­
ter's, was completed June 29, 
1865, and another church, dedi­
cated to St. Patrick, was finished 
in 1870. This church was de­
stroyed by fire and a new church 
dedicated in 1929. 

The school, opened in 1870, oc­
cupies a building completed in 
1922, and is taught by the Sis­
ters of Providence. 

ST. PHILIP NERI CHURCH, 
located at North and Rural 
streets, was founded in 1909, 
and the church was erected in 
that year. 

The Rev. George Smith, the 
first Pastor, served until his 
death in 1927, and he was suc­
ceeded by : The Rt. Rev. Ray­
mond R. Noll, 1927 to 1934; and 
the present Pastor, the Rev. Al­
bert H. Busald, who was ap­
pointed in 1934. The assistants 
at the present time are the Rev. 
Francis J. Early, the Rev. Thom­
as Finneran, and the Rev. 
Charles H. Wagner. 

The school, opened in 1909, is 
in charge of the Sisters of Provi­
dence. The present school build­
ing was erected in 1927. 

ST. RITA CHURCH, located 
at 1816 Arsenal avenue, was 
founded in 1918, and the first 
pastor was the Rev. Joseph M. 
Bryan, who served until 1935. 
At the present time the Rev. 
John F. McShane is in charge of 
the Catholic negroes of Indian­
apolis and is assisted by the Rev. 
Bernard Strange, who has his 
residence at St. Rita's. 

The church was erected in 
1918 and is still used. 

The school was built and 
opened in 1918 and is taught by 
the Sisters of Providence. 

St. Rita's is the only colored 
Catholic church in the State of 
Indiana. 

ST. ROCH CHURCH, located 
at 3600 South Meridian street, 
was founded in 1922. 

The Pastors are: The Rev. 
Matthew Schmitz, O.F.M., 1922 
to 1923; the Rev. Peter Pfeiffer, 
O.F.M., 1923 to 1933; and the 
Rev. Arthur Piontkowski, O.F. 
M., the present Pastor. 

The cornerstone of the church 
was laid in August, 1922, and 
the school was opened in 1924. 
The school is under the direction 
of the Sisters of St. Joseph, from 
Carondelet. 

ACTON. ST. JOHN CHURCH 
was founded in 1863 and the 
first church was built in 1868. 
A second church was erected in 
1883. Various Pastors served 
after the founding, and since 
1926 Mass has been said in a 
private home. Until recent 

• 

I 

,,,. 



• 

.. -: · ·_ , f' 

The Indiana Catholic and Record . ::?t~3 
years when the Catholics moved 
away, St. John's congregation 

-numbered about one hundred. 
At the present time St. John's is 
administered as a Mission of 
Franklin. 

AURORA. IMMACULATE 
CONCEPTION CHURCH was 
founded in 1851. The Pastors in 
the order of their service are : 
The Rev. Ignatius Klein, 1851 
t o 1877; the Rev. Ferdinand 
Hundt, 1877 to 1883; the Rev. 
J. J. Schoentrup, 1883 to 1889 ; 
the Rev. J. J. Macke, 1889 to 
1916; the Rev. Joseph Lammert, 
1916 to 1918; and the Rev. Fred­
erick Burget, since 1918. 

The first church, erected in 
1851, was followed by a second 
which was completed in 1863. 

The school, opened in 1866, 
was originally taught by the 
Sisters of Providence, but it is 
now conducted by the Sisters of 
St. Francis. 

Immaculate Conception high 
school was founded in 1892 by 
Father Macke as a co-educa­
tional high school for eighth 
grade graduates and has con­
tinued to the present time. 

BAINBRIDGE. ST. PAT-
RICK CHURCH was founded 
about 1875. The first church, 
dedicated in 1879, is still in use. 
Bainbridge is now a mission of 
Greencastle. 

BATESVILLE. ST. LOUIS 
CHURCH was founded about 
1867. The Pastors include: The 
Rev. Clemens Steinkamp, O.F. 
M.; the Rev. Bonaventure Ham­
mer, O.F.M.; the Rev. Dionysius 
Abarth, O.F.M.; the Rev. Fran­
cis Links, O.F.M.; the Rev. 
Bernadine Holthaus, O.F.M., the 
first resident Pastor; the Rev. 
Nicholaus Holtel, O.F.M., 1877 
to 1878 ; the Rev. Martin Bauer, 
O.F.M., 1878 to 1879; the Rev. 
Leonard Nurre, O.F.M., 1879 to 
1884; the Rev. Philibert All­
staetter, O.F.M., 1884 to 1886 ; 
the Rev. John Wellinghoff, 
O.F.M., 1886 to 1890; the Rev. 
William Gausepohl, O.F.M., 
1890; the Rev. Davis Kersting, 
O.F .M., 1890 to 1891; the Rev. 
John C. Heitman, O.F.M., 1891 
to 1895 ; the Rev. Clemens Stein­
kamp, O.F.M., 1895 to 1897; the 
Rev. Bartholomew Weiss, O.F. 
M., 1897 to 1903; the Rev. 
Gabriel Lippse, O.F.M., 1903 to 

1904; the Rev. Francis S 
Schaeffer, O.F.M., 1906 to 
1912; the Rev. Stephen Hoffman, 
O.F.M., 1912; the Rev. Angelus 
Hafertepe, O.F·.M., 1912 to 1915, 
the Rev. Fulgence Meyer, O.F 
M., 1915; the Rev. Urban 
Freundt, 1915 to 1916; the Rev 
Adalbert Rolfes, O.F.M., 1916 
to 1924; the Rev. Andrew Henze, 
O.F.M., 1924 to 1926; the Rev 
Ildephonse Gast, O.F.M., 1926 
to 1928; and the Rev. Fridolin 
Schuster, O.F.M., since 1928. 
The Rev. Caesar Kron, O.F.M., 
the Rev. Lawrence Rossman, 
O.F.M., and the Rev. Ulric 
Kteutzen, O.F.M., are the pres­
ent assistants. 

The church was built by the 
Fransciscan Fathers of Olden­
burg upon ground donated by 
two non-Catholics, and was fin­
ished in 1870 at which time it 
was called St. Ludwig's church. 

The first school was built in 
1871 and in 1923 a new school 
was dedicated. It is taught by 
the Sisters of St. Francis of 
Oldenburg. 

BEDFORD. ST. VINCENT 
DE P A U L C H U R C H was 
founded in 1851, and the first 
church built in 1866. The pres­
ent one was erected in the year 
1894. 

The Rev. William V. Boland 
is the present Pastor and is as­
sisted by the Rev. Bernard Bur­
gert. 

The school was opened in 
1908. 

BICKNELL. ST. PHILLIP 
NERI CHURCH was founded in 
1906. The Rev. John Becher 
was Pastor until 1912. He was 
followed by the Rev. Joseph C. 
Backert, and the Rev. George 
Scheidler. The Rev. James M. 
Gregoire was Pastor from 1916 
to 1934. The Rev. William 
Lensing is the present Pastor. 

The church was built in 1908. 
BLOOMINGTON. ST. 

CH;ARLES C H U R C H . was 
founded in 1860. The Pastors 
who have been in charge are : 
The Rev. Joseph O'Reilly, 1860 
to 1864; the Rev. C. J. Mongrin, 
1864 to 1868 ; the Rev. Henry 
H. Kessing, 1868 to 1877; the 
Rev. Leopold Burkhardt, 1877 
to 1879; the Rev. John V. Un­
verzagt, 1879 to 1883 ; the Rev. 
T. H. Logan, 1883 to 1885; the 

This stone, located one mile south of the present 
chu:vch at Floyds Knobs, marks the site of the first 
church (built in 182:l) erected in Floyd county. 
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Air Conditioned Refrigeration 
Is What You Get In The NEW MODERN Ice Refrigerator 

You do not want to use a small, old-fashioned, cold storage ilystem in your home, how­
ever well disguised on the exterior. Yet that is all you get unless you select Washed Air 
Refrigeration. 

Modern wa3hed air means: Correct low temperature. Proper humidity. Washed pure 
air, so that one food is not contaminated by another. Prevention of dried out and devitalized 
foods. 

The new Washed Air ice refrigerator is different to all other refrigerators. It is a beautiful 
piece of furniture • . . modern . . . stylish . . . finished in snow white DuLux. 

It's still smart to be economical. It' ~ good sense to want the best when it costs you less. 
That's why you want Washed Air Refrigeration for your home. 

You can satisfy your curiosity about the modern Washed Air Refrigerator in your own 
way, in your own home, with our ten-day free trial offer. 

EBNER ICE & COLD STORAGE CO. 
VINCENNES, IND. 

Washington-Martinsville-Seymour 

Tip Top Creamery 
VINCENNES, IND. 

GEO. A. OSBURN, President 
A. E. OSBORN, Vice-President 

MARION 

ESTABLISHED 1892 

E. L. WEESNER, Secretary 
A. E. JAY, Treasurer 

OSBORN PAPER COMPANY 
Tablet Manufacturers 

1119-21-23 S. Washington St. 
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MARION, IND. 
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Rev. J. J. Bogeman, 1885 to 
1920; the Rev. Joseph Lannert, 
1920 to 1927; and the present 
Pastor, the Rev. Paul A. Deery, 
from 1927 to date. The Rev. 
Francis Kull is now the assist­
ant. 

The first church was built in 
1864, the second in 1878, and the 
present one in 1922. The school, 
opened in 1922, is taught by the 
Sisters of Providence. 

St. Charles' is the parish of 
the 300 Catholic students at 
Indiana University, and a New­
man Club at the University was 
started in 1927. 

BOONVILLE. ST. CLEMENT 
CHURCH was founded in 1858 
and the original church, built in 
1882, is still standing. The Rev. 
Herbert Winterhalter is the 
present Pastor. 

BRADFORD. ST. MICHAEL 
CHURCH was founded in 1835. 
The first church was built in 
1853, and the present one in 
1882. The school was· opened in 
1883. 

The Rev. John B. Gorman is 
the present Pastor. 

BRAZIL. ANNUNCIATION 
OF THE BLESSED VIRGIN 
MARY CHURCH was founded 
about 1863 with the first church 
built about 1865. The present 
church was built in 1883. The 
school was opened in 1868. 

The Rev. Albert G. Wicke is 
the present Pastor, and the Rev. 
Robert Howard, the assistant. 

BRISTOW. ST. JOHN THE 
BAPTIST CHURCH was organ­
ized in 1837, under the guidance 
of the Rev. Julian Benoit. The 
first church, a log cabin, was 
built by Father Bessonies in 
1841. Eight years later, Bishop 
St. Palais confirmed fourteen 
parishoners. In 1875, Abbot 
Marty built the second church. 

The mission was cared for by 
the Pastor of Derby until 1838; 
by the Pastor of Leopold until 
1872; from St. Meinrad until 
1874; from St. Mark's in Perry 
county, until 1919; from Leopold 
until 1928; and from St. Mark's 

VINCENNES 

Gerhard Bergman 
&Sons 

PASSENGER CARS-TRUCKS­
FUNERAL CARS 
210-12 Buntin St. 

VINCENNES, IND. 

A CENTURY OF SERVICE 

DEXTER GARDNER & SON 
Established 1816 

Geo. E. Gardner Dexter C. Gardner 
FUNERAL HOME-505 MAIN ST. 

VINCENNES, IND. 

Merit Shoe Store 
''VINCENNES COMPLETE FAMILY 

SHOE STORE" 

305 Main St. 
VINCENNES, IND. 

SULLIVAN 

QUALITY SERVICE 

BILLMAN FUNERAL 
HOME 

Sullivan, Ind. 

A GOOD PLACE TO BUY YOUR 
BAKERY GOODS 

PIES, CAKES AND COOKIES 

SMITH'S BAKERY 
East Side of Square 

Sullivan, Ind. 

PLYMOUTH 

MURPHY & YODER 
None Such Brand Food Products 

Supreme Quality Foods 

Phones 549-550 

PLYMOUTH, IND. 

G& G GROCERY 
AND MARKET 

Chas. H. Glaub, Prop. 
Meats, Groceries, Fruits, Vegetables 

PHONE 264 115 N. MICH. ST. 
PLYMOUTH, IND. 

to date. ~======================:;, BROOKVILLE. ST. MICH- I 
AEL CHURCH was founded 

Watch The 
"FORDS GO BY" 

FASTEST MOVING CAR IN AMERICA 
in 1845. It was attended from 
1845 to 1863 by the Pastors of 
St. Peter's, St. Louis, and St. RUDD MOTOR CO. 
Mary's. The first resident - =-=-=-=-=-=-=-P=-L=-Y=M_ =

0
_ =u_T=-H=-,=-=-

1
N=-D=-.=-=-====~ Pastor was the Rev. G. H. 

Ostlangenberg, 1863 to 1868, 
and was succeeded by: The 
Rev. Meinrad Fleischman, 1868 
to 1897; the Rev. Peter A. 
Schenk, 1897 to 1910; and the 
Rev. Andrew Schaaf from 1910 
to date. The Rev. Lawrence 

Gates Chevrolet, Inc. 
24 HOUR SERVICE 

Chevrolet - Pontiac 
Buick - Oldsmobile 

PLYMOUTH, IND. 

sistant. Coca-Cola W einzaepf el is the present as- I 
A building was purchased for Bott11· ng Co. 

a church in 1845, and a church 
was built in 1858, and rebuilt in Plymouth, Ind. 
1902. :===========.J The school was opened in a 
temporary building in 1855. A 

Sisters of St. Francis, Olden­
burg, are in charge. 

The first cemetery, located on 

The Bosworth Co. 
A Good Store To Find 

Good Merchandise 
PLYMOUTH, IND. 

new school building was built I 
in 1873, and rebuilt in 1912. The 

the church grounds, contains the ============~ 
remains of 96 Indiana pioneers. 
In 1867, a new location for the 
cemetery was selected and in 
1911, 1914, and 1926, the prop­
erty was enlarged. 

BROWNSBURG. ST. MALA­
CHY CHURCH is located here 

DENNY MOTOR TRANSFER 
co. 

Plymouth Transfer Co. 
Phone 388 Plymouth, Ind. 
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MOTHER'S BREAD 
Product of 

Kessler Baking Co. 
Greensburg, Ind. 

W. C. PULSE 
LUMBER CO. 

Everything In Building Materials 
Office and Planing Mill 314-26 W. Main 

Greensburg, Ind. 

STRASBURGER DRY 
CLEANING CO. 

-: HAT CLEANING :-
WE CALL FOR AND DELIVER 

PHONE 1663 GREENSBURG, IND. 

JASPER 

We Believe in the Need, 

Power and Influence of 
The Catholic Press 

INDIANA 
DESK CO. 

JASPER, IND. 

Mrs. Joseph H. 
HENNESSY 

JASPER, IND. 

J. J. Newberry Co. 
5-10 and 25c STORE 

JASPER, IND. 

JASPER 
CABINET CO. 

JASPER, IND. 
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but there is no record of the 
date of its founding or of the 
building · of the first church. 
The Pastors include: The Rev. 
D. J. McMullen, 1867 to 1868 ; 
the Rev. August Bessonies, 
1869; the Rev. J. L. Brassart, 
1869 to 1870; the Rev. D. Dono­
van, 1870 to 187 4 ; the Rev. 
Thomas X. Logan, 187 4 to 1877 ; 
the Rev. E. J. Spellman, 1881 
to 1885; the Rev. M. J. Power, 
1885 to 1900; the Rev. M. W. 
Lyons, 1900 to 1910; the Rev. 
W. V. Boland, 1911 to 1912; the 
Rev. John Walsh, 1912 to 1917 ; 
the Rev. 0. C. Bossler, 1917 to 
1918; the Rev. William Maher, 
1918 to 1923; the Rev. Timothy 
Kavanaugh, 1923 to 1926; the 
Rev. A. B. Duffy, 1926 to 1927; 
and the Rev. James Shea, since 
1927. 

The present church was built 
in 1904. 

BROWNSTOWN. OUR LADY 
OF PROVIDENCE CHURCH is 
a Mission of Seymour. 

CAMBRIDGE CITY. ST. 
ELIZABETH CHURCH was 
founded about 1842. The first 
priest to say Mass here was the 
Rev. Vincent Bacquelin. The 
first church was dedicated in 
1852, the second church about 
1864. The present church has 
been used since 1880. 

The first resident Pastor was 
the Rev. Joseph O'Reilly who 
served from 1864 to 1869. 
Father O'Reilly's successors 
were the following; The Rev. 
Vincent de Vilas, 1870 to 1871; 
the Rev. Herman Alerding, 1871 
to 1874; the Rev. John B. Kelly, 
187 4 to 1881; the Rev. Andrew 
Oster, 1881 to 1885; the Rev. 
Edward J. Spellman, 1885 to 
1905 ; the Rev. James A. Coulter, 
1905 to 1909 ; the Rev. James 
Shea, 1909 to 1913.; the Rev. 
Michael Gorman, 1913 to 1921; 
the Rev. John Schenk, 1921 to 
1924; the Rev. John Rodutsky, 
1924 to 1928; the Rev. Charles 
F. Walsh, 1928 to 1932; the 
Rev. Francis Kull, 1932 to 1933; 
and the present Pastor, the Rev. 
Albert Schad, who was appointed 
in 1933. 

A school was opened in 1865. 
CANNELBURG. ALL 

JASPER 

Jasper Council No. 1584 

KNIGHTS OF COLUMBUS 
JASPER, IND. 

Jasper Circle No. 140 

DAUGHTERS OF ISABELLA 
JASPER, IND. 

JAS:PER CHAIR CO. 

JASPER, IND. 

The German American Bank 
YOUR BANK. HERE TO SERVE YOU. 

JASPER, IND. 

The Dubois County State Bank 
Where Your Depc>sits Are Insured by The Federal Deposit 

lnsuran.c;e Corporation up to $5,000.00 
JASPER, IND. 

r.:======================;- SAINTS CHURCH was founded 
.in 1891 at which time the pres-

Victoria Mill and Elevator Co. 
Manufacturers of Highest Grades Flour, 

Corn Meal-AU Kinds Feeds 
Dealers in Field Seeds, Fertilizers, Cotton 

Seed Meal and All Kinds of Feed 
JASPER, IND. PHONE 95 

HENRY PFAU 
Wholesale Dealer in and Shipper of 

EGGS, POULTRY, HIDES 
And All Kinds of Egg-Case Material 

JASPER, IND. 

I 
Keep Cool With Ice Made in Jasper 

DuBois County Ice Co. 
A. BUYS, President 

JASPER, IND. 

FRANKLIN 

IT PAYS TO TRADE AT 

SWANKS 
FRANKLIN'S SMART 
SHOP FOR WOMEN 

26 E. Jefferson St. FRANKLIN, IND. 

ent church was built. The Rev. 
Theodore Mattingly is now the 
Pastor. 

CANNELTON. ST. MICHAEL 
CHURCH was founded about 
1852 by the Rev. August Bes­
sonies, then residing at Leopold. 
Pastors include the Rev. Bede 
O'Connor, O.S.B., 1854 to 1855; 
the Rev. Michael Marendt, 1855 
to 1871; the Rev. Edward M. 
Faller, 1871 to 1878; the Rev. 
M. L. Guthnec; the Rev. J. W. 
Book 1879 to 1898; the Rev. G. 
H. Moss, 1900 to 1913; the Rev. 
James Shea, 1913 to 1920; the 
Rev. Joseph Mathews, 1920 to 
1924; and the Rev. Edward T. 
Hilger, the present Pastor, since 
1924. 

The school is taught by the 
Sisters of St. Benedict. 

CEDAR GROVE. GUARD­
IAN ANGEL CHURCH was 
founded by the Rev. Meinrad 
Fleischmann in 1872. The 
Pastors in the order of their 
service are : The Rev. Joseph 
Fleischmann, 187 4 to 1883 ; the 
Rev. Henry Tegeder, 1883 to 

We wish to pay tribute to the Most Rev. Joseph E. Ritter 
and the Rev. Basil Heusler, O.S.B. 

Jasper Wo1od Products Company, Inc. 
"JUST - WlHAT - PRODUCES - CONTENT" 

MANUFACTURERS OF 

PLYWOOD, TOPS AND PANELS 

JASPER, IND. 

HO·OSIER DESK COMPANY 
MANUFACTURERS OF HOOSIER DESKS 

"BUILT TRUE CLEAR THRU" 

JASPER, IND. 

Jasper Office Furniture Co. 
Manufacturers of 

DESK AND OFFICE FURNITURE 

Jasper, Ind. 
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INDIANAPOLIS 

How To 
Reduce Your 

INSURANCE 
COST 

Thousands of policy­
holders cut their insur­
ance costs 25 % or more 
last year. 

The non - assessable 
mutual policy issued by 
the Indiana Lu m b e r­
mens Mutual Insurance 
Company has saved 
money for many owners 
of dwellings, mercan­
tile properties, manu­
facturing plants, schools 
and churches. 

To effect a substantial 
s a v i n g in y o u r fire, 
windstorm and automo­
bile insurance, investi­
gate this plan. It will 
save you at least 25 % . 

INDIANA 
LUMBERMENS 

MUTUAL 
INSURANCE CO. 

Mutual Insurance Building 
Lincoln 5346 

INDIANAPOLIS, IND. 

1886; the Rev. Joseph, O.S.B.; 
the Rev. Stephen, O.S.B.; the 
Rev. A. Koesters ; the Rev. 
George Lesch ; the Rev. Theo­
dore S. Mesker, 1888 to 1906; 
and the Rev. Charles A. Clever, 
from 190'6 to the present time. 

The first church was built in 
187 4, and the present one in 
1895. The school, opened in 
1877, occupies a building com­
pleted in 1916. 

CARBON. ST. JOSEPH 
CHURCH was founded about 
1870. The church was dedicated 
in 1872. It is now a Mission of 
Brazil. 

CELESTINE. ST. CELES­
TINE CHURCH was founded in 
1843 by the Rev. Joseph Kundek, 
as a Mission to Jasper. The 
Pastors include: The Rev. 
Mathias Lentner, 1849 to 1850; 
the Rev. John Merl, 1851 to 
1853; the Rev. Joseph Neuber, 
1853 to 1854; the Rev. Joseph 
Wirz, 1854 to 1856; the Rev. 
Bede O'Connor, O.S.B., and the 
Rev. Isidore Hobi, O.S.B., 1856 
to 1859; the Rev. Joseph Meister, 
1859 to 1864; the Rev. Bernard 
Bruening, 1864 to 1877; the 
Rev. Alexander Koesters, 1877 
to 1883; the Rev. Joseph 
Fleischmann, 1883 to 1891; the 
Rev. Charles Bilger, 1891 to 
1913; the Rev. Lawrence 
Fichter, 1913 to 1916; the Rev. 
John Loibl, 1916 to 1917; the 
Rev. Aloysius C. Schnellenberg­
er, from 1917 to date. The Rev. 
Charles Kunkler is the present 
assistant. 

The original church was built 
in 1844, the second in 1864, and 
the present church in 1896. 

The first school building was 
completed in 1878, and the pres­
ent one in 1922. The school was 
under the direction of the Ursu­!::::::::======================'- line Sisters until 1882, and since 

I 
that time the Benedictine 
Sisters have been in charge. 

CHARLESTON. ST. MICH-
Indianapolis Belting & 

Supply Co. 
30_36 s. CAPITOL AVE. AEL CHURCH was founded 

INDIANAPOLIS, IND. about 1856. The first church 

~-=======================~ was built in 1860, the second in 1900, and the present structure 

KENNEDY & RAGAN 
ACCOUNTANTS 

1107 FLETCHER TRUST BLDG. 
INDIANAPOLIS, IND. 

A GOOD PLACE TO EAT 

American Coffee House 
No. 1---401 E. WASH. 

No. 2-110 S. ILLINOIS 
No. 3-230 N. ILLINOIS 

INDIANAPOLIS 

·Fred C. Atkinson 
Chemical Research, Analyses, 

Industr ial Problems 

407 Transportation Bldg. 
Riley 2174 INDIANAPOLIS 

CENTURY HEATING 
SERVICE CO. 
WARM AIR HEATING 

We Specialize in Church Heating 
633 S. DELAWARE ST. RI. 1159 

INDIANAPOLIS 

DR. E. R. BROCKING 
722 S. NEW JERSEY ST. 

DR. 5533 INDIANAPOLIS 
Residence Phone, DR. 4121 

in 1928. It is now a Mission of 
Henryville. 

CHINA. ST. ANTHONY 
CHURCH, a Mission of North 
Madison, was founded in 1849 
by the Rev. Anthony Carius, 
then of Madison. From this 
time until 1861 it was served by 
the priests of Madison and until 
1874 by the clergy of St. Mag­
dalene, Ripley county. In 1874, 
the Rev. Bernard Ewers was 
appointed Pastor of St. Patrick's 
at North Madison with China 
and Vevay as Missions, and to 
date the Pastors of St. Patrick's 
have attended China. 

In 1861, the first church, 
which was made of logs, was 
built, and in 1869, the second 
and present church, of stone 
construction, was erected. 

CHRISNEY. ST. MARTIN 
CHURCH was founded in 
Centerville, about three miles 
from Chrisney, in 1865, where 
it remained until 1898 when the 
parish was moved to Chrisney 
which was nearer railroad facili-
ties. 

The Rev. F. W. Wolf was resi­
dent Pastor until 1910 when it 
became a Mission of Rockport. 
For a short time it had as resi­
dent Pastor the Rev. Chas. Wag-

. ner, but it again became a Mis-

sion until 1921 when the Rev. 
A n d r e w Bastnagel became 
Pastor. In 1932 it became a 
Mission of Red Brush continu­
ing until the present day. 

CLINTON. SACRED HEART 
CHURCH was founded in 1891. 
The Pastors m the order of 
service have been: The Rev. 
Joseph Bauer; The Rev. Theo­
dore Mattingly; the Rev. John 
Stanton; the Rev. Walter 
Cronin; the Rev. J. Maher; the 
Rev. James Bolin; the Rev. Wil­
liam Keefe; and the Rev. John 
Rapp. The present pastor, the 
Rev. George P. Ziemer, is as­
sisted by the Rev. Sylvester A. 
Ziemer. 

The original church was built 
in 1891, the second in 1895, and 
the present church in 1906. 

The school building was com­
pleted in 1907 and the school 
opened m the following year. 
It is under the direction of the 
Sisters of St. F 'rancis. 

COLUMBUS. ST. BAR­
THOLOMEW CHURCH was 
founded in 1841. The Pastors in 
their order of service are: The 
Rev. Vincent Bacquelin, 1841 to 
1846; the Rev. Daniel Maloney, 
1846 to 1853; the Rev. Edward 
Martinovic, 1855 to 1863 ; the 
Rev. Francis Gouesse, 1863 to 
1865; the Rev. W. A. Orem, 1865 
to 1872; the Rev. Victor Schnell, 
1872 to 1885; the Rev. Andrew 
Oster, 1885 to 1907; the Rev. 
Charles Wagner, 1908; the Rev. 
James Delaney, 1908 to 1920; 
the Rev. Patrick Griffin, 1920 to 
1921; the Rev. C. P. Baron, 1921 
to 1923; the Rev. Frank X. Hil­
len, 1923 to 1927; the Rev. 
Timothy Kavanaugh, 1927 to 
1932; the Rev. Joseph Lannert, 
1932 to 1934; and the Rev. 
Francis J. Scheper, the present 
Pastor. 

The first church was built in 
1841 and the present one was 
erected in 1891. 

The school, opened in 1855, 
moved into a new building in 
1891. Originally taught by the 
Sisters of Providence, it is now 
under the direction of the 
Sisters of St. Benedict. 

CONNERSVILLE. ST. GA­
BRIEL CHURCH was served by 
missionary priests until 1853. 
The Rev. Henry Peters was the 
first Pastor, serving from 1853 
to 187 4. He was followed by: 
The Rev. Peter Bischof, 187 4 to 
1876; the Rev. J . B. H. Seepe, 
1876 to 1881; the Rev. Francis 
J. Rudolf, 1881 to 1906; the Rt. 
Rev. Theodore S. Mesker, 1906 
to 1927; the Rev. Michael Wag­
ner, 1927 to 1931; the Rev. Jo­
seph Lannert; and the Rev. Tim­
othy Kavanaugh since 1932. The 
Rev. Bernard Shea is the pres­
ent assistant. 

The original church was built 
in 1851 and the present one in 
1881. 

The school was opened in 1884, 
and the present school building 
in 1873. The Sisters of Provi­
dence were in charge from 1873 
to 1926 and since that time the 
Sisters of St. Francis of Olden­
burg have conducted the school. 

CORYDON. ST. JOSEPH 
CHURCH was founded about 
1853 and the first, the present 
church, was built in 1895. The 
Rev. John Vagedes is the pres­
ent Pastor, assisted by the Rev. 
Joseph Busald. 
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DALE. ST. J O S E P H 
CHURCH was founded in '1909. 
The Pastors are: The Rev. 
Francis Wolf, 1909 to 1910; the 
Rev. Philip Schneider, 1910 to 
1914; the Rev. Andrew Bauer, 
O.S.B., 1914 to 1916; the Rev. 
Boniface Benkert, O.S.B., 1916 
to 1917; the Rev. Chrysostom 
Coons, O.S.B., 1917 to 1930; the 
Rev. Paul Thoma, O.S.B., 1930 
to 1933; the Rev. James Reed, 
O.S.B., from 1933. 

The present, which is the orig­
inal church, was built in 1909. 

A school was opened in the 
Sisters' home in 1918 and a 
building was built in 1922. The 
school is taught by the Benedic­
tine Sisters of Ferdinand. 

Dale was a Mission of Chris­
ney until 1914; from 1914 to 
1917 it was a Mission of St. 
Meinrad's Abbey; and from 
1917 to 1919 it was a Mission of 
Jasper College. 

DERBY. S T . M A R Y 
CHURCH, formerly called "St. 
Mary of the River," and the cra­
dle of Catholicity in Perry coun­
ty, was founded in 1810, the first 
Pastor being the Rev. Stephen 
Theodore Badin who served 
from 1810 to 1811. Following 
Father Badin, its Pastors were: 
The Rev. Charles Nevinchx, 1811 
to 1818; the Rev. Robert Abell, 
1818 to 1824; and the Rev. 
Elisha Durbin, 1824 to 1832. 
Priests from Indiana t o o k 
charge September 3, 1837, and 
the Rev. Julian Benoit was resi­
dent Pastor from 1837 to 1838. 
It then became a Mission and 
was served from Leopold from 
1838 to 1860; from Cannelton, 
1860 to 1863 ; from Leopold, 
1863 to 1866; from St. Croix, 
1866 to 187 4; from Leopold, 
187 4 to 1888; from St. Mark's, 
1888 to 1919; from Leopold, 1919 
to 1929; from Tell City, 1929 to 
1934; and from Leopold, 1934 
to date. 

The original church was built 
in 1818, the second in 1824, the 
third in 1850, and the present 
one in 1891. The first church 
was a log building and was given 
to Father Nevinchx by a Daniel 
McLaughlin. The second church, 
likewise constructed of logs, was 
built by Father Durbin on the 
river bank and a cemetery 
started around it. But because 
of flood damages, a stone church, 
dedicated in 1850~ was erected 
and a new cemetery started on 
the top of the Derby hill. When 
this third building became unfit 
for use, the fourth and the pres­
ent church, a frame structure, 
was erected. 

Here, in November, 1827, 
Bishop Flaget, of Bardstown, 
Kentucky, assisted by Fathers 
Abell and Durbin, conducted the 
first jubilee celebration ever held 
in Indiana. Here, too, in Sep­
tember, 1837, the Rt. Rev. Simon 
Brute, first Bishop of Vincennes, 
personally installed Father Be­
noit as Pastor, the first dioces­
an priest in Perry county. 

DIAMOND. S T. M A R Y 
CHURCH is a Mission and is at­
tended from Brazil. 

DOVER. ST. JOHN BAPTIST 
CHURCH records-but the year 
of founding is not definitely 
known-go back to the year 
1810. 

The resident Pastors in the 
order of their service are: The 

' 

Rev. Michael O'Rourke, 1842 to 
1846; the Rev. Andrew Bennett 
1846 to 1859; the Rev.. Roman 
W einzoepfle, 1859 to 1860; the 
Rev. Anthony Schiedeler,, 1860 to 
1866; the Rev. Julius J. udden­
hausen, 1866 to 1870; the Rev 
Victor A. Schnell, 1870 to 1871 ; 
the Rev. Henry J. Seibertz, 1871 
to 1877 ; the Rev.- Bernard H. 
Brueggema.,n, who was Pastor 
for forty-six years, ] 877 to 
1923; the Rev. Edward ,l. Feller, 
1923 to 1931; and the present 
Pastor, the Rev. George J. 
Scheidler, since 1931. 

The first church was built in 
1825, the second in 1854, and 
the present church in 18U. The 
school was built and opened dur­
ing the pastorate of Father 
Scheideler and is under the di­
rection of the Sisters of St. Fran­
cis. 

DUBOIS. ST.RAPHAEL 
CHURCH was founded in 1899. 
The Pastors of the church in­
clude: The Rev. Charles Bilger, 
1899 to 1903; the Rev. C. J. Zin­
kelbach, 1903 to 1906 ; t he Rev. 
Richard Hoeing, 1906 t o 1916; 
the Rev. Mathias Weiland, 1916 
to 1931; and the Rev. George 
J. Sebastian, 1931 to the present 
time. 

The original church was fin­
ished in 1901 and a new church 
was built in 1919. A combined 
parochial and public school, 
taught by lay teachers, was 
opened in 1903. A new school 
building was completed during 
1929. 

DUGGER. OUR LADY OF 
PERPETUAL HELP CHURCH, 
a Mission of Sullivan, was 
founded in 1912. The church 
was dedicated the same year. 

EDINBURG. HOLY TRINI­
TY CHURCH, a Mission of 
Franklin, was founded in 1835. 
The Pastors include: rThe Rev. 
Bacquilin, 1835 to 1846 ; the Rev. 
Daniel Maloney, 1846 to 1851; 
and the Rev. Edward Martinovie, 
1851. The Rev. Victo:r Schnell 
was in charge from 1868 until 
1888. Father Oster was in 
charge until 1911 and he was 
succeeded by Fathers Delaney, 
Barron, Smith, Schaeffer, and 
Doyle. The Rev. Anthony Se­
ger, the Pastor of St. Rose of 
Lima church at Frankllin, is now 
in charge. 

The first church was built in 
1851, and the present one in 
1883. 

A school was started in 1872 
under the direction of the Sis­
ters of St. Francis, but was later 
discontinued. 

EN0CHSBURG. ST. JOHN 
THE EVANGELIST CHURCH 
was founded about 1847, the 
first church being built about a 
year later. The present church 
was built in 1856. The school 
was erected in 1853. The Rev. 
Gerard H. Moss is the present 
Pastor. 

EV ANSVILLI~ 
ASSUMPTION CHURCH, lo­

cated at 123 N. W. Seventh 
street, was founded in 1837 and 
is the oldest, and until 1851, was 
the only Catholic church in. Ev­
ansville. 

The Pastors are: The Rev. 
Anthony Deydier, 1847 to 1859; 
the Rev. Patrick McDermott, 
1849 to 1879; the Very Rev. Eu­
gene F. McBarron, 1879 to 1911; 
and the Rt. Rev. F,rancis P. 
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Ryves, from 1911 to date. The 
Rev. Aloysius V. Laugel and the 
Rev. Maurice J. Dugan are the 
assistants at the present time. 
In its almost one hundred years 
of existence, there have been but 
four Pastors of Assumption 
church. 

The original church was com­
pleted in 1839 and the present 
one in 1871. 

The school was opened in 
1840; the second building com­
pleted in 1881, and the third fin­
ished in 1928. It is taught by 
the Sisters of Providence. 

HOLY TRINITY CHURCH, 
located at 219 N. W. Third 
street, was founded in 1848. The 
first church, which is the present 
one, was built in 1851 and the 
school was opened the same 
year. The Rev. August Sprig­
ler is the present Pastor, and he 
is assisted by the Rev. August 
Fichter. 

SACRED HEART 
CHURCH is located at 2701 
West Franklin street and was 
founded in 1885. 

The Pastors include: The 
Very Rev. Eugene McBarron and 
Rev. Patrick Rowan, 1885 to 
1887; the Rev. Patrick R. Fitz­
patrick, 1887 to 1912; and the 
Rev. Henry F. Flaherty, 1912 to 
date. The Rev. Joseph Mont­
gomery Brown is the assistant 
at the present time. 

The first church was erected 
in 1885 and the second, the pres­
ent one, was built in 1929. 

The school, conducted by the 
Sisters of Providence, was 
opened in 1914. 

ST. AGNES CHURCH, located 
at 1626 Glendale avenue, was 
founded in 1892. 

The four Pastors who have 
had charge of St. Agnes are: 
The Rev. Patrick Fitzpatrick, 
1892 to 1907; the Rt. Rev. Fran­
cis P. Ryves, 1907 to 1911; the 
Rev. John T. O'Hare, 1911 to 
1915; and the Rev. Eugene A. 
Simon, since 1915. The Rev. 
Richard Laugen is the assistant 
at the present time. 

After the first church was 
built in 1892, a second, the pres­
ent one, was erected in 1910. 
This building is a school and 
church combined. 

The school was opened in 1909 
fl.nd is conducted by the Sisters 
of St. Francis of Oldenburg. 

ST. ANTHONY CHURCH is 
located at 704 First avenue. It 
was founded in 1888 with the 
Rev. Joseph Schuck, who served 
one month, as the first Pastor. 
He was succeeded by : The Rev. 
Casper Seiler, 1888 to 1896; the 
Rev. Kilian Schott, 1896 to 1930; 
and the Rt. Rev. Frederick Ket­
ter, from 1930 to date. The Rev. 
Anthony W einzaepf el and the 
Rev. Thomas J. Clarke are the 
present assistants. 

The present church was built 
in 1893 to 1895. The original 
structure, erected in 1888, was 
a church and school combined. 

A school building was com­
pleted in 1931, and is taught by 
the Sisters of St. Francis of Old­
enburg, and one lay teacher. 

ST. BENEDICT CHURCH, lo­
cated at 1312 Lincoln avenue, 
was founded December 1, 1912. 
The Rev. Martin Hoppemjans, 0. 
S.B., has been Pastor since the 
time of the founding of the 
church. He is assisted by the 

Rev. Vincent Wagner, O.S.B. , 
the Rev. Lambert Enslinger, 0. 
S.B., and the Rev. Cornelius 
Waldo, O.S.B. 

The first church was built in 
1914, and the present church in 
1928. 

The Sisters of St. Benedict 
teach the school which was 
opened in 1913. 

ST. BONIFACE CHURCH, lo­
cated at 418 North Wabash ave­
nue, was founded in 1881. The 
Rev. William Bultmann, the first 
Pastor, served from 1881 to 1889 
and was succeeded by the Rev. 
Leopold M. Burkhardt, 1889 to 
1906. The Rev. J. H. Hillebrand, 
the present Pastor, is assisted by 
the Rev. George Saum and the 
Rev. Henry Bilz. 

The first church, erected in 
1881, was struck by lightning 
on Easter morning, 1902, and to­
tally destroyed by the fire which 
followed. The building of the 
second and present church then 
followed. 

A school was opened in 1881. 
The first building was erected in 
1886 and the second in 1923. It 
is in charge of the Ursuline Sis­
ters of Louisville, Kentucky. 

ST. JOSEPH CHURCH is lo­
cated at 600 East Virginia street. 
It was founded in 1906. The first 
Pastor, the Rev. Patrick Rowan, 
1906 to 1920, was succeeded by 
the Rev. George Floss, 1920 to 
1922, and the Rev. John T. 
O'Hare, 1922 to 1924. The pres­
ent Pastor, the Rev. Michael P. 
Seter, has two assistants : The 
Rev. Edward C. Bauer and the 
Rev. Robert Lehnert. 

After the first church, erected 
in 1906, a new church was com­
pleted in 1923. 

The school, opened in 1906, is 
taught by the Sisters of St. Ben­
edict. 

ST. MARY CHURCH is lo­
cated at 609 Cherry street. It 
was organized in 1866, by the 
Rev. Ferdinand Viefhaus, who 
was in charge until 1892. The 
other Pastors are: The Rev. 
Joseph Dickman, 1892 to 1912; 
the Rev. Francis Torbeck, 1912 
to 1918; the Rev. Frederick Ket­
ter, 1918 to 1930; the Rev. Jo­
seph Lannert, 1930 to 1931 ; and 
the Rev. Michael Wagner, who 
is the present Pastor. He is as­
sisted by the Rev. Cornelius 
Sahm. 

The original church, erected in 
1866, is still standing. The 
school, taught by the Sisters of 
St. Francis of Oldenburg, was 
opened in 1867. 

FERDINAND. ST. FERDI­
NAND CHURCH was founded 
by Father Kundek, April 22, 
1840. It was attended by him 
from Jasper until 1843 when the 
Rev. J. H. Meinkmann, who 
served until 1848, was appoint­
ed. He was succeeded by: The 
Rev. J. Fischer; the Rev. Wil­
liam Doyle, 1849; the Rev. Jo­
seph Kundek; the Rev. J. Con­
tin, 1849 to 1852; and the Rev. 
H. Peters, 1852 to 1853. From 
1853 the Benedictine Fathers 
have been in charge except from 
November, 1859, to May, 1860. 
Pastors since 1853 are: The 
Rev. Philip O'Connell; the Rev. 
Ulrich Christen, 1853 to 1858 ; 
the Rev. Isidore Hobi, 1858 to 
1861; the Rev. Chrysostom 
Foffa, 1861 to 1871; the Rev. 
Eberhard Stadler, 1871 to 1898; 

t 
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the Rev. John Schorno, 1898 to 
1920; the Rev. Odilo Witt, 1920 
to 1933. The present Pastor, 
Rev. Chrysostom Coons, is as­
sisted by the Rev. William Walk­
er. 

The school is in charge of the 
Sisters of St. Benedict. 

FLOYD KNOBS. ASSUMP­
TION CHURCH was founded in 
1823. Bishop Flaget said Mass 
several times in the old log 
church, but the first priests hav­
ing charge are not known. The 
Pastors include: The Rev. L. 
N eyron, 1842 to 1854; the Rev. 
August Bessonies, 1854 to 1857; 
the Rev. William Doyle, 1857 to 
1860; the Rev. F. Rincas, 1860 
to 1861; the Rev. John Gueguen, 
1862; the Rev. G. Ginnsz, 1863 
to 1873; the Rev. James Strem­
ler, 1873 to 1890; the Rev. 
Charles Stricker, 1890 to 1897; 
the Rev. J. H. Hillebrand, 1897 
to 1906; the Rev. Joseph Ser­
mersheim, 1906 to 1925; the 
Rev. Bernard Riedford, 1925 to 
1934; and the present Pastor, 
the Rev. Henry Ver st, from 1934 
to date. 

The first church was built in 
1823 and on a stone one mile 
south of the present church, is 
the following inscription: "The 
first Catholic Church was erect­
ed in Floyd County on this site 
in 1823." In 1837 a second 
church was erected, and in 1908 
the present church, constructed 
of brick, was built. It is situ4 

ated on top of the Knobs, 650 
feet above the Ohio river. 

A school, opened in 1880 and 
originally taught by laymen, is 
now under the direction of the 
Sisters of St. Benedict. A new 
school building was built in 
1890. 

FONTENANT. ST. AUGUS­
TINE CHURCH is a Mission of 
Brazil. 

FORTVILLE. ST. THOMAS 
CHURCH waR founded in 1876. 
The first church was dedicated 
in 1900, and the present one in 
1916. It is now attended as a 
Mission of Greenfield. 

FRANKLIN. ST. ROSE OF 
LIMA CHURCH was founded in 
1868. The Pastors in the order 
of their service have been: The 
Rev. D. J. McMullen, 1868; the 
Rev. Victor A. Schnell, 1869 to 
1879; Father Stanislaus, O.F.M., 
1879 to 1886; the Rev. Arsenius 
Fahle, 1886 to 1891; the Rev. 
Roger Widdendorf, 1891 to 1894; 
the Rev. Francis H. Gavisk. and 

the Rev. Stephen Donoghue, 
1894 to 1897; the parish was 
served by the Capuchins for 
about three years: The Rev. Pe­
ter Killian, 1904 to 1908; the 
Rev. Patrick Griffin, 1908 to 
1912; and the Rev. Adam Baron, 
1915 to 1921. The Rev. An­
thony H. Seger is the present 
Pastor. 

The first church was built in 
1868, and the parish secured an­
other building for a church in 
1905. On the dedication day in 
1905, sermons were preached by 
Bishop O'Donaghue and Father 
Chartrand, then secretary to 
Bishop Chatard. · 

F'RENCH LICK. OUR LADY 
OF THE SPRINGS CHURCH 
founded in 1887 by Father Ba­
sil, O.S.B., was always a Mission 
until the appointment of the 
Rev. James A. Holland, who is 
the first and present Pastor. 
The church was built in 1887. 

FRENCHTOWN. ST. BER­
NARD CHURCH was founded in 
1847. The first church was 
built in 1850, the second in 1881, 
and the third in 1894. A school 
was opened in 1888. The Rev. 
Joseph Brackert is the present 
Pastor. 

FULDA. ST. BONIFACE 
CHURCH was founded in 184 7 
and was first served by Father 
Kundek. Following him, Fa­
thers Fischer, Doyle, and Canton 
were in charge until in 1852, 
when the Rev. Henry Peters be­
came the first resident Pastor. 
Father Peters served until 1853, 
when the Benedictine Fathers 
took charge. From this year the 
Pastors are : The Rev. Bede 
O'Connor, O.S.B.,, 1854; the Rev. 
Eugene Schwergmann, O.S.B.; 
the Rev. Jerome Bachman, O.S. 
B.; the Rev. Ulrich Christen, 0. 
S.B., 1855; the Rev. Chrysostom 
Foffa, O.S.B., 1861; the Rev. 
Martin Marty, O.S.B., 1863 to 
1865; the Rev. Henry Flug, O.S. 
B., 1865 to 1869; Father Wolf­
gang, 1869 to 1870; Father Isi­
dore, 1870 to 1871; the Rev. 
Placidus Zarn, O.S.B., 1871 to 
1877; the Rev. Benno Gerber, 
O.S.B., 1877; Father Jerome, 
1877; the Rev. Maurus Helfrich, 
O.S.B., 1877 to 1881; the Rev. 
Augustine Falley, O.S.B., 1881 
to 1890; the Rev. Joseph Villing­
er, O.S.B.,. 1890 to 1926; Father 
Gregory, 1926 to 1927; the Rev. 
Paul Thoma, O.S.B., 1927 to 
1930; and the Rev. Marcus Mey­
er, O.S.B., from 1930 to date. 

FOR PERFECT 
AUTOMATIC HEAT 

WITH COAL 
FOR HOME, APARTMENT AND 

BUILDING 

In 1847-1848, the first church,' 
which was made of logs, was 
built. In 1860, work on the sec­
ond church, the present one, was 
begun, and it was blessed on 
June 5, 1866, by Fath r Prior 
Martin. 

The school was opened in 
1852 and at that time was taught 
by a lay teacher. In 1879, the 
Benedictine Sisters from Ferdi­
nand took charge. 

GREENCASTLE. ST. PAUL 
CHURCH, founded in 1850, was 
cared for by priests from Indi­
anapolis and Terre Haut e, viz.: 
The Rev. S. Lalumiere, the Rev. 
Daniel Maloney, the Rev. Wil­
liam Doyle, and the Rev. Edw. 
O'Flaherty. The first resident 
Pastor was the Rev. Patrick 
Hyland, 1855 to 1860. He was 
succeeded by: The Rev. Joseph 
O'Reilly, 1860 to 1864; the Rev. 
Charles J. Maugin, 1864 t o 1867; 
the Rev. Peter Julius Clement, 
1867 to 1871; the Rev. Peter 
Bischof, 1871 to 1874; the Rev. 
Denis O'Donovan, 187 4 t o 1877; 
the Rev. Thomas H. Logan, 1877 
to 1880 ; the Rev. Michael I. 
Powers, 1880 to 1885; the Rev. 
Thomas H. Logan, 1885 to 1888 ; 
the Rev. John J. Macke, 1888 
to 1889; the Rev. Thomas Mc­
Loughlin, 1889 to 1911; the Rev. 
William A. Maher, 1911 to 1918; 
the Rev. John A. Walsh, 1918 to 
1922 ;-and the Rev. John J. Jul­
len, C.PP.S., who died Septem­
ber, 1934, served from 1922 to 
June, 1934, when the present 
Pastor, the Rev. Thomas J. Mc-
Grath, was appointed. · 

The first church was built 
about 1850, and the present 
church was purchased by Fa­
ther Maugin from Old School 
Presbyterians, remodeled, and 
dedicated on June 10, 1866, by 
Bishop de St. Palais. It was 
placed under the patronage of 
St. Paul. 

The school was opened in 
1867 and taught for a time by 
lay teachers. Later, the Sisters 
of Providence opened n Acad­
emy but it was closed during the 
Pastorate of Father McLaugh­
lin. It was reopened by Father 
Maher, but WftS closed again by 
Father Walsh. The property of 
the Sisters was sold by them 
around 1921. 

The Indiana State Farm and 
students attending DePauw Uni­
versity at Greencastle are cared 
for by the Pastor of St. Paul's 
church. 

GREENFIELD. ST. MICH­
AEL CHURCH was founded in 
1867. It was served by various 
pastors until 1876 when the 
church was turned over to the 
Franciscan Fathers of the St. 

· Louis province of the Sacred 
Heart. The Rev. Arsenius Fahle 
served until 1881; the Rev. Alex­
ius Bernard, 1881 to 1883; the 
Rev. Stanislaus Riemann, 1883 
to 1885; the Rev. Rudolf Horst­
man, 1885 to 1887; the Rev. An­
gelus Bill, 1881 to 1892; the 
Rev. Lawrence Paule, 1892 to 
1895; the Rev. Simon Swartz, 
1895 to 1896 ; and from 1896, 
the Rev. Sachuy Eahlen, and 
nineteen others. The present 
Pastor, the Rev. John C.R. Ried­
inger, is the first resident Pastor 
and was appointed on July 7, 
1934. 

The date of the erection of the 
first church is not known, but 
the present church was built in 
1898. 

GREENSBURG. ST. MARY 
CHURCH was founded in 1858. 
The Pastors in the order of serv­
ice are: The Rev. John P. Gil­
lig, 1867 to 1871 ; the Rev. Her­
man Panzer, 1874; the Rev. 
Henry Kessing, 1877 to 1882; 
the Rev. Maurice Wagner, O.S. 
B., 1883; the Rev. George Stei­
gerwald, 1883 to 1897; the Rev. 
Lawrence J. Fichter, 1897 to 
1913; the Rev. Henry Fein, 1913 
to 1916; the Rev. Francis X. 
Bueschle, 1916 to 1918; and the 
Rev. Philip J. Schneider, since 
1918. The Rev. Anthony P. 
Kasper is the present assistant. 

The first church was erected 
in 1858 and the second, which is 
the present one, was built in 
1884. 

A school building was com­
pleted in 1875, and the school 
opened the following year. A 
second school building was erect­
ed in 1917, and is conducted by 
the Sisters of St. Francis of Old­
enburg. 

HAMBURG. ST. ANNE 
CHURCH was founded in 1869, 
and the first baptismal record 
was made by the Rev. Bonaven­
ture Hammer, O.S.F., February 
21, 1869. The Rev. Gabriel 
Lippse, O.S.F., was the first resi­
dent Pastor, serving from 1872 
to 1879. He was succeeded by: 
The Rev. M. A. Gillig, 1879 to 
1883; the Rev. J. J. Neuhoff er 
(who printed a humorous news­
paper, "The Hamburger Hum­
bug"), 1883 to 1897 ; the Rev. 
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Francis Sales Schoeppner, O.S. 
B., who was in charge during 
the summer of 1897; the Rev. 
A. Dannenhoffer, 1898 to 1899; 
the Rev. John H. Scheefers, 1899 
to 1910; the Rev. George G. Bor­
ries, 1910 to 1917; the Rev. John 
N. Bracher, 1917 to 1924; the 
Rev. E. J. Zirklebach, 1924 to 
1927; the Rev. Andrew Bastna­
gel, 1927 to 1932; the Rev. Pierce 
Dixon, 1932 to 1934, when the 
present Pastor, the Rev. Joseph 
G. Trible, was appointed. 

The school antedates the or­
ganization of the church, and 
the present school building was 
erected in 1873. The teachers are 
the Sisters of St. Francis. 

HAUBSTADT. SS. PETER 
AND PA UL CHURCH was 
founded in 1877. The Pastors 
who have had charge are: The 
Rev. George Widerin, 1877 to 
1882; the Rev. Bernard Ewers, 
1882 to 1908; the Rev. J. M. 
Zoglman, 1908 to 1909; the Rev. 
Michael P. Seter, 1910 to 1917; 
and the Rev. Nicholas J. F'orve, 
since 1917. 

The original church, built in 
1877, is still standing. The 
school was opened in 1877, and 
a second school building was fin­
ished in 1904. The school is 
taught by the Sisters of St. Ben­
edict. 

HENRYVILLE. ST. FRAN­
CIS XAVIER CHURCH was at­
tended from New Albany, when 
in 1934, the Rev. Matthew Her­
old was appointed as resident 
Pastor. 

HIGHLAND. ST. VINCENT 
DE PAUL CHURCH was found­
ed in 1849, and has been in 
charge of the following priests: 
The Rev. Edward Kenney; the 
Rev. James Delaney ; the Rev. 
D. J. McMullen; the Rev. Timo­
thy O'Donoghue; the Rev. Louis 
Guegen; and the Rev. Charles 
Duffey. The present Pastor, the 
Rev. Frederic Burget, is assist­
ed by the Rev. John Herold. 

The first church was built in 
1849, the second in 1888, and 
the present one in 1926. The 
school was opened in 1849 and is 
in charge of the Sisters of St. 
Francis. 

HUNTINGBURG. ST. MARY 
CHURCH was founded in Au­
gust, 1860. The Pastors include: 
Father Hug, 1869 to 1870; the 
Rev. Eberhard Stadler, 1870 to 
1873; Father Helfrich, 1873 to 
1876; the Rev. Caspar Seiler, 
1876 to 1878; Father Kintrup, 
1878 to 1886; the Rev. Placidus 
Zarn, 1881 to 1886; the Rev. Cy­
ril Thomas, 1886 to 1890; the 
Rev. August Falley, 1890 to 
1899; the Rev. Simon Barber, 
O.S.B., 1899 to 1921; and the 
Rev. Francis S. Schoeppner, O.S. 
B., since 1921. 

The first church was built in 
1860, and the second in 1886. 

The school was opened in 1876, 
and the present building erected 
in 1899, to which an addition 
was made in 1921. The Sisters 
of St. Benedict are in charge of 
the school. 

IRELAND. ST. MARY OF 
THE ANNUNCIATION 
CHURCH was founded as a Mis­
sion and attended from Jasper 
College in 1891, by the Rev. Fide­
lis Maute, O.S.B. The Rev. Dom­
inic Barthel, O.S.B., was in 
charge five years, and Father 
Martin, O.S.B., for eight years. 

In 1903, the Rev. Anthony Mi­
chel, O.S.B., was appointed first 
resident Pastor and is still in 
charge. The church was erected 
in 1890-1891, and a second -
church was built in 1904-1905. 

The school was first opened 
in the sacristy of the church in 
1893, and a two room •school con­
structed in 1914 from the mater­
ial of the old church building. 
Originally, the school was 
taught by a lay teacher, but 
since 1898, it has been conducted 
bv the Sisters of St. Benedict. 

~ JASONVILLE. ST. JOAN OF 
ARC CHURCH, a Mission of 
Linton, was founded in 1904 and 
from this time until December, 
1908, Mass was said twice a 
month in a hall. A church was 
constructed in 1908. · 

There is no school, although 
the children from Jasonville 
were brought by bus to St. Pe­
ter's school at Linton from 1923 
until the end of the school year 
in 1932. 

JASPER. ST. JOSEPH 
CHURCH was founded in 1837 
and the Pastors are : The Very 
Rev. Joseph Kundek, V.G., 1837 
to 1857; the Very Rev. Bede 
O'Connor, O.S.B., 1857 to 1860; 
the Rev. Ulrich Christen, O.S. 
B., 1860 to 1865; the Rev. Wolf­
gang Schlumpf, O.S.B., 1865 to 
1866; the Rev. Fidelis Maute, 0. 
S.B., 1866 to 1897; and the Very 
Rev. Basil Heusler, O.S.B., R.D., 
from 1898 to date. The Rev. 
Roman Roeper, O.S.B., and the 
Rev. Charles Dudine, O.S.B., are 
the present assistants. 

The first church was built in 
1834, the second in 18411 and 
the present one in 1868. 

The school was opened in 
1849 and the present building 
was erected in 1927. The Sis­
ters of Providence are in charge 
of the school. 

JEFFERSONVILLE 
ST. ANTHONY CHURCH 

was founded in 1850. The first 
church was dedicated in 1868, 
and the second, the present one, 
in 1876. The school was opened 
in 1872. The present Pastor 'is 
the Rev. Edmund Kaiser, O.M.C. 

-ST. AUGUSTINE CHURCH 
was founded about 1850. The 
first church was dedicated in 
1868 and the present one in 1876. 
The school was opened in 1872. 
The present Pastor is the Rev. 
Joseph M. Bryan, who is assisted 
by the Rev. Thomas Fields. 

KNIGHTSTOWN. ST. ROSE 
CHURCH is a Mission conducted 
from Cambridge City. The 
church was blessed in 1872 by 
the Rev. Henry Peters and two 
extra rooms were added in 1881 
by the Rev. P. Victor, O.S.F. 
The Rev. Herman Alerding was 
the first priest in charge. 

LANESVILLE. ST. MARY 
CHURCH was founded about 
1830. Three churches have been 
erected in the years about 1832, 
1850, and 1864. The school was 
opened in 1854. The Rev. Clem­
ent Hunger is the present pas­
tor. 

LAUREL. ST. GABRIEL 
CHURCH was founded about 
1850. The present church erect­
ed about 1869. It is now a Mis­
sion of Cambridge City. 

LAWRENCEBURG. ST. 
LA WREN CE CHURCH was -
founded in 1840. It was first at­
tended by the Rev. Joseph Fer-
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neding, of New Alsace, 1840 to 
1841 ; then the Rev. F. O'Rourke, 

-. of Dover, 1841 to 1844; the Rev. 
Andrew Bennett, of Dover, 1844 
to 1850; the Rev. M. Stahl, of 
New Alsace, 1850; the Rev. A. 
Carius, of Madison, 1850; the 
Franciscan Fathers, the Rev. G. 
Unterthiner and Father Sigis­
mund, and the Rev. Anselm 
Koch, of Cincinnati, 1851 to 
1859 ; and the Rev. Ignace Klein, 
of St. Nicholas, 1859 to 1866. 
The Rev. Clement Scheve be­
came the first resident Pastor 
on J a·rtuary 6, 1866, and re­
mained until 1870. He was fol~ 
lowed by: The Rev. Julius J. 
Duddenhausen, 1870 to 1875 ; 
the Very Rev. J. F. Sondermann, 
R.D., 1875 to 1917; and the Rt. 
Rev. William Kreis, R.D., from 
1917 to date. Monsignor Kreis 
is assisted by the Rev. William 
Knapp. 

The original church was erect­
ed in 1841, and the present 
church in 1867. 

The school was opened in 1844, 
the second school built in '1869, 
and the present one in 1927. The 
Sisters of St. Francis, Olden­
burg, are in charge of the school. 

LEOPOLD. ST. AUGUSTINE 
CHURCH was founded in 1838 
and its Pastors are: The Rev. 
Julian Benoit, 1838 to 1840 ; the 
Rev. August Bessonies, 1840 to 
1852; the Rev. John P. Dion, 
1852 to 1859 ; the Rev. Cletus 
Urcun, 1859 to 1861; the Rev. 
John P. Dion, 1861 to 1866; the 
Rev. Philip Ducroux, 1866; the 
Rev. John Dion attended Le­
opold from St. Croix to July, 
1867 ; the Rev. John L. Brassart, 
1867 to 1869 ; the Rev. Philip 
Doyle, 1869 to 1872; the Rev. 
John B. . Unverzagt, 1872 to 
1877; the Rev. Hippolite Pier­
rard, 1877 to 1880; the Rev. F. 
M. Mousset, 1880 to 1882 ; the 
Rev. John L. Brassart, 1882 to 
1895; the Rev. J. Sennefeld at­
tended Leopold from St. Croix 
to 1895, and from St. Mark's to 
1896; the Rev. Julius F. Mat­
tingly, 1896 to 1901; the Rev. 
Joseph A. Thie, 1901 to 1906; 
the Rev. William V. Boland, 
1906 to 1911; the Rev. Nicholas 
A. Hassel, 1911 to 1912; the 
Rev. Edward T. Hilger, 1912 to 
1917; the Rev. John Loibl, 1917 
to 1918; ·the Rev. William V. 
Boland, 1918 to 1924; the Rev. 
Omer H. Eisenmann, 1924 to 
1927; the Rev. Pierce Dixon, 
1927 to 1928; the Rev. Thomas 
Hoffman, 1928; the Rev. Adam 
Ebnet, acting Pastor, 1928; the 
Rev. G. H. Moss, 1929; the Rev. 
Edward Eisenmann, 1929 to 
1934; and the present Pastor, 
the Rev. Henry Ebnet since 
1934. The Rev. John Casey is 
now the assistant. 

The first · church was built in 
1838, the second in 1843, and the 
present church in 1873. The 
parish is made up almost entire­
ly of persons of French or Bel­
gian descent. The town of Leo­
pold is named after Leopold II, 
King of Belgium, who presented 
the church here with sacred ves­
sels and vestments valued at $1,-
500. The church also possesses 
a statue of Our Lady of Conso­
lation, made in Belgium as a re­
production of the famous statue 
there. The statue of which there 
is but one other in the United 
States, and that at the miracu-
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lous shrine at Carey, Ohio, was 
given by several young men of 
the parish in fulfillment of a vow 
made while prisoners of war in 
the South during the Civil War. 

The first church at Leopold, a 
frame ·building having two 
rooms below for residence and 
the floor above for the church, 
was built by Father Benoit with 
funds advanced by Bishop Brute, 
who called it The Chapel Place. 
A well near the site of this 
frame church is still referred to 
as "The Bishop's Well." 

LEXINGTON. MOTHER OF 
GOD CHURCH, a Mission of 
Henryville, was founded about 
1854, and the first church built 
in 1893. 

LIBERTY. ST. BRIDGET 
CHURCH was founded in 1849. 
The Pastors in the order of their 
service are: The Rev: William 
Doyle, 1849 to 1853; the Rev. 
Henry Peters, 1853 to 1872; the 
Rev. J. M. D' Arco, 1872 to 1892 ; 
the Rev. Dionysius McCabe, 
1892 to 1895; the Rev. Jacob 
Wade, 1895 to 1903 ; the Rt. 
Rev. Francis P. Ryves, 1903 to 
1906; the Rev. Clement Thienes, 
1906 to 1909; the Rev. Will­
iam Maher, 1909 to 1911; the 
Rev. Thomas McLoughlin, 1911 
to 1924; the Rev. William Col­
lins, C.PP.S., 1924; the Rev. 
Vincent Dwyer, 1926 to 1929; 
and the present Pastor, the Rev. 
Edward L. Quade, since 1929. 

The first church was built in 
1854, the second in 1859, and the 
present one in 1904. 

LINTON. ST. PETER 
CHURCH was organized in Sep­
tember, 1895, with the Rev. Den­
is O'Donovan as first Pastor. The 
succeeding Pastors are: · The Rt. 
Rev. Frederick Ketter, 1898 to 
1900 ; the Rev. Adam Baron, 
1900 to 1921; the Rev. James J. 
Ryan, 1921 to 1931; and the Rev. 
Irwin T. Mattingly, 1931, to the 

·present time. 
Previous to 1901 Mass was 

said in a private residence, but 
a church was built in that year. 

The school, built in 1904 and 
opened in 1909, was · taught by 
lay teachers until 1923, when 
the Sisters of Providence took 
over the school. 

LOCUST POINT. ST. JOA­
CHIM CHURCH was founded 
about 1870 and is now a Mission 
of Corydon. 

LOOGOOTEE. ST. JOHN 
CHURCH was founded in 1859 
and its Pastors are: the Rev. 
Mougin, 1860 to 1864; the Rev. 
Louis Gueguen, 1864 to 1885; 
Father Guinnz, 1885 to 1890 ; 
the Rev. Timothy O'Donoghue, 
1890 to 1910; and the Rev. Jo­
seph F. Gerdon, 1910 to date. 
The Rev. Ralph Doyle and the 
Rev. John Shaughnessy are the 
present assistants. 

The first church was built in 
1860 and the present one in 1880. 
The cornerstone of the original 
church was laid by Bishop St. 
Palais, and that of the second by 
Bishop Chatard. 

The school, opened in 1863, is 
conducted by the Sisters of Prov­
idence. 

MADISON 
ST. MARY CHURCH was 

founded in 1848. The first 
church was built in 1851, and 
and the present one about 
1869. The school was opened 
in 1865. 
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The Rev. George Pohl is the 
present Pastor. 

ST. MICHAEL CHURCH was 
founded in 1837. The Pastors 
are: The Rev. Michael E. 
Shawe, 1837 to 1840; the Rev. 
John F. Plunkett, 1837 to 1838; 
the Rev. Etienne Chartier, 1840 
to 1841; the Rev. Vincent Bac­
quelin, 1841 to 1842; the Rev. 
Julian Delaune, 1842 to 1846; 
the Rev. Daniel Maloney, 1846; 
the Rev. Maurice de St. Palais, 
1846 to 1847; the Rev. Hippolite 
Dupontavice, 1847 to 187 4; four 
assistants under Father Du­
pontavice; the Rev. Joseph Petit, 
1874 to 1881; the Rev. John 
Mougin, 1881 to 1882; the Rev. 
Edward M. Faller, 1882 to 1885; 
the Rev. Louis Guigan, 1885 to 
1890; the Rev. Michael L. Guth­
neck, 1890 to 1922; the Rev. 
Charles Gerdon, 1922 to 1932; 
and the present Pastor, the Rev. 
Charles F. Walsh, from 1932. 

The first Mass was offered in 
Madison by a French missionary 
in 1817. In 1837, St. Michael's 
church, built with stone from 
the famous Madison railroad cut, 
the first railroad west of the 
Alleghenies, was erected and it 
is still standing. 

The first school, for boys and 
taught by the Brothers of the 
Sacred Heart, was opened in the 
church basement in 1842. In 
1844, the Sisters of Providence 
opened a school for girls. The 
present school building was built 
in 1905 and is in charge of the 
Ursulines, the fourth sisterhood 
in eharge. 

MAGNET. SACRED HEART 
OF J E S U S CHURCH was 
founded in the fall of 1837 b~ 
the Rev. J. Benoit, who estab­
lished and cared for it as a Mis­
sion. It has always been at­
tended from Leopold except 
from 1870 to 1880 when it was 
attended from St. Croix, and 
from 1929 to 1934 when it was 
attended from Tell City. 

The first church was built in 
1850, the second in 1894, and 
the present one in 1912. The 
first church, a log structure, was 
a mile east of Mt. Pleasant, and 
was dedicated to St. F'rancis by 
Father Bessonies. The second, 
built at Geiley's Landing by 
Father Brassart, was dedicated 
to the Sacred Heart. The pres­
ent church was built by Father 
Hilger. 

MARIAH HILL. MARY 
HELP OF CHRISTIANS 
CHURCH was founded as a Mis­
sion in 1857. The first Mass was 
said here by the Rev. Ulrich 
Christen, O.S.B. The resident 
Pastors who have had charge 
of the church have been: The 
Rev. Conrad Ackerman, O.S.B., 
1873 to 1875; the Rev. Alphonse 
Leute, O.S.B., 1875 to 1876; the 
Rev. Wolfgang Schlumpf, O.S.B., 
1876 to 1877; the Rev. Ilde­
phonse Zarn, O.S.B., 1880 to 
1881; the Rev. Alexander 
Burkard, O.S.B., 1881 to 1883; 
and the Rev. Maurice Wagner, 
O.S.B., 1883 to 1916. The Rev. 
Andrew Bauer, O.S.B., was ap­
pointed Pastor in 1916 and has 
served to date. 

The first church, a frame 
structure, was built in 1857, and 
the second, constructed of stone, 
was erected in 1865. In 1892, 
the stone church was enlarged 
and consecrated. 

The school was taught by lay 
teachers until 1884 when the 
Sisters from Ferdinand took 
charge. 

In 1909, Dale was separated 
from Mariah Hill. 

MART INS VILLE. ST. 
MARTIN, BISHOP AND CON­
FESSOR, CHURCH founding 
date is not now known; the pres­
ent church was built in 1888. 
The only records prior to 1907, 
are those contained in the one 
book in which are recorded the 
Baptisms, Marriages, Confirma­
tions, and Deaths. A note in 
this book states that on the 
feast of St. John, the Apostle, 
December 27, 1868, Bishop de 
St. Palais delegated the Rev. 
William Doyle, Pastor of St. 
Joseph's church, Shelbyville, to 
dedicate St. Martin's at Martins­
ville. Father Doyle was as­
sisted by the Rev. Patrick Fitz­
patrick of Indianapolis, who 
preached to the people on the 
occasion, and by the Rev. John 
P. Gillig, Pastor. 

Under date of January 15, 
1868, the first Baptism is re­
corded and is signed by the Rev. 
J. P. Gillig. On January 17, 
1869, a Marriage record is signed 
by the Rev. Victor Schnell; his 
name last appears on the Bap­
tism record under date August 
28, 1870. On November 2, 1871, 
a Marriage is recorded by the 
Rev. Henry Kissing. The last 
time his name appears is be­
neath a Baptism record dated 
March 21, 1877. July 1, 1877, 
the Rev. Arsenius Fable, O.S.F., 
performed a Marriage. From 
that date to July 1, 1934, the 
Franciscan Fathers sign all 
records. Martinsville is men­
tioned as a Mission of Indian­
apolis in 1859. 

The Rev. Urban Sonderman, 
the first resident Pastor, was 
appointed July 1, 1934. 

MECCA. ST. MARY CHURCH 
is a Mission of Clinton. 

MILAN. ST. CHARLES 
CHURCH was founded in 1906. 
The church was built in 1908 by 
the Rev. William Kreis, then 
an assistant priest at Lawrence­
burg. He attended Milan as a 
Mission until 1916 when the 
parish was transferred to Os­
good, and the Pastors from 
there have been in charge since 
that time. 

MILLHOUSEN. IMMACU-
LATE CONCEPTION CHURCH 
was founded in 1834, thus bear­
ing the distinction of having 
been organized in the same year 
the Diocese of Vincennes was 
erected. The first Mass was 
celebrated here in that year by 
the Rev. Joseph Ferneding, who 
continued his visits until 1840 
when a log chapel was built and 
named in honor of St. Boniface. 

In 1841, the Rev. Conrad 
Schniederj ans became Pastor 
and in 1842, he was succeeded 
by the Rev. Michael O'Rourke, 
who was followed by the Rev. 
Roman W einsoepflen in the 
same year. The Rev. Alphonse 
Munchina served in 1843 and 
1844 and was succeeded by the 
Rev. Joseph Rudolf in 1845. In 
1845, Father Munchina returned 
and in 1850 a larger church was 
completed. 

In 1869, a new church was 
dedicated by Bishop de St. Palais 
who gave it the present title, 
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Immaculate Conception of the 
Blessed Virgin Mary, and placed 
it under the patronage of St. 
Boniface. 

Various Pastors served from 
this time, including the Rev. 
John Adam Urich, now Pastor 
at St. Anthony's church at Mor­
ris, who served from 1904 to 
1927. The present Pastor, the 
Rev. Charles Riebenthaler, was 
appointed in 1928. 

MILLTOWN. ST. JOSEPH 
CHURCH, now a Mission of 
Frenchtown, was founded in 
1855. The first church was built 
in 1855, the second in 1858, and 
the present church in 1885. 

MITCHELL. ST. MARY 
CHURCH was founded about 
1864. The first church was 
built about 1868. The Rev. 
Jerome Bennett is the present 
Pastor. 

MONTEZUMA. ST. MARY 
CHURCH, now a Mission of 
Clinton, was built about 1860, on 
ground donated by John G. 
Davis, then a member of the 
Indiana legislature, and original­
ly was named the Church of the 
Visitation of the Blessed Virgin 
Mary. The Mission had been 
taken care of previous to the 
building of the church by priests 
from Greencastle and Terre 
Haute and services were usually 
held in the home of a Thomas 
Doran. 

Father McCarthy was the first 
Pastor and he was succeeded by 
Father Highland. Occasionally, 
Fathers Fenton, McAvoy, and 
Ryves came from Terre Haute. 

Father Quinlan, was the first 
Pastor to live in the residence 
which was erected in 1876 or 
1877. He was followed by the 
Rev. Timothy O'Donoghue, who 
was succeeded in 1880 by Father 
Kintrup, later accidentally 
drowned in the Wabash river, 
having presumably fallen from 
a bridge. 

Following Father Kintrup 
came Father Cosgrove, Father 
Coffee, Father Period, Father 
Nix, the Rev. Joseph Bauer, 
Father Logan, Father Cronin, 
Father Pohl, Father McCool, 
Father Cobb, Father Suagers, 
Father Hillen, and the Rev. 
Michael J. Gorman. 

About 1890, Father Bauer 
erected a parsonage in Rockville 
and all the priests from that 
time resided there. Father Hil­
len took up his residence at Dia­
mond and was succeded by 
Father Riebenthaler. Later, all 
the Missions in this vicinity 
were given over to the care of 
St. Ann's church at Terre Haute. 

Among the priests who came 
from Montezuma in the "Canal 
Days" were Fathers Mazetta, 
Allan, and Holliday. 

The ground for the cemetery, 
two miles south of the town, was 
donated by Chief Dagone who, 
with his family and tribesmen, 
lived on a section of land given 
him by the United States gov­
ernment. 

MONTGOMERY. ST.PETER 
CHURCH was founded about 
1818 to 1820 and the first Pastor 
was the Rev. Anthony Blanc, 
later Archbishop of New Or­
leans. He was succeeded by the 
Rev. Simon P. Lalumiere who 
served until about 1839, and in 
this year the Pastor was the 
Rev. Maurice de St. Palais. He 
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was followed by the Rev. Julius 
Delaune, 1839; the Rev. E. Sorin, 
1841; the Rev. T. Courjault, 
1843; the Rev. L. Ducondray, 
1843; the Rev. B. Piers, 1848; 
the Rev. P. H. Rowan, 1895; 
the Rev. J. P. Matthews, 1903; 
the Rev. Theo. Mattingly, 1920; 
the Rev. Jos. V. Somes, 1930; 
the Rev. Ambrose Sullivan, 
1933; and the Rev. C. W. Burk­
art, the present Pastor, who was 
appointed in 1934. 

The original church was built 
about the time the parish was 
founded, and about 1870, the 
second and present church was 
erected. 

The school was opened in 1905 
at which time the present build­
ing was built. The school was 
taught first by the Sisters of 
Providence and now by the 
Sisters of St. Benedict. 

MORRIS. ST. ANTHONY 
CHURCH was founded in 1855 
and its Pastors are: The Rev. 
Joseph Rudolf, 1855 to 1866; 
the Rev. Roman Weinzoepfel, 
1866 to 1873; the Rev. John 
Stoltz, 1873 to 1878; the Rev. 
Matthias Gillig, 1878; the Rev. 
A. Dannenhoff er, 1878 to 1882 ; 
the Rev. Casper Seiler, 1882 to 
1888; the Rev. F '. X. Girolt, 
1888 to 1914; the Rev. Michael 
Wagner, 1914 to 1927; and the 
Rev. J. Adam Urich, from 1927 
to date. The Rev. Leo A. Schel-
lenberger is the present assist­
ant. 

The first church was built in 
1855 and the present one was 
erected in 1885. 

The school was opened in 
1855. The present school, which 
is under the direction of the 
Sisters of St. Francis of Olden-
burg, was built in 1917. 

INDIANAPOLIS 

JflRJL fltiL Jip! 
-When you need DRUGS 
-When you need TOILETRI~S 
-When you want CANDY, CIGARS, 

or a delicious ICE CREAM SODA 

-Then for goodness sake 

THE WORLD'S GREATEST NEED TODAY IS 

BREAD, BEA.UTY AND BROTHERHOOD 
according to Edw. C. Markham, the eminent poet-philosopher. 
Man in his search for Economic Security, Cultural Attainment 
and Spiritual Relation with Man and God is One. The Abun­
dant Life is within reach of Man through the acceptance of the 
Philosophy of Cooperation as applied by 

THE INDIANA FARM BUREAU 
COOPERATIVE ASS'N., INC. 

504 FARM BUREAU BLDG., 309 W. WASHINGTON ST. 

INDIANAPOLIS, IND. 

103 

MOUNT VERNON. ST. MAT-

fuH~~l.cHg:i~s~:; ;~~nt~~ I INDIANA PAINT, ROOFING & SUPPLY CO. ! ·: 
DEALERS IN 11?.00FING, PAINTS AND ROOF COATINGS 

Rev. Roman Weinzoepfel, 1851 to coNTRACToRs FOR RE-ROOFING, PAINTING AND SHEET METAL woRK 
1858; the Rev. Paul Wagner, Warm Air Heating and General Remodeling 

1859 to 1861; the Rev. John WE FINANCE coNTRAcTs 

Contin and Gustave Ginnsz, 1862 ==11=9=N=·=A=L=AB=A=M=A=s=T=. ====1N=D=I=A=N=A=Po=L=1s='=1=N=D·====c=AL=L=R1=·=60=9=o~ 

to 1865; the Rev. Henry J. 

Diestel, 1865 to 1868; the Rev. I I 
J. F. Sondermann, 1868 to 1874; JONES 0c MALEY, Inc. ':,·,. 
the Rev. Matthias A. Gillig, 
1874 to 1876; the Rev. John J. DE SOTO and PLYMOUTH 
Schoentrup, 1877 to 1883; the ALES - SERVICE - PARTS 

Rev. Alexander Koesters, 1883; 2421 E. WASHINGTON sT. INDIANAPOLIS, IND. cHerry 0491 
the Rev. Francis B. Luebber- :==========================:::::::.1 

mann, 1883 to 1917; the Rev. 

Joseph T. Bauer, 1917 to 1927; I !;
1

' 

the Rev. Joseph G. Lannert, PARAM:QUNT OPTICAL CO. 
l 927 to 1929 ; and the present WHOLESALE ONL y 
pastor, the Rev. Edward A. 33 MONUMENT cmcLE INDIANAPous, IND. 

Cobb, since 1929. 400 REA BLDG. TERRE HAUTE, IND. 

The first church was built in ==========================~ 
1857 and the present one in 

1879. I The school, which is con- I The Pacific Mutual Life Insurance Co. 
ducted by the Sisters of St. Still Writes The Farmms NON-CANCELLABLE Accident and Health Policy 

Benedict, was opened in 1867. EARL T. BONHAM, GENERAL AGENT .:. 
Prior to the founding of St. 4TH FLOOR CHAMBER OF COMMERCE Llncoln 2572-2573 

Matthew's, the spiritual needs INDIANAPous, IND. 
of the people were cared for ===========================-i 

from 1840 to 1851 by the Rev. 

E. J. Durbin of St. Vincent's, I 1.· •. 
KeJ~;~EoN. ST. MAURICE National Library Bindery Co. 
CHURCH was founded in 1838 College, Public and Private Library Binding 
and the first church was built 546 S. MERIDIAN INDIANAPOLIS, IND. LI. 8238 
about 1849. The present one 
was erected in 1879. The school ·============================-I 

was opened about 1865. The 

Rev. Edward Eisenman is the I 1··::: present Pastor. MUTUJtL FIRE INSURANCE co. 
NAVILLTON. ST. MARY · OF INDIANAPOLl'S, IND.-ORGANIZED 1884-A HOME COMPANY 

CHURCH was founded about OTTO WAGNER, Preside t-CHARLES D. BROEKING, Treasurer-LOUIS C. BRANDT, 
1843. The first church, still in Vice-President-CHARLOTTE D . RIESS, Secretary-ROBERT C. GERSTNER, Asst .,Secy. 

use, was built in 1844_ The :==========1N=D=IA=N=A=T=Ru=s=T=B=u=1=LD=I=NG=========:::::!.i 



t. ,, 
_.._l_,;. 

·m4 

INDIANAPOLIS 

INSURANCE FOR CHURCH 
IVIEMBERS 

Clergymen and Laymen 
Organized .19 12. I ncorp orated 
under Insurance Laws of Indi• ~c ~a 
ana. Sick Benefits, $5 .00 to f.L 11v.,1_ 
$3 1. 50 per week. Accident -a A'"' 
Benefits , $5 .25 t o $4 1. 25 per 
week. A ccident Insurance 
$200 to $7 , 500. Burial Bene, 

1 
, 

fits, $ 100 to $500. The 
membership fee ( $3.00 Single A ccident and 
H ealth Policy ; $5 .00 D ouble or $7 .00 T ri, 
p le--either with or without Burial Insur, 
ance ) pays fo r first three months. 

Life Insurance : T erm ; Straight Life; 20, 
Pay Life ; 20- Year Endowment ; Endowment 
at 65; Endowment at 70; from $500 to 
$5,000. 10% dividend paid on Life Insur, 
an ce, except T erm Life. (Full legal reserve 
maintained with twice as much surplus.) 

" W e find the affairs of t he A ssociation to 
be under capable and conservative manage­
ment . . . and to be in a sound fina ncial 
condition ." From report of Indiana Insur , 
ance Exa miners . 
For particulars, write us, giving date of birth 
CHURCH MEMBERS RELIEF ASSN. 

J. K. Ake, President 
827-30 OCCIDENTAL BLDG., RI. 9768 

INDIANAPOLIS, IND. 

COMPLETE AUTO SERVICE 

SHOLTY MOTOR 
CO., Inc. 

Your Community Chevrolet Dealer 
INDIANAPOLIS, IND. 

TRIANGLE MARBLE 
& TILE CO. 

CONTRACTORS 
522 N. DELAWARE 

INDIANAPOLIS, IND. 
LI. 1049 

W. J. TETER COAL CO. 
BLUE STAR ANO BLUE BEACON 

WEST VIRGINIA COALS 
"Your Guide to Fuel Economy" 

316 Traction Te:.-minal Bldg. RI. 1314 
INDIANAPOLIS, IND. 

RESPONSIBILITY 
Our certificate is your protection! More 
than 150,000 abstracts have bent prepared 
by this 1'esponsible company, without loss 
of a single penny to any client. 

CAPITAL ~TOCK Sl,000,000 

Abstracts of Title and Title Insurance 

UNION TITLE CO. 
155 E. Market St. Union Title Bldg. 

Telephone Lincoln 8361-2-3 

Indian_apolis1 Ind. 

THE SINKER-DA VIS CO. 
Manufacturers of Fire King Stokers 

Boiler anc! Engine Repairs 
Stacks and Tanks 

230 S. MISSOURI ST. LI. 3559-3550 
[NDIANAPOLIS, l~D. 

TINNER'S SUPPLIES 

TANNER&CO. 
409 S. PENNSYLVANIA 

Lincoln 5468 
INDIANAPOLIS, IND. 

J. B. SIMPSON, INC. 
-TAILORS-

FOR THE CLERGY AND FOR THE 
LAYMAN 

INDIANAPOLIS, IND. 

HIBBEN­
HOLLEWEG 

&CO. 
INDIANAPOLIS, IND. 

The Indiana Catholic and Record 

Rev. Andrew Mass, 0. M. C., is 
the present Pastor. 

NEBRASKA. ST. BRIDGET 
CHURCH is a Mission attended 
from St. Joseph church, Jen­
nings county. 

NEW ALBANY 
HOLY TRINITY CHURCH 

was founded in 1819. The first 
church was dedicated in 1841, 
the present one in 1857. The 
present Pastor is the Rt. Rev. 
Joseph E. Hamill, P. A. The 
assistants at this time are: The 
Rev. James R. Jansen and the 
Rev. Thomas Carey. 

The school was opened in 
1850. 

ST. MARY CHURCH was 
founded in 1851. The Rev. 
Casper Doebbener, the first Pas­
tor, served from 1867 until 1877. 
He was succeeded by: The Rev. 
Franz T. Klien, 1877 to 1886; 
the Rev. Edward M. Faller, 1866 
to 1910; and the Rev. William 
F. Seibertz, 1910 to 1924. The 
present Pastor, the Rt. Rev. 
William Jochum, R. D., was ap­
pointed in 1925. The assistants 
at this time are the Rev. Sylves­
ter Bloemke and the Rev. Joseph 
Vollmer. 
· The first church was built in 

1835 and the second in 1857. 
The school was erected in 

1850. 
NEW ALSACE. ST. PAUL 

CHURCH was founded Septem­
ber 13, 1832. The first Pastor 
was the Rev. Joseph Ferneding. 
He was succeeded by: The Rev. 
J. Miller, 1841 to 1843; Father 
Masquelet, 1843; the Rev. 
Charles Oppermann, 1843 to 
1844 ; the Rev. George Engl en, 
1844 to 1845; the Rev. Martin 
Stahl, 1845 to 1853; the Rev. 
Hugo Staff, 1853 to 1854; the 
Rev. Joseph Newuber, 1854 to 
1856; the Rev. Arnold Pinkers, 
1864 to 1868; the Rev. Joseph 
Rudolf, 1858; the Rev. Roman 
W einzoepf el, 1858 to 1866 ; the 
Rev. Ferdinand Hundt, 1869 to 
1885; the Rev. Michael Guth­
neck, 1885 to 1886 ; the Rev. 
Francis Torbeck, 1886 to 1890; 
the Rev. John Merkl, 1890 to 
1915; the Rev. George Pohl, 
1915 to 1927; and the Rev. 
Henry Verst, 1927 to 1934. The 
present Pastor is the Rev. 
Joseph Sermersheim. 

This parish appears to have 
not only the distinction of hav­
ing its first church, but also its 
second dedicated by Bishop 
Brute. The first church, con­
structed of logs and erected in 
1832, was dedicated by him 
shortly after his installation. 
At that time he promised a 
donation toward a brick church 
which was built in 1837, and was 
dedicated by him on July 8, 
1838. It is believed this second 
church is the only one dedicated 
by Bishop Brute which is still 
standing and in use at the pres­
ent time as a church. 

The school is now under the 
direction of the Sisters of St. 
Francis. It is thought that a 
school of some sort or other was 
opened shortly following the 
founding of the parish. 

NEW BOSTON. ST. JOHN 
CHRYSOSTOM CHURCH is a 
Mission attended from St. Mein­
rad. 

NEWBURG. ST. JOHN BAP­
TIST CHURCH was founded in 
1862. The present church, built 

in 1867, is now a Mission at~ 
tended from Boonville. 

NEW CASTLE. ST. ANNE 
CHURCH was founded in 1873. 
The Pastors in the order of 
service are: The Rt. Rev. Her­
man J. Alerding, 1871 to 1874; 
the Rev. John B. Kelly, 1874 to 
1881 ; the Rev. John B. Ryves, 
the first resident Pastor, 1881 to 
1883; the Rev. John B. Unver­
satz, 1883 to 1885; the Rev. 
John McCabe, 1885 to 1889 ; the 
Rev. William Seibertz, 1890 to 
1892; the Rev. Julius Mattingly, 
1892 to 1895; the Rev. E. J. 
Spellman, 1895 to 1917; the Rev. 
James Holland, 1917 to 1920; 
and the Rev. Albert Wicke, 1920 
to 1921. The present Pastor, 
appointed in 1921, is the Rev. 
John J. Gallagher. 

The first church was built in 
1873, and the present one was 
erected in 1923. 

NEW HARMONY. HOLY 
ANGELS CHURCH is a Mission 
attended from Poseyville. 

NEW MIDDLETOWN. MOST 
PRECIOUS BLOOD CHURCH 
was founded in 1873, and the 
first church was built in 1882. 
The present one, erected in 1929, 
is now a Mission attended from 
Corydon. 

NORTH MADISON. ST. 
PATRICK CHURCH was found­
ed as a Mission in 1853, being 
attended by the Rev. Hippolyte 
Dupontavice and his successors 
at St. Michael's church, Madi­
son, until 1874, when the Rev. 
Bernard Ewers, first resident 
Pastor, was appointed. He 
served until 1882, and was suc­
ceeded by: The Rev. George 
Widerin, 1882 to 1893; the Rev. 
Henry Fein, 1893 to 1898; the 
Rev. Richard Hoeing, 1898 to 
1903; the Rev. Charles F. Ger­
don, 1903 to 1906; the Rev. 
James McCool, 1906 to 1908; the 
Rev. Edward Zirkeolbach, 1908 
to 1909; the Rev. Charles F. 
Gerdon, 1909 to 1922; and the 
Rev. Michael T. Shea, 1922. The 
present Pastor, appointed in 
1922, is the Rev. Paul Bleuel. 

Work on the foundation of 
the church began on March 23, 
1853, the cornerstone was laid 
on June 19, 1853, the church 
was dedicated September 11, 
1853, and the stations of the 
cross were erected on December 
8, 1853. On July 13, 1909, the 
last Mass was said in this 
church. Erection of the present 
church was started March 28, 
1910, the cornerstone was laid 
June 26, 1910, and it was dedi­
cated on November 6, 1910, by 
the Rt. Rev. Joseph Chartrand, 
then Coadjutor Bishop of In­
dianapolis. The first Mass in 
the new church was celebrated 
by the Rev. George Widerin. 

NORTH VERNON. NATIV­
ITY OF THE BLESSED VIR­
GIN MARY CHURCH was 
founded about 1840. The origi­
nal church, erected in 1861, is 
still in use. The present Pastor 
is the Rev. Omer Eisenmann. 
The school was opened about 
1863. 

OAKLAND CITY. BLESSED 
SACRAMENT CHURCH found­
ing date is not definitely known. 
The present church was built in 
1923. It is now a Mission at­
tended from St. Bernard, Gibson 
county. 

OLDENBURG. HOLY FAM-
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BLOOMINGTON 
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WEST SIDE SQUARE 
BLOOMINGTON, IND. 
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Amusement Enterprises 

MAIN OFFICE 

BLOOMINGTON, IND. 

IL Y CHURCH was founded as a 
Mission in 1837 by the Rev. J. 
Ferneding. He was followed by: 
The Rev. Francis J. Rudolf, 1844 
to 1866; the Rev. Nicholas 
Waechter, O.F.M., 1866 to 1869; 
the Rev. Louis Haverheck, O.F. 
M., and the Rev. Denis Abarth, 
O.F.M., 1869 to 1879; the Rev. 

I 
Peter Englert, O.F.M., 1879 to 
1882; the Rev. Pius Niehaus, 
O.F.M., 1882 to 1885; the Rev. 
Athanasius Lingemann, O.F.M., 
1885 to 1890; the Rev. Luke 
Gottbehoede, O.F.M., 1890 to 

1!:=============.1 1891; the Rev. David Kersting, 
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O.F.M., 1891 to 1900; the Rev. 
Chrysostom Theobald, O.F.M., 
1900 to 1903; the Rev. David 
Kersting, O.F.M., 1903 to 1920; 
the Rev. Ephraem Lieftuchter, 
O.F.M., 1920 to 1921; the Rev. 
Symphorian Weiner, O.F.M., 
1921 to 1922; the Rev. Prosper 
Steman, O.F.M., 1922 to 1924; 
the Rev. Alexander Wilberding, 
O.F.M., 1924 to 1927; and the 
Rev. Hugh Staud, O.F.M., who is 
the present Pastor. He is as­
sisted by the Rev. Ferdinand 
Nirmaier, O.F.M. 

There have been three church­
es erected, one in 1837, one in 
1847, and the present one in 
1861. 

The school, opened in 1844, 
entered its present buiiding in 
1931. It is taught by the Sisters 
of St. Francis of Oldenburg. 

OSGOOD. ST. JOHN THE 
BAPTIST CHURCH was found­
ed in 1867, and was attended 
from Leopold until 1916, when 
the .first resident Pastor, the 
Rev. G. H. Moss, was· appointed. 
He was succeeded in 1926 by the 
Rev. James Carrico, who, in 
turn, was succeeded in 1928 by 
the present Pastor, the Rev. 
Charles Busald. 

The first church was erected 
in 1867 and the present church 
and school were built in 1914. 

PETERSBURG. SS. PETER 
AND PA UL CHURCH, a Mis­
sion of St. Francis Xavier church 
of Vincennes, was founded about 
1845 and its known Pastors are: 
The Rev. Placidus Zarn, 0. S. B., 
1886; the Rev. Vyrinus Thomas, 
0. S. B., 1887 to 1888; the Rev. 
Charles Stricker, 1888 to 1889; 
the Rev. Edward J. Schmitt, 
1891 to 1894; the Rev. G. H. 
Moss, 1896 to 1898; the Rt. Rev. 
Frederic Ketter, 1900 to 1905 ; 
the Rev. Nicholas J. Forve, 
1906; the Rev. Eugene A. Simon, 
1907 to 1909; the Very Rev. 
James M. Gregoire, 1915 to 
1934. The present Pastor is the 
Rev. William Lensing. 

The original church is thought 
to have been built in 1847, the 
second in 1887, and the present 
one in 1924. 

POSEYVILLE. ST. FRAN­
CIS XAVIER CHURCH was 
founded in 1886, under the Rev. 
Francis Surbbermann. The first 

I 
Pastor was the Rev. A. Schaaf, 
1895 to 1910, who was followed 
by: The Rev. Francis Wolf, 
1910 to 1920; the Rev. Henry 
Verst, 1920 to 1927; the Rev. 
Henry Hunger, 1927 to 1931 ; 

~===-=-=-=-==-==-==-==-==-==-==-==-==-==-===--=--=--===:.i and the Rev. John Schenk to 
the present time. 

J. G. ZABEL 
HARDWARE, FARM IMPLEMENTS 

SEEDS and FERTILIZERS ' 
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The church was built in 1886 
and an addition made in 1921. 
The school was opened in 1898 
and is taught by the Sisters of 
St. Benedict. 

PRINCETON. ST. JOSEPH 

CHURCH was organized March 
24, 1855, as a Mission of St. 
James of Haubstadt. The fol­
lowing priests attended St. Jo­
seph from St. James: The Rev. 
Frederick W. Pepersack, 1855 
to 1866; the Rev. M. Ficker, 
1866 to 1868; the Rev. Henry 
Hug, O.S.B., 1878; the Rev. J. 
H. B. Seepe, 1868 to 1875; and 
the Rev. J. J. Merckle, 18'"15 to 
1876. The Rev. Alexander Koes­
ters, the first resident Pastor, 
served from 1876 to 1877' ; the 
Rev. George Widerin (from 
Haubstadt) 1877; the Rev. S. 
H. Kintrop, 1877 to 1878; the 
Rev. A. Oster, Vincennes:, 1878 
to 1880 ; the Rev. Joseph :Macke, 
from Vincennes, 1880; the Rev. 
Celestine Schwartz, re r:,ident 
Pastor from 1880 to 1882 ; the 
Rev. Augustine Peckskamp, 1882 
to 1885 ; the Rev. Peter Hommes, 
1885 to 1895; the Rev. Emman­
uel B. Ledvina, 1895 to 1907; 
and the Rt. Rev. William A. Jo­
chum, 1907 to 1912. The Rev. 
Nicholas A. Hassel, the present 
Pastor, has served since 1912. 

The first church was built in 
1864, the second in 1897, and 
the present one in 1920. 

The school was opened in 
1898 and is in charge of the 
Sisters of St. Francis of Olden­
burg. 

RANGER. ST. JOSEPH 
CHURCH, the original members 
of which were mostly of French 
descent, was founded in 1890 
as a Mission of St. Mark's, Perry 
county, and its first Pastor was 
the Rev. H. F'ein. It was trans­
ferred in 1919 to Leopold and in 
1928 back to St. Mark's where it 
has remained to the present 
time. 

RED- BRUSH. ST. RUPERT 
CHURCH was founde about 
1854 and its first reside: t Pastor 
was the Rev. Charles Wagner, 
1893. He was succeeded by: The 
Rev. Michael Wagner, 1.904; the 
Rev. Matthew Schmitz, 1906; the 
Rev. E. J. Zirkelbach, 1914; the 
Rev. Paul Bleuel, 1917; the Rev. 
August Riehl, 1921 ; the Rev. 
Conrad Urbach, 1926; and the 
present Pastor, the Rev. Joseph 
F. Schaefer, who was appointed 
in 1934. 

Red Brush is situat ed about 
two and one-half miles from 
Yankeetown and is likely to 
have received its nam from the 
many red berry bushes in this 
section. The church was first 
attended by the Benedictine Fa­
thers from St. Meinrad and 
Mass was read on a week day 
once a month. Later Mass was 
celebrated on one Sunday of 
each month. Baptisms usually 
took place at someone's house 
under a tree; one man is said to 
have prided himself on having 
been baptized under a peach tree. 

The Baptismal Register be­
gins with 1865 and contains the 
names of the priests who came 
from St. Meinrad and Rockport, 
from which latter pllace it was 
attended until the appointment 
of a resident Pastor. Names 
noted in the Register are: The 
Rev. Fintan Mundweiler, O.S.B., 
Father Martin, O.S.B., the Rev. 
Bernard Kintrup, the Rev. Fred 
Mullen, the Rev. John W. Book, 
the Rev. T. L. Mesker, the Rev. 
Joseph Zogelman, the Rev. J. H. 
Hellebrand, and the Rev. Ed­
ward J. Schmitt. Father Muller 
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COLUMBUS 

COLUMBUS BEVERAGE CO. INC. 
816 JACKSON ST. PHONES 191-677 

COLUMBUS, IND. 

D. E. DUNN 
COAL, COKE AND ANTHRACITE-"HOT STUFF" 

PHONE 522 1424 LaFAYETTE 
COLUMBUS, IND. 

SERV-ICE & COAL COMPANY 
DEPENDABLE SERVICE 

PHONE 111 COLUMBUS, IND. PHONE 19 

ESTABLISHED SINCE 1872 

COLUMBUS ABSTRACT CO. 
Incorporated 

SURVEYS - ABSTRACTS OF TITLE - INSURANCE 
PAUL S. JONES, Mgr. 

PHONE 168 COLUMBUS, IND. 427 THIRD ST. 

came in 1865 from Troy and in 
1870 Father Book attended Red 
Brush as well as Chrisney from 
Rockport. 

The first church, built in 1865, 
was of frame construction and 
stood east and west. In 1902, a 
brick church, which stood fac-
ing the south, was erected; the 
brick for this building was 
burnt in a field a little distance 
from the church. 

A cemetery is now in the rear 
of the church building. The 
first cemetery was in a place 
called Ureka and most of the re-
mains were brought to the new 
burial place. 

RICHMOND 
ST. ANDREW, THE APOS­

TLE, CHURCH was founded in 
1835 and the first Mass was 
celebrated in that year by the 
Rev. Joseph Ferneding. The 
Rev. John Ryan was the first 
Pastor, serving from 1846 to 
1848. He was succeeded by: 
The Rev. William Doy le, 1849 
to 1853 ; the Rev. John Merl, 
1853 to 1858; the Rev. J. B. 
H. Seepe, 1859 to 1868 ; the 

M O N T G O M E R Y W A R D Rev. Ferdinand Hundt, 1868 to 
- 1877; the Rev. Henry Seibertz, 

Everything for the Family-Home and Farm 1877 to 1898; and the Rev. John 
538 WASHINGTON ST. PHONE 409 Macke, 1898 to 1899. The pres-

COLUMBUS, IND. ent Pastor, the Rt. Rev. Francis 

~================================================~ A. Roell, was appointed on April 

I 
22, 1899. His assistants are the 

DENNY MOTOR TRANSFER CO. 
Rev. Clement Zepf and the Rev. 
Edward J. Heuke. 

Givens Truck Terminal The first church was built in 
SECOND and JACKSON STS. PHONE 307 1846. The second church was 

COLUMBUS, IND. built in 1860 and the present one 
t!.========================~ in 1901. The cornerstone of the 
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IND. 
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Froderman Chevrolet Sales1 Inc. 
]. D. SMITH, Manager 

415 W. NATIONAL AVE. PHONE 6761 BRAZIL, IND. 

Oscar Houk Insurance Agency 
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TEL. 319 BRAZIL, IND. 

first church was laid in 1845 and 
dedicated in November, 1846, by 
Bishop Hailandiere; the sermon 
was preached by the Rev. James 
Frederick Wood, Pastor of the 
Cathedral at Cincinnati and later 
Archbishop of Philadelphia. 

The school was opened in 1851 
and the second one was built in 
1864 and enlarged in 1879. The 
present school was built in 1912. 
The Sisters of St. Francis from 
Oldenburg are in charge of the 
school. 

In 1860 the English-speaking 
members of St. Andrew's sepa­
rated from the mother church 
to found St. Mary's church in 
Richmond. 

ST. MARY CHURCH was 
founded in 1860, and has been 
served by the following Pastors : 
The Rev. Aegidius Merz, 1860 to 
1863; the Rev. John M. Villers, 
1863 to 1868; the Rev. Francis 
Moitrier, 1868 to 1872; the Rev. 
D. J. McMullen, 1872 to 1901; 
the Rev. Julius F. Mattingly, 
1901 to 1912; and the Rev. Wal­
ter J. Cronin, who served from 
1912 until the time of his death 
in July, 1935. The Rev. William 
C. Fehlinger is the present as­
sistant. 

The first church was built in 
1860, and a second, the present 
one, in 1904. 

The school was opened in 
1868 and is under the direction 
of the Sisters of Providence. 

ROCKPORT. ST. BERNARD 
CHURCH was founded in 1845. 
The first Pastor was the Rev. 
John W. Book. He was succeed­
ed by: The Rev. Joseph Kun­
dek, 1845 to 1849; the Rev. 
Michael Marendt, 1849 to 1859 ; 
the Rev. Joseph Kaufman, 1859 
to 1869; the Rev. Benjamin Kin­
trup, 1867 to 187 0 ; the Rev. 
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GREENSBURG 

E. G. Schultz & Co. 
Undertakers : Amb1;1lance 
Service : Furniture : Rugs 

Stoves : Etc. 

E. G. SCHULTZ HENRY L. OLIGER 

Phone 4765-L Phone 4765-W 

WEST MAIN ST.-PHONE 1208 

GREENSBURG, IND. 

ALWAYS GLAD TO MEET YOU 

CLEMONS 
THE TIRE and SHOE MAN 

DAYTON TIRES 

Henry Hug, 1870 to 1871; the 
ev. John W. Book, 1871 to 
874; the Rev. Theodorus S. 

R 
1 
Mesker, 1874 to 1886; the Rev. 
George J. Loesch, 1886 to 1887; 
he Rev. Joseph Zoglemen, 1887 
o 1888; the Rev. J. H. Hille­
rand, 1888 to 1891; the Rev. J. 
tricker, 1891 to 1897; the Rev. 
imon Barber, 1897 to 1898; the 

t 
t 
b 
s 
s 
Rev. William A. Jochum, 1898 
o 1907; the Rev. Joseph Ger­
on, 1907 to 1910; the Rev. 

t 
d 
August Sprigler, 1910 to 1911; 
he Rev. Francis Schaub, 1911 
o 1919; the Rev. David Fitz­
erald, 1919 to 1920; the Rev. 

t 
t 
g 

1 
Timothy Kavanaugh, 1920 to 

923 ; the Rev. Andrew J. Bast­
nagel, 1923 to 1927; the Rev. 
George Pohl, 1927 to 1931; and 
he Rev. Adam Barron, 1931 to · 

~==================-==-==-==-==-~ 932. The present Pastor, the 
t 
1 

UNION TRUST 
co. 

appointed in 1932. 
The first church was built in 

1849, the second in 1875, and the 
present one in 1911. I 
Rev. Thomas A. Hoffman, was 

The school was opened in 1879 
L============-i and is taught by the Sisters of 

GREENSBURG, IND. 

TWO GOOD DRUG STORES 

BATTERTON'S WEST SIDE 
DRUG STORE 

and 
BATTERTON'S THE PALMS 

DRUG STORE 

LINEGAR'S STORE 
THE QUALITY GROCERY 

Phone 1868 and 1628 
Greensburg, Ind. 

St. Benedict. 
ROCKVILLE. ST. JOSEPH 

CHURCH was founded in 1854. 
The first church was built about 
1867, and the second in 1887. It 
i s now a Mission of Clinton. 

RUSHVILLE. IMMACU-
LATE CONCEPTION CHURCH 
was founded in 1853. The origi­
nal church was built in 1857, the 
second in 1867, and the present 
church in 1890. The pr esent 
Pastor is the Rev. Francis 

!::::::::::::::::::::============= Schaub, who is assisted by the 

I 
Rev. Louis Gootee. 

Horne's Variety Store 
Hardware, Varieties 

GREENSBURG, IND. 

SCHNELLVILLE. SACRED 
HEART CHURCH had its first 
Mass said in the newly built 
church on May 14, 1876. The 
first Pastor was the Rev. Joseph 

j ~=========== Villinger, O.S.B. He was fol-

EVERETT BOONE 
SHEET MET AL WORK 

BUILT-UP ROOFS 
Cary Roofing Fi:irnaces 
402 W. MAIN ST. PHONE 3130-L 

GREENSBURG, IND. 

W. J. Scheidler 
GREENSBURG, 

IND. 

GARLAND 
MILLING CO. 

Greensburg, Ind. 

American Bakery 
WHOLESALE 

CLEANLINESS AND QUALITY . 
John W. Shoemaker, Prop. 

GREENSBURG, IND. 

C. J. LOYD & CO. 
Cash Buyers 

POULTRY and EGGS 
Greensburg, Ind. 

"For Quality Coals Call 
Robert Doles" 

DOLES COAL CO. 
160 South Michigan Ave. 

Greensburg, Ind. 

lowed by: The Rev. Pius Boehm, 
O.S.B., who served until May, 
1885; the Rev. Peter Siebmann, 
O.S.B., who served until July, 
1888; Father Ildephonse; and 
the Rev. Bede Maler, O.S.B. 
Father Boersig served from 
1889 to 1892, and was succeeded 
bv the Rev. Anton Michel. 0. S. 
B., Father Hegger, Father 
Ginnszfor, and F·ather Haas. 
The present Pastor is the Rev. 
John Schueth. 

The second and present church 
was built in 1914. The church 
contains some excellent wood­
carvings made in Innsbruck, 
Austria. 

Public school is conducted by 
the Sisters of St. Benedict of 
Ferdinand. 

SCIPIO. ST. PATRICK 
CHURCH is a Mission attended 
from St. Joseph, Jennings 
county. 

SEELYVILLE. HOLY ROS­
ARY CHURCH was founded in 
July, 1908. The Pastors in the 
order of their service are: The 
Rev. John A. Walsh, 1908 to 
1912; the Rt. Rev. Joseph E. 
Hamill, 1912 to 1914; the Rev. 
Frederick Burget, the last resi­
dent Pastor, 1914 to 1919; the 
Rev. Augustine Rawlinson from 
Brazil, 1919 to 1920; the Rev. 
Pierre Brisse, and the Rev. 
Pierce Dixon from St. Patrick's, 
Terre Haute, 1920 to 1921; the 
Rev. M. J. Rouck, the Rev. Paul 
Deery, and the Rev. Raymond 
Marchino of the Gibault Home, 
1921 to 1924; the Rev. Conrad 

GREENSBURG 
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COOPERATIVE CO. 
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FRANKFORT 

PEOPLES LIFE INSURANCE 
COMPANY 
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KOKOMO 

GOODRICH SILVERTOWN STORES 
PHONE 6121 WASHINGTON AND SYCAMORE 

KOKOMO, IND. 
THE HOME OF FRIENDLY SERVICE-TIRES, BATTERIES, ACCESSORIES 

THE SAILORS BROTHERS CO. 
COMPLETE HOME FURNISHERS 

KOKOMO, IND. 

DON'T SAY BREAD-SAY 

CORN-TOP 
DIETZEN'S BAKERY 

TURNER'S DEPARTMENT STORE 
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KOKOMO, IND. 
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-FOR FOODS-
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Urbach, the Rev. Leo Creeden, 
the Rev. Ralph Doyle, and the 
Rev. John Holloran of Sacred 
Heart church, Terre Haute, until 
the present time. 

The church was built in 1908. 
SEYMOUR. ST. AMBROSE 

CHURCH was founded about 
1852. The first church was 
built in 1854, and the present 
one in 1870. The school was 
opened in 1873. The Rt. Rev. 
Augustine Rawlinson, the pres­
ent Pastor, is assisted by the 
Rev. Arthur Mooney. 

SHELBURN. ST. ANNE 
CHURCH was founded in 1909 
and the church was built in 
1913. It is now a Mission at-
tended from Sullivan. 

SHELBYVILLE. ST. JOSEPH 
CHURCH was founded as a Mis­
sion of St. Vincent, Shelby 
county, in 1863. The Pastors in 
their order of service are: The 
Rev. John P. Gillig, 1863 to 
1867; the Rev. William Doyle, 
1867 to 1869; the Rev. Francis 
Rudolf, 1870 to 1881; the Rev. 
Francis Torbeck, 1881 to 1886; 
the Rev. Adelrich Kaelin, first 
resident Pastor, 1886 to 1917; 
the Rev. George Borries, 1917 
to 1922; and the Rev. John C. 
Rager, S.T.D., from 1922 to the 
present time. 

The first church was built in 
1866, and the second church was 
completed in 1902. 

The school was opened in 
1873 and under the direction of 
the Sisters of St. Francis of 
Oldenburg. The present build­
ing was completed in 1924. A 
Catholic high school was opened 
in 1922. 

SHOALS. IMMACULATE 
CONCEPTION CHURCH is a 
Mission attended from Mitchell. 

SIBERIA. ST. MARTIN 
CHURCH was founded March 
16, 1869, and administered as a 
Mission by the Benedictine 
Fathers until the first resident 
Pastor was appointed. The resi­
dent Pastors include: The Rev. 
Anthony Michel, 0. S. B., 1894 
to 1902; the Rev. Claude Ebner, 
1903 to 1904; the Rev. Isidore 
Maenner, 1904 to 1919; the Rev. 
Leander Schneider, O.S.B., 1919 
to 1924; the Rev. Aloysius 
Fischer, O.S.B., 1924 to 1932; 
and the present Pastor, the Rev. 
Lawrence Riebenthaler, 0. S. B., 
to date. 

The present church was com­
pleted in 1896. 

The school is taught by the 
Benedictine Sisters. 

i 
This parish's founder, the 

Rev. Martin Marty, O.S.B., then 
Prior of St. Meinrad Priory, later 
became Abbot, and then Bishop 
of St. Cloud, Minnesota. 

STARLIGHT. ST. JOHN THE 
L!=:=======================-i BAPTIST CHURCH was found-

AUTHORIZED FISHER BODY SERVICE-ALL STEEL BODY SERVICE 

HIGBEE BODY CO. 
FRAMES & AXLES STRAIGHTENED COLD-WRECK CARS COMPLETELY REBUILT 

306 S. MAIN ST. KOKOMO, IND. i 
ed in 1859. The Rev. Louis Gue­
guen, Pastor of St. Augustine's 
church, Jeffersonville, attended 
St. John's as a Mission, 1861 to 
1862. The Rev. John T. Gabriel 
was the first Pastor, and served 

L!:=::========================.1 from 1862 to 1872. In 1872 and 

NEWCASTLE 

NEW CASTLE CASKET CO. 
CASKETS AND BURIAL SUPPLIES 

NEW CASTLE, IND. - SHOW ROOM IN CONNECTION - PHONE 572 

1873, the Rev. Gustave M. 
Ginnsz, Pastor of the Church of 
St. Mary of the Knobs, attended 
St. John's as a Mission; 1873 to 
187 4, the Rev. Anton Lechner; 
July to September, 187 4, the 
Rev. Joseph Dickmann of St. 
Joseph Hill was in charge; 1874 
to 1877, the Rev. Bernard H. 
Brueggemann; 1877 to 1891, the 

Rev. John P. Gillig; 1891 to 
1904, the Rev. Celestine J. 
Schwartz; 1904 to 1907, the Rev. 
Charles Wagner; July and Au­
gust, 1907, the Rt. Rev. William 
A. Jochum; September, 1907, to 
1916, the Rev. John Loi bl; 1916 
to 1917, the Rev. Richard Hoe­
ing; 1917 ·to 1925, the Rev. 
Bernard H. Riedford; 1925 to 
1926, the Rev. Charles Kabey; 
1926 to 1929, the Rev. Gerard 
H. Moss; and since August 16, 
1929, the present Pastor, the 
Rev. Adam J. Ebnet. 

The first church was erected 
in 1861 and the second, the 
present church, in 1913. 

A school was opened during 
the administration of Father 
Gabriel, and is taught by the 
Sisters of St. Benedict. 

SULLIVAN. ST. MARY 
CHURCH was founded about 
1848. The original church was 
built in 1868, the second in 1898, 
and the present structure in 
1904. The Rev. John Bankow­
ski is the present Pastor. 

ST. ANNE. ST. ANNE 
CHURCH, located in Jennings 
county, was founded about the 
year 1834. The first church was 
built about 1835, the second 
about 1850, and the present one 
in 1868. The school opened 
about 1850, and the Rev. Con­
rad Urbach is the present Pas­
tor. 

ST. ANTHONY. ST. AN­
THONY CHURCH was founded 
in 1864 with the Rev. Joseph 
Meister as the first Pastor. Other 
Pastors include: The Rev. Jos­
eph Kauffmann; the Rev. Eber­
hard Stadler, 0. S. B.; the Rev. 
Placidus Zarn, 0. S. B.; the Rev. 
Henry Hug, 0. S. B.; the Rev. 
Benedict Brunet, 0. S. B.; the 
Rev. Alphonse Leute, 0. S. B.; 
the Rev. Cyril Thomas, 0. S. B.; 
the Rev. Basil Heusler, 0. S. B.; 
the Rev. Clement Klingel, 0. S. 
B. ; and the present Pastor, the 
Rev. Aloysius Fischer, 0. S. B. 

The first church was built in 
1864, and the present one in 
1884. 

The school was opened about 
1870 and the building was erect­
ed in 1900. The school is under 
the direction of the Sisters of 
St. Benedict. 

ST. BERNARD. ST. BER­
N ARD CHURCH, located in 
Gibson county, was founded in 
1875 when Mass was first said 
in the home of Anton Obert. 
The first Pastor was the Rev. 
Peter Hommes, 1885 to 1895. 
Previous to his coming it was 
attended as a Mission by the 
Rev. Alexander Kosters, from 
Princeton, 1875 to 1877; the 
Rev. George Widerin, from Haub­
stadt, 1877 to 1878; the Rev. 
Bernard Kintrup, from Prince­
ton, 1878 to 1879; the Rev. 
George Widerin, again, from 
Haubstadt, 1879 to 1880; the 
Rev. Celestine Schwartz, from 
Princeton, 1880 to 1882 ; the Rev. 
A. Peckskamp, from Princeton, 
1882 to 1884; and the Rev. Ber­
nard Evers, from Haubstadt, 
1884 to 1885. Other resident 
Pastors and the order of their 
service are : The Rev. Emman­
uel Ledvina, 1895 to 1897 ; the 
Rev. Andrew Schaaf, 1897 to 
1900; the Rev. E. L. Quade, 1900 
to 1905; the Rev. Eugene Simon, 
1906 to 1911; the Rev. Charles 
Kabey, 1911 to 1913; the Rev. 
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Edward Bauer, 1913 to 1920; 
the Rev. John Schenk, 1920 to 
1921; the Rev. Weinfried Sulli­
van, 1921 to 1927; and the Rev. 
Henry Ebnet, 1927 to 1931. The 
Rev. Raymond Smith, the pres­
ent Pastor, was appointed in 
1931. 

The first church was erected 
in 1877 and the second and pres­
ent one was built in 1892. 

A school was opened in 1899 
and was taught by lay teachers 
until 1917. From 1917 to 1927 
the school was taught by the 
Sisters. It is now vacant. 

ST. CROIX. HOLY CROSS 
CHURCH was founded May 3, 
1855, · when the first Mass was 
said. The first Pastor was the 
Rev. J. P. Dion, followed by the 
Rev. Charles Bilger, the Rev. 
Joseph T. Sennefeld, the Rev. P. 
Hommes, the Rev. Augustine 
Bohn, the Rev. D. O'Donovan, the 
Rev. William Liesen, the Rev. 
C. J. Schwartz, the Rev. D. J. 
Manning, the Rev. Charles Koby, 
the Rev. J. L. Bolin, the Rev. 
Paul ·Bieuel, the Rev. E. J. Zirk­
elback, the Rev. M. Shea, the 
Rev. J. C. Bockert, the Rev. 
James L. Carrico, the Rev. 
Henry Ebnet, and the present 
Pastor, the Rev. Herman J. 
Kasper. 

The first Catholic settlers of 
St. Croix were Belgians and 
came about 1849 or 1850. The 
first church, constructed of logs, 
was completed in 1860, and the 
second, the present church, 
which is built of stone, had its 
cornerstone laid January 18, 
1883, and was dedicated May 3, 
1885. It was rebuilt in 1932. 

ST. DEN IS. ST. DENIS 
CHURCH founding date is not 
known, but the first church was 
built in 1897. It is now a Mis­
sion of St. Anne, Jennings 
county. 

ST. HENRY. ST. HENRY 
CHURCH was founded in 1862 
by the Rev. Chrysostom Foffa, 
0. S. B. The first resident Pas­
tor was Rev. Pius Boehm, 0. S. 
B., 1880 to 1885, followed by the 
Rev. William Wack, 1885 to 
1890; the Rev. J. B. Unverzagt, 
1890 to 1891; the Rev. Francis 
X. Seegmueller, 1891 to 1892; 
the Rev. Alexander Koester, 
1892 to 1894; the Rev. James 
Ziegenfuss, O.S.B., 1894 to 
1895; the Rev. Ferdinand Hundt, 
1895 to 1896; the Rev. Lawrence 
F'ichter, 1896 to 1897; the Rev. 
Peter Hommes, 1897 to 1904; 
the Rev. Joseph Schweigen, D. 
D., 1904 to 1909; the Rev. Mein­
rad Toelle, 1909 to 1934; and 
the Rev. Mathias Schmitz, from 
1934 to date. 

The first church was built in 
1864, and the second, the pres­
ent one, in 1910. 

A school was opened in 1873 
and a building erected in 1887. 
The school is taught by the Sis­
ters of St. Benedict of Ferdi­
nand. 

ST. JAMES. ST. JAMES 
CHURCH was founded about 
1844 or 1845 and was dedicated 
July 25, 1847. The first Pastor 
was the Rev. Roman Wein­
zoepf el, O.S.B., and he was suc­
ceeded by the Rev. Frederick G. 
Pepersack who served until 1866. 
Following Father Pepersack 
came the Rev. Matthias Ficker, 
1866 to 1868; the Rev. J . B. 
Seepe, 1868 to 1875; the Rev. 
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Joseph Merl, 1875 to 1890; the 
Rev. Francis Torbeck, 1890 to 
1893; the Rev. W. Sieberta, 1893 
to 1896; the Rev. Joseph Hegger, 
1896 to 1900; the Rev. Jos. Lan­
nert, 1900 to 1905; and the pres­
ent Pastor, the Rev. John Kas­
kamp, who has served from 1905 
to date. 

The first church was built 
about 1845 and the second one 
ten years later. 

The school, which was taught 
at first by lay teachers, then by 
the U sulines until 1883, and 
thereafter by the Sisters of St. 
Benedict, was opened early in 
the history of the parish and a 
new school building was built in 
1867. Another new school was 
dedicated on September 10, 1909. 

St. James has witnessed five 
first Masses in the last thirty 
years and from the parish in the 
past twenty years have gone 
seven to the teaching sisterhood. 

ST. JOHN. ST. JOHN THE 
EVANGELIST CHURCH was 
founded in 1868. It was attend­
ed by: The Rev. Charles Exel, 
the Rev. John Viefhaus, and the 
Rev. Francis X. · Girolt, from 
1868 to 1876. Its Pastors have 
been: The Rev. Alexander 
Koesters, 1876 to 1878; the Rev. 
Clement Conrad, 1878 to 1888 ; 
the Rev. Charles Stricker, 1888 
to 1890; the Rev. Edmund P. 
Schmitt, 1890 to 1895; the Rev. 
George H. Moss, 1895 to 1900 ; 
the Rev. Frederick Ketter, 1900 
to 1906; the Rev. Nicholas 
Forve, 1906 to 1917; the Rev. 
William Liesen, 1917 to 1920; 
the Rev. John Loi bl, 1920 to 
1926 ; the Rev. John Schenk, 
1926 to 1931; and the present 
Pastor, the Rev. John J. Rapp, 
from 1931 to date. 

The first church was built in 
1868, and the second, the present 
one, was constructed in 1894. 

A school was opened in 1869, 
and the present school building 
completed in 1925. The school 
is taught by the Sisters of St. 
Benedict. 

S~ JOSEPH. ST. JOSEPH 
CHURCH, located in Martin 
county, was founded about 1840. 
The first church was built in 
1853, and the second one was 
erected in 1877. 

s~ JOSEPH. s~ JOSEPH 
CHURCH, located in Vanderburg 
county, was founded in 1841. 
The first Pastor was the Rev. 
Roman Weinzoepfel, and he was 
succeeded by: The Rev. F. G. 
Pepersack, who served for four 
years; the Rev. A. Dannenhofer, 
1 year; Father Pepersack, 3 
years; the Rev. H. Fein, 15 
years; the Rev. G. H. Ostlangen­
burg, 1 year; the Rev. J. F. Son­
dermann, 1 year; the Rev. A. A. 
Schenk, 9 years; the Rev. Jos. T. 
Bauer, 2 years; the Rev. E. L. 
Quade, 9 years ; the Rev. J. B. 
Merl, 14 years; the Rev. Jos. 
Schuck, 10 years; the Rev. F. A. 
Roell, 1 year; the Rev. T. J. 
Vollmer, 5 years; and the pres­
ent Pastor, the Rev. Edward 
Joseph Bauer. 

St. Joseph is a village of about 
50 inhabitants and is located 
nine miles northwest of Evans­
ville. The first church, a two­
story log house, was built in the 
summer of 1841. Previous to 
this time Father Czackart, a 
Redemptorist, had celebrated 
Mass in the house of a Mrs. Weis, 
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a widow, in 1835; the next year 
he made another visit. The up­
per story of this log structure 
was used as a church; the lower 
portion was used half for a 
school and the other half, which 
consisted of two rooms, consti­
tuted the pastoral residence. At 
this time the congregation num­
bered about 15 families. 

Father W einzoepf el, the first 
Pastor, attended St. Joseph's to 
May, 1842, and until his return 
in April, 1846, it was served as 
a Mission from St. Wendel and 
Evansville. On September 15, 
1849, Bishop de St. Palais, on the 
occasion of administering Confir­
mation, selected the site for a 
new church for which the cor­
nerstone was laid May 28, 1850, 
and in which services were first 
held on April 13, 1851. The pres­
ent church was built in 1888. 

The school was opened in 1841 
and until 1849, a man living in 
the vicinity of the ~hapel, was 
regularly employed in the win­
ter months as a teacher. In 
1879 the present school was 
built and is conducted by the Sis­
ters of St. Francis of Olden­
burg. 

ST. JOSEPH HILL. ST. JOS­
EPH CHURCH was founded 
about 1840. The first church 
was built about 1843, the second 
in 1853, and the third in 1881. 
The present Pastor is the Rev. 
Pierre Brisse. 

ST. JOSEPH. ST. JOSEPH 
CHURCH, located in Jennings 
county, was founded in 1838. 
The first church was built about 
1852, and the present one was 
erected in 1892. 

ST. JOSEPH. ST. JOSEPH 
CHURCH, located in Dearborn 
county, was founded in 1841. 

The attending Pastors until 
1853 were the Rev. Michael 
O'Rourke, the Rev. Milliam En­
geln, the Rev. Martin Stahl, and 
the Rev. Andrew Bennett. The 
first resident Pastor was the Rev. 
A. Moeschall who was followed 
by: The Rev. Arnold Pinker, the 
Rev. Henry Koering, the Rev. L. 
Schneider, the Rev. Anthony 
Scheideler, the Rev. John Joseph 
M. Gabriel, the Rev. A. Feigen, 
the Rev. Martin Andres, the Rev. 
A. Gerhardstein, C.PP.S., the 
Rev. John Loibl, the Rev. George 
Schenk, and the present Pastor, 
the Rev. Louis Becher. 

The present church was begun 
in 1859 and completed in 1866. 

The school, opened in 1856, has 
had three buildings, the first in 
1856, the second in 1866, and the 
third in 1928. It is taught by the 
Franciscan sisters. 

ST. MAGDALEN. ST. MAG­
DALEN CHURCH, located in 
Ripley county, was founded in 
1846. The Pastors include: The 
Rev. H.J. Seibertz, 1846 to 1854; 
the Rev. Alphonse Munchina, 
1854 to 1855; the Rev. Anthony 
Carius, the Rev. B. H. Schultes, 
the Rev. Leonard Brandt, 1855 
to 1860; the Rev. H. J . Seibertz, 
1860 to 1864; the Rev. John P. 
Gillig, 1877 to 1903; the Rev. 
Jacob A. Michael, 1903 to 1904; 
the Rev. J. F. Sondermann, 1904 
to 1907; the Rev. C. J. Schwartz, 
1907 to 1917 ; the Rev. William 
Liesen, 1917 to 1931; and the 
Rev. George Scheidler, and the 
Rev. Theodore Mattingly, 1931 
to 1934. The Rev. Henry C. 
Hunger is the present Pastor. 

The first church was built in 
1848 and the present one in 1861. 

The school, opened in 1872, 
was taught until 1917 by lay­
men. Since that time there has 
been no school. 

ST. MARK. ST. MARK 
CHURCH, in Perry county, was 
organized in 1863 by the Rev. 
Ferdinand Hundt. It was at­
tended from Troy to 1863 ; from 
St. Meinrad to 1865 ; from Can­
nelton to 1867; and from Tell 
City to 1877. 

The Rev. John B. Unverzagt 
was the first resident Pastor, 
1877 to 1879, followed by: The 
Rev. Placidus. Zarn, O.S.B., 
1877 to 1881; the Rev. Anthony 
Oster, 1881; the Rev. Peter 
Hommes, 1881 to 1885; the Rev. 
Joseph M. Zoglmann, 1885 to 
1888 ; the Rev. F. A. Roell, 1888 
to 1889; the Rev. Henry Fein, 
1889 to 1893; the Rev. Law­
rence Fichter, 1893 to 1895 ; the 
Rev. Peter Baron, 1895 to 1902; 
the Rev. Michael J. Forve, 1902 
to 1906; the Rev. J. W. Borthel, 
1906; the Rev. Lambert Weis­
haar, 1906 to 1907; the Rev. E . 
J. Zirkelbach, 1907; the Rev. Au­
gust J. Sprigler, 1907; the Rev. 
James J . McCool, 1907; the Rev. 
N. A. Hassel, 1907 to 1908 ; the 
Rev. Francis Schaub, 1908 to 
1911; the Rev. Mathias Weiland, 
1911 to 1916; the Rev. Charles 
L. Kabey, 1916 to 1925; the Rev. 
George P . Ziemer, 1925 to 1931 ; 
and the present Pastor, the Rev. 
Edward Bochhold, from 1931 to 
date. 

The first church was erected 
in 1863 and the second in 1868. 

The school, opened in 1860, 
was originally taught by lay­
men ; another building was com­
pleted in 1913, and is now under 
the direction of the Sisters of 
St. Benedict. 

ST. MARTIN. ST. MARTIN· 
CHURCH, in Martin county, 
was founded in 187 4. The pres­
ent church was built a year later. 
The Rev. Leo Lindemann is the 
present Pastor. 

ST. MARY. ST. MARY 
CHURCH, in Daviess county, 
was founded about 1828. Four 
churches have been built: In 
1834, 1839, 1881 and in 1926. 
The present Pastor is the Rev. 
Andrew O'Keef e. 

ST. MARY-OF-THE-ROCKS 
ST. MARY - OF - THE - ROCKS 
CHURCH, located on a rural 
route of Batesville, was founded 
in 1844, although the locality 
had been visited since 1837 by 
the Rev. Joseph Ferneding. The 
first resident Pastor was the 
Rev. Januarius Weissenberger 
who served from 1844 to 1859. 
He was succeeded by: The Rev. 
John P. Gillig, 1859 to 1863; 
the Rev. Leo Osredkar, 0. S. F., 
who visited the place as there 
was no resident Pastor from 
1859 until 1866; the Rev. Joseph 
Kaufmann, 1866 to 1868 ; the 
Rev. A. Nonnenmacher, 1868 to 
1871; the Rev. Joseph Resch, 
1871 to 1873 ; the Rev. John 
Gabriel, 187 4 ; the Rev. Francis 
X. Girolt, 1874 to 1888; the Rev. 
Martin Andres, 1888 to 1902 ; 
the Rev. C. P. Baron, 1902 to 
1906 ; the Rev. Edward J. Zirkel­
bach, 1906 to 1907 ; the Rev. 
Lambert Weishaar, 1907 to 
1929 ; and the Rev. John Bra­
cher, 1929. The present Admin­
istrator is the Rev. William A. 
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Bastnagel, who has served from 
· 1929. 

· The first church was built in 
1844, and a second, the present 
one, erected in 1859, was rebuilt 
in 1906 after a fire. 

The school was opened in 1870 
and is taught by lay teachers. 

ST. MARY-OF-THE-WOODS. 
ST. MARY CHURCH was found­
ed about 1835. The first church 
was built in 1838 and the second 
in 1868. The present Pastor is 
the Rev. Fintan G. Walker. A 
school was opened in 1840. 

ST. MAURICE. ST. MAU­
RICE CHURCH, located in De­
catur county, nine miles north­
east of Greensburg, was founded 
about the year 1862. The first 
church was built about 1859 and' 
was attended by the Rev. Law­
rence Osterling, from Enochs­
burg, 1862 to 1869; the Rev. 
Michael Heck, 1869 to 1879, also 
from Enochsburg; the Rev. An­
gelus Hafertepe, 0. F. M., from 
Hamburg, 1879 to 1880 ; the Rev. 
Charles Schoeppner, 0. F. M., 
1880 to 1883, from Hamburg. 

Father Schoeppner built the 
present church in 1882. The 
Rev. James Pfeiffer, 1883 to 
1884, came to St. Maurice from 
Enochsburg. The Rev. A. Koes­
ters remained six weeks as resi­
dent Pastor in 1884, and he wa~ 
succeeded by: The Rev. Ferdi­
nand Hundt, 1884 to 1886; the 
Rev. F. X. Seegmuller, 1886 to 
1891; the Rev. John B. Unver­
zagt, 1891 to 1900; the Rev. A. 
Koesters, 1900 to 1906; and the 
Rev. Michael Wagner, 1906 to 
1914. The present Pastor, the 
Rev. Herman J. Gadlage, has 
served since 1914. 

The first · school was opened in 
1863 and the present building 
was erected in 1907. It is taught 
by lay teachers. 
. ST. MEINRAD. ST. MEIN­
RAD CHURCH was founded in 
1854. From 1854 to 1860 dif­
ferent priests from the Monas­
tery served here. The first 
church was built in 1858 and in 
1860 the Rev. Isidore Hobi, 0. S. 
B., was appointed Pastor. He 
served until 1869, and was suc­
ceeded by the Rev. Fintan Mund­
wiler, 0. S. B., 1869 to 187 4; the 
Rev. Isidore Hobi, 0. S. B., 1874 
to 1877; the Rev. Alphonse 
Leute, 0. S. B., 1877 to 1878; 
the Rev. Henry Hug, 0. S. B., 
1878 to 1879; the Rev. Maurice 
Wagner, 0. S. B., 1879 to 1883; 
the Rev. Isidore Hobi, 0. S. B., 
1883 to 1886; the Rev. Lucas 
Grawe, 0. S. B., 1886 to 1889; 
the Rev. Joseph Villinger, 0. S. 
B., 1889 to 1890; the Rev. 
Stephen Stenger, 1890 to 1896; 
the Rev. Maurus Helfrich, 0. S. 
B., 1896 to 1908; the Rev. Odilo 
Witt, 0. S. B., 1908 to 1912; the 
Rev. Louis Fuchs, 0. S. B., 1912 
to 1916; the Rev. Celestine San­
der, 0. S. B., 1916 to 1931; and 
the Rev. Louis Fuchs, 0. S. B., 
1931 to 1933. The Rev. Paul 
Thoma, 0. S. B., the present Pas­
tor, . is assisted by the Rev. 
Raphael Hirsch, 0. S. B. 

The second church was built 
in 1885 and the present one was 
erected in 1899. 

The school was opened in 1863 
and the present building, erected 
in 1877, has been attended by 
the Sisters of St. Benedict since 
that date. . 

ST. MIC HAE L. ST. MI-
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CHAEL CHURCH, located in 
Daviess county, was founded 
about 1848. The first church, 
still standing, was built in 1887. 
It is now a Mission of Mont­
gomery. 

ST. MIC HA E L. ST. MI­
CHAEL CHURCH, located in 
Harrison county, was founded 
about 1820. The first church was 
dedicated about 1828, the second 
about 1859, and the present 
church about 1898. It is now a 
Mission attended from Corydon. 

ST. NICHOLAS. ST. NICHO­
LAS CHURCH, in Ripley county, 
was founded about 1835. The 
first church was built about 
1840, and the present one about 
sixteen years later. The Rev. 
August Riehl is the present Pas­
tor. 

S11
• PATRICK. ST. PATRICK 

CHURCH, located in Daviess 
county, was founded in 1834. The 
first church was built in 1840, 
and a second, the present one, in 
1860. The Rev. Amos McLough­
lin is the present Pastor. 

ST. PAUL. ST. PAUL 
CHURCH, located in Decatur 
county, is a Mission attended 
from Rushville. 

ST. PETER. ST. PETER 
CHURCH, located in Franklin 
county, was founded in the fall 
of 1833 and for some years was 
attended by different mission­
aries. It was attended by the 
Rev. Joseph Ferneding, from 
1839 to 1842; by the Rev. Wil­
liam O'Rourke from 1842 to 
1844; and by the Rev. Charles 
Opperman in the early part of 
1844. 

In J-une, 1844, the Rev. Wil­
liam Englen became the first res­
ident Pastor and served until 
1855. During the last two years 
of his service, he collected funds 
for a new church to which he 
himself donated $700. The serv­
ice of Father Englen was fol­
lowed by that of Fathers Rudolf 
and Weber. 

Following Father Weber, St. 
Peter's was served by: The Rev. 
Leo Osrititer, 0. F. M., 1859 to 
1882; the Rev. George Kemper, 
1882 to 1886; the Rev. Ferdi­
nand Hundt, 1886 to 1890; the 
Rev. John J. Gabriel, 1890; the 
Rev. John Fleischman, 1891 to 
1908; the Rev. R. Wagner, 1908 
to 1912; the Rev. William Wock, 
1912 to 1917; and the present 
Pastor, the Rev. John A. Kohl­
mann, 1917 to date. The present 
assistant is the Rev. Charles 
Kabey. 

The first church, which was a 
log structure, was built about 
1837, and the present church, 
the second one, was started in 
1853 and completed in 1855. 

The school was opened prior 
to 1840 and is taught by the Sis­
ters of St. Francis of Oldenburg. 
The present school building was 
built in 1875. 

ST. PH IL IP. ST. PHILIP 
CHURCH is · located in Posey 
county and the first church, a 
log cabin chapel, was built here 
in 18.45. The present church 
was built in 1859. 

Father Czackart, of Illinois, 
visited the people here in 1836, 
and the Rev. A. Deydier came 
occasionally from 1837 to 1840. 
The Rev. Conrad Schneiderjans 
came from 1840 to 1845 ; the 
Rev. Charles Oppermann, 1845 
to 1846 ; the Rev. Roman Wein-

AURORA 

FIRST NATIONAL BANK 
YOUR HOME BANK SINCE 1864 

SEVENTY YEARS OF SBCURITY AND SERVICE 

AURORA, IND. 

THE GREEN & SCHWIER CO. 
"'WE FURNISH THE HOME COMPLETE" 

AURORA, IND. 

HOLTHAUSE-RULLMAN CO. 
Funeral Directors 

LINCOLN SEDAN AMBULANCE 
(Fully Equipped) 

AURORA - - IND. 

CRAWFORDSVILLE 

R.R. DONNELLEY & SONS CO. 
Printers, Binders, Engravers, Lithographers 
350 EAST TWENTY-SECOND STREET-CHICAGO 

CRAWFORDSVILLE, PLANT 

Crawfordsville, Ind. 

ADLER'S, INC. 
Crawfordsville, Ind. 

BLOOMINGTON 

THERE IS A 

ROY BURNS MONEY SAVING STORE 
IN YOUR NEIGHBORHOOD - STORES LOCATED AT 

Phone: 6341 No. 1 6th and Walnut St. 
Phone: 2900 No. 2 6th and Morton St. 
Phone: 3962 No. 3 712 N. Indiana 
Phone: 4322 No. -4 1101 N. Walnut 
Phone: 4733 No. 5 1010 W. 7th 
Phone: 3121 No. 6 200 S. Ro~ers 
Phone: 5890 No. 7 805 S. Rogers 
Phone: 6391 No. 8 3rd and Grant 

WHOLESALE DEPARTMENT-3RD and MORTON-PHONE 6506 
BLOOMINGTON, IND. 

Let One of Our Courteous Drivers Serve Your Laundry and Cleaning Needs 

IDEAL LAUNDRY COMPANY 
A. G. LLOYD, Manager 

BLOOMINGTON, IND. 

12th ST. and PARK AVE. 

PHONE 6120 

CAMBRIDGE CITY 

Cambridge City Casket Company 
MANUFACTURERS OF 

FINE CLOTH COVERED BURIAL CASES 
CAMBRIDGE CITY, IND. 

111 



r 

I· 

i 
I. 

112 The Indiana Catholic and Record 

COST IS IMPORTANT 
THESE DAYS 

WAYNE 
MISTOIL 
BURNER 

• 
GREATER 
HEATING 
COMFORT 

LOWER INSTALLATION COST 
MAINTENANCE COST 
FUEL COST 

They Can Be Found In 

WAYNE OIL HEATING 

There Is A Wayne Dealer Near You-Or Write 

Wayne Oil Burner Corp. 
803 Glasgow Ave. - Ft. Wayne, Ind. 

Reserve Loan 
Life Insurance 

Company 
429 North Pennsylvania Street 

Indianapolis, Ind. 

• 
DEATH CLAIMS PAID IN 24 HOURS 

OF RECEIPT OF PRO·OF 

• 
ORGANIZED 1897 

zoepf el, of St. Wend el, 1846 to 
1848; the Rev. Paul Wagner, 
1858 to 1861; and the Rev. John 
B. Merl, 1861 to 1864. The first 
resident Pastor, the Rev. J. H. 
Diestel, was appointed on Janu­
ary 15, 1865, and served until 
1886. Father Diestel was suc­
ceeded by the following: The 
Rev. William Kemper, 1886 to 
1888; the Rev. George J. Loesch, 
1888 to 1914; the Rev. Henry 
Verst, 1914 to 1920; and the 
Rev. Theodore Vollmer, 1920 to 
1934. The Rev. Andrew J. Bast­
nagel, the present Pastor, was 
appointed in June, 1934. 

The first school was construct­
ed of logs and was opened in 
1847. The second school was 
built in 1870, and the present 
building was erected in 1904. 
The Sisters of St. Benedict, of 
Ferdinand, are in charge of the 
school. 

ST. PHILOMENA. ST. PHIL­
OMENA CHURCH, located in 
Franklin county, was founded 
about 1842. The first church 
was built in 1844 and the pres­
ent one about 1870. It is now 
a mission of Floyd Knobs. 

ST. PIUS. ST. PIUS CHURCH, 
located in Ripley county, was 
founded about 1854 at which 
time the church was built. It 
is now a Mission of St. Nicholas, 
Ripley county. 

ST. THOMAS. ST. THOMAS, 
THE APOSTLE, CHURCH, lo­
cated in Knox county, was found­
ed in 1843. The Pastors in their 
order of service are: The Rev. 
John Chasse, 1843 to 1846; the 
Rev. Dion, 1846 to 1848; the 
Rev. John Contin, 1856 to 1869; 
the Rev. Bellanger, 1869 to 
1875; the Rev. Philip Doyle, 
1875; the Rev. Gustave Ginnsz, 
1875 to 1881; the Rev. John 
Stanton, 1894 to 1898; the Rev. 
Joseph Sennefeld, 1898 to 1913 ; 
and the present Pastor, the Rev. 
Joseph Hass, from 1913 to date. 
St. Thomas was attended from 
1881 to 1894 by priests from 
Vincennes. 

A church was built in 1843, 
and a second one at a later un­
known date. A third church was 
erected in 1878 and remodeled 
in 1917. 

A combined convent a n d 
school was bui]t in 1900, and in 
1918 the present school was 
erected. The school is under the 
direction of the Sisters of St. 
Benedict. 

ST. VINCENT. ST. VINCENT 
CHURCH, located in Shelby 
county, was founded in 1828. 
The first church was dedicated 
in 1839, the second in 1880, and 
a new church in 1926. The Rev. 
Bernard Riedford is the present 
Pastor. 

ST. WENDEL. ST. WENDEL 
CHURCH, located in Posey 
county, was founded in 1841. 
The Pastors are : The Rev. Ro­
man W einzoepfel, 1841 to 1842 ; 
the first resident Pastor, the 
Rev. Conrad Schneiderjans, 1842 
to 1845 ; the Rev. Roman Wein­
zoepf el, 1846 to 1858 ; the Rev. 
Paul Wagner, 1858 to 1863; the 
Rev. Joseph Kaufmann, 1863 to 
1865; the Rev. J. H. Diestel 
and the Rev. John B. Merl, 1865; 
the Rev. Martin Andres, 1865 to 
1867 ; the Rev. Charles Exel, 
1867 to 1871; the Rev. Nicholas 
Gaelweiler, 1872 to 1873; the 

L!===========================..J , Rev. Aloysius Dannenhoffer, 

1873 to 1878; the Rev. Joseph 
Schenk and the Rev. John Stolz, 
1878 to 1879; the Rev. Michael 
Heck, 1879 to 1899; and the pres­
ent Pastor, the Rev. James Pfeif­
fer, since 1899. The Rev. Henry 
A. Trapp is the present assistant. 

The first church was built in 
1841 and the second in 1853. 

The school, opened in 1857, is 
under the direction of the Sis­
ters of St. Francis, Oldenburg. 
A second school building was 
completed in 1884. 

For more than one-third of a 
century, Father Pfeiffer has 
been Pastor of St. Wendel's. The 
manifestations of his many 
years of labor in this charge are 
visible not only in the finer 
Catholic spirit of his congrega­
tion, but in the many temporal 
evidences to be seen particularly 
in St. Wendel's church, making 
it, as he has, into something of 
beauty. Individually, he has 
been for years the oldest priest 
in the Diocese, and since age is 
in many ways the essence of his­
tory, his distinction may well be 
classed as historical. 

TELL CITY. ST. PAUL 
CHURCH was founded in 1859 
and was attended by the Rev. 
Michael Marendt of Cannelton 
from this year to 1861. Al­
though the Rev. Ferdinand 
Hundt was Pastor for a short 
time in 1863, the Benedictine 
Fathers were in charge almost 
continually from 1861 to 1867. 
The Pastors from 1867 are: The 
Rev. A. Michael, 1867 to 1877; 
the Rev. Edward Faller, 1877 to 
1882 ; the Rev. James Hillbret, 
1882 to 1884; the Rev. John 
Weinich, 1884 to 1888; the Rev. 
William Kemper, 1888 to 1891; 
the Rev. Simon Barbier, 1891 to 
1896; the Rev. W. F. Siebertz, 
1896 to 1910; the Rev. Joseph A. 
Thie, 1910 to 1929; and the Rev. 
Joseph Sermersheim, 1929 to 
1934. The Rev. Thomas J. Voll­
mer is the present Pastor and is 
assisted by the Rev. Clement 
Conen. 

The first church was built in 
1859 and the present one was 
erected in 1873. 

The school was opened in 1859 
and was conducted by lay teach­
ers until 1878; by the Sisters of 
St. Francis of Oldenburg, from 
1878 to 1882 ; and by the Bene­
dictine Sisters since that time. 

TERRE HAUTE 
SACRED HEART CHURCH, 

located at 2271 North 13th 
street, was founded in 1922. 
There have been four Pastors in 
charge: The Rev. Aloysius B. 
Duffy, 1922 to 1926; the Rev. 
Timothy Kavanaugh, 1926 to 
1927; the Rev. Omer Eisenmann, 
1927 to 1934; and the present 
Pastor, the Rev. Jerome Pfau, 
who is assisted by the Rev. John 
Holloran. 

Both the church and school 
were dedicated in 1923, and the 
school is under the direction of 
the Sisters of Providence. 

ST. ANNE CHURCH, located 
at 1402 East Locust street, was 
founded in 1866. The Rev. 
Michael Quinlan was the first 
Pastor. When he relinquished 
his charge the parish was at­
tended by the Pastor of St. 
Joseph's and his assistants. In 
February, 1878, the Rev. John 
McCabe was appointed as Pas­
tor and served until July 3, 1885, 
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when the Rev. John Ryves was 
appointed Pastor. Father Ryves 
resigned from active duty, on ac­
count of illness, in 1928. He 
died on June 25, 1933. The Rev. 
Joseph F. Duffey succeeded him 
and served until March 6, 1932. 

· The Rev. Clement Thienes is the 
present Pastor, and is assisted 
by the Rev. Robert Gorman. 

The second church was built 
in 1890 and the present one in 
1898. 

The school is in charge of the 
Sisters of Providence. 

ST. BENEDICT CHURCH, lo­
cated at 118 South 9th street, 
was founded in 1864. The Pas­
tors include: The Rev. C. Doebe­
ner, the Rev. Edward Faller, the 
Rev. N. Gaelweiler, the Rev. Pius 
Notterer, the Rev. Conrad Eli­
son, the Rev. Fidelis Voigt, the 
Rev. Clemens Luitz, the Rev. 
Maurice Bierl, the Rev. Avelin 
Szabo, the Rev. B. Zoller, the 
Rev. Leonard Reich, the Rev. 
Peter Scharoun, the Rev. B. Zol­
ler, the Rev. Ferdinand Mayer, 
the Rev. Stephen Korthas, the 
Rev. P. M. Friedman, the Rev. 
Seraphim Schlang, and the pres­
ent Pastor, the Rev. Anthony 
Hodapp. He is assisted by the 
Rev. David Kosky. 

The first church was built in 
1864, and the second, the pres­
ent one, in 1896. 

The school was opened in 1887 
and is under the direction of the 
Sisters of Providence. 

ST. JOSEPH CHURCH, locat­
ed at 113 South Fifth street, is 
the oldest church in Terre Haute 
and was founded in 1837 or 1838. 
The Rev. S. Buteaux, a non-resi­
dent Pastor, was followed by the 
following resident Pastors : The 
Rev. S. P. Lalumiere, 1842 to 
1857; Father DiMaria, S. J., 1857 
to 1859; Father Beckwith, S. J., 
1859 to 1860; the Rev. Bede 
O'Connor, 0. S. B., 1860 to 1866; 
the Rev. John B. Chasse, 1866 
to 1872; the Rev. John Kroeger, 
0. M. C., 1872 to 1873; the Rev. 
L. Moczygemba, 0. M. C., 1873 
to 187 4 ; the Rev. Joseph Les en, 
0. M. C., 1874 to 1877; the Rev. 
Francis Neubauer, 0. M. C., 1877 
to 1878; the Rev. D. Marzetti, 
0 . M. C., 1878 to 1880; the Rev. 
Michael McEvoy, 0. M. C., 1880 
to 1895 ; the Rev. Joseph Fre­
win, 0. M. C., 1896 to 1898; the 
Rev. Francis Lehner, 0. M. C., 
1898 to 1904; the Rev. Camillus 
Eichenauble, 0. M. C., 1905 to 
1912; the Rev. Nicholas Dono­
hoe, 0. M. C., 1912 to 1929; the 
Rev. James Hermes, 0. M. C., 
1929 to 1933; and the Rev. Pas­
cal Murray, 0. M. C., 1933 to 
date. The present assistant is 
the Rev. Martin Collet, 0. M. C. 

The original church was built 
in 1840, and the second church 
about 1870. The interior of the 
present church, which was built 
in 1912, was destroyed by fire in 
1934 and officially opened De­
cember 9, 1934. 

The school, opened in 1883, is 
conducted by the Sisters of Prov­
idence. 

ST. MARGARET MARY 
CHURCH, located at Voorhees 
and South Center streets, was 
founded in 1920. The Rev. Clem-

. ent Thienes was Pastor from 
1920 to 1932 and he was suc­
ceeded by the present Pastor, 
the Rev. Leo F. Creeden. 

A combined church and school 
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was completed in 1921. The 
school is taught by the Sisters 
of Providence. 

ST. PATRICK CHURCH, lo­
cated at 416 South 13th street, 
was founded in 1880. The Pas­
tors who have been in charge 
are: The Rev. Thomas X. Logan, 
1880 to 1881; the Rev. D. J. 
McMullen, 1881 to 1885; the Rev. 
Victor A. Schnell, 1885 to 1920; . 
and the Very Rev. James B. De­
laney, R. D., from 1920 to date. 
The Rev. Robert Hartman is the 
present assistant. 

The church was built in 1881. 
The school, opened in 1881, en­

tereo a new school building in 
1923, and is under the direction 
of the Sisters of Providence. 

TROY. ST. PIUS CHURCH 
was organized in 1849 by the 
Rev. J. Cronin, who built a brick 
church in the same year. It 
was attended principally from 
St. Meinrad until 1875, when the 
Rev. Henry Hug, 0. S. B., was 
appointed first Pastor. The Rt. 
Rev. Marino Priori is the pres­
ent Pastor. 

The present church was built 
in 1883. 

The school is in charge of the 
Benedictine Sisters. 

UNIVERSAL. ST. JOSEPH 
CHURCH was organized as a 
Mission by the Rev. Clement 
';rhienes in 1917. The present 
church was built in 1918 with 
the help of the Extension So­
ciety who donated $500. 

In 1920 St. Joseph's was at­
tached to St. Patrick's of Terre 
Haute with priests from that 
church in attendance. It was at­
tached to the Gibault Home in 
1921. In 1924 it became a Mis­
sion of Clinton, and four years 
later, 1928, a Mission of West 
Terre Haute, to which it is now 
attached. 

VEVAY. MOTHER OF GOD 
CHURCH was founded in 1875. 
Services were held in Vevay as 
early as 1837 in private homes, 
and the Rev. Michael Shaw of 
Madison was the first priest to 
visit here. He was followed by 
the Rev. Joseph O'Reilly of Mad­
ison, the Rev. Stephen Schmidt 
of Carrollton, Kentucky, and the 
Rev. Leonard Brandt of Madi­
son. In 187 4 it was made a Mis­
son of North Madison and has 
continued as such since. 

The cornerstone of the church 
was laid September 12, 1875, and 
the church was dedicated June 
17, 1876. 

VINCENNES 
SACRED HEART CHURCH 

was organized in 1909 and the 
Rev. John A. Becher has been 
Pastor since its foundation. He 
is assisted by the Rev. Maurice 
Egloff. 

A combined church and school 
was built in 1909 and a new 
church was erected in 1924. The 
school is taught by the Bene­
dictine Sisters. 

ST. FRANCIS XAVIER 
CHURCH, first church of the 
state, pioneer church of the 
great Northwest territory, orig­
inal Cathedral of the Diocese, 
rich not only in church but 
American history as well, and 
generally known as the "Old 
Cathedral," was founded in 1702 
by an unknown Jesuit. 

F ' o 11 ow i n g its anonymous 
founder are the following Pas­
tors: The Rev. John Mermet, 
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1707 to 1712; the Rev. Antoin­
ius Senat, 1712 to 1736; the Rev. 
Mercuri us Conic, 1736 to 17 49; 
the Rev. Sebastian Meurin, 17 49 
to 1753; the Rev. Louis Bivier, 
1753 to 1756; Rev. Julius Dever­
uai, 1756 to 1773; the Rev. Pierre 
Gibault, 1770 to 1785; the Rev. 
Benedict J. Flaget, 1792 to 1795; 
the Rev. John Francis Rivet, 
1795 to 1804; the Rev. Donatian 
Olivier, 1804 to 1814; the Rev. 
Guy Ignatius Chabrant, 1814 to 
1817; the Rev. Anthony Blanc, 
1818 to · 1820; the Rev. Francis 
Xavier Dahmon, 1820 to 1821; 
the Rev. John L. Champomier, 
1823 to 1831; the Rev .. Louis 
Picot, 1831 to 1833; the Rev. Si­
mon Petit Lalumiere, 1833 to 
1836; the Rt . . Rev. Simon Ga­
briel Brute, D. D., first Bishop of 
the Diocese of Vincennes, 1836 
to 1838; the Rev. Anthony Par­
rett, 1838 to 1840; the Rev. Au­
gust Martin, 1840 to 1845; the 
Rev. Ernest Audran, 1846 to 
1868; the Rev. John Contin, 1869 
to 1876; the Rev. John Gueguen, 
1876 to 1879; the Rev. Hugh 
Peythieu, 1879 to 1890; the Rev. 
Louis Gueguen, 1890 to 1907; 
the Rev. Andrew Oster, 1907 to 
1911; and the Very Rev. James 
M. Gregoire, R. D., from 1911 to 
date. Father Gregoire is assist­
ed by the Rev. Henry J . Doll 
and the Rev. Edwin Spalding. 

The first church was built in 
1702 and was remodeled in 1786. 
In 1826 the present church was 
built. . 

The school was opened in 1792 
and the school building was built 
in 1887. The school is now 
taught by the Sisters of Provi­
dence, but prior to them it was 
in charge of the Sisters of Em­
mittsburg, Maryland, and the 
Sisters of Nazareth, Kentucky. 
The Brothers of the Sacred 
Heart and the Brothers of Notre 
Dame were also here. Father 
Rivet, the . Pastor from 1795 to 
1804, was the first public school 
teacher in Vincennes. 

ST. JOHN BAPTIST CHURCH 
was founded about 1840. The 
first church·was built about 1851 
and enlarged about 1886. The 
school was founded about 1850. 
The present Pastor is the Rev. 
Cornelius 0. Bosler, who is as­
sisted by the Rev. Frederic Nie­
haus. 

WASHINGTON 
ST. MARY CHURCH was 

founded in 1873. The first Pas­
tor was the Rev. John Peter Sas­
sel, and he served from 1873 to 
1879, being succeeded by: The 
Rev. Leopold S. Burkhart, 1879 
to 1880; the Rev. William M. 
Bultman, 1880 to 1893; the Rev. 
Francis Torbeck, 1880 to 1912; 
the Rev. William A. Jochum, 
1912 to 1925; and the Rev. Jos­
eph Sermersheim, 1925 to 1929. 
The present Pastor is the Rev. 
Meinrad J. Rouck, and he is as­
sisted by the Rev. Paul Ofer. 

The original church, built in 
1873, is still in use. 

The school, opened in 1873, has 
occupied two school buildings, 
one constructed in 1882 and the 
other in 1929. It is taught by 
lay teachers. 

ST. SIMON CHURCH was 
founded in 1837. The first Pas­
tor was the Rev. Simon P. Lalu­
miere, and he was succeeded by: 
The Rev. Antho~y Parrett, the 
Rev. Hippolyte Dupontavice, the 

Rev. John McDermott, the Rev. 
Patrick Hyland, the Rev. J. B. 
Chasse, the Rev. John Gueguen, 

· the Rev. Hugh Peythieu, the Rev. 
John W. Doyle, the Rev. Michael 
Lyons, the Rev. William V. Bo­
land and the present Pastor, the 
Rev. John T. O'Hare, who is as­
sisted by the Rev. Maurice De 
Jean and the Rev. Morand Wi­
dolff 

The first church was built in 
. 1838 and the present one was 
erected in 1886. 

The school, conducted by the 
Sisters of Providence, w a s 
opened in 1858. 

Washington was visited by 
priests as early as 1819, and the 
people attended Mass at St. 
Peter's, Montgomery, up to the 
time the first Pastor was ap­
pointed. 

WEST TERRE HAUTE. ST. 
LEONARD OF PORT MAU­
RICE CHURCH was founded in 
1910. The Pastors in order and 
years of service are: The Rev. 
Thomas A. Hoffman, 1910 to 
1928; the Rev. Charles Rabey, 
1928 to 1931; the Rev. Urban 
Sonderman, 1931 to 1934; and 
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present combination church and 
school was dedicated. 

In 1911 a school was opened 
and during this term it was 
taught by Miss Lillian Johnson 
in the present rectory. The 
school is now taught by the Sis­
ters of Providence. 

WHEATLAND. ST. FRAN­
CIS XAVIER CHURCH was 
.founded in 1915 and is a Mis­
sion attended from St. Simon 
church, Washington. 

WILLOW VALLEY. ST. STE­
PHEN CHURCH is a Mission at-
tended from Mitchell. The pres­
ent church was built in 1908. 

YORKVILLE. ST. MARTIN 
CHURCH was organized March 
26, 1850. The first Pastor was 
the Rev. Martin Stahl, who re­
mained in charge until April, 
1853. He was succeeded by: The 
Rev. Andrew Bennett, April to 
May, 1853; the Rev. Hugo Stapf, 
1853 to 1854; the Rev. Joseph 
Neubers, 1854 to 1856; the Rev. 
Arnold Pinkers, 1856 to 1858; 
the Rev. Joseph Rudolf, 1858; 

Duddenhausen, 1866 to 1870; the 
Rev. Victor Schnell, 1870 to 
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the Rev. Roman Weinzoepfel, I 
1858 to 1866 ; the Rev. Juli us 

1871; the Rev. Henry Seibertz, Indianapolis, Ind. 
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Brueggemann, 1877 to 1886; the 
Rev. A. Dannenhoffer, first resi­
dent Pastor, 1886 to 1892; the 
Rev. Joseph Boersig, 1892 to 
1903; the Rev. Richard Hoeing, 
1903 to 1906; the Rev. C. P. 
Baron, 1906 to 1914; and the 
Rev. Francis H. Sondermann, 
from 1914 to the present time. 

The first church was complet­
ed in 1852, the present one in 
1914. 

The school was opened in 1850 
in a frame building. In 1866 a 
school building of stone was 
erected, and in 1914 the present 
brick school building was con­
structed. The school was taught 
by lay teachers until 1859 when 
the Sisters of St. Francis took 
charge. 
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Evansville U-Drive-It Co. _______ 55 
Fendrich, H. Cigar Co. __________ 58 
Finke Furniture Co. ____________ 60 
Frazier Insurance Agency, Inc. __ 56 
Funke, F 'erdinand Sons Co. _____ _ 56 
Glidden's ______________________ 61 
Goldman, Julian Store __________ 56 
Grimm, Albert C. Planing Mill_ __ 62 
Hancock, John, Mut. Life Ins. ____ 57 
Hartig Foundry Co. _____________ 58 
Hermann's _____________________ 62 
Hesmer's Perfect Po. Chips ______ 56 
High Class Baking Co. __________ 62 
Holsclaw Bros., Inc. ____________ 58 
Housh Industrial Supplies ________ 56 
Ice Service, Inc. __ ______________ 56 
Iglehart Bros. __________________ 86 
Imperial Desk Co. ________________ 58 
International Steel Co. ____________ 59 
Lamey's Flour & Feed ___________ 55 
Lannert Mfg. Co., Inc. __________ 59 
Leich, Chas. & Co. ______________ 56 
Lincoln Cotton Mill Co. __________ 55 
Lincoln Motor Co. _______________ 56 
McElroy's Beauty Service_______ 62 
McGinness, C. W. (D. C.) __ ______ 62 
McReynolds & Dreier ___________ 60 
Mechanics Planing Mill Co,______ 59 
Mesker, Geo. L., & Co. __________ 57 
Miller Electroplating, Inc. ____ ____ 60 
Minielli & Deig Monuments____ __ 55 
M. W. Burial Vault Co. __________ 59 
Nicholson Bros. ________________ 62 
Ohio Valley Hdwe. & Rfg. _____ 62, 77 
Pelz Transfer Co._______________ 57 
Plumbers Supply Co. ____________ 62 
Producers Co-operative Dairy ____ 58 
Purcell Seed Co. ______________ __ 62 
Red Spot Paint & Varn. Co. ______ 61 
Rex Incinerator Co., Inc, _______ __ 60 
Richard Agency ________________ 61 
Roberts, Louis L. _____________ ___ 56 
St. Mary's Hospital_____________ 63 
Schmidt, Paul H. ________________ 55 
Schultz's Cloak House ___________ 56 
Schulz, Herman, Co. _____________ 56 
Sears, Roebuck & Co._________ ___ 62 
Servel, Inc. _____________________ 59 
Shane Mfg. Co. _________________ 56 
Shop-Nook ------~-------------- 62 
Singer Sewing Machine Co. ______ 59 
Smith Butterfield Co. _____________ 59 
Snow & Wheaton ______________ 59 
Southern Indiana Gas & Elect. __ 61 
Southwestern Broom Mfg. Co,____ 55 
Standard Brick & Tile Corp. _____ 60 
Stanley Clothing Co.____________ 61 

Strouse & Bros. _______ _ ________ 60 · 
Sun Life Assurance Co.__________ 58 
Swonder, J. Ed., & Co. __________ 59 
Thrifty Dress Shop _____________ 60 
Tilford, H. R. ___________________ 57 
Tucker, W. L . Tobacco Co. ________ 60 
Von Behren Mfg. Co. ___________ 55 
Walden, Inc. ___________________ 56 
Westinghouse Elect. Supply ______ 62 
Wood's Downtown Drug Stores___ 56 
Yokel & Sons __________________ 56 
Zeidler Floral Co. ______________ 55 

FERDINAND 
Academy Immaculate Conception _ 76 
Dilger, M. T·----------~-------- 77 

FLOYDS KNOBS 
Mount St. Francis Pro-Seminary_ 2 

FORT BRANCH 
Emge & Sons __________________ 3 

FORT WAYNE 
B & B Delicatessen _____________ 69 
Berghoff ___________________ 70, 101 
Bishop, ·Edison _________________ 69 
Body & Fender Shop ____________ 70 
Catlett, M. B., Dr. ______________ 71 
Christen Bros. __________________ 69 
Crystal Ice & Fuel Co. __________ 69 
Dehler-Hughes _________________ 69 
Fortriede's _____________________ 70 
Fort Wayne Decorating Co. ______ 71 
Fort Wayne Engraving Co, ______ 69 
Harrison Theatres ______________ 71 
Henderson-Reed Bros. Co. ________ 69 
Ilg-Collins Motor Corp. _________ 71 
International College ___________ 71 
Jean, Betty ____________________ 69 
Koehl, Jacob & Sons _____________ 70 
Lincoln National Bank & Tr. _____ 70 
Motor Parts & Equipment Co. ____ 69 
Muntzinger, A. C. Furniture _____ 69 
Murphy, J. P.; Flanagan, D. C, ___ 69 
National Mill Supply Co. ________ 70 
Patterson-Fletcher ______________ 69 
Red Top Cab Co. ________________ 69 
Rothberg, S. Furniture Co, _______ 77 
Schoch, Edward F. _____________ 69 
Sherman White & Co. ___________ 70 
Throp's Lunch ___ ---------------· 71 
Wayne Oil Burner Corp, _________ 112 
Weatherhogg, Chas. R. __________ 69 
Weber Hotel ___________________ 71 
Weseloh's Pharmacy ____________ 69 

FRANKFORT 
Adler Co. ______________________ 7 4 
Blake & Ham Jewelry Store ______ 75 
Peoples Life Insurance Co. _______ 108 

FRANKLIN 
Bice Electric Shop ______________ 86 
Brown, Edgar __________________ 86 
Central Supply Co. ______________ 86 
Famous Store __________________ 86 
Farmers Trust Co. ______________ 86 
Fertig Ice Cream Co. ____________ 86 
Flinn Funeral Parlors ___________ 86 
Franklin Bakery _______________ 86 
Franklin Pure Milk Co. __________ 86 
Johnson County Lumber Co.______ 86 
Kerlin Bros. Auto Co. ___________ 86 
Morris ________________________ 86 
Scott Coal Yard __________________ 86 
Swank's _______________________ 95 
Vawter Hdwe. Dept. Store _______ 86 
Wonder Orange ____ __________ 86 

FRENCH LICK 
Drabing, C. L., Garage __________ 68 
Hancock, 0. B. __________________ 68 
Seneff & Putnam ________________ 68 
Valley Garage _________________ 68 

GREENCASTLE 
Allan Lumber Co., Inc, __ __c _______ 90 
Castle Cafe ____________________ 90 
Duff, A. J. Coal Co. _____________ 90 
First-Citizens Bank & Trust______ 81 
Glasscock Jewelry & Music ______ 90 
Handy's Sanitary Dairy _________ 90 
Lakin Funeral Home __ :___________ 90 
Lueteke's Bakery _______________ 90 
Murphy, G. C. Co, ______________ 90 

GREENFIELD 
Conklin Lumber Co, _____________ 75 
Hooton, Ray ___________________ 68 
Lynam Funeral Home ___________ 75 
Mitchell, Wm., Printing Co. ______ 68 
Waggoner, Milo H, ______________ 68 
Walter, C. ____________________ _ 68 

GREENSBURG 
American Bakery _______________ 107 
Batterton's West Side Drug _____ l07 
Boone, Everett _________________ 107 
Borden Tires, Serv., Batt. ________ 107 
Clemons _______________________ 107 
Decatur County Cooperative ______ l07 
Doles Coal Co. __________________ 107 
Garland Milling Co. _____________ 107 
Horne's Variety Store ___________ 107 
Kessler Baking Co.______________ 95 
Lerman Bros. Dept. Store ________ 107 
Linegar's Store ________________ 107 
Loyd, C. J. & Co. ________________ 107 
Pulse, W. C. Lumber Co. ________ 95 
Racine Shirt Co., Inc. ___________ 107 
Scheidler, W. J, ________________ 107 
Schultz, E. G. & Co. _____________ 107 
Strasburger Dry Cleaning Co. ____ 95 
Union Trust Co. ____________ ____ 107 

HUNTINGSBURG 
Greener's Cafe ____ ____________ 68 

115 

Partenheimer, Phil, & Co. _______ 68 
Wessel Motors _________________ 68 

INDIANAPOLIS 
Advance Electro Co._____________ 98 
Advance Paint Co.______________ 3 
Aler, C. C. Co. __________________ 100 
American Coffee House__________ 96 
American Linen Supply __________ 114 
American Paper Stock Co, ______ 100 
Atlas Burial Vault Co. __________ 96 
Atkinson, Fred C, _______________ 96 
Bader Coffee Co. ________________ 96 
Beck, Hale & Beckner___________ 93 
Brocking, E. R, _________________ 96 
Brookshire Pharmacy Co. ________ 96 
Capital Ice Refrigerating ________ 93 
Century Heating Service Co, _____ 93 
Church Members Relief_ ______ 4, 104 
Chambers, Smiley N, ____________ 114 
Circle Engraving Co. ____ ~ _______ 113 
Citizens Motor Car Co. __________ 100 
Claypool Hotel ________ _________ 96 
Colonial Savings Assn. __________ 109 
Consolidated Colliers ____________ 96 
Continental Baking Co. __________ 100 
Coppock Bros. _...,_ ________________ 114 
Cosgrove, Wm. P. _______________ 91 
Cotton, I. W. Co. _____ __________ 100 
Cox, Conder, Bain & Cox ________ 96 
DeHaven & Co. _________________ 96 
Deluse, Otto P. __________________ 114 
Democratic State Comm. ________ 102 
Denny Motor Transfer Co., 57, 69, 72, 

83, 84, 85, 87, 94, 97, 105, 106, Cover 
Dirks, E. Grocery _______________ 100 
Empire Life Bldg, _______________ 1 
Farmers Mutual Liability ________ 102 
Fertig Ice Cream Co, ____________ 91 
Flanner & Buchanan __________ Cover 
Floor Maintenance Eng. _________ 114 
Foster & Messick _______________ 93 
General American Life Ins. _______ 114 
General Apartments · ____________ 91 
General Outdoor' Advt. Co,_______ 91 
Gibson Fruit Juice Co. ___________ 114 
Glaska, Wm. ___________________ 114 
Goodyear Service _______________ 114 
Grain Dealers Ins. Co, __________ 93 
Grand Hotel ___________________ 91 
Graves, Nave & Co, _____________ 91 
Greyhound Lines _______________ 114 
Gregg & Son __________________ 2 
Gregory & Appel_ _______________ 91 
Hancock, John Ins. Co.___________ 91 
Harrison, Merritt ______________ 93 
Hatfield Electric Co. ____________ 91 
Heines Inn _____________________ 91 
Hibben-Holhyeg & Co. ___________ 104 
Holland Studio _________________ 103 
Holliday, W. J, _________________ 91 
Hooks _________________________ 103 
Hotel Lincoln __________________ 101 
Ind. Bell Telephone ______________ 1 
Indiana Farm Bureau ___________ l03 
Indiana Fur Co, _________________ 108 
Ind. Insurance Co. _______________ 97 
Ind. Lumberman's Ins. Co. _______ 96 
Indiana Nut Co. ________________ 114 
Indiana Paint Co,_______________ 96 
Indiana University _____________ 114 
Indpls. Belting Co. ______________ 96 
Indpls. Casket Co. ______________ 91 
Indpls. College of Pharmacy _____ 109 
Indpls. Water Co . _______________ 101 
Indpls. Life Ins. Co. ____________ 3 
International Business Machines __ 91 
International Harvester Co. ______ 110 
Jones & Maley, Inc. _____________ 103 
Kamm's _______________________ 3 
Keene Pharmacies ______________ 114 
Kennedy & Ragan ______________ 96 
Kings' Ind. Billiard Co. __________ 104 
Kiger & Co. ____________________ 109 
Klee & Coleman ________________ l13 
Kreiger Funeral Home__________ 91 
Kroger Stores _________________ 100 
Langsenkamp Co. _ _: ____________ 102 
Lockwood, Goldsmith & Galt_ ____ l04 
Longacre ______________________ 109 
Losey Motors __________________ 114 
Marott Apt. Hotel ______________ 109 
McKelvey, L. P. ________________ 114 
McKinney, Frank ______________ 91 
Meier, Lewis & Co. _____________ 104 
Midwest Fuel Co, _______________ 104 
Miller, Walter W. _______________ 104 
Modern Loan Service ____________ 104 
Moffat, Thomas ________________ 91 
Mutual China Co. _______________ 104 
Mutual Fire Ins. Co. ____________ 103 
National Casket Co. ______ _______ 104 
National Lbry. Binding __________ 103 
Newby Motor Co._______________ 92 
Olds Soap & Chemical Co. _______ 92 
Pacific Mutual Life Ins. __________ 103 
Paramount Optical Co. __________ 103 
Patterson Shade Co. _____________ 114 
Peet, E. M. Mfg. Co. ____________ 104 
Penhoff Grill __________________ 114 
Pennsylvania Hotel _____________ 91 
Porter, Aubrey D, _______________ 91 
Public Service Co. ____________ Cover 
Refrigerating Equip. Corp. ______ 93 
Reilly, P. C. ____________________ 93 
Reserve Life Ins. Co, ____________ 112 
Russet Cafeteria _______________ 114 
Sabins Engraving Co.___________ 91 
Sahm, Albert ------------------ 91 
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St. Vincent's HospitaL __________ 109 Weeks, Leo S. Co. _______________ 89 
Schwitzer-Cummins Co. ________ _: 99 Weismiller, F. E. _________________ 68 
Scoglund, William ______________ 93 Wiesen ------- ------------------ 89 
Sheehan Const. Co. ______________ 91 LEBANON 
Sholty Motor Co. ________________ 104 • . Adler & Co. ------------------- 85 
Simpson, J. B. Inc. ______________ 104 Thompson's Market ____________ 85 
Sinker-Davis Co. _______________ 104 LIBERTY 
Skinner's, Inc. -------------- --~-100 A. & B. Garage ________________ 63 
Smith, Leo X--------------~---- 91 Bertch, J. A. & Son ____________ 63 
Spann & Spann _________________ 91 Carter, I. H. ___ _________________ 84 
Ste:rling Laundry _:__-----------~--• 2 Clark, W. H. H. Sons ___________ 63 
Swiss Cleaners ________ :._________ 2 Fosdick, W. A. & Son __________ 63 
Tanner & Co. __________________ 104 · Hughes Dry Goods Store ________ 63 
Taylor, Joe· S. _____ _:_ ____________ .::_ 101 Max, Fred --------------------- 84 
Teter, W. J. Coal Co. _______ ___ __ 104 · Union Co. Farm Bureau Co-op. ___ 84 
30th & Central Sales Co. ________ 96 Union County National Bank ____ 63 
Triangle Marble & Tile __________ l04 Union County Sales Co. _________ 84 
Truemper, John C. & Son ________ ll4 LINTON 
Union Title Co. ________________ 104 Buck Creek Coal Co., Inc. ___ ____ 89 
Van Osdol, W. L--------------~-- 96 Central Inn Cafe ________________ 89 

, Wheeler's Restaurants -~--------101 Citizens Nat. Bank of Linton _____ 80 
Wege Marble & Tile Co. _________ 102 Clayton Funeral Home, Inc. ______ 89 
Wendel, Wm. H. __________ :._ ,_ ____ 114 Fitz Bakery -------------------- 89 
Western -,Shade Cloth Co. ________ 101 Gem 5 and 10c Store ____________ 80 
Wichmann, A. J. & Co. ___________ 114 Hamilton Drug Store ___ ________ 80 
Wilkinson, Allen A. ___ ___ _:_ ______ 96 Heenan Service Station --------- 89 
Williams, Joseph R. ______ _:_ ______ 114 Maxwell Furniture Co. ___ _______ 89 
Wilmeth, Roy ________________ __ 96 People's Trust Co. ______________ 80 

JASPER Powel & Norris _________________ 80 
D of I, K of C __________ ________ _ 95 Roosevelt Hotel ---------------- 89 
Dub,ois County Beverage Co. _____ 80 Stalcup's 5 and 10c Store _______ 89 
Dubois County Ice Co. __________ 95 Wolford, J. W. & Sons __________ :_ 80 
Dubois County State Bank _______ 95 LOGANSPORT 
German American Bank _________ 95 American Cleaners ------------- 85 
Hennessy, Mrs. Joseph H. __ ______ 95 New Barnes Hotel & Cafe _______ 85 
Hoosier Desk Co. ________________ 95 Swift & Co. --------------------- 85 
Indiana Desk Co. ________________ 95 Weinand's Lunch --------------- 85 
Jasper Cabinet Go. ______________ 95 Welsh's Grill ---------------------- 85 
Jasper Chair Co. ________________ 95 LOUISVILLE, KY. 
Jasper ·Desk Co. __________ __________ 80 Brickly, C. W. Lumber Co. _______ 77 
Jasper Office Furniture __________ 95 Huber & Huber Motor Express ___ 57 
Jasper Seating Co. __ ____________ 80 Humphrey Construction Co. ______ 77 
Jasper Veneer Mills _____________ 80 Keno Rosa Co. ---------- - - ------- 77 
Jas~er Wood Products Co. _______ 95 Rogers Church Goods Co. ________ 78 

" Newberry, J. J. Co. _____________ 95 Russell, J. F. & Co. _____________ 76 
Pfau, Henry ___________________ 95 MADISON 

· Victoria Mill & Elevator Co. _____ 95 Bear, Oscar C. _________________ _ 74 
JEFFERSONVILLE Cofield-Barber Grocery Co. _______ 74 

_ Anderson, Geo. S. Co. ___________ 73 Coleman Co. -------------------- 74 
Badger, Millard A. ______________ 73 Farmer's Store ---------------- 74 
Blackman Motor Sales___________ 73 Haigh Funeral Home____________ 7 4 
Clark County Ice Cream Co. _ _:___ _ 73 Inglis Drug Store --------------- 7 4 
Clark County Restaurant_ _______ 73 Knoebel, John & Son ____________ 74 
Cooks, Clyde F ._________________ 73 Madison Bottling Works_________ 7 4 
Crooker, H. N. __________________ 73 Madison Light and Power Co. ____ 74 
Falls City Transfer Co. __ _;_ _______ 73 Madison Utilities Corp. __________ 74 
Guthrie Bros. & James ____ _____ 106 Main Motor Co._________________ 7 4 
Hibstenberg, John ________ ____ __ 106 Miller, W. H. & Sons ____________ 74 
Hughes, Hal K. _________________ 106 Morris 5c & 10c to $1.00 Store ____ 74 
Ingram Sand & Gravel Co. _______ 73 Wetzel's Drug Store _____________ 74 
Jacobs, Allen W . ________________ 106 MARION 
Madden, John M.________________ 73 Osborn Paper Co. ______________ _ 9,1 
Myers, P. F., Lumber Co. ________ 73 MOUNT VERNON 
Pfeff er's Bakery ________________ 73 Futhrer Ford Mill Co. ___________ 90 
Reeder, C. D. ___________________ 73 Holzmeier, Louis _______________ 90 
Shannon's Dairy ________________ 73 Home Mill & Grain Co., Inc. ___ _ - 90 
Taxi No. 666 ___________________ 73 Kelly DeFur & Son ___________ __ - 90 
Vissing, Wm. H. ________________ 73 Mt. Vernon Creamery Co. ______ _:__ 90 
Voigt, Geo. F. & Sons ___________ 77 Mt. Vernon Milling Co _________ !:tv 

KOKOMO West :Baking Co.---------------- 90 
Becraft Motor Express ____________ 84 MUNCIE 
Central Farm Equip. Corp. ______ 84 Kuhner Packing Co. ______________ 69 
City. Fruit Store __________ _:_____ 84 NEW ALBANY 
Coady, Wm. M., Coal Co. ________ 84 Anchor Stove & Range Co. ________ 82 
Dietzen's Bakery _______________ 108 Bocard Distributing Co. _________ 82 
Farmers Coal and Feed Co. ______ 84 Bornwasser-Gwin Implement Co.__ 57 
Fritchey & Anderson ____________ 108 Brown, C. C. & Son _______________ 83 
Goodrich Silvertown Stores ______ 108 Darneal, Roy W. ________________ 82 
Higbee Body Co. ________________ 108 Dieckman, Willard G. ___________ 83 
Kokomo Transfer Co._____________ 84 Durbin, S. C. ___ _________ _____ _ _ 82 
Lewis, C. E. & Sons _____________ 84 Fair Store (The) ________________ 57 
Merit Shoe Store ________________ 84 Feiock, John E, _______________ ____ 57 
McIntosh's Laundry _________ ___ 84 Fench, C. F. Dr. ______ _____ ______ 83 
Sailors Brothers Co. _____________ 108 Gohmann-Kahler Corp. __________ 82 
Workman Coal Co. ______________ 84 Grant, W. T. Co. ________________ 57 
Turner's Department Store ______ l08 Hauswald, J. G, ______ ______ _____ 82 

LAFAYETTE Home Furn. and Carpet House ____ 82 
Auto Body Shop ________________ 97 Hopkins Fertilizer Co. ___________ 82 
Crown Laundry ________________ 92 Indiana Veneer & Panel Co. ______ 82 
Eisenbach, R. C, ________________ 97 Meyer, Edw. H, _________________ 82 
LaFayette Brewery, Inc. _________ 92 Mitchell, John B. _______ _________ 57 
Fashion Shop __________________ 97 Mutual Trust & Deposit Co. ______ 82 
Kresge, S. S. Co. Stores _________ 97 Nadorff, L. C. ___ ________________ 82 
Lyman Coal Co. ________________ 97 New Albany Business College ____ 57 
Schinaible Drug Co, _____________ 97 New Albany Ice & Cold Storage __ 57 
Wallace Hatchery _____ _________ 97 Paris, John M. _____________ :_ ____ 83 

LANESVILLE Purity Maid Products Co. ________ 83 
Lanesville Milling Co. ___________ 105 Pyle, Oda A. ____________________ 82 
Zabel, J. G. _______________ ___ ___ 105 Renn's Bottling Works ___________ 83 

LAWRENCEBURG St. Edward's Hospital_ _____ ______ 82 
Biddle, I. N., Jeweler_ ___________ 89 . Shine, J. H. & Co. __________ _____ _ 82 
Cook, A. D., Inc. ________________ 89 Shrader, L. J. Lumber, Inc. _______ 83 
Favorite Steam Laundry _________ 68 Thorn, L. & Sons ________ ________ 82 
F 'ewell's 5 to $1.00 Store __ ______ 89 Tighe, Edward J, ___ _____ ________ 83 
Fitch Bros.. Funeral Home ________ 79 Trinkle Motor Sales __________ ___ 57 
Klausing Motor Co. _____________ 68 Wright, H. W. ______ ____________ 82 
Koetkemeyer Motor Co. __________ 68 Yost, V. M. _____________________ 82 
Lawrenceburg Lumber Co. ____ ___ 89 Zapp's Dairy ___________________ 83 
Lawrenceburg Register --------- 89 NEW CASTLE 
Lawrenceburg Roller Mills Co. ----- 79 Century Press _____ ____ _________ 97 
Lommel's A. F . Drug Store ______ 68 New Castle Casket Co. __________ 108 
Moon & Schopmeyer Fun. Home_ 89 Rapp's Cut Price Store __________ 97 
Peoples Coal Co._______ ________ 89 Rose City Sanitary Dairy________ 97 
Peoples National Bank __________ 79 NORTH VERNON 
Ritzmann's Jerseydale Ice Cr, ____ 79 Diekhoff, George J. _____________ _ 73 
Seitz, Leo J. ---------------:----- 89 Dowd, Fletcher ___ ___________ ___ 73 
Sicking Meat Market_ _____ ·______ 89 First National Bank_____________ 73 
Stuber, Jacob --- ---- -------~--- 89 Fox, Philip _____________________ 73 

Krein Bros. ___ _________________ 73 
Metropole Hotel - ---------------- 73 
Union Bank & Trust Co. __ _______ 73 

NOTRE DAME 
University of Notre Dame _______ 1 

OLDENBURG 
I. C. Academy ___ _____ _______ _ Cover 

PLYMOUTH 
Bosworth Co. ___________________ 94 
Bunnell's Mortuary _____________ 83 
Coca-Cola Bottling Co. __________ 94 
Gates Chevrolet, Inc. ____________ 94 
G. & G. Grocery & Market_ ______ 94 
Morris, C. L. Lumber Co, ___ _:_ _____ 83 
Murphy & Yoder________________ 94 
Rudd Motor Co. ___ ______________ 94 

RICHMOND 
Bartel, Adam H. Co, ____________ 67 
Benham, Roy E. ______________ ___ 64 
Bevington, Cliff Co._____________ 64 
Big Shoe Store ______________ ____ 64 
Brinker Beverage Co.___ _________ 64 
Brinker, Matt __________________ 65 
Chase Electric Co.______________ 65 
Coble Casket Co. ------~-------- 66 
Commons Lumber Co. ______ _____ 64 
Davis Jewelry , Co, ____________ __ _ 87 
DeBolt, C. G. Const. Co. _________ 65 
DeHaven, D. E._________________ 73 
Dietzen's Bakery _______________ 66 
Downflake Shop Restaurant_ _____ 65 
DraGoo, Dr. F. W. _______________ 64 
Economy Plumbers _ __: ___________ 64 
El Souk Gift Shop______________ 65 
Ewbank & Kramer ______________ 64 
First National Bank _____________ 65 
Focht's Food Market_ ___________ 64 
Fox Radio Service ________________ 65 
Hasecoster, L. C. ________________ 67 
Hershauer's Auto Refin. Reprg. ___ 87 
Hershey's I. G. A. Market_ _______ 65 
Himes Bros. Dairy______________ 66 
Holthouse Furniture Store ______ 64 
Hoosier Stores ___________ ___ ___ 67 
Hudson's _______________________ 64 
Hutton, J. M. & Co. _____________ 66 
Indiana Tool Co. ________________ 64 
Irwin Chevrolet Sales______________ 67 
Jenkins Bros. __________________ 67 
Juerling, V. H. & Son ____________ 65 
Kantnok Gasoline Co. ___________ 66 
Kenny, C. D. Co. ________________ 64 
Kresge, S. S. ___ __ ___ ___________ _ 65 
Lahmann Plating Works_________ 65 
Lanning & Hoff ______ ___________ 65 
Luken's Drug Store ______________ 65 
Main Street Market_____________ 65 
Mid-West Casket Co. ____ ________ 87 
Miller-Kemper Lumber Co. _______ 64 
Monger, Forrest ________________ 64 
National Burial Vault Co. ________ 67 
Nicholson Printing Co. ___________ 65 
Niewoehner-Long Corp. _________ 66 
Oil Products Co. ________________ 64 
Patti, Harry _____ ________ ______ 65 
Peek's Cash Grocery_____________ 64 
Penney, J. C. Co. __ _________ ____ 67 
Phares Drug Store ______________ 67 
Richmond China & Glass Co._____ 64 
Richmond Electric Co. ___________ 65 
Richmond Gravel Co. ____________ 64 
Richmond Home Telephone Co.___ 87 
Richmond Lumber Co. ________ ___ 66 
Richmond Monument Shop _______ 65 
Roland-Swisher Co. _____________ 64 
Ruch, C. Edw, ___________________ 64 
Second National Bank___________ 67 
7th Street Super Serv. Sta. ___ ___ 67 
Smith & Sons Meat Market______ 64 
Starr Co. ______________________ 65 
Stolle, Anton & Sons ___________ _ 87 
Swayne, Robinson & Co._________ 66 
Tate Cleaning & Dyeing _________ 64 
Taylor & Thompson Coal Co. _____ 66 
Templin, W. S., LG.A. Store ______ 65 
Thornburg, Harry C. ______ ____ __ 65 
Tivoli Theatre _ -------------~--- 65 
Unser & Waltermann _________ ___ 66 
Washington Coal Co. ____________ 65 
Watt, F. N. Co. ________________ 64 
Wayne Roofing Co,. ______________ 64 
Williams, Perry T. -Co., Inc. ______ 65 

RUSHVILLE 
Moster's Funeral Home ________ __ 81 
Trennepohl, Wm. _____________ __ 90 

ST. MARY-OF-THE-WOODS 
St. Mary-of-Woods College _____ Cover 

ST. MEINRAD 
Ruxer, Alvin C, __________________ 75 
Ruxer, Frank A. ________________ 75 
St. Meinrad Abbey . ___________ Cover 

SEYMOUR 
Blish Milling Co. _________________ 72 
Central Pharmacal Co. ________ _:_ __ 72 
Gold Mine Dept. Store ___________ 78 
Jay C. Stores ___________________ 72 
Richarts Clothiers ______________ 72 
Seymour Motor Sales ____________ 78 
Seymour Woolen Mills __________ 72 
Tower Funeral Home ____________ 78 
Travis Carter Co. __________ :.: ____ 72 
Union Hardware Co. _____________ 72 
Yater Beverage Co. __ :_____________ 78 

SHELBYVILLE . 
Central States Grain Assn. _______ 75 
Chambers Corp. _________ _______ 75 
DePrez, Daniel, Mfg. Co.~-------- 75 
Ewing, Chas. M. _________ __:_c _____ 75 

Farmers National Bank __________ 75 
Fix, C. F. & Son _______ ~------- - 75 
Goodman's Dept. Store ___ __ ______ 75 
Jones, Stanley Agency, Inc. ____ __ 75 
Kennedy Car Liner & Bag. _______ 75 
Miller-Yarling Ice Cream ________ 75 
Sandman Bros. _________________ 75 
Scott & Snyder_________________ 75 
Shelby National Bank ___________ 75 
Sindlinger, C. P. ________________ 75 

SOUTH BEND 
Hagerman, H. J. & Co. __________ 83 
Hardman, H. M. & Son _________ = 83 
Indiana Cab Co. ___________ · _____ 74 
Muessel Brewing Co. _____________ 71 
O'Brien Varnish Co._____________ 7 4 
South Bend Wld. & Boiler Repr. __ 7 4 
Ullery, Harry D. Coal Co. ________ 7 4 

SULLIVAN 
Billman Funeral Home 94 
Smith's Bakery ------========--- 94 

TELL CITY 
Citizens National Bank ___ . 83 
Dauby Motor Co. ______ ------- 83 
Frederick's Store 72 
Gerber, W. J., Inc. ______________ 72 
Hauenstein, Albert _______ _ _____ 72 
Kessler's Pretzel Bakery ________ · 72 
Lambeck Bros. 72 

• Parkview Hospit~l-===----------- 72 
Rialto Theatre 72 
Schultz, Ed. J. __________ ------ 83 
Tell City Coca-Cola Bottling _____ 72 
Tell City Creamery Co. ____ ______ 72 
Tell City Monument Works______ 83 
Werner's Drug Store __________ 72 
Werner Motor Co - 83 
Zoerche~ Lou~ ________________ 83 

TERRE HAUTE 
Advance Electric Co. _____ 54 
Bell Bakeries, Inc. _______ ------- 54 
Coca-Cola Bottling Co. __ -------- 87 
Ermisch Bros., Inc. -------------== 54 
Hart's F'eed Stores ______ 54 
Johnson Butter Co. ______ -------- 54 
Joseph's ___________ -------- 54 
Kadel's Art Shop______________ 87 
Kirby, Marshall & Co., Inc•----== 54 
Krietenstein Gls. & Pt. _ 87 
Lammers, Edw. S. Pt. & Gls. ____ 54 
Leach, Herb, Quality Shop _______ 54 
Martin's Photo ~hop ____________ 87 
McCrory, J. G. Co. ______________ 87 
Merchants National Bank ________ 87 
Miller & Yeager _______________ 54 
Motor Freight Corp. ____________ 87 
Owsley's Apparel Shop __________ 54 
Peerless Wall Paper Store _______ 54 
Root Store _____________________ 87 
Sayre & Co, _____________________ 54 
Sears, Roebuck &Co. ____________ 54 
Smith Hardware Co. ____________ _ 87 
Snider, Adam & Co., Inc. _________ 87 
Sny_der's Art Store _____________ 54 
Sprmger Whitaker Foundry ______ 87 
Terre Haute Boiler Wks. ________ 87 
Terre Haute Engraving Co, ______ 54 
Terre Haute First Nat'l Bank ____ 54 
Terre Haute Fuel & Cold Storage _ 87 
Terre Haute Monument Co.______ 54 
Terre Haute Milk & Ice Cream ___ 54 
Terre Haute Savings Bank_____ 54 
Union Laundry ______ ----------= 87 
Walker Electric Supply Co. ______ 87 
Webster, Floyd G. _______ _______ 54 

TIPTON 
Commercial Printing Co. _________ 89 
Del Mar Beauty Salon ____________ 80 
Smitson's Laundry _____________ 89 
Tipton Hatchery _ __ ________ __ ___ 89 

TOLEDO, OHIO 
Art Mosaic & Tile Co. 77 

VINCENNES . ---
Bergman, Gerhard & Son ________ 94 
Ebner Ice & Cold Storage _______ 94 
Gardner, Dexter & Son __________ 94 
Merit Shoe Store _____ 94 
Tip Top Creamery ___ _______ ____ 94 

WASHINGTON 
Allen, B. Co. ___________________ 72 
Bogard, Nelson J. _______________ 72 
Bourgholtzer's Pict. Shop ________ 72 
Catt's Service Station ___ 72 
Community Loan Corp. __________ 78 
Eaton & Wagner ________ _______ 78 
Farmers Garage, Inc. ____________ 88 
Hanson, Harry __________________ 88 
Hastings, Ralph G. _______________ 88 
Indiana Theatre ________________ 88 
Interstate Loan Corp. _____ ________ 88 
Lambert Cleaner _______________ 88 
Meredith Hotel _______ ___________ 88 
Paristyle Ladies' Wear __________ 88 
Peoples National Bank __________ 88 
Reliance Mfg. Co. _______________ 78 
Simpson, W. M. Lumber Co. ______ 88 
Smith's Service Grocery _________ 72 
Staver 5c 10c Store _____________ 88 
Tip Top Creamery Co. __________ 78 
Tucker & Williams ______________ 72 
Ward Auto Co., Inc. · ____________ 78 
Williams, Elwood _____ __________ 88 

WEST BADEN 
Sullivan Hotel ____ _____ _________ 84 

WINAMAC 
First Union Bank ______________ 90 
Fry and Lange ________________ 90 
Kelly, John H. __ ________________ 90 



FLANN-ER .& BUCHANAN MORTUARY 
Talbot 4400 

FALL CREEK BOULEVARD AT MERIDIAN 

_ Robert L. St. Pierre ( of the Cathedral Parish) Managing ·Director 

Immaculate Conception 
Academy 

- ·OLDENBURG, IND. 

Big Four R. R. Station: Batesville-Miq.way Between Cincinnati and Indianapolis 

SPECIAL ·· DEPARTMENTS: 
· . . 

Conserv_atory of Music, Art, 
Expression, Domestic Science, 

Needlework 

COURSES: 

Junior College; Two-Year Normal, 
State Accredited; High School, State 

Commissioned; Commercial 

/ 
. Class of Aspirants-Regular High School Course with Academy Students 

Affiliated with the Catholic University of Washington, D. C., the University of Cincinnati, Cincinnati Conservatory of Music, and 
accredited by the Indiana State Normal 

FOR CAT_.l\.LOGUE ADDRESS: 

SISTER DIB.ECTRESS 
/ 

OLDENBURG, IND. 



Indiana's Largest Highway Freight System 
"By Service We Grow" 

Agencies: 

SERVING Alexandria ... . ..... ...... Phone 66 
Anderson ... ...... . .... . Phone 530 

Terminals: 
Argos . .. .. ....... . .... . . Phone 29 
Bedford .. . ............. Main 1709 

LOUISVILLE .. .. .... . .. JAckson 4195 Bloomington ... .......... Phine 5519 

INDIANAPOLIS .. '. .. Lincoln 3575-35,76 Columbus ............... Phone 307 

CINCINNATI . .. ....... . Parkway 5530 
MARION . .... . . .. .. .... Phone 3423 

Huntington .. .. . . · .. ..... Phone 224 
Kokomo ... . . . .. ; .. .... Phone 4325 

TERRE HAUTE ... ... . Crawford 1680 Peru .. ..... . . ......... Phone 1955 

FORT WAYNE ..... . ... Harrison 3275 Plymouth ........ .. . .... Phone 388 

SOUTH BEND ... ....... Phone 4-5911 Rochester . . ....... ...... Phone 507 

MUNCIE . . . ............ Ph one 3490 Seymour ......... . ...... Phone 761 
Wabash .. .. .............. . Main 6 

AND POINTS BETWEEN 

DENNY MOTORS TRUCKING EXHIBIT AT THE CENTURY OF PROGRESS EXPOSITION 

DENNY MOTOR TRANSFER CO. 
Incorporated 

ALL LINES CERTIFICATED 

INDIANAPOLIS TERMINAL, 336 West McCarty St. 

1 HOUR and 33 MINUTES 
of RADIO OPERATION 

for 1 CENT 
• Like a magic carpet, the modern radio set 

brings the world to your own fireside . Cheap 

electricity opero.tes your radio for 1 hour and 

33 minutes at a cost of only one cent . . . 

gives you an entire evening's entertainment for 

the family at the cost of a postage stamp. In 

,many other ways electricity serves you every 

day by adding to your comfort, convenience 

and pleasure. With the cost of electric service 

so low ... and its advantages so great 

every home benefits by electric service. 

PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY 
OF INDIANA 
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